

CITY OF GRASS VALLEY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT ENGINEERING DIVISION

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS, SPECIAL PROVISIONS, AND CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

FOR

MCCOURTNEY ROAD ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PROJECT NO. 19-03

MCCOURTNEY ROAD ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PROJECT NO. 19-03



Bjorn P. Jones, PE City Engineer

Date

11/25/25

CITY OF GRASS VALLEY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT ENGINEERING DIVISION

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS

Sealed proposals for the work shown on the plans entitled:

MCCOURTNEY ROAD ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PROJECT NO. 19-03

Bids will be received at the City of Grass Valley, Engineering Division, 125 East Main Street, Grass Valley, CA 95945 until **3:30 P.M. on December 18, 2025** at which time they will be publicly opened and read aloud at said address. Any Protest regarding the award of the contract must be submitted pursuant to the instructions stated in the special provisions.

GENERAL WORK DESCRIPTION:

The scope of work, in general, includes; installation of concrete sidewalk, curb, gutter and accessible ramps, drainage improvements, hot mix asphalt paving and pavement marking modifications. Other related items not mentioned above, that are required by the plans, specifications or these Special Provisions shall be performed, placed, constructed, or installed.

Project Location: McCourtney Road and portions of Brighton Street in Grass Valley, California

The Engineer's estimate for this project is \$1,250,000

The time of completion shall consist of 50 Working Days

BID INFORMATION:

Bids are required for the entire work described herein. The City of Grass Valley reserves the right to postpone the date and time for the opening of proposals at any time prior to the date and time announced in the advertisement in accordance with applicable law.

No pre-bid meeting is scheduled for this project.

The City of Grass Valley reserves the right to reject any and all bids or to waive any minor defects or irregularity in bidding in accordance with applicable law. In accordance with California Public Contract Code Section 20103.8, if the City elects to award a contract for performance of the project, the contract will be awarded in accordance with California Public Contract Code Section 20162 and other applicable law to the responsible bidder submitting a responsive bid with the lowest total bid price for the base bid without consideration of the bid price for any additive or deductive items. All bids will remain valid for 90 days after the bid opening. Except as permitted by law and subject to all applicable remedies, including forfeiture of bidder's security, bidders may not withdraw their bid during the 90 day period after the bid opening.

THIS PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO THE "BUY AMERICA" PROVISIONS OF THE SURFACE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE ACT OF 1982 AS AMENDED BY THE INTERMODAL SURFACE TRANSPORTATION EFFICIENCY ACT OF 1991.

This contract is subject to state contract nondiscrimination and compliance requirements pursuant to Government Code, Section 12990.

Attention is directed to the requirements specified in Section 3-1.06, "Contractor License", of the Standard Specifications. The Contractor shall possess a valid California Class "A" Contractor's License, or a combination of the following classes: C-8 - Concrete Contractor, C12 - Earthwork and Paving Contractors, C31 - Construction Zone Traffic Control Contractor, C32 - Parking and Highway Improvement Contractor, C34 - Pipeline Contractor, C45 - Sign Contractor, and D-63 Construction Cleanup Contractor, and all other classes required by the categories and types of work included in the contract at the time of the bid award. All licenses shall remain in effect throughout the term of the contract.

Plans, specifications and proposal forms for bidding this project can be obtained directly from the City of Grass Valley, Engineering Division, 125 E. Main Street, Grass Valley, CA 95945, Telephone (530) 274-4373. A non-refundable fee of seventy dollars (\$70.00) per bid set will be charged if picked up, or ninety (\$90.00) per bid set if mailed. Alternatively, bidders may download an electronic copy of the bid set free of charge from the City's website at http://www.cityofgrassvalley.com/departments/engineering/rfpsrfqs-and-current-bids

The City reserves the right, during the bid process and prior to the deadline for submitting bids, to issue one or more addenda, clarifications, or other communication concerning the bid process, including possible changes as to the time, place, and manner for submitting bids. The City will provide this information to any potential bidder who has obtained a bid package directly from the City. The City will also provide notice of the availability of revisions/addenda to any potential bidder who has obtained a bid package electronically from a contractor bid room or other source, if that bidder has provided a request for revisions, including the bidder's name, company, mailing address, phone number, email or fax number and the project name that the bidder is requesting notifications for. The request for revisions shall be submitted as soon as possible, but no later than five (5) business days prior to the date specified for opening bids in the manner described below:

- Faxes: To the attention of the Project Manager, at (530) 274-4399.
- Emailed: To the attention of the Project Manager at: bjornj@cityofgrassvalley.com
- Mailed: To the attention of the Project Manager, City of Grass Valley, Engineering Division, 125 East Main Street, Grass Valley, CA 95945

Bidders who do not purchase bid documents directly from the City of Grass Valley, but who have requested to receive revisions as described above, shall only receive email and/or fax notices of the availability of revisions/addenda. It shall be the bidder's responsibility to access the actual revisions/addenda as electronic copies from the City's website.

The City will also endeavor to provide such revisions/addenda to any contractor bid room which has requested copies of the bid documents. The City takes no responsibility for notifying a bidder who does not obtain bid documents from the City or does not provide the specified request for revisions to the City. Such bidder may be found non-responsive if that bidder fails to acknowledge, as set forth herein, any addenda or does not take into account any additional information provided by the City.

All questions concerning this project shall be provided in writing as soon as reasonably possible, but no later than five (5) working days before the date specified for opening bids. Questions received less than five (5) working days before the date specified for opening bids may not be answered. All questions must be received by the City, in the manner described below.

- Faxes: To the attention of the Project Manager, at (530) 274-4399.
- Emailed: To the attention of the Project Manager at: bjornj@cityofgrassvalley.com
- Mailed: To the attention of the Project Manager, City of Grass Valley, Engineering Division, 125 East Main Street, Grass Valley, CA 95945

Bidders are responsible to confirm receipt of written questions by the Engineering Division. Additionally, the City will answer a bidder's question only if the bidder provides the City a means for a response, including a telephone number, address, and fax number.

Bid Bonds shall be required for this project. The successful bidder shall be required to furnish a Payment Bond and a Performance Bond and certificates of liability and property damage insurance. The amounts of liability and property damage insurance will not be less than the amounts shown in the Contract and shall also include the endorsements specified.

Bidders are urged to obtain DBE participation on this project, although there are no specific goals for DBE participation.

The City of Grass Valley hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award.

Pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the general prevailing rate of wages for Nevada County have been determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations (DIR). These wages are set forth in the General Prevailing Wage Rates for this project, may be examined at the office of the Engineering Division, City of Grass Valley and are available from the California Department of Industrial Relations' Internet web site at http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD. The Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates in effect on the date the work is accomplished will apply to work done under this Contract.

A contractor or subcontractor shall not be qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal, subject to the requirements of Section 4104 of the Public Contract Code, or engage in the performance of any contract for public work, as defined in this chapter, unless currently registered and qualified to perform public work pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5. It is not a violation of this section for an unregistered contractor to submit a bid that is authorized by Section 7029.1 of the Business and Professions Code or by Section 10164 or 20103.5 of the Public Contract Code, provided the contractor is registered to perform public work pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5 at the time the contract is awarded.

The Federal minimum wage rates for this project as predetermined by the United States Secretary of Labor are set forth in the Bid book and in copies of this book that may be examined at the offices described above where project plans, special provisions, and bid forms may be seen. Addenda to modify the Federal minimum wage rates, if necessary, will be issued to holders of Bid book. Future effective general prevailing wage rates, which have been predetermined and are on file with the California Department of Industrial Relations are referenced but not printed in the general prevailing wage rates.

Attention is directed to the Federal minimum wage rate requirements in the Bid book. If there is a difference between the minimum wage rates predetermined by the Secretary of Labor and the general prevailing wage rates determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations for similar classifications of labor, the Contractor and subcontractors shall pay not less than the higher wage rate. The Department will not accept lower State wage rates not specifically included in the Federal minimum wage determinations. This includes "helper" (or other classifications based on hours of experience) or any other classification not appearing in the Federal wage determinations. Where Federal wage determinations do not contain the State wage rate determination otherwise available for use by the Contractor and subcontractors, the Contractor and subcontractors shall pay not less than the Federal minimum wage rate, which most closely approximates the duties of the employees in question.

Dated: November 25, 2025

BJORN P. JONES CITY ENGINEER CITY OF GRASS VALLEY ENGINEERING DIVISION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>P</u>	<u>age Number</u>
INSTRUCTIONS	S TO BIDDERS	1
	NERAL SPECIFICATIONS AND PLANSGENERAL	
1-1.01 1-1.02	REVISED STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARD PLANS	
1-1.02	DEFINITIONS AND TERMS	
	DING	
2-1.01	GENERAL	9
2-1.02	REQUIRED LISTING OF PROPOSED PRODUCTS "OR EQUALS"	
2-1.03	SUBCONTRACTOR LIST BIDDER'S SECURITY	
2-1.04 2-1.05	NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT	
2-1.05 2-1.06	DISADVANTAGE BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) GOAL	
2-1.06 2-1.07	FEDERAL LOBBYING RESTRICTIONS	
	NTRACT AWARD AND EXECUTION	
3-1.01	GENERAL	
3-1.02	AWARD OF CONTRACT	
3-1.03	CONTRACT BONDS	12
SECTION 4 BEG	GINNING OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION, AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	12
4-1.01	GENERAL	
4-1.02	HOLIDAYS	12
4-1.03	WINTERIZATION	12
4-1.04	PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE	13
4-1.05	ARCHAEOLOGICAL FINDS	13
4-1.06	EXTRA WORK	13
4-1.07	SCOPE OF WORK	13
4-1.08	ELIMINATION OF ITEMS OF WORK	13
SECTION 5 GEN	NERAL	13
CECTION 5.1	MICCELLANEOUC	12
SECTION 5-1	MISCELLANEOUS	
5-1.01	LABOR NONDISCRIMINATION	
5-1.02	LABOR CODE REQUIREMENTS	
5-1.03	PREVAILING WAGE	
5-1.04	DBE REQUIREMENTS	
5-1.05	FEMALE AND MINORITY GOALS	
5-1.06 5-1.07	BUY AMERICAFEDERAL-AID REQUIREMENTS	
5-1.07 5-1.08	TITLE VI ASSURANCES	
5-1.08 5-1.09	TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND SURVEILLANCE EQUIPMENT	
5-1.09 5-1.10	SUBCONTRACTING	
5-1.10 5-1.11	PROMPT PAYMENT	
5-1.11 5-1.11.1	PAYMENT FROM THE CITY TO THE CONTRACTOR	
5-1.11.2	SUBMITTAL OF EXHIBIT 9-P	
5-1.11.3	PROMPT PROGRESS PAYMENT TO SUBCONTRACTORS	
5-1.11.4	PROMPT PAYMENT OF WITHHELD FUNDS TO SUBCONTRACTORS	
5-1.11.5	INTEREST ON PAYMENTS	
5-1.12 5-1.12	WITHHOLDS	
5-1.12	PLANS AND WORKING DRAWINGS	
5-1.14	EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, CONTRACT, AND SITE OF W	
5-1.15	CHANGED CONDITIONS	
5-1.15.1		
5-1.15.2	SUSPENSIONS OF WORK ORDERED BY THE ENGINEER	

	SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE CHARACTER OF WORK	
5-1.16	VALUE ENGINEERING	
5-1.17	PUBLIC SAFETY	
5-1.18	QUALITY ASSURANCE	19
5-1.19	RESPONSIBILITY TO OTHER ENTITIES	
5-1.20	AREAS FOR CONTRACTOR'S USE	
5-1.21	SOUND CONTROL REQUIREMENTS	
5-1.22	PROJECT APPEARANCE	
5-1.23	RECORDS	
5-1.24	RELATIONS WITH CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOAF	
5-1.25	CONTRACTOR'S LICENSING LAWS	
5-1.26	ARBITRATION	
5-1.27	NOTICE OF POTENTIAL CLAIM	23
5-1.28	FINAL PAYMENT AND CLAIMS	23
5-1.29	SURFACE MINING AND RECLAMATION ACT	
5-1.30	REMOVAL OF ASBESTOS AND HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES	
5-1.31	EXCAVATION SAFETY PLANS	2 4
5-1.32	AIR POLLUTION CONTROL	24
5-1.33	PERMITS	2 4
5-1.34	INSURANCE	2 4
5-1.3	34.1 WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE	25
5-1.3	34.2 GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE	25
5-1.3	34.3 CONFORMITY OF COVERAGES	25
5-1.3	34.4 ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS	26
5-1.3	34.5 ENDORSEMENTS	26
5-1.3		2 <i>6</i>
5-1.35	WARRANTY	
SECTION (DI	ANK)	25
SECTION 6 (BLA	4NK)	2 /
SECTION 7 (BL	ANK)	27
SECTION 8 MA	ΓERIALS	27
SECTION 8-1	MISCELLANEOUS PREQUALIFIED SIGNING AND DELINEATION MATERIALS	27
SECTION 8-2	PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE	27
SECTION 9 (BLA	ANK)	28
SECTION 10	CONSTRUCTION DETAILS	28
SECTION 10-1	GENERAL	
10-1.01	SCOPE OF WORK	
10-1.01	GENERAL REQUIREMENTS	
10-1.02	REQUEST FOR INFORMATION	
10-1.03	LINES AND GRADES	
10-1.04	WATER POLLUTION CONTROL	
10-1.03		
	.05.2 WATER POLLUTION CONTROL IMPLEMENTATION	
	.05.3 PAYMENT	
	.05.4 CONSTRUCTION SITE MANAGEMENT	
	.05.5 TEMPORARY CONCRETE WASHOUT FACILITY	
10-1.06	PROPERTY AND FACILITY PRESERVATION	
10-1.07	COOPERATION	
10-1.07	CALTRANS PERMIT	
10-1.09	PROGRESS SCHEDULE	
10-1.09	OBSTRUCTIONS	
10-1.10	DUST CONTROL	
10-1.11	MOBILIZATION	
10-1.12	CONSTRUCTION AREA TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES	
10-1.13	CONSTRUCTION AREA TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES	44

	CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGNS	
10-1.15	TEMPORARY OBJECT MARKERS	45
	MAINTAINING TRAFFIC	
10-1.17	CLOSURE REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS	
10-1.	7.1 CLOSURE SCHEDULE	47
10-1.		
10-1.	7.3 LATE REOPENING OF CLOSURES	47
10-1.		47
10-1.18	TRAFFIC CONTROL SYSTEM	48
10-1.	8.1 TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN	49
10-1.19	FLAGGING COSTS	50
10-1.20	PORTABLE FLASHING BEACONS	50
	BARRICADES	
10-1.22	TEMPORARY PAVEMENT DELINEATION	50
10-1.2		
10-1.2	22.2 TEMPORARY LANELINE AND CENTERLINE DELINEATION	51
10-1.2		
10-1.2	22.4 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC STRIPE (TAPE)	52
10-1.2	22.5 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC STRIPE (PAINT)	52
10-1.2	,	
10-1.2		
10-1.2		
10-1.2	22.9 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT	53
	TEMPORARY RAILING	
	CHANNELIZERS	
	TEMPORARY CRASH CUSHION MODULE	
	DEMOLITION AND REMOVAL	
10-1.27	EXISTING FACILITIES	
10-1.2	27.1 REMOVE ASPHALT CONCRETE	56
10-1.2	27.2 REMOVE CONCRETE	56
10-1.2	27.3 REMOVE POST	57
10-1.2	27.4 REMOVE SIGN	57
10-1.2		
10-1.2		
10-1.2		
10-1.28	WATERING	58
10-1.29	EARTHWORK	
10-1.2	29.1 ROADWAY EXCAVATION	58
10-1.2		
	DRAINAGE INLET	
	DRAINAGE PIPE	
	ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION	
	UTILITY TRENCH BEDDING AND BACKFILL	
	SLURRY CEMENT BACKFILL	
	AGGREGATE BASE	
10-1.36	REINFORCEMENT	61
10-1.37	MINOR CONCRETE	61
10-1.38	DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE	62
	HOT MIX ASPHALT (HMA)	
	REMOVE AND REPLACE HMA	
	MISCELLANEOUS HMA	
10-1.42	SURFACE PREPARATION	64
10-1.4		
10-1.4	12.2 SURFACE CLEANING	64
10-1.4	42.3 HMA PATCHING	64
10-1.4		
10-1.43	MICROSURFACING	64
10-1.4	43.1 MATERIAL	64
10-1.4	13.2 MIX DESIGN	66

	10-1.	43.3	CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS	6	7
	10-1.	43.4	PAYMENT	6	9
	10-1.44	ADJ	UST VALVE COVER TO GRADE	7	0
	10-1.45	ADJ	UST MANHOLE COVER TO GRADE	7	0
	10-1.46		NTED TRAFFIC STRIPE AND PAVEMENT MARKING		
	10-1.47		OCATE ROADSIDE SIGN		
	10-1.48	ROA	DSIDE SIGN	7	2
	10-1.	48.1	FURNISH SIGN	7	3
	10-1.		SIGN MATERIALS		
	10-1.49	REC	TANGULAR RAPID FLASHING BEACON ASSEMBLY	7	5
	10-1.50	FINI	SHING ROADWAY	7	6
	10-1.51	NOT	IFICATION AND SCHEDULING	7	6
	10-1.52	REC	ORD DRAWINGS	7	8
CONSTRU	CTION C	ONTF	RACT	APPENDIX A	4
REQUIREI) FEDER	AL-AI	ID CONTRACT LANGUAGE	APPENDIX I	3
REQUIREI) FEDER	AL-AI	D CONTRACT PROVISIONS (FORM FHWA-1273)	APPENDIX (C
FEDERAL	WAGE R	ATE I	DETERMINATIONS	APPENDIX I)
PROPOSAI	L AND BI	DDER	R'S CERTIFICATES	EPARATE ATTACHMEN'	Т

CITY OF GRASS VALLEY ENGINEERING DIVISION

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

MCCOURTNEY ROAD ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PROJECT NO. 19-03

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

1. BIDDER'S REPRESENTATIONS

Each bidder by submitting a bid represents that:

- 1.1. The bidder has read and understands the bid package and the bid is in accordance with all of the requirements of the bid package and applicable law.
- 1.2. Neither the bidder nor any subcontractor included on the list of proposed subcontractors submitted with the bid are ineligible to perform work on public works projects pursuant to California Labor Code Sections 1777.1 or 1777.7.
- 1.3. The bidder understands that quantities of unit price items may vary from the estimates provided in the Special Provisions, proposal, technical specifications, and construction contract.
- 1.4. Representatives of the bidder have visited the Project site and have familiarized themselves with the conditions under which the Project work is to be performed to ensure that the Project work may be performed for the amount bid.
- 1.5. The bidder has informed the City in writing no later than five (5) working days prior to the time specified for bid opening of any apparent conflicts, errors, or ambiguities contained in the bid package or between the contents of the bid package and the Project site.

2. PRE-BID COMMUNICATION AND INTERPRETATION OF THE BID PACKAGE

- 2.1. Any bidder that discovers any apparent conflicts, errors, or ambiguities contained in the bid package or between the contents of the bid package and the Project site, or that has questions or requires clarification concerning the bid package or its intent must inform the City in writing as soon as reasonably possible, but no later than five (5) working days before the date specified in the bid opening. Such notice shall be sent as specified in the Notice to Contractors for questions concerning the bid package. Questions received less than five (5) working days before the time specified for opening bids may not be answered.
- 2.2. Any interpretation, correction or change of the bid package prior to bid opening will be made by addendum signed by the City Engineer and transmitted to all bid package recipients. No other interpretation or information concerning the bid package issued prior to the date specified for opening bids will be binding. All addenda signed by the City Engineer and issued prior to the time and date specified for opening bids will form a part of the contract documents and must be acknowledged on the bid forms. Any changes, exceptions or conditions concerning the Project and/or the bid package submitted by any bidder as part of a bid may render that bid non-responsive.
- 2.3. The City takes no responsibility for notifying a bidder who does not obtain bid documents from the City or does not provide the specified Request for Revisions statement to the City. Such bidder may be found non-responsive if that bidder fails to acknowledge, as set forth herein, any addenda or does not take into account any additional information provided by the City.
- 2.4. No other interpretation or information concerning the bid package issued prior to the date specified for opening bids will be binding. All addends signed by the City Engineer and issued prior to the time and date specified for opening bids will form a part of the contract documents and must be acknowledged on the bid forms. Any

changes, exceptions or conditions concerning the Project and/or the bid package submitted by any bidder as part of a bid may render that bid non-responsive.

3. PRE-BID ACCESS TO THE SITE

- 3.1. Prior to submitting a bid, it will be the sole responsibility of each bidder to conduct any additional examination, investigation, exploration, test, study or other inquiry and to obtain any additional information pertaining to the physical conditions (including surface, subsurface, and underground utilities) at or near the Project site that may affect the cost, progress, or performance of the Project, and that the bidder deems are necessary to prepare its bid for performance of the Project in accordance with the bid package and contract documents. Bidders seeking any such additional examination or other inquiries or information concerning the Project will do so at the bidder's sole expense.
- 3.2. Bidders seeking to conduct any additional examination or other inquiry at the Project site must request site access from the City at least two (2) working days in advance. The location of any excavation, boring or other invasive testing will be subject to approval on behalf of the City and any other agencies with jurisdiction over such testing. Bidders may not conduct tests at the Project site prior to obtaining City approval. The City may require bidders to execute an access agreement or encroachment permit prior to approving testing at the Project site. Once approved testing is complete, bidders shall fill all trenches or holes, restore all pavements to match the existing structural section, and otherwise clean up and restore the test site to its pre-test condition solely at the bidder's expense.
- 3.3. The Bidder's attention is directed to the requirements of Section 2-1.30, "Job Site and Documentation Examination," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

4. <u>BIDDING PROCEDURE</u>

- 4.1. Bids shall be delivered to the City of Grass Valley, Engineering Division, 125 East Main Street, Grass Valley, CA 95945, no later than the time and date specified in the Notice to Contractors. Bids will be opened and read publicly at that time. Bids that are submitted late according to the time shown on the official bid clock located in City Hall will be returned unopened. Telephones for use by bidders are not available at the City offices.
- 4.2. In accordance with California Public Contract Code Section 20170, bids must be presented under sealed cover. Bids must be submitted using the proposal forms furnished with the bid package. Bids must include all documents provided in the Proposal. Bids must bear the bidder's legal name and be signed by a representative authorized to bind the bidder. Bids shall be typed or written in ink. Corrections may be made if initialed by the bidder. No oral or telegraphic modifications of bids, including facsimile modifications, will be considered. Bids that are incomplete or that are not presented on the proposal forms furnished with the bid package may be deemed non-responsive.
- 4.3. Each bid must give the full business address of the bidder. Bids of partnerships must furnish the full name of all partners and must be signed in the partnership name by one of the members of the partnership, or by an authorized representative, followed by the printed name and title of the person signing. Bids of corporations must be signed with the legal name of the corporation, followed by the name of the state of incorporation and by the signature and designation of the president, secretary or other person authorized to bind the corporation. The name of each person signing shall also be typed or printed below the signature. Upon request of the City, bidders will furnish satisfactory evidence of the authority of the person signing the bid. Bids of joint ventures must include a certified copy of the legal agreement constituting the joint venture.
- 4.4. No person, firm, corporation, partnership, or legal joint venture may submit more than one bid for the Project. However, a person, firm, corporation, partnership or legal joint venture that has submitted a subcontract proposal to a bidder, or that has quoted prices on materials to a bidder may submit a subcontract proposal, quote prices to other bidders and submit its own bid.
- 4.5. In accordance with California Public Contract Code Section 20171, all bids must include one of the forms of security specified in Caltrans Standard Specifications in an amount of at least ten (10) percent of the total of the bid prices. Bidders that elect to provide bidder's security in the form of a bid bond must execute a bid bond using the form provided in the bid forms. The bidder's security is tendered as a guarantee that the successful bidder, if awarded the Project contract, will execute and submit to the City all required bonds, certificates of insurance, and completed contract forms and enter into a contract with the City within ten (10) working days of receipt of the

Notice of Award. The bidder's security of any successful bidder that fails to do so will be forfeited to the City. All bidders' security not forfeited to the City will be returned once a successful bidder provides all required documents and enters a contract with the City in accordance with all applicable bid package requirements. Forfeiture of the bidder's security to the City will not waive or otherwise limit any other remedy available to the City under applicable law.

- 4.6. In accordance with California Business and Professions Code Section 7028.15, Public Contract Code Section 20103.5, and as specified in the Notice to Contractors, all Project work must be performed by properly licensed contractors and subcontractors with active licenses in good standing as of the date and time specified for bid opening, or, if the Project involves federal funds, no later than the time the Project contract is awarded. Bidders must verify their Contractor's license number and license expiration date on the proposal cover page under penalty of perjury. Bids that do not satisfy applicable licensing requirements will be considered non-responsive and rejected and may subject the bidder to criminal and/or civil penalties. In addition, all licenses shall remain in effect throughout the term of the contract.
- 4.7. Bids may be withdrawn prior to the time set for bid opening by a written request signed by an authorized representative of the bidder filed with the City Engineer. The bid security submitted with bids so withdrawn will be returned to the bidder. Bidders that have withdrawn their bid in accordance with this provision may submit a new bid prior to the time set for bid opening in accordance with all applicable bid package requirements. Bids may not be withdrawn during the ninety-day period after the time set for bid opening except as permitted by law pursuant to California Public Contract Code Section 5100 and following. Any other bid withdrawal will result in forfeiture of the bidder's bid security to the City.
- 4.8. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 [commencing with Section 16700] of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professional Code), arising from purchases of goods, services or materials pursuant to the public works contract or the subcontract. This assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the awarding body tenders final payment to the contractor, without further acknowledgment to the parties.

5. BID OPENING

5.1. The City publicly opens and reads bids at the time and place shown on the Notice to Contractors

6. BID RIGGING

6.1. The U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) provides a toll-free hotline to report bid rigging activities. Use the hotline to report bid rigging, bidder collusion, and other fraudulent activities. The hotline number is (800) 424-9071. The service is available 24 hours 7 days a week and is confidential and anonymous. The hotline is part of the DOT's effort to identify and investigate highway construction contract fraud and abuse and is operated under the direction of the DOT Inspector General.

7. BID PROTESTS

Any protest of the proposed Project award must be submitted in writing to the City no later than 5:00 PM on the third business day following the date of the bid opening.

- 7.1. The initial protest must contain a complete statement of the basis for the protest.
- 7.2. The protest must state the facts and refer to the specific portion of the document or the specific statute that forms the basis for the protest. The protest must include the name, address, and telephone number of the person representing the protesting party.
- 7.3. The party filing the protest must concurrently transmit a copy of the initial protest to the apparent low bidder.
- 7.4. The party filing the protest must have actually submitted a bid for the Project. A subcontractor of a party filing a bid for the Project may not submit a bid protest. A party may not rely on the bid protest submitted by another bidder, but must timely pursue its own protest.

- 7.5. The procedure and time limits set forth in these Instructions to Bidders are mandatory and are the bidders' sole and exclusive remedy in the event of a bid protest. Any bidder's failure to fully comply with these procedures shall constitute a waiver of any right to further pursue a bid protest, including filing of a challenge of the award pursuant to the California Public Contract Code, filing of a claim pursuant to the California Government Code, or filing of any other legal proceedings.
- 7.6. The City shall review all timely protests prior to award of the Project. The City shall not be required to hold an administrative hearing to consider any protests, but may do so at its option. At the time of the City Council's consideration of the Project award, the City Council shall also consider the merits of any timely protests. The City Council may either reject the protest and award to the lowest responsible bidder or accept the protest and award the bid to the next lowest responsible bidder. Nothing in this section shall be construed as a waiver of the City Council's right to reject all bids.

8. AWARD

- 8.1. The bidder's attention is directed to the provisions in Section 3, "Contract Award and Execution", and Section 4, "Beginning of Work, Time of Completion and Liquidated Damages," of these Special Provisions.
- 8.2. In accordance with applicable law, the City reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any informality in any bid. The City reserves the right to accept any portion of any bid, unless the bid package expressly provides that the award will be made as a whole. If the City elects to award a contract for performance of the Project, the contract will be awarded in accordance with California Public Contract Code Section 20162 and other applicable law to the responsible bidder submitting a responsive bid with the lowest total bid price for the base bid and those additive or deductive alternate items listed in the Proposal. In accordance with the contract documents and other applicable law, the City may add or deduct items of work from the Project after the lowest responsible bidder is determined.
- 8.3. If the City awards the contract the award, the award is made to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder within 90 calendar days from the date bids are publicly opened and declared. If the award is not made within that period, all bids submitted are deemed rejected by the governing body.

A contract shall exist between the Contractor and the City when all of the following steps have been completed.

- (a) Award of the contract by the governing body.
- (b) Execution of a written contract by the Contractor within ten (10) working days of receipt of written notice of award.
- (c) Delivery by the Contractor to the City, the Faithful Performance and Labor and Materials bonds required herein, within ten (10) working days of receipt of written notice of award.
- (d) Delivery by the Contractor to the City, all City-approved Insurance Policies, on the appropriate forms, as required, within ten (10) working days of receipt of written notice of award.

Contractor shall execute a written agreement with the City using the form set forth hereafter.

- 8.4. The successful bidder and any subcontractors and others engaged in performance of the Project shall have valid local business licenses, as applicable, before commencing work on the Project.
- 8.5. Upon verifying that the successful bidder has provided complete, executed copies of all documents specified necessary to execute the contract and an authorized City representative has signed the contract, the Engineering Division will issue a Notice to Proceed in accordance with Section 4, "Beginning of Work, Time of Completion and Liquidated Damages," of these Special Provisions. The number of days within which the Project must be complete begins to run on the project commencement date.

9. CONTRACTOR LICENSE

9.1. The Contractor must be properly licensed as a contractor from contract award through Contract acceptance4

10. PRICING

- 10.1. Inconsistency of bid unit items, item prices, and/or totals shall be resolved in accordance with the requirements specified in the Proposal.
- 10.2. Any federal, state, or local tax payable on articles to be furnished for the Project shall be included in the lump sum total bid price and paid by the Contractor under the contract.

11. QUANTITIES

- 11.1. Quantities, including but not limited to, material or labor quantities, that are provided in the bid package concerning the Project are estimates only and are provided solely as a general indication of the Project scope. The City does not warrant that such quantity estimates provided in the bid package represent the actual quantities required to perform the Project in accordance with the contract documents. Such quantity estimates do not bind the City and bidders should not rely on them in preparing their bids. Each bidder is solely responsible for determining the quantities on which to base their bids in light of information contained in the bid package, bidder investigation and analysis of the Project and the Project site, and any other analysis or expertise of the bidder concerning the Project.
- 11.2. The City may amend, decrease or increase the Project work in accordance with the bidding package and the contract documents. If the City amends, decreases or increases the Project work prior to award of the Project, each bidder will be solely responsible for determining the revised quantities, if any, on which to base their bid in light of information contained in the bid package and any amendments or addenda to the bid package, bidder investigation and analysis of the Project as amended, decreased or increased, the Project site, and any other analysis or expertise of the bidder concerning the Project.

12. SUBSTITUTION OF "OR EQUAL" ITEMS

12.1. In accordance with California Public Contract Code Section 3400 concerning the submittal of an "or Equal" product, bidder's attention is directed to the requirements of Section 2-1.02, "Required Listing of Proposed Products "or Equals" with Bid Proposal" of these Special Provisions, and the Proposal.

13. SUBCONTRACTING

- 13.1. Bids must be in accordance with the requirements of the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act, California Public Contract Code Section 4100 and the following. Bids must include a completed list of proposed subcontractors on the form included in the bid package. In accordance with California Public Contract Code Section 4104, completed lists of proposed subcontractors must include the name, business location, the portion (type or trade), and dollar amount of the Project work to be subcontracted for each subcontractor that will perform a portion of the Project work (including special fabrication and installation of a portion of the work) valued in excess of one half on one percent of the total Project bid price. If the Project work includes construction of streets or highways, the completed list of proposed subcontractors must include the subcontractor name, business location, type of work and dollar amount to be subcontracted for each subcontractor that will perform a portion of the Project work (including special fabrications and installation of a portion of the work) valued in excess of one half of one percent of the total Project bid price, or ten thousand dollars (\$10,000), whichever is greater.
- 13.2. In accordance with California Public Contract Code Section 4106, for any portion of the Project work with a value of more than one half of one percent of the total Project bid price for which no subcontractor is listed, or for which more than one subcontractor is listed, bidders certify by submitting their bids that they are qualified to perform that portion of the Project work and that they will perform that portion of the Project work with their own forces. Bidders may not substitute another subcontractor for a subcontractor listed in their bid except as permitted by the City in accordance with Section 4107 and following of the California Public Contract Code.
- 13.3. Bidder's attention is directed to the requirements specified in "Subcontracting," of these Special Provisions and the Proposal.

14. ASSIGNMENT

- 14.1. Bidders may not assign, sublet, sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of their bid or any right, title or interest in their bid, or their obligations under their bid, without the written consent of the City Engineer. Any purported assignment, subletting, sale, transfer or other disposition of a bid or any interest in a bid, or of any obligations under a bid without such written consent will be void and of no effect.
- 14.2. Bidder's attention is directed to the requirements specified in Section 5-1.12, "Assignment," of the Construction Specifications.

15. BONDS

- 15.1. The successful bidder shall submit to the City a performance bond within ten (10) working days of receiving written notice of award. The successful bidder shall submit to the City a payment or labor and materials bond within ten (10) working days of receiving written notice of award. City shall retain the Performance Bond for a one-year guarantee period from the date of the City's acceptance of the work. All Project bonds shall be executed using the forms provided in the bid package.
- 15.2. The bonds shall be obtained from a California admitted surety that is licensed by the State of California to act as a surety upon bonds and undertakings and which maintains in this State at least one office for the conduct of its business. The surety shall furnish reports as to its financial condition from time to time upon request by City.
- 15.1. In accordance with California Civil Code Section 9550, labor and materials bond must be in the amount of one hundred percent of the total amount payable by the terms of the Project contract and guarantee payment to persons listed in California Civil Code Section 9100 for work performed and for charges for materials, supplies, and equipment provided under the Project contract (including amounts due under or subject to the Unemployment Insurance Code) in accordance with the requirements of California Civil Code Section 9554.
- 15.2. The performance bond must be in the amount of one hundred percent of the amount payable by the terms of the Project contract to guarantee the faithful performance of the Project work.
- 15.3. Bidder's attention is directed to the requirements specified in Section 3-1.05, "Contract Bonds," and "Warranty," of these Special Provisions, and the Contract.

16. LABOR LAWS

- 16.1. Bidders must comply with applicable provisions of the California Labor Code.
- 16.2. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the locality in which the Project is to be performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work fixed as provided in the California Labor Code shall be paid to all workers engaged in performing the Project.
- 16.3. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770 and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general prevailing wage per diem rates for work in the locality in which the Project is to be performed. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1773, the City has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the Project is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to perform the Project. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1773.2, copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages for Nevada County are on file at the City offices, 125 E. Main Street, Grass Valley, California 95945. These wage rates are not included in the Special Provisions but will be made available on request.
- 16.4. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1777.1, contractors and subcontractors that are found guilty of willfully violating Chapter 1 of Part 7 of Division 2 of the Labor Code (except for Section 1777.5), or that are found guilty of such violations with intent to defraud, and entities in which such contractors or subcontractors have any interest, may be ineligible to bid on, be awarded, or perform Project work as a subcontractor.
- 16.5. A contractor or subcontractor shall not be qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal, subject to the requirements of Section 4104 of the Public Contract Code, or engage in the performance of any contract for public work, as defined in this chapter, unless currently registered and qualified to perform public work pursuant to Section 1725.5. It is not a violation of this section for an unregistered contractor to submit a bid that is authorized

by Section 7029.1 of the Business and Professions Code or by Section 10164 or 20103.5 of the Public Contract Code, provided the contractor is registered to perform public work pursuant to Section 1725.5 at the time the contract is awarded.

16.6. Bidder's attention is directed to the requirements specified in "Prevailing Wage, "Labor Nondiscrimination," and "Labor Code Requirements," of these Special Provisions, and Section 7-1.02K, "Labor Code", of the Standard Specifications.

SECTION 1 GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS AND PLANS

1-1.01 GENERAL

The work embraced herein shall be done in accordance with the Project Plans, Standard Specifications and Standard Plans dated 2018 of the Department of Transportation, and the City of Grass Valley's Improvement Standards and in accordance with the following Special Provisions.

Amendments to the Department of Transportation's Standard Specifications set forth in these Special Provisions shall be considered as part of the Standard Specifications for the purposes set forth in Section 5-1.02, "Contract Components" of the Standard Specifications and are included as Attachment A to these Special Provisions. Whenever either the term "Standard Specification is amended" or the term "Standard Specifications are amended" is used in the Special Provisions, the text following said term shall be considered an amendment to the Standard Specifications. In case of conflict between such amendments and the Standard Specifications, the amendments shall take precedence over and be used in lieu of the conflicting portions.

In case of conflict between the City of Grass Valley's Improvement Standards, and these Special Provisions, the Special Provisions shall govern, take precedence over, and be used in lieu of such conflicting portions. The Department of Transportation's Standard Specifications and Standard Plans shall govern over the City of Grass Valley's Improvement Standards.

Units in the United States Standard Measures shall apply to this contract.

1-1.02 REVISED STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARD PLANS

All references to the Department of Transportation's Standard Specifications and Standard Plans shall be considered to include any revisions issued by the Office of Construction Contract Standards in effect at the time of printing of these Special Provisions.

Revised Standard Specifications and Standard Plans can be found on the Caltrans website as provided in the following link: http://www.dot.ca.gov/des/oe/construction-contract-standards.html.

1-1.03 DEFINITIONS AND TERMS

As used herein, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms have the following meaning:

City: City of Grass Valley.

City Engineer: The City Engineer of the City of Grass Valley, State of California.

City Hall: The City building located at 125 East Main Street, Grass Valley, California, 95945.

Contract Documents: All of the written matter describing the contemplated work, including the Plans, Special Provisions, Improvement Standards, Bonds, Agreement, and any approved Change Orders.

Department: The Engineering Department of the City of Grass Valley, State of California, except when referring to documents, laws or departments of the State of California. Any reference in question shall be as designated by the Engineer.

Department of Transportation: The Engineering Division of the City of Grass Valley, State of California, except when referring to documents, laws or departments of the State of California. Any reference in questions shall be as designated by the Engineer.

Director of Transportation: The City Engineer of the City of Grass Valley, State of California.

District Director of the District: The City Engineer of the City of Grass Valley, State of California.

Engineer: The City Engineer of the City of Grass Valley, State of California, acting either directly or through properly authorized agents, such agents acting within the scope of the particular duties entrusted to them.

Improvement Standards: The Design Standards, Construction Standards and Standard Details of the City of Grass Valley Public Works Department, Engineering Division

Laboratory: The established laboratory of the Materials and Research Department of the Department of Transportation of the State of California or laboratories authorized by the Engineer to test materials and work involved in the Contract, except

when referring to documents, laws or departments of the State of California. Any reference in question shall be as designated by the Engineer

Standard Plans: The latest edition of the Standard Plans of the State of California, Department of Transportation including any revisions to the Standard Plans issued by the Office of Construction Contract Standards in effect at the time of printing of these Special Provisions. Any reference therein to the State of California or a State agency, office, or officer shall be interpreted to refer to the City or it's corresponding agency, office, or officer acting under this contract.

Standard Specifications: The latest edition of the Standard Specifications of the State of California, Department of Transportation including any revisions to the Standard Specifications issued by the Office of Construction Contract Standards in effect at the time of printing of these Special Provisions. Any reference therein to the State of California or a State agency, office, or officer shall be interpreted to refer to the City or its corresponding agency, office, or officer acting under this contract.

State: The City of Grass Valley, except when referring to documents, laws or departments of the State of California. Any reference in question shall be as designated by the Engineer.

State Highway Engineer: The City Engineer of the City of Grass Valley, State of California, acting either directly or through properly authorized agents, such agents acting within the scope of the particular duties entrusted to them.

Transportation Building, Sacramento: City Hall of the City of Grass Valley, State of California except when referring to documents, laws or departments of the State of California. Any reference in question shall be as designated by the Engineer.

Working Day: Monday through Friday, except holidays, from 7am to 7pm, or as further specified in these Special Provisions.

Contractor's attention is directed to the definitions and terms specified in Section 1, "Purpose and Definitions," of the Design Standards and Section 1, "Purpose and Definitions," of the Construction Standards.

SECTION 2 BIDDING

2-1.01 GENERAL

The bidder's attention is directed to the provisions in Section 2, "Bidding," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions for the requirements and conditions which the bidder must observe in the preparation of the proposal form and the submission of the bid.

Each proposal shall include unit costs, and total costs for the base bid.

Bidders are required to specify a physical business street address to receive certified mail in accordance with the Proposal. The City shall be notified in writing a minimum of thirty (30) days in advance of any changes of address.

Section 2-1.06A, "General," of the Standard Specifications is replaced in its entirety with the following:

Improvement Standards may be viewed at the City of Grass Valley's website: http://www.cityofgrassvalley.com/services/departments/engineering/Standard Specifications and Drawings

The Notice to Contractors, Special Provisions, and Construction Contract, Proposal and Bidder's Certificates and Improvement Plans may be viewed at the City of Grass Valley website, http://www.cityofgrassvalley.com/services/departments/engineering/rfpsrfqs-and-current-bids, or at City Hall at 125 East Main Street, Grass Valley, CA 95945. The Proposal form is bound separate from the Contract and the Special Provisions.

In addition to the subcontractors required to be listed in conformance with, "Subcontractor List," of these Special Provision, each proposal shall have listed therein the portion of work that will be done by each subcontractor listed. Each Proposal shall have listed therein the name and address of each DBE subcontractor to be used for credit in meeting the goals and to whom the bidder proposes to directly subcontract with for that portion of the work. The listing subcontractor shall also set forth the portion of work that will be done by each subcontractor listed. A sheet for listing the subcontractors is included in the Proposal.

A contractor or subcontractor shall not be qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal, subject to the requirements of Section 4104 of the Public Contract Code, or engage in the performance of any contract for public work, as defined in this chapter, unless currently registered and qualified to perform public work pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5. It is not a violation of this section for an unregistered contractor to submit a bid that is authorized by Section 7029.1 of the Business and Professions Code or by Section 10164 or 20103.5 of the Public Contract Code, provided the contractor is registered to perform public work pursuant to Section 1725.5 at the time the contract is awarded.

In conformance with Public Contract Code Section 7106, a Noncollusion Affidavit is included in the Proposal. Signing the Proposal shall also constitute signature of the Noncollusion Affidavit.

The contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award and administration of Department of Transportation assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate. Each subcontract signed by the bidder must include this assurance.

Failure of the bidder to fulfill the requirements of the Special Provisions for submittals required to be furnished after bid opening, including but not limited to escrowed bid documents, where applicable, may subject the bidder to a determination of the bidder's responsibility in the event it is the apparent low bidder on any future public works contracts.

2-1.02 REQUIRED LISTING OF PROPOSED PRODUCTS "OR EQUALS"

On the sheet provided herein, to be submitted as part of the proposal, the bidder shall list each proposed substitution of an "equal" product. The bidder shall identify the proposed substitution by the section of the specifications that specifies the product, the name of the product proposed to be substituted out, and the name and manufacturer of the product proposed to be substituted. Prior to the award of the Contract and upon the request of the Engineer, the bidder shall submit the written request for substitution within three (3) days. The request shall be accompanied by evidence satisfactory to the Engineer that the materials and products proposed for use are equal to or better than the materials and products specified or detailed on the plans. The burden of proof as to the quality and suitability of substitutions shall be upon the bidder. Failure to submit the information as requested by the Engineer shall be deemed a voluntary withdrawal of the proposed substitution.

No requests for any substitution shall be allowed unless listed on the sheet provided. No requests for substitution shall be allowed after the opening of the bid. Requests for substitution shall be reviewed and considered by the Engineer promptly after the award of the contract to the lowest responsible Bidder. In its sole discretion, the Engineer may request additional information about the proposed substitution.

The decision by the Engineer as to whether a proposed substitution is an "Equal" product shall be made by the Engineer based upon the information submitted and will be final.

The Engineer will be the sole judge as to whether a proposed substitution is an "Equal" product. The Engineer's decision will be made based upon the information submitted and will be final.

A sheet for listing the proposed substitutions of an "Equal" product, as required herein, is included in the Proposal.

2-1.03 SUBCONTRACTOR LIST

Contractor's attention is directed to the requirements of "Subcontractor List" of the Standard Specifications, the Proposal, and these Special Provisions.

For each Subcontractor required to be listed, the Subcontractor List included in the proposal must show the **name and place of business**, California contractor license number and Public Works contractor registration number of each Subcontractor to whom the bidders proposes to directly subcontract portions of the work.

Additionally, if not otherwise included in the Subcontractor List submitted with the bid, the prime contractor shall submit a completed Subcontractor List within 24 hours of the bid opening setting forth the bid item number and percentage of the item work that will be done by each Subcontractor listed.

A sheet for listing the subcontractors, as required herein, is included in the Proposal.

2-1.04 BIDDER'S SECURITY

The form of Bidder's Bond mentioned in "Bidder's Security," of the Standard Specifications will be found following the signature page of the Proposal annexed hereto.

2-1.05 NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

In accordance with Public Contract Code 7106, a Non-Collusion Affidavit is included in the proposal.

2-1.06 DISADVANTAGE BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) GOAL

Bidders shall be fully informed respecting the requirements of the Code of Federal Regulations and are urged to obtain DBE participation in this project.

Caltrans has engaged the services of a contractor to provide supportive services to contractors and subcontractors to assist in obtaining DBE participation on federally funded construction projects. Bidders and potential subcontractors should check the Caltrans website at http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep to verify the current availability of this service.

This project is subject to Title 49, Part 26.13(b), Code of Federal Regulations [49 CFR26.13(b)]:

The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR, Part 26 (as amended) in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material

breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy, as recipient deems appropriate.

As of October 2025 DBE Contract Goal Setting, Counting, along with DBE monitoring and compliance, is suspended.

2-1.07 FEDERAL LOBBYING RESTRICTIONS

Section 1352, Title 31, United States Code prohibits Federal funds from being expended by the recipient or any lowertier sub-recipient of a Federal-aid contract to pay for any person for influencing or attempting to influence a Federal agency or Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal-aid contract, the making of any Federal grant or loan, or the entering into of any cooperative agreement.

If any funds other than Federal funds have been paid for the same purposes in connection with this Federal-aid contract, the recipient shall submit an executed certification and, if required, submit a completed disclosure form as part of the bid documents.

A certification for Federal-aid contracts regarding payment of funds to lobby Congress or a Federal agency is included in the Bid book. Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," with instructions for completion of the Standard Form is also included in the Bid book. Signing the Bid book shall constitute signature of the Certification.

The above referenced certification and disclosure of lobbying activities shall be included in each subcontract and any lower-tier contracts exceeding \$100,000. All disclosure forms, but not certifications, shall be forwarded from tier to tier until received by the Engineer.

The Contractor, subcontractors and any lower-tier contractors shall file a disclosure form at the end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs any event that requires disclosure or that materially affects the accuracy of the information contained in any disclosure form previously filed by the Contractor, subcontractors and any lower-tier contractors. An event that materially affects the accuracy of the information reported includes:

- (1) A cumulative increase if \$25,000 or more in the amount paid or expected to be paid for influencing or attempting to influence a covered federal action; or
- (2) A change in the person(s) or individual(s) influencing or attempting to influence a covered federal action; or
- (3) A change in the officer(s), employees(s), or member(s) contacted to influence or attempt to influence a covered Federal Action.

SECTION 3 CONTRACT AWARD AND EXECUTION

3-1.01 GENERAL

The bidder's attention is directed to the provisions in Section 3, "Contract Award and Execution," of the Standard Specifications, "Award," of the Instruction To Bidders of these Special Provisions, and these Special Provisions for the requirements and conditions concerning submittal of DBE information, award, and execution of contract.

Bid protests are to be delivered to the following address: Engineering Division, 125 East Main Street, Grass Valley, CA 95945.

The award of the contract, if it be awarded, will be to the lowest responsible bidder whose bid complies with all the requirements prescribed.

No contractor or subcontractor may be awarded a contract for public work on a public works project (awarded on or after April 1, 2015) unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5. This project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

The contract shall be executed by the successful bidder and shall be returned together with the contract bonds, to the Agency so that it is received within 10 days, not including Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, after the bidder has received the contract for execution. Failure to do so shall be just cause for forfeiture of the proposal guaranty. The executed contract documents shall be delivered to the following address: **Engineering Division**, 125 East Main Street, Grass Valley, CA 95945.

3-1.02 AWARD OF CONTRACT

The City of Grass Valley reserves the right to reject any and all bids or to waive any minor defects or irregularity in bidding in accordance with applicable law. In accordance with California Public Contract Code Section 20103.8, if the City elects to award a contract for performance of the project, the contract will be awarded in accordance with California Public Contract Code Section 20162 and other applicable law to the responsible bidder submitting a responsive bid with the lowest total bid price for the base bid without consideration of the bid price for any additive or deductive items. All bids will remain valid for 90 days after the bid opening. Except as permitted by law and subject to all applicable remedies, including forfeiture of bidder's security, bidders may not withdraw their bid during the 90 day period after the bid opening.

3-1.03 CONTRACT BONDS

Contractor shall provide, at the time of the execution of the agreement or contract for work, and at his own expense, a surety bond ("Performance Bond") in an amount equal to at least 100 percent (100%) of the contract price as security for the faithful performance of said agreement within the time prescribed, in a manner satisfactory to the Engineer, and that all materials and workmanship will be free from original or developed defects. This Performance Bond must remain in effect until the end of all warranty periods set forth in the Special Provisions. Contractor shall also provide, at the time of the execution of the agreement or contract for the work, and at his own expense, a separate surety bond ("Payment Bond") in an amount equal to at least 100 percent (100%) of the contract price as security for the payment of all persons performing labor and furnishing materials in connection with said agreement. This Payment Bond shall be maintained by the Contractor in full force and effect until the work is accepted by the City and until all claims for materials and labor are paid, and shall otherwise comply with Civil Code. Sureties on each of said bonds shall be satisfactory to the City Attorney.

Should any bond become insufficient, the Contractor shall renew the bond within ten (10) working days after receiving notice from the Engineer.

Should any Surety at any time be unsatisfactory to the City, notice will be given the Contractor to that effect. No further payments shall be deemed due or will be made under said agreement until a new Surety shall qualify and be accepted by the City.

Changes in said agreement of extensions of time, made pursuant to the agreement, shall in no way release the Contractor or Surety from its obligations. Notice of such changes or extensions shall be waived by the Surety.

SECTION 4 BEGINNING OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION, AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

4-1.01 GENERAL

Attention is directed to the provisions in Section 8-1.04, "Start of Job Site Activities," Section 8-1.05, "Time," and Section 8-1.10, "Liquidated Damages," of the Standard Specifications, and "General Requirements," of these Special Provisions.

The Contractor shall begin work within 15 calendar days after the issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

This work shall be diligently prosecuted to completion before the expiration of

50 Working Days

Beginning on the fifteenth calendar day after the date shown on the Notice to Proceed.

The Contractor shall pay to City of Grass Valley the sum of \$500 per day, as liquidated damages, for each and every calendar day delay in finishing the work in excess of the working days prescribed above. At the Engineer's option, said sum may be deducted from any payment due to or to become due the Contractor.

The 72 hours advance notice before beginning work specified in Section 8-1.04, "Start of Job Site Activities," of the Standard Specifications is changed to 5 days advance notice for this project.

4-1.02 HOLIDAYS

Designated legal holidays are: January 1st, the third Monday in January, the third Monday in February, the last Monday in May, July 4th, the first Monday in September, November 11th, Thanksgiving Day, the day after Thanksgiving day and December 24th, December 25th. When a designated legal holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be a designated legal holiday. When a designated legal holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be a designated legal holiday.

4-1.03 WINTERIZATION

The Contractor shall, at his sole expense, winterize the project if construction activities are not completed by October 15. The Contractor shall winterize the project in conformance with the requirements of "Water Pollution Control," of these Special Provisions for all construction activities that take place between October 15th and May 1st. An acceptable winterization plan shall be submitted to the Engineer no later than October 1st for his review and acceptance.

The Contractor's winterization plan is required for all construction activities that take place between October 15th and May 1st and shall be in conformance with the requirements of "Water Pollution Control," of these Special Provisions.

The intent of winterization is as follows:

- 1. To assure that erosion of earthen materials is prevented to greatest extent practicable.
- 2. To assure that storm waters are allowed to pass through the site without substantial damage to the project site.

After the acceptance of a winterization plan and the installation of all required temporary winterization measures, work may proceed after October 15th, if approval is obtained in writing from the California Regional Water Quality Control Board and the Engineer. All work done after October 15th must be able to be winterized within 24 hour notice.

Winter Suspension: The City may, at its option, suspend work between October 15th and May 1st of the following year. If this occurs, the entire site shall be winterized including areas not yet seeded or planted.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section, not otherwise provided for in other sections of these Special Provisions, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

4-1.04 PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE

A pre-construction conference will be held at the office of the City Engineer for the purpose of discussing with the Contractor the scope of work, contract drawings, specifications, existing conditions, materials to be ordered, equipment to be used, and all essential matters pertaining to the prosecution and the satisfactory completion of the project as required. The Contractor's representative at this conference shall include all major superintendents for the work and may include major subcontractors. A "Key Personnel and Emergency Phone Numbers" list (for which these key personnel could be contacted 24 hours per day, 7 days a week) shall be submitted to the City. Attendance by the Contractor or the Contractor's authorized representative is mandatory.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section, not otherwise provided for in other sections of these Special Provisions, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

4-1.05 ARCHAEOLOGICAL FINDS

All articles of archaeological interest, which may be uncovered by the Contractor during the progress of the work, shall be reported immediately to the Engineer. The further operations of the Contractor, with respect to the find will be decided under the direction of the Engineer.

4-1.06 EXTRA WORK

Section 4-1.05, "Changes and Extra Work," of the Standard Specifications is amended by adding the following between the second and third paragraphs:

If in the opinion of the Engineer, such work cannot reasonably be performed concurrently with other items of work, and if a controlling item of work is delayed thereby, an adjustment of contract time will be made.

4-1.07 SCOPE OF WORK

Shall conform to the provisions of Section 4, "Scope of Work," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

4-1.08 ELIMINATION OF ITEMS OF WORK

The Contractor's attention is directed to Section 4-1.05, "Changes and Extra Work," of the Standard Specifications concerning the elimination of items of work, and these Special Provisions.

SECTION 5 GENERAL

SECTION 5-1 MISCELLANEOUS

THE CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS SHALL COMPLY WITH CALIFORNIA LABOR CODE SECTIONS 1774 AND 1775, AND RELATED CODES.

5-1.01 LABOR NONDISCRIMINATION

Attention is directed to the following Notice that is required by Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2, California Code of Regulations.

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR NONDISCRIMINATION PROGRAM

(GOV. CODE, SECTION 12990)

Your attention is called to the "Nondiscrimination Clause", set forth in Section 7-1.02I(2), "Nondiscrimination," of the Standard Specifications, which is applicable to all nonexempt State contracts and subcontracts, and to the "Standard California Nondiscrimination Construction Contract Specifications" set forth therein. The specifications are applicable to all nonexempt State construction contracts and subcontracts of \$5,000 or more.

5-1.02 LABOR CODE REQUIREMENTS

For all new projects awarded on or after April 1, 2015, the contractors and subcontractors must furnish electronic certified payroll records to the Labor Commissioner. After January 1, 2015, the requirement to furnish electronic certified payroll records to the Labor Commissioner will apply to all public works projects, whether new or ongoing.

Attention is directed to the provisions in Section 7-1.02K(5), "Working Hours" and Section 7-1.02K(3), "Certified Payroll Records" of the Standard Specifications.

5-1.03 PREVAILING WAGE

Attention is directed to the provisions in Section 7-1.02K(2), "Wages" of the Standard Specifications.

The general prevailing wage rates and any applicable changes to these wage rates determined by the Director of Industrial Relations for Nevada County, may be examined at the City of Grass Valley Engineering Division Office and are available from the California Department of Industrial Relations' Internet web site at http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD. These wage rates are not included in the Proposal and Construction Contract for the project. Changes, if any, to the general prevailing wage rates will be available at the same location.

The general prevailing wage rates and any applicable changes to these wage rates determined by the United States Department of Labor, Branch of Construction Wage Determinations, for Nevada County, are available at the City of Grass Valley Engineering Division Office located at 125 East Main Street, Grass Valley, CA 95945 [telephone (530) 274-4373]. Changes, if any, to the general prevailing wage rates will be available at the same location.

General prevailing wage rates area also available on the SAM.gov: website https://sam.gov/search

The Contractor and any subcontractor shall pay each worker that is employed for any public work done under contract, not less than the higher of the prevailing wage rates as determined by the California Director of Industrial Relations and the United States Department of Labor, Branch of Construction Wage Determinations.

5-1.04 DBE REQUIREMENTS

This project is subject to Title 49, Part 26.13(b), Code of Federal Regulations [49 CFR26.13(b)]:

The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR, Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy, as recipient deems appropriate.

The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall take necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that DBEs have opportunity to participate in the contract (49 CFR 26). To ensure equal participation of DBEs provided in 49 CFR 26.5, the City shows a contract goal for DBEs. The prime contractor shall make work available to DBEs and select work parts consistent with available DBE subcontractors and suppliers.

The contractor's attention is directed to Exhibit 12-G, Required Federal-Aid Contract Language, incorporated as Appendix B of these Special Provisions. The contractor shall carry out all applicable requirements of Section 1 "Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE)" throughout the award and administration of this federal-aid contract.

5-1.05 FEMALE AND MINORITY GOALS

The contractor's attention is directed to Exhibit 12-G, Required Federal-Aid Contract Language, incorporated as Appendix B of these Special Provisions. The contractor shall carry out all applicable requirements of Section 12 "Female and Minority Goals" throughout the award and administration of this federal-aid contract.

5-1.06 BUY AMERICA

Buy America Requirements apply to steel and iron, manufactured products, and construction materials permanently incorporated into the project.

The contractor's attention is directed to Exhibit 12-G, Required Federal-Aid Contract Language, incorporated as Appendix B of these Special Provisions. The contractor shall carry out all applicable requirements of Section 8 "Buy America" in this federal-aid contract.

5-1.07 FEDERAL-AID REQUIREMENTS

The contractor's attention is directed to FHWA-1273, Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts, incorporated as Appendix C of these Special Provisions. The contractor shall be responsible for compliance with all applicable requirements of Form FHWA-1273 throughout the administration of this federal-aid contract.

5-1.08 TITLE VI ASSURANCES

The contractor's attention is directed to Exhibit 12-G, Required Federal-Aid Contract Language, incorporated as Appendix B of these Special Provisions. The contractor shall carry out all applicable requirements of Section 13 "Title VI Assurances" in this federal-aid contract.

5-1.09 TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND SURVEILLANCE EQUIPMENT

The contractor's attention is directed to Exhibit 12-G, Required Federal-Aid Contract Language, incorporated as Appendix B of these Special Provisions. The contractor shall carry out all applicable requirements of Section 15 "Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Equipment and Services" in this federal-aid contract.

5-1.10 SUBCONTRACTING

Attention is directed to the provisions in Section 5-1.13, "Subcontracting," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

All subcontractors doing work shall possess an appropriate valid California Contractor's License for the type of work the subcontractor will perform at the time of the bid submittal and the license shall remain in effect throughout the duration of employment on the job.

All applicable license designations and numbers for Subcontractors doing work in excess of \$1,000.00 shall be included on the LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS within the Proposal.

No subcontract releases the Contractor from the contract or relieves the Contractor of their responsibility for a subcontractor's work.

If the Contractor violates Pub Cont Code § 4100 et seq., the City of Grass Valley may exercise the remedies provided under Pub Cont Code § 4110. The City of Grass Valley may refer the violation to the Contractors State License Board as provided under Pub Cont Code § 4111.

The Contractor shall perform work equaling at least 30 percent of the value of the original total bid with the Contractor's own employees and equipment, owned or rented, with or without operators.

Each subcontract must comply with the contract.

Submit copies of subcontracts upon request by the Engineer.

Before subcontracted work starts, submit a Subcontracting Request form.

Pursuant to the provisions in Section 1777.1 of the Labor Code, the Labor Commissioner publishes and distributes a list of contractors ineligible to perform work as a subcontractor on a public works project. This list of debarred contractors is available from the Department of Industrial Relations web site at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSE/Debar.html

Upon request by the Engineer, immediately remove and not again use a subcontractor who fails to prosecute the work satisfactorily.

Each subcontract and any lower-tier subcontract that may in turn be made shall include the "Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts" in Section 14 of these special provisions. Noncompliance shall be corrected. Payment for subcontracted work involved will be withheld from progress payments due or to become due, until correction is made. Failure to comply may result in termination of the contract.

5-1.11 PROMPT PAYMENT

Attention is directed to Sections 9-1.16, "Progress Payments," and 9-1.17, "Payment After Contract Acceptance," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

5-1.11.1 PAYMENT FROM THE CITY TO THE CONTRACTOR

The City shall make all project progress payment within 30 days after receipt of an undisputed and properly submitted payment request from the Contractor on a construction contract. If the City fails to pay promptly, the City shall pay interest to the Contractor, which accrues at the rate of 10 percent per annum on the principal amount of a money judgment remaining unsatisfied and pro-rated as necessary. Upon receipt of the payment request, the City shall act in accordance with both of the following:

1. The City shall review each payment request as soon as feasible after receipt to verify it is a proper payment request.

2. The City must return any payment request deemed improper by the City to the Contractor as soon as feasible, but not later than seven (7) days, after receipt. A request returned pursuant to this paragraph shall include documentation setting forth in writing the reasons why it is an improper payment request.

5-1.11.2 SUBMITTAL OF EXHIBIT 9-P

The contractor's attention is directed to Exhibit 12-G, Required Federal-Aid Contract Language, incorporated as Appendix B of these Special Provisions. The contractor shall carry out all applicable requirements of Section 10 "Submittal of Exhibit 9-P" in this federal-aid contract.

5-1.11.3 PROMPT PROGRESS PAYMENT TO SUBCONTRACTORS

Attention is directed to the provisions in Sections 10262 and 10262.5 of the Public Contract Code concerning prompt payment to subcontractors. A prime contractor or subcontractor shall pay any subcontractor not later than 10 days of receipt of each progress payment in accordance with the provision in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code concerning prompt payment to subcontractors. The 10 days is applicable unless a longer period is agreed to in writing. Any delay or postponement of payment over 30 days may take place only for good cause and with the agency's prior written approval. Any violation of Section 7108.5 shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions and other remedies of that section. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime contractor, deficient subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subcontractor.

5-1.11.4 PROMPT PAYMENT OF WITHHELD FUNDS TO SUBCONTRACTORS

No retainage will be held by the agency from progress payments due the prime contractor. Any retainage kept by the prime contractor or by a subcontractor must be paid in full to the earning subcontractor in 30 days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment may take place only for good cause and with the agency's prior written approval. Any violation of these provisions shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions, and remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies, otherwise available to the contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the contractor, deficient subcontractor performance.

5-1.11.5 INTEREST ON PAYMENTS

Interest shall be payable on progress payments, payments after acceptance, final payments, extra work payments, and claim payments shall be in accordance with Section 9-1.03, "Payment Scope," of the Standard Specifications, the Standard Specifications, and these Special Provisions.

The rate of interest payable on any award in arbitration shall be 6 percent per annum if allowed under the provisions of Civil Code Section 3289.

5-1.12 WITHHOLDS

Payment of withheld funds shall conform to Section 9-1.16E, "Withholds," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Funds withheld from progress payments to ensure performance of the contract that are eligible for payment into escrow or to an escrow agent pursuant to Section 10263 of the California Public Contract Code do not include funds withheld or deducted from payment due to failure of the Contractor to fulfill a contract requirement.

5-1.13 PLANS AND WORKING DRAWINGS

When the specifications require working drawings to be submitted to the Division of Structure Design, the drawings shall be submitted to the Engineer, unless otherwise specifically noted.

5-1.14 EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, CONTRACT, AND SITE OF WORK

The third through seventh paragraph of Section 2-1.06B, "Supplemental Project Information," of the Standard Specifications is amended to read:

Where the Department has made investigations of site conditions, including subsurface conditions in areas where work is to be performed under the contract, or in other areas, some of which may constitute possible local material sources, bidders or Contractors may, upon written request, inspect the records of the Department as to those investigations subject to and upon the conditions hereinafter set forth.

Attention is directed to "Changed Site Conditions" of these Special Provisions regarding physical conditions at the site which may differ from those indicated in the Contract Documents.

5-1.15 CHANGED CONDITIONS

5-1.15.1 DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS

Attention is directed to Section 4-1.06, "Differing Site Conditions," of the Standard Specifications.

During the progress of the work, if subsurface or latent physical conditions are encountered at the site differing materially from those indicated in the contract or if unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature, differing materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in the work provided for in the contract, are encountered at the site, the party discovering such conditions shall promptly notify the other party in writing of the specific differing conditions before the site is disturbed and before the affected work is performed.

Upon written notification, the engineer will investigate the conditions, and if it is determined that the conditions materially differ and cause an increase or decrease in the cost or time required for the performance of any work under the contract, an adjustment, excluding anticipated profits, will be made and the contract modified in writing accordingly. The engineer will notify the contractor of the determination whether or not an adjustment of the contract is warranted.

No contract adjustment which results in a benefit to the contractor will be allowed unless the contractor has provided the required written notice.

5-1.15.2 SUSPENSIONS OF WORK ORDERED BY THE ENGINEER

If the performance of all or any portion of the work is suspended or delayed by the engineer in writing for an unreasonable period of time (not originally anticipated, customary, or inherent to the construction industry) and the contractor believes that additional compensation and/or contract time is due as a result of such suspension or delay, the contractor shall submit to the engineer in writing a request for adjustment within 7 calendar days of receipt of the notice to resume work. The request shall set forth the reasons and support for such adjustment.

Upon receipt, the engineer will evaluate the contractor's request. If the engineer agrees that the cost and/or time required for the performance of the contract has increased as a result of such suspension and the suspension was caused by conditions beyond the control of and not the fault of the contractor, its suppliers, or subcontractors at any approved tier, and not caused by weather, the engineer will make an adjustment (excluding profit) and modify the contract in writing accordingly. The contractor will be notified of the engineer's determination whether or not an adjustment of the contract is warranted.

No contract adjustment will be allowed unless the contractor has submitted the request for adjustment within the time prescribed.

No contract adjustment will be allowed under this clause to the extent that performance would have been suspended or delayed by any other cause, or for which an adjustment is provided or excluded under any other term or condition of this contract.

5-1.15.3 SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE CHARACTER OF WORK

The engineer reserves the right to make, in writing, at any time during the work, such changes in quantities and such alterations in the work as are necessary to satisfactorily complete the project. Such changes in quantities and alterations shall not invalidate the contract nor release the surety, and the contractor agrees to perform the work as altered.

If the alterations or changes in quantities significantly change the character of the work under the contract, whether such alterations or changes are in themselves significant changes to the character of the work or by affecting other work cause such other work to become significantly different in character, an adjustment, excluding anticipated profit, will be made to the contract. The basis for the adjustment shall be agreed upon prior to the performance of the work. If a basis cannot be agreed upon, then an adjustment will be made either for or against the contractor in such amount as the engineer may determine to be fair and equitable.

If the alterations or changes in quantities do not significantly change the character of the work to be performed under the contract, the altered work will be paid for as provided elsewhere in the contract.

The term "significant change" shall be construed to apply only to the following circumstances:

- When the character of the work as altered differs materially in kind or nature from that involved or included in the original proposed construction; or
- When a major item of work, as defined elsewhere in the contract, is increased in excess of 125 percent or decreased below 75 percent of the original contract quantity. Any allowance for an increase in quantity shall apply

only to that portion in excess of 125 percent of original contract item quantity, or in case of a decrease below 75 percent, to the actual amount of work performed.

The Contractor will be allowed 15 days from the notification of the Engineer's determination of whether or not an adjustment of the contract is warranted, in which to file a notice of potential claim in conformance with the provisions of Section 9-1.17D, "Final Payment and Claims," of the Standard Specifications and as specified herein; otherwise the decision of the Engineer shall be deemed to have been accepted by the Contractor as correct. The notice of potential claim shall set forth in what respects the Contractor's position differs from the Engineer's determination and provide any additional information obtained by the Contractor, including but not limited to additional geotechnical data. The notice of potential claim shall be accompanied by the Contractor's certification that the following were made in preparation of the bid: a review of the contract, Contract Documents, to the extent they were made available to bidders prior to the opening of bids, and an examination of the conditions above ground at the site. Supplementary information, obtained by the Contractor subsequent to the filing of the notice of potential claim, shall be submitted to the Engineer in an expeditious manner.

5-1.16 VALUE ENGINEERING

Attention is directed to Section 4-1.07, "Value Engineering," of the Standard Specifications.

Prior to preparing a written value engineering change proposal, the Contractor shall request a meeting with the Engineer to discuss the proposal in concept. Items of discussion will also include permit issues, impact on other projects, impact on the project schedule, peer reviews, overall merit of the proposal, and review times required by the City.

If a value engineering change proposal submitted by the Contractor, and subsequently approved by the Engineer, provides for a reduction in contract time, 50 percent of that contract time reduction shall be credited to the City by reducing the contract working days, not including plant establishment. Attention is directed to "Beginning of Work, Time of Completion and Liquidated Damages" of these Special Provisions regarding the working days.

If a value engineering change proposal submitted by the Contractor, and subsequently approved by the Engineer, provides for a reduction in traffic congestion or avoids traffic congestion during construction, 60 percent of the estimated net savings in construction costs attributable to the cost reduction proposal will be paid to the Contractor. In addition to the requirements in Section 4-1.07, "Value Engineering," of the Standard Specifications, the Contractor shall provide detailed comparisons of the traffic handling between the existing contract and the proposed change, and estimates of the traffic volumes and congestion.

5-1.17 PUBLIC SAFETY

The Contractor shall provide for the safety of traffic and the public in conformance with the provisions in Section 7-1.04, "Public Safety," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

The Contractor shall install temporary railing (Type K) between a lane open to public traffic and an excavation, obstacle or storage area when the following conditions exist:

- A. Excavations The near edge of the excavation is 12 feet or less from the edge of the lane, except:
 - 1. Excavations covered with sheet steel or concrete covers of adequate thickness to prevent accidental entry by traffic or the public.
 - 2. Excavations less than one foot deep.
 - 3. Trenches less than one foot wide for irrigation pipe or electrical conduit, or excavations less than one foot in diameter.
 - 4. Excavations parallel to the lane for the purpose of pavement widening or reconstruction.
 - 5. Excavations in side slopes, where the slope is steeper than 4:1 (horizontal: vertical).
 - 6. Excavations protected by existing barrier or railing.
- B. Temporarily Unprotected Permanent Obstacles The work includes the installation of a fixed obstacle together with a protective system, such as a sign structure together with protective railing, and the Contractor elects to install the obstacle prior to installing the protective system; or the Contractor, for the Contractor's convenience and with permission of the Engineer, removes a portion of an existing protective railing at an obstacle and does not replace such railing complete in place during the same day.
- C. Storage Areas Material or equipment is stored within 12 feet of the lane and the storage is not otherwise prohibited by the provisions of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

The approach end of temporary railing (Type K), installed in conformance with the provisions in this section "Public Safety" and in Section 7-1.04, "Public Safety," of the Standard Specifications, shall be offset a minimum of 15 feet from the edge of the traffic lane open to public traffic. The temporary railing shall be installed on a skew toward the edge of the traffic lane of not more than one foot transversely to 10 feet longitudinally with respect to the edge of the traffic lane. If the 15-foot minimum offset cannot be achieved, the temporary railing shall be installed on the 10 to 1 skew to obtain the maximum available offset between the approach end of the railing and the edge of the traffic lane, and an array of temporary crash cushion modules shall be installed at the approach end of the temporary railing.

Reflectors on temporary railing (Type K) shall conform to the provisions in "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials," of these Special Provisions.

Temporary crash cushion modules shall conform to the provisions in "Temporary Crash Cushion Module" of these Special Provisions.

Except for installing, maintaining and removing traffic control devices, whenever work is performed or equipment is operated in the following work areas, the Contractor shall close the adjacent traffic lane unless otherwise provided in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions:

Approach Speed of Public Traffic (Posted Limit) (Miles Per Hour)	Work Areas
Over 45	Within 6 feet of a traffic lane but not on a traffic lane
35 to 45	Within 3 feet of a traffic lane but not on a traffic lane

The lane closure provisions of this section shall not apply if the work area is protected by permanent or temporary railing or barrier.

When traffic cones or delineators are used to delineate a temporary edge of a traffic lane, the line of cones or delineators shall be considered to be the edge of the traffic lane, however, the Contractor shall not reduce the width of an existing lane to less than 10 feet without written approval from the Engineer.

When work is not in progress on a trench or other excavation that required closure of an adjacent lane, the traffic cones or portable delineators used for the lane closure shall be placed off of and adjacent to the edge of the traveled way. The spacing of the cones or delineators shall be not more than the spacing used for the lane closure.

Suspended loads or equipment shall not be moved nor positioned over public traffic or pedestrians facilities.

Special Requirements:

The Contractor attention is directed to "Notification and Scheduling," of these Special Provisions. The Contractor shall notify the Police Department, Fire Departments, Ambulance Service, Schools, CHP, Caltrans, and the Engineer forty-eight (48) hours prior to any lane closure. Notification may be in conjunction with the scheduling requirements of the "Scheduling" portion of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. The Contractor shall coordinate traffic control with the Sheriff's Department with respect to any special events that may be affected by construction activities. Particular attention shall be given to the construction of adequate facilities on any street to permit the passing of emergency vehicles.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions in this section "Public Safety," including furnishing and installing temporary railing (Type K) and temporary crash cushion modules, shall be considered as included in the contract prices paid for the various items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

5-1.18 OUALITY ASSURANCE

The City uses a Quality Assurance Program (QAP) to ensure a material is produced to comply with the Contract. The City may examine the records and reports of tests the prime contractor performs if they are available at the job site. Schedule work to allow time for QAP.

Testing of materials and work shall conform to the provisions in "Quality Assurance," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Whenever the provisions of "Quality Assurance" of the Standard Specifications refer to tests or testing, it shall mean tests to assure the quality and to determine the acceptability of the materials and work.

The Engineer will refer to the "Quality Assurance Program" for acceptance testing requirements as appropriate for the project's size and scope. Minor quantities of materials from a known, reliable source may be accepted without testing if: a visual inspection of the material is performed and the supplier certifies that the material complies with specification requirements.

For construction materials that have been accepted by a Certificate of Compliance, job site inspection of materials tags and delivery notices shall be performed to verify acceptability of the supplied materials. As directed by the Engineer, further acceptance sampling and testing may be performed at the locations and frequencies as given in the "Quality Assurance Program"

The Engineer will deduct the costs for testing of materials and work found to be unacceptable, as determined by the tests performed by the Department, and the costs for testing of material sources identified by the Contractor which are not used for the work, from moneys due or to become due to the Contractor. The amount deducted will be determined by the Engineer.

5-1.19 RESPONSIBILITY TO OTHER ENTITIES

The Contractor shall be responsible for any liability imposed by law and for injuries to or death of any person including, but not limited to, workers and the public or damage to property, and shall indemnify and save harmless any county, city or district, its officers and employees connected with the work, within the limits of which county, city or district the work is being performed, all in the same manner and to the same extent conforming to the provisions in Section 7-1.05, "Indemnification," and Section 7-1.06, "Insurance," of the Standard Specifications, for the protection of the State of California and all officers and employees thereof connected with the work.

5-1.20 AREAS FOR CONTRACTOR'S USE

Attention is directed to the provisions in Section 5-1.32, "Areas for Use," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

The project area (contract limits) shall be used only for purposes that are necessary to perform the required work. The Contractor shall not occupy the right of way, or allow others to occupy the right of way, for purposes which are not necessary to perform the required work.

No area is available for the exclusive use of the Contractor within the contract limits. The Contractor shall secure, at the Contractor's own expense, areas required for plant sites, storage of equipment or materials, or for other purposes.

Residence trailers will not be allowed within the project site.

The Contractor shall remove equipment, materials, and rubbish from the work areas and other City-owned property which the Contractor occupies. The Contractor shall leave the areas in a presentable condition in conformance with the provisions in "Cleanup," of the Standard Specifications.

The Contractor shall secure, at the Contractor's own expense, areas required for plant sites, storage of equipment or materials or for other purposes, if sufficient area is not available to the Contractor within the contract limits, or at the sites designated on the plans outside the contract limits.

The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions to protect the staging area from chemical contamination due to oil or fuel spills or any other contaminants. If contamination occurs, the site shall be decontaminated to the satisfaction of the Engineer prior to further improvement to the contaminated area or to further construction activities in general, whichever is applicable as determined by the Engineer. Methods of decontamination shall include any method deemed appropriate by the Engineer including removal and disposition of the contaminated soils in conformance with CEQA and regulatory agency requirements.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section, including furnishing all labor, materials, grading, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all work associated with this section shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

5-1.21 SOUND CONTROL REQUIREMENTS

The noise level from the Contractor's operations, between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., shall not exceed 86 dBa at a distance of 50 feet, unless night work is otherwise permitted by the City Engineer. This requirement shall not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for complying with local ordinances regulating noise level.

All equipment shall have sound-control devices no less effective than those provided on the original equipment. No equipment shall have an unmuffled exhaust. As directed by the Engineer, the Contractor shall implement the appropriate additional noise mitigation measures including, but not limited to, shutting off idling equipment, or additional notifications of adjacent residents than already specified in these Special Provisions.

The noise level requirement shall apply to the equipment on the job or related to the job, including but not limited to trucks, transit mixers or transient equipment that may or may not be owned by the Contractor. The use of loud sound signals shall be avoided in favor of light warnings except those required by safety laws for the protection of personnel.

Full compensation for conforming to the requirements of this section shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

5-1.22 PROJECT APPEARANCE

The Contractor shall maintain a neat appearance to the work and shall cleanup all tracked material and debris on a daily

In areas visible to the public, the following shall apply:

A. Broken concrete and debris developed during clearing and grubbing shall be disposed of concurrently with its removal. If stockpiling is necessary, the material shall be removed or disposed of weekly.

- B. Mud, dirt, soil, and any debris resulted in trail from equipment and construction will be cleaned and cleared from the roadway and away from traffic daily.
- C. The Contractor shall furnish trash bins for all debris from construction. All debris shall be placed in trash bins daily. Forms or falsework that are to be reused shall be stacked neatly concurrently with their removal. Forms and falsework that are not to be reused are to be disposed of concurrently with their removal.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions in this section, not otherwise provided for, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

5-1.23 RECORDS

The Contractor shall maintain cost accounting records for the contract pertaining to, and in such a manner as to provide a clear distinction between, the following six categories of costs of work during the life of the contract:

- A. Direct costs of contract item work.
- B. Direct costs of changes in character in conformance with Section 4-1.05B, "Work-Character Changes," of the Standard Specifications.
- C. Direct costs of extra work in conformance with Section 4-1.05, "Changes and Extra Work," of the Standard Specifications.
- D. Direct costs of work not required by the contract and performed for others.
- E. Direct costs of work performed under a notice of potential claim in conformance with the provisions in Section 9-1.17D(2), "Claim Statement," of the Standard Specifications.
- F. Indirect costs of overhead.

Cost accounting records shall include the information specified for extra work in Section 4-1.05, "Changes and Extra Work," of the Standard Specifications. The requirements for furnishing the Engineer completed daily extra work reports shall only apply to work paid for on a force account basis.

The cost accounting records for the contract shall be maintained separately from other contracts, during the life of the contract, and for a period of not less than 3 years after the date of acceptance of the contract. If the Contractor intends to file claims against the Department, the Contractor shall keep the cost accounting records specified above until complete resolution of all claims has been reached.

5-1.24 RELATIONS WITH CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD

The location of the project is within an area controlled by the Regional Water Quality Control Board. The Contractor shall be fully informed of rules, regulations, and conditions that may govern the Contractor's operations in the areas and shall conduct the work accordingly.

Copies of the order may be obtained at the City of Grass Valley Engineering Division Office located at 125 East Main Street, Grass Valley, CA 95945 [telephone (530) 274-4373].

Attention is directed to Section 5-1.36, "Property and Facility Preservation," and Section 7-1.05, "Indemnification," and Section 7-1.06, "Insurance," of the Standard Specifications.

5-1.25 CONTRACTOR'S LICENSING LAWS

Attention is directed to the requirements specified in Section 3-1.06, "Contractor License", of the Standard Specifications. The Contractor shall possess a valid California Class "A" Contractor's License, or a combination of the following classes: C-8 - Concrete Contractor, C12 - Earthwork and Paving Contractors, C31 - Construction Zone Traffic Control Contractor, C32 - Parking and Highway Improvement Contractor, C34 - Pipeline Contractor, C45 - Sign Contractor, and D-63 Construction Cleanup Contractor, and all other classes required by the categories and types of work included in the contract at the time of the bid award. All licenses shall remain in effect throughout the term of the contract.

5-1.26 ARBITRATION

Section 9-1.22, "Arbitration," of the Standard Specifications is amended in its entirety to read as follows:

Section 9-1.22, "Dispute Resolution"

9-1.22 All claims filed with the City must be in writing and include the documents necessary to substantiate the claim. Claims must be filed within the time limits set forth in this contract. In no circumstances, however, may a claim be filed after the day of final payment. Nothing in this subsection is intended to extend the time limit or supersede notice requirements for the filing of claims as set forth elsewhere in this contract.

1) Claims of \$50,000.00 or Less

- (a) The City will respond in writing to all written claims less than or equal to fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00) within forty-five (45) days of receipt of the claim. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the claim, the City may request any additional documentation supporting the claim or relating to defenses or claims the City may have against the claimant.
- (b) If additional information is thereafter required, it shall be requested and provided pursuant to this subsection, upon mutual agreement of the City and the claimant.
- (c) The City's written response to the claim, as further documented, shall be submitted to the claimant within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the further documentation or within a period of time no greater than that taken by the claimant in producing the additional information, whichever is greater.

2) Claims Between \$50,000.01 and \$375,000.00

- (a) The City will respond in writing to all written claims between fifty thousand dollars and one cent (\$50,000.01) and less than or equal to three hundred seventy-five thousand dollars (\$375,000.00), within sixty (60) days of receipt of the claim. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the claim, the City may request, in writing, any additional documentation supporting the claim or relating to defense to the claim the City may have against the claimant.
- (b) If additional information is thereafter required, it shall be requested and provided pursuant to this Subdivision, upon mutual agreement of the City and the claimant.
- (c) The City's written response to the claim, as further documented, shall be submitted to the claimant with in thirty (30) days after receipt of the further documentation or within a period of time no greater than that taken by the claimant in producing the additional information or requested documents, whichever is greater.
- 3) <u>Claims in Excess of \$375,000.00</u> The City shall, within a reasonable time after the presentation of any claim in excess of \$375,000.00, make a decision in writing on such claim.

4) Meet and Confer Conference

- (a) If the claimant disputes the City's written response, or the City fails to respond within the time prescribed, the claimant may so notify the City, in writing, either within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the City's response or within fifteen (15) days of the City's failure to respond within the time prescribed, respectively, and demand an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon a demand, the City shall schedule a meet and confer conference within thirty (30) days for settlement of the dispute.
- (b) If, following the meet and confer conference, the claim or any portion thereof remains in dispute, the claimant may file a claim pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the California Government Code. For the purposes of those provisions, the running of the period of time within which a claim must be filed shall be tolled from the time the claimant submits his or her written claim pursuant to this Section until the time that claim is denied as a result of the meet and confer process, including any period of time utilized by the meet and confer process.
- 5) <u>Contractor's Duty During Claim Resolution</u>: The Contractor shall proceed with the Work in accordance with the plans and specifications and determinations and instructions of the City Engineer during the resolution of any claims disputes.
- 6) <u>Certification</u>. The Contractor shall certify in writing, at the time of submission of any claim, as follows:

I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that the claim is made in good faith, that the supporting data are accurate and complete, and that the amount requested accurately reflects the monies due for work performed under the Contract for which the City of Grass Valley is liable.

By:	
(Contractor's signature)	

- 7) <u>City Remedies.</u> In the event the Contractor refuses or neglects to make good any loss or damage for which the Contractor is responsible under this Contract, the City may itself, or by the employment of others, make good any such loss or damage, and the cost and expense of doing so, including any reasonable engineering, legal and other consultant fees, and any costs of administrative and managerial services, shall be charged to the Contractor. Such costs and expenses may be deducted by the City from claims for payment made by the Contractor for work completed or remaining to be completed.
- 8) Assignment. In entering into a public works contract or a subcontract to supply goods, services, or materials pursuant to this contract, the Contractor and all subcontractors shall offer and agree to assign to the City all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 [commencing with Section 16700] of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services or materials pursuant to the public works contract or subcontract. This assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the City tenders final payment to the Contractor, without further acknowledgment by the parties.
- 9) Contractor Waiver and Limitation. The Contractor agrees that it can be adequately compensated by money damages for any breach of this Contract which may be committed by the City and hereby agrees that no default, act, or omission of the City or the Engineer, shall constitute a material breach of the Contract entitling the Contractor to cancel or rescind the provisions of this Contract or (unless the City shall so consent or direct in writing) to suspend or abandon performance of all or any part of the work. The Contractor hereby waives any and all rights and remedies to which it might otherwise be or become entitled, save only its right to money damages.
- 10) <u>Venue</u>. Any litigation arising out of this Contract shall be brought in the Superior Court of Nevada County, and the Contractor hereby waives the removal provisions of Code of Civil Procedure Section 394.

5-1.27 NOTICE OF POTENTIAL CLAIM

Attention is directed to the requirements specified in Section 5-1.43, "Potential Claims And Dispute Resolution," of the Standard Specifications.

5-1.28 FINAL PAYMENT AND CLAIMS

Attention is directed to Section 9-1.17D, "Final Payment and Claims," of the Standard Specifications.

If the Contractor files a timely written statement of claims in response to the proposed final estimate, the City will submit a claim position letter to the Contractor by hand delivery or deposit in the U.S. mail. The claim position letter will delineate the City's position on the Contractor's claims. If the Contractor disagrees with the claim position letter, the Contractor shall submit a written notification of its disagreement to be received by the City not later than 15 days after the Contractor's receipt of the claim position letter. The written notification of disagreement shall set forth the basis for the Contractor's disagreement and be submitted to the office designated in the claim position letter. The Contractor's failure to provide a timely, written notification of disagreement shall constitute the Contractor's acceptance and agreement with the determinations provided in the claim position letter and with final payment pursuant to the claim position letter.

If the Contractor files a timely notification of disagreement with the City claim position letter, the City Engineer or a board of review appointed by the City Engineer shall review claims that remain in dispute and may meet with the Contractor within 45 days after receipt by the City of the notification of disagreement. Attendance by the Contractor at the City meeting concerning the notification of disagreement shall be mandatory.

If the City fails to submit a claim position letter to the Contractor within 135 days after the acceptance of the contract and the Contractor has claims that remain in dispute, the Contractor may request a meeting with the City Engineer or a board of review appointed by the City Engineer to review claims that remain in dispute. The Contractor's request for a meeting shall identify the claims that remain in dispute. If the Contractor files a request for a meeting, the City Engineer or a board of review appointed by the City Engineer will meet with the Contractor within 45 days after the City receives the request for the meeting. Attendance by the Contractor at this review meeting shall be mandatory.

Failure of the Contractor to file a timely written statement of claims in response to the proposed final estimate, or to file a timely notification of disagreement with the City's claim position letter, or to attend the City's review meeting shall constitute a failure to pursue diligently and exhaust the administrative remedies in the contract and shall be a bar to future legal proceedings by Contractor.

5-1.29 SURFACE MINING AND RECLAMATION ACT

Attention is directed to the Surface Mining and Reclamation Act of 1975, commencing in Public Resources Code, Mining and Geology, Section 2710, which establishes regulations pertinent to surface mining operations, and to California Public Contract Code Section 10295.5.

Material from mining operations furnished for this project shall only come from permitted sites in compliance with California Public Contract Code Section 10295.5.

5-1.30 REMOVAL OF ASBESTOS AND HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES

When the presence of asbestos or hazardous substances are not shown on the plans or indicated in the specifications and the Contractor encounters materials which the Contractor reasonably believes to be asbestos or a hazardous substance as defined in Section 25914.1 of the Health and Safety Code, and the asbestos or hazardous substance has not been rendered harmless, the Contractor may continue work in unaffected areas reasonably believed to be safe. The Contractor shall immediately cease work in the affected area and report the condition to the Engineer in writing.

In conformance with Section 25914.1 of the Health and Safety Code, removal of asbestos or hazardous substances including exploratory work to identify and determine the extent of the asbestos or hazardous substance will be performed by separate contract.

If delay of work in the area delays the current controlling operation, the delay will be considered a right of way delay and the Contractor will be compensated for the delay in conformance with the provisions in Section 8-1.07, " Delays," of the Standard Specifications.

5-1.31 EXCAVATION SAFETY PLANS

The Contractor's attention is directed to requirements of "Earthwork," of the Special Provisions concerning Temporary Shoring Plan and Section 7-1.02K(6)(b), "Excavation Safety," of the Standard Specifications.

The Contractor shall submit a Temporary Shoring Safety System Plan to the Engineer in accordance with "Earthwork," of these Special Provisions. The Contractors attention is directed to the requirements specified in Section "Earthwork," of these Special Provisions.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section, not otherwise provided for in other sections of these Special Provisions, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

5-1.32 AIR POLLUTION CONTROL

Air pollution control shall conform to the provisions of Section 14-9, "Air Quality," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

No burning of materials to be disposed of will be permitted for this project.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section including, but not limited to, obtaining permits and performing work in accordance with any permit requirements, not otherwise provided for, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

5-1.33 PERMITS

Attention is directed to the provisions in Sections 5-1.20B, "Permits, Licenses, Agreements, and Certifications," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions in this Section and to the requirements in the permit, not otherwise provided for in other sections of these Special Provisions, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

5-1.34 INSURANCE

Throughout the period of this agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall provide the following minimum insurance coverage as listed below. CONTRACTOR shall file with CITY certificate(s) of Insurance and endorsements, in a form acceptable to CITY, and consistent with this agreement at the time of execution of this agreement. The insurance company must be acceptable to CITY, with a Best's Rating of no less than A:VII. Documentation of such rating acceptable to the CITY shall be provided at the same time Insurance Certificates are submitted.

Any deductibles must be declared to, and approved by, the City.

In the event any of the required policies are canceled prior to the completion of the project and the CONTRACTOR does not furnish a new certificate(s) of insurance prior to cancellation, the CITY may obtain the required insurance and deduct the premium(s) from Contract monies due the CONTRACTOR.

5-1.34.1 WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain adequate Workers' Compensation Insurance under the Laws of the State of California. CONTRACTOR shall fully comply with the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake self insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, before commencing the performance of the work. CONTRACTOR shall require all subcontractors to maintain adequate Workers' Compensation Insurance. Certificates of such Workers' Compensation shall be filed forthwith with the CITY upon demand.

By CONTRACTOR'S signature hereunder, CONTRACTOR certifies that he/she is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and he/she will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of this Contract. If such insurance is underwritten by any agency other than State Compensation Fund, such agency shall be a company authorized to do business in the State of California.

Worker's Compensation Insurance shall be provided as required by any applicable law or regulation. Employer's liability insurance shall be provided in amounts not less than the following:

One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) each accident for bodily injury by accident

One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) policy limit for bodily injury by disease

One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) each employee for bodily injury by disease

If there is an exposure of injury to CONTRACTOR'S employees under the U.S. Longshoremen's and Harbor Worker's Compensation Act, the Jones Act, or under laws, regulations, or statutes applicable to maritime employees, coverage shall be included for such injuries or claims.

Each Worker's Compensation policy shall be endorsed with the following specific language:

Cancellation Notice: "This policy shall not be canceled or materially changed without first giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City of Grass Valley."

Waiver of Subrogation: "The Insurance Company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the City of Grass Valley, its elected or appointed officials, agents, employees and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of this policy which arise from the work performed by the Named Insured for the City of Grass Valley.

5-1.34.2 GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

Commercial General Liability insurance covering all operations by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, providing insurance for bodily injury liability and property damage liability for the limits of liability indicated below and including coverage for: premises; operations; products and completed operations; contractual liability insuring the obligations assumed by CONTRACTOR in this Agreement; broad form property damage (including completed operations); explosion, collapse, and underground hazards; personal injury liability.

Except with respect to bodily injury and property damage included within the products and completed operations hazards, the aggregate limits, where applicable, shall apply separately to CONTRACTOR'S work under the Contract.

One of the following forms is required: Commercial General Liability (Occurrence); or Commercial General Liability (Claims Made).

If CONTRACTOR carries a Commercial General Liability (Occurrence) policy:

- 1. The limits of liability shall not be less than:
- > One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) each occurrence (combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage)
 - One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) Personal Injury Liability
 - Two Million dollars (\$2,000,000) Products-Completed Operations
 - Two Million dollars (\$2,000,000) General Aggregate
- 2. If the policy does not have an endorsement providing that the General Aggregate Limit applies separately, or if defense costs are included in the aggregate limits, then the required aggregate limits shall be Two Million dollars (\$2,000,000).

5-1.34.3 CONFORMITY OF COVERAGES

If more than one policy is used to meet the required coverages, such as a separate umbrella policy, such policies shall be consistent with all other applicable policies used to meet these minimum requirements. For example, all policies shall be Occurrence Liability policies, or all shall be Claims Made Liability policies if approved by the CITY as noted above. In no case shall the types of coverages be different.

5-1.34.4 ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

Premium Payments: The insurance companies shall have no recourse against the CITY and funding agencies, its officers and employees or any of them for payment of any premiums or assessments under any policy issued by a mutual insurance company.

Policy Deductibles: The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all deductibles in all of CONTRACTOR'S insurance policies. The amount of deductibles for insurance coverage required herein should be reasonable and subject to CITY'S approval.

CONTRACTOR'S Obligations: CONTRACTOR'S indemnity and other obligations shall not be limited by the foregoing insurance requirements and shall survive the expiration of this agreement.

Material Breach: Failure of the CONTRACTOR to maintain the insurance required by this agreement, or to comply with any of the requirements of this section, shall constitute a material breach of the entire agreement.

Duration of Coverage: City must be an additional insured for completed operations for a period of one (1) year after completion of the work.

Project Reference: The Certificate of Insurance must reference the project specifically by project title

5-1.34.5 ENDORSEMENTS

Each Commercial General Liability policy shall be endorsed with the following specific language:

Cancellation Notice: "This policy shall not be canceled, material reduced, or materially changed without first giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City of Grass Valley."

"Provisions Regarding the Insured's Duties: Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policy or breaches or violations of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the City of Grass Valley, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers."

"Except as stated above, nothing herein shall be held to waive, alter or extend any of the limits, conditions, agreements or exclusions of the policy to which this endorsement is attached."

"The City of Grass Valley, and additional insureds, and all insureds officers, agents, outside parties hired to inspect and/or design the work, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as insured for all liability arising out of the operations by or on behalf of the named insured in the performance of this Agreement."

The City of Grass Valley's policy of insurance shall be excess and noncontributing. "The insurance provided by the Contractor, including any excess liability or umbrella form coverage, is primary coverage to the City of Grass Valley and additional insureds, with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by the City of Grass Valley and additional insureds, and no insurance held or owned by the City of Grass Valley and additional insureds shall be called upon to contribute to a loss."

5-1.34.6 AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE

CONTRACTOR shall provide Automobile Liability insurance covering bodily injury and property damage in an amount no less than One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) combined single limit for each occurrence.

Covered vehicles shall include owned, non-owned, and hired automobiles/trucks.

Endorsements: The endorsements listed above for General Liability shall also apply to the Automobile Liability Policy.

5-1.35 WARRANTY

Should any failure of the work occur within a period of one year from the acceptance of the project by the Grass Valley City Council due to faulty materials, poor workmanship, or defective equipment, the Contractor shall promptly make the needed repairs at his or her expense in accordance with the Special Provisions and to the satisfaction of the Engineer.

Security for this warranty shall be in the form of the Performance Bond, required elsewhere in these specifications, which shall remain in effect for a period of one (1) year after acceptance of the project by the Grass Valley City Council. The Performance Bond will not be reduced to an amount less than the bid amount of the project prior to the expiration of the one (1) year warranty period.

The City is hereby authorized to make such repairs, or to have such repairs made by others, if the Contractor fails to make such repairs, or to have such repairs made by others, if the Contractor fails to make or undertake with due diligence the aforesaid repairs within ten (10) days after receiving written notice of such failure or within a time specified in the notice if different; provided, however, that in case of an emergency where, in the opinion of the Engineer, that delay would cause serious loss or damages, or a serious hazard to the public, and a reasonable attempt has been made to notify the Contractor, the repairs may be made without prior notice to the Contractor; and the Contractor's sureties shall be liable for the entire cost thereof.

SECTION 6 (BLANK)

SECTION 7 (BLANK)

SECTION 8 MATERIALS

SECTION 8-1 MISCELLANEOUS PREQUALIFIED SIGNING AND DELINEATION MATERIALS

The California Department of Transportation maintains an Authorized Materials List (AML) which includes prequalified and tested materials and products. The list can be found at: https://dot.ca.gov/programs/engineering-services/authorized-materials-lists Materials included on these lists are authorized for use on City construction projects.

For those categories of materials included on the AML of Signing and Delineation Materials, only those products shown within the listing may be used in the work. Other categories of products, not included on the list may be used in the work provided they conform to the requirements of the Standard Specifications. The Engineer shall not be precluded from sampling and testing products on the AML.

The manufacturer of products on the list of Signing and Delineation Materials shall furnish the Engineer a Certificate of Compliance in conformance with the provisions in Certificates of Compliance," of the Standard Specifications for each type of traffic product supplied.

SECTION 8-2 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE

Portland cement concrete shall conform to the provisions in Section 90, "Concrete," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Mineral admixture shall be combined with cement in conformance with the provisions in Section 901.02B(3), "Supplementary Cementitious Materials," of the Standard Specifications for the concrete materials.

The Department maintains a list of sources of fine and coarse aggregate that have been approved for use with a reduced amount of mineral admixture in the total amount of cementitious material to be used. A source of aggregate will be considered for addition to the approved list if the producer of the aggregate submits to the Transportation Laboratory certified test results from a qualified testing laboratory that verify the aggregate complies with the requirements. Prior to starting the testing, the aggregate test shall be registered with the Department. A registration number can be obtained by calling (916) 227-7228. The registration number shall be used as the identification for the aggregate sample in correspondence with the Department. Upon request, a split of the tested sample shall be provided to the Department. Approval of aggregate will depend upon compliance with the specifications, based on the certified test results submitted, together with any replicate testing the Department may elect to perform. Approval will expire 3 years from the date the most recent registered and evaluated sample was collected from the aggregate source.

Qualified testing laboratories shall conform to the following requirements:

- A. Laboratories performing ASTM Designation: C 1293 shall participate in the Cement and Concrete Reference Laboratory (CCRL) Concrete Proficiency Sample Program and shall have received a score of 3 or better on all tests of the previous 2 sets of concrete samples.
- B. Laboratories performing ASTM Designation: C 1260 shall participate in the Cement and Concrete Reference Laboratory (CCRL) Pozzolan Proficiency Sample Program and shall have received a score of 3 or better on the shrinkage and soundness tests of the previous 2 sets of pozzolan samples.

Aggregates on the list shall conform to one of the following requirements:

- A. When the aggregate is tested in conformance with the requirements in California Test 554 and ASTM Designation: C 1293, the average expansion at one year shall be less than or equal to 0.040 percent; or
- B. When the aggregate is tested in conformance with the requirements in California Test 554 and ASTM Designation: C 1260, the average of the expansion at 16 days shall be less than or equal to 0.15 percent.

The amounts of cement and mineral admixture used in cementitious material shall be sufficient to satisfy the minimum cementitious material content requirements specified in Section 90-1.02, "Materials," of the Standard Specifications and shall conform to the following:

- A. The minimum amount of cement shall not be less than 75 percent by weight of the specified minimum cementitious material content.
- B. The minimum amount of mineral admixture to be combined with cement shall be determined using one of the following criteria:

- 1. When the calcium oxide content of a mineral admixture is equal to or less than 2 percent by weight, the amount of mineral admixture shall not be less than 15 percent by weight of the total amount of cementitious material to be used in the mix.
- 2. When the calcium oxide content of a mineral admixture is greater than 2 percent by weight, and any of the aggregates used are not listed on the approved list as specified in these Special Provisions, then the amount of mineral admixture shall not be less than 25 percent by weight of the total amount of cementitious material to be used in the mix.
- 3. When the calcium oxide content of a mineral admixture is greater than 2 percent by weight and the fine and coarse aggregates are listed on the approved list as specified in these Special Provisions, then the amount of mineral admixture shall not be less than 15 percent by weight of the total amount of cementitious material to be used in the mix.
- 4. When a mineral admixture that conforms to the provisions for silica fume in Section 90-1.02B(3), "Supplementary Cementitious Materials," of the Standard Specifications is used, the amount of mineral admixture shall not be less than 10 percent by weight of the total amount of cementitious material to be used in the mix.
- 5. When a mineral admixture that conforms to the provisions for silica fume in Section 90-1.02B(3), "Supplementary Cementitious Materials," of the Standard Specifications is used and the fine and coarse aggregates are listed on the approved list as specified in these Special Provisions, then the amount of mineral admixture shall not be less than 7 percent by weight of the total amount of cementitious material to be used in the mix.
- C. The total amount of mineral admixture shall not exceed 35 percent by weight of the total amount of cementitious material to be used in the mix. The total weight of cement and mineral admixture per cubic yard shall not exceed the specified maximum cementitious material content.

Unless otherwise specified, mineral admixture will not be required in Portland cement concrete used for precast concrete girders.

The Contractor will be permitted to use Type III Portland cement for concrete used in the manufacture of precast concrete members.

SECTION 9 (BLANK)

SECTION 10 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

SECTION 10-1 GENERAL

10-1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

The scope of work, in general, includes; installation of concrete sidewalk, curb, gutter and accessible ramps, drainage improvements, hot mix asphalt paving and pavement marking modifications. Other related items not mentioned above, that are required by the plans, specifications or these Special Provisions shall be performed, placed, constructed, or installed.

10-1.02 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The order of work shall conform to the provisions in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

The Contractor's attention is directed to the requirements of "Cooperation", "Mobilization," "Maintaining Traffic" and "Traffic Control System" of these Special Provisions, the Project Plans, and the Standard Specifications.

Except as otherwise provided or with City Engineer approval of reduced roadway widths, the full width of the traveled way shall be open for use by public traffic on Saturdays, Sundays and designated legal holidays; after 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and when construction operations are not actively in progress.

Weekend hours of work, which do not significantly change the cost of the work may be permitted upon the written request of the Contractor if, in the opinion of the Engineer, public traffic will be adequately served and the work expedited. These deviations shall not be adopted by the Contractor until the Engineer has approved them in writing. All other modifications will be made by contract change order.

The Contractor shall provide the Engineer all required submittals within the time frame specified by the Special Provisions, the Project Plans, and/or the Standard Specifications.

The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer a progress schedule in accordance with Section 8-1.02, "Schedule," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. Attention is directed to the requirements of these sections for

scheduling a pre-construction scheduling conference within 10 working days of the approval of the contract and submitting a baseline schedule to the Engineer within 20 days of the contract approval.

The Contractor is responsible for verifying the location of all existing underground facilities, within the project area, that may have potential to conflict with the location of proposed improvements, and other work as shown on the Plans. The City has made every effort to show locations of any and all existing surface and subsurface structures. However, actual field conditions and locations can vary considerably from the plan locations. Therefore, the City cannot, and does not, assume responsibility for the existence or location of any structure such as, but not limited to, utilities and pipelines. The contractor is responsible for contacting all agencies and/or owners to verify this information prior to and during construction of any of the proposed improvements. If any existing utilities are found in conflict with the proposed location of the improvements shown on the plans, the Contractor shall contact the Engineer. The Engineer shall provide the Contractor with new grades to eliminate such conflict or shall arrange to have the utilities relocated to avoid the conflict. The Contractor shall work with the Engineer to schedule surveyors to be onsite during pot-holing of conflicts for utility elevation verification. Any delays, which may result from failure of the Contractor to pothole potential utility conflicts, shall be at the Contractor's expense.

At the end of each working day if a difference in excess of three inches (3") exists between the elevation of the existing pavement and the elevation of excavations within six feet (6') of the traveled way, material shall be placed and compacted against the vertical cuts adjacent to the traveled way unless Type K barrier rail has been placed between the traveled way and the excavation in accordance with "Type K Temporary Railing "of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. During excavation operations, native material may be used for this purpose; however, once placing of the structural section commences, structural material shall be used. The material shall be placed to the level of the elevation of the top of existing pavement and tapered at a slope of 1:4 (vertical:horizontal) or flatter to the bottom of the excavation. Treated base shall not be used for the taper. Full compensation for placing the material on a 1:4 slope, regardless of the number of times the material is required, and subsequent removing or reshaping of the material to the lines and grades shown on the plans shall be considered as included in the contract price paid for the materials involved and no additional compensation will be allowed. No payment will be made for material placed in excess of that required for the structural section.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all work involved in the provisions of this section, including, but not limited to, coordination with the applicable utility companies, pot-holing, excavation and backfill as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in prices paid for the various Contract Items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.03 REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

All Requests for Information (RFI's) from the Contractor shall be submitted in writing to the Engineer, and shall be numbered sequentially as they are generated. The Engineer will have 5 working days from the date of receipt of each RFI to provide a response to the Contractor. All requests must come from the prime Contractor, the Engineer will not respond to RFI's received directly from subcontractors.

If the response provided by the Engineer is not satisfactory for the Contractor, the RFI may be re-submitted with more detailed requests noting the particular areas that have not been addressed. The Engineer will have three (3) working days to respond to the second request from the Contractor. If the second response is still not satisfactory to the Contractor, a meeting will be scheduled to resolve any outstanding items that have not been properly addressed.

A Request for Information shall only be used for obtaining information or clarification on project documents. The RFI process is not the proper media for notification of potential claims, writing letters, requesting a change order, etc... If the Contractor wishes to file a Notice of Potential Claim, it shall be filed in accordance with Section 5-1.43, "Potential Claims and Dispute Resolution," of the Standard Specifications.

10-1.04 LINES AND GRADES

Attention is directed to "Lines and Grades," of the Standard Specifications.

The Contractor shall be responsible for setting stakes or marks that the Contractor determines to be necessary to establish the lines and grades required for the completion of the work specified. The Engineer reserves the right to check, correct or require layout work to be revised in order to construct the improvements as shown on the plans and as directed by the Engineer. If any stakes or marks are destroyed or damaged, it is the Contractor's responsibility to reestablish the stakes or marks.

If the Contractor determines that conditions in the field would cause a conflict with the lines and grades shown on the plans or otherwise feels that there are errors in the lines and grades to be established he shall immediately notify the Engineer for clarification. Attention is directed to "Requests for Information" of these provisions.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.05 WATER POLLUTION CONTROL

10-1.05.1 **GENERAL**

Water pollution control work shall conform to the provisions in Section 13, "Water Pollution Control," of the Standard Specifications, section of these Special Provisions entitled "Relations With California Regional Water Quality Control Board," and these Special Provisions.

The Contractor shall perform water pollution control work in conformance with the requirements in the "Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and Water Pollution Control Program (WPCP) Preparation Manual" and addenda in effect on the day the Notice to Contractors is dated. This manual is referred to as the "Preparation Manual." Copies of the Preparation Manual may be obtained from:

State of California Department of Transportation Publication Distribution Unit 1900 Royal Oaks Drive Sacramento, California 95815 Telephone: (916) 445-3520

The Preparation Manual and other references for performing water pollution control work are available from the Department's Construction Storm Water and Water Pollution Control web site at: http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/construc/stormwater/stormwater1.htm.

The Contractor shall know and fully comply with applicable provisions of the Manuals, and Federal, State, and local regulations and requirements that govern the Contractor's operations and storm water and non-storm water discharges from both the project site and areas of disturbance outside the project limits during construction. Attention is directed to Section 7, "Legal Relations and Responsibility to the Public," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Water pollution control requirements shall apply to storm water and non-storm water discharges from areas outside the project site that are directly related to construction activities for this contract including, but not limited to, asphalt batch plants, material borrow areas, concrete plants, staging areas, storage yards and access roads. The Contractor shall comply with the Manuals for those areas and shall implement, inspect and maintain the required water pollution control practices. Installing, inspecting and maintaining water pollution control practices on areas outside the highway right of way not specifically arranged and provided for by the Department for the execution of this contract, will not be paid for.

The Contractor shall be responsible for penalties assessed or levied on the Contractor or the City as a result of the Contractor's failure to comply with the provisions in this section "Water Pollution Control" including, but not limited to, compliance with the applicable provisions of the Manuals, and Federal, State and local regulations and requirements as set forth therein.

Penalties as used in this section shall include fines, penalties and damages, whether proposed, assessed, or levied against the Department or the Contractor, including those levied under the Federal Clean Water Act and the State Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act, by governmental agencies or as a result of citizen suits. Penalties shall also include payments made or costs incurred in settlement for alleged violations of the Manuals, or applicable laws, regulations, or requirements. Costs incurred could include sums spent instead of penalties, in mitigation or to remediate or correct violations.

The Contractor shall notify the Engineer immediately upon request from the regulatory agencies to enter, inspect, sample, monitor, or otherwise access the project site or the Contractor's records pertaining to water pollution control work. The Contractor and the Department shall provide copies of correspondence, notices of violations, enforcement actions or proposed fines by regulatory agencies to the requesting regulatory agency.

10-1.05.2 WATER POLLUTION CONTROL IMPLEMENTATION

Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall be responsible throughout the duration of the project for installing, constructing, inspecting, maintaining, removing, and disposing of the water pollution control practices. Unless otherwise directed by the Engineer, the Contractor's responsibility for "Water Pollution Control" implementation shall continue throughout any temporary suspension of work ordered in conformance with the provisions in Section 8-1.06, "Suspensions," of the Standard Specifications. Requirements for installation, construction, inspection, maintenance, removal, and disposal of water pollution control practices shall conform to the requirements in the Manuals and these Special Provisions.

If the Contractor or the Engineer identifies a deficiency in the implementation of the "Water Pollution Control" practices, the deficiency shall be corrected immediately. The deficiency may be corrected at a later date and time if

requested by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer in writing, but shall be corrected prior to the onset of precipitation. If the Contractor fails to correct the identified deficiency by the date agreed or prior to the onset of precipitation, the project shall be in nonconformance with this section. Attention is directed to Section 5-1.03, "Engineer's Authority," of the Standard Specifications, and to "Retention of Funds" of this section for possible nonconformance penalties.

If the Contractor fails to conform to the provisions of this section, "Water Pollution Control," the Engineer may order the suspension of construction operations until the project complies with the requirements of this section.

10-1.05.3 **PAYMENT**

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in "Water Pollution Control" including, but not limited to installing, constructing, inspecting, maintaining, removing, and disposing of the water pollution control practices including non-storm water management, waste management and materials pollution water pollution control practices, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be included in the contract lump sum price paid for "Water Pollution Control", and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

10-1.05.4 CONSTRUCTION SITE MANAGEMENT

Construction site management shall consist of controlling potential sources of water pollution before they come in contact with storm water systems or watercourses. The Contractor shall control material pollution and manage waste and non-storm water existing at the construction site by implementing effective handling, storage, use, and disposal practices.

The Contractor shall train all employees and subcontractors regarding:

- A. Material pollution prevention and control;
- B. Waste management;
- C. Non-storm water management;
- D. Identifying and handling hazardous substances; and
- E. Potential dangers to humans and the environment from spills and leaks or exposure to toxic or hazardous substances.

Training shall take place before starting work on this project. New employees shall receive the complete training before starting work on this project. The Contractor shall have regular meetings to discuss and reinforce spill prevention and control; material delivery, storage, use, and disposal; waste management; and non-storm water management procedures.

Instructions for material and waste handling, storage, and spill reporting and cleanup shall be posted at all times in an open, conspicuous, and accessible location at the construction site.

Non-hazardous construction site waste and excess material shall be recycled when practical or disposed of in accordance with the provisions in Section 5-1.20B(4), "Contractor-Property Owner Agreement," of the Standard Specifications, unless otherwise specified.

Vehicles and equipment at the construction site shall be inspected on a frequent, predetermined schedule, and by the operator each day of use. Leaks shall be repaired immediately, or the vehicle or equipment shall be removed from the construction site.

10-1.05.4.1 SPILL PREVENTION AND CONTROL

The Contractor shall implement spill and leak prevention procedures when chemicals or hazardous substances are stored. Spills of petroleum products; substances listed under CFR Title 40, Parts 110, 117, and 302; and sanitary and septic waste shall be contained and cleaned up as soon as is safe.

Minor spills involve small quantities of oil, gasoline, paint, or other material that can be controlled by the first responder upon discovery of the spill. Cleanup of minor spills includes:

- A. Containing the spread of the spill,
- B. Recovering the spilled material using absorption,
- C. Cleaning the contaminated area, and
- D. Disposing of contaminated material promptly and properly.

Semi-significant spills are those that can be controlled by the first responder with the help of other personnel. Cleanup of semi-significant spills shall be immediate. Cleanup of semi-significant spills includes:

- A. Containing the spread of the spill;
- B. Recovering the spilled material using absorption if the spill occurs on paved or an impermeable surface:
- Containing the spill with an earthen dike and digging up contaminated soil for disposal if the spill
 occurs on dirt;
- D. Covering the spill with plastic or other material to prevent contaminating runoff if the spill occurs during precipitation; and
- E. Disposing of contaminated material promptly and properly.

Significant or hazardous spills are those that cannot be controlled by construction personnel. Notifications of these spills shall be immediate. The following steps shall be taken:

- A. Construction personnel shall not attempt to cleanup the spill until qualified staff have arrived;
- B. Notify the Engineer and follow up with a written report;
- C. Obtain the services of a spills contractor or hazardous material team immediately;
- D. Notify the local emergency response team by dialing 911 and county officials at the emergency phone numbers kept on the construction site;
- E. Notify the Governor's Office of Emergency Services Warning Center at (805) 852-7550;
- F. Notify the National Response Center at (800) 424-8802 regarding spills of Federal reportable quantities in conformance with CFR Title 40, Parts 110, 119, and 302;
- G. Notify other agencies as appropriate, including:
- 1. Fire Department,
- 2. Public Works Department,
- 3. Highway Patrol,
- 4. City Police or County Sheriff Department,
- 5 Department of Toxic Substances,
- 6. California Division of Oil and Gas.
- 7. Cal OSHA, or
- 8. Regional Water Resources Control Board.

The contractor shall oversee and enforce proper spill prevention and control measures. Minor, semi-significant, and significant spills shall be reported to the contractor who shall notify the Engineer immediately.

The Contractor shall prevent spills from entering storm water runoff before and during cleanup. Spills shall not be buried or washed with water.

The Contractor shall keep material or waste storage areas clean, well organized, and equipped with enough cleanup supplies for the material being stored. Plastic shall be placed under paving equipment when not in use to catch drips.

10-1.05.4.2 MATERIAL MANAGEMENT

Material shall be delivered, used, and stored for this contract in a manner that minimizes or eliminates discharge of material into the air, storm drain systems, or watercourses.

The Contractor shall implement the practices described in this section when taking delivery of, using, or storing the following materials:

- A. Hazardous chemicals including:
 - 1. Acids,
 - 2. Lime,
 - 3. Glues,
 - 4. Adhesives,
 - 5. Paints,
 - 6. Solvents, and
 - 7. Curing compounds;
- B. Soil stabilizers and binders;

- C. Fertilizers;
- D. Detergents;
- E. Plaster;
- F. Petroleum products including:
 - 1. Fuel,
 - 2. Oil, and
 - 3. Grease:
- G. Asphalt components and concrete components; and
- H. Pesticides and herbicides.

The Contractor shall supply the Material Safety Data Sheet to the Engineer for material used or stored. The Contractor shall keep an accurate inventory of material delivered and stored at the construction site.

Employees trained in emergency spill cleanup procedures shall be present when hazardous materials or chemicals are unloaded.

The Contractor shall use recycled or less hazardous products when practical.

Application of herbicides and pesticides shall be performed by a licensed applicator. The Contractor shall complete the Report of Chemical Spray forms when spraying herbicides or pesticides, and shall submit a copy to the Engineer before application.

Material Storage

The Contractor shall store liquids, petroleum products, and substances listed in CFR Title 40, Parts 110, 117, and 302 in containers or drums approved by the United States Environmental Protection Agency, and place them in secondary containment facilities.

Secondary containment facilities shall be impervious to the materials stored there for a minimum contact time of 72 hours.

Throughout the rainy season secondary containment facilities shall be covered during non-working days and when precipitation is predicted. Secondary containment facilities shall be adequately ventilated.

The Contractor shall keep the secondary containment facility free of accumulated rainwater or spills. After precipitation, or in the event of spills or leaks, accumulated liquid shall be collected and placed into drums within 24 hours. These liquids shall be handled as hazardous waste in accordance with the provisions in "Hazardous Waste" of these Special Provisions, unless testing determines them to be non-hazardous.

Incompatible materials, such as chlorine and ammonia, shall not be stored in the same secondary containment facility.

Materials shall be stored in the original containers with the original product labels maintained in legible condition. Damaged or illegible labels shall be replaced immediately.

The secondary containment facility shall have the capacity to contain precipitation from a 24-hour-long, 25-year storm; and 10 percent of the aggregate volume of all containers, or all of the volume of the largest container within the facility, whichever is greater.

The Contractor shall store bagged or boxed material on pallets. Throughout the rainy season, bagged or boxed material shall be protected from wind and rain during non-working days and when precipitation is predicted.

The Contractor shall provide sufficient separation between stored containers to allow for spill cleanup or emergency response access. Storage areas shall be kept clean, well-organized, and equipped with cleanup supplies appropriate for the materials being stored.

The Contractor shall repair or replace perimeter controls, containment structures, covers, and liners as needed. Storage areas shall be inspected before and after precipitation, and at least weekly during other times.

Stockpile Management

The Contractor shall reduce or eliminate potential air and water pollution from stockpiled material including soil, paving material, or pressure treated wood. Stockpiles shall be located out of floodplains when possible, and at least 50 feet from concentrated flows of storm water, drainage courses, or inlets unless written approval is obtained from the Engineer.

The Contractor may discontinue adding or removing material for up to 21 days and a stockpile will still be considered active.

The Contractor shall protect active stockpiles with plastic or geotextile cover, soil stabilization measures, or with linear sediment barrier when precipitation is predicted. Active stockpiles of cold mix asphalt concrete shall be placed on an impervious surface and covered with plastic when precipitation is predicted.

The Contractor shall protect inactive soil stockpiles with a plastic or geotextile cover, or with soil stabilization measures at all times during the rainy season. A linear sediment barrier around the perimeter of the stockpile shall also be used. During the non-rainy season soil stockpiles shall be covered and protected with a linear sediment barrier when precipitation is predicted. The Contractor shall control wind erosion during dry weather as provided in "Dust Control," of the Standard Specifications.

Stockpiles of Portland cement concrete rubble, asphalt concrete, asphalt concrete rubble, aggregate base, or aggregate sub-base shall be covered with plastic or geotextile, or protected with a linear sediment barrier at all times during the rainy season, and when precipitation is predicted during the non-rainy season.

Stockpiles of cold mix asphalt concrete shall be placed on and covered with impermeable material at all times during the rainy season, and when precipitation is predicted during the non-rainy season.

Stockpiles of pressure treated wood shall be covered with impermeable material and placed on pallets at all times during the rainy season, and when precipitation is predicted during the non-rainy season.

The Contractor shall repair or replace linear sediment barriers and covers as needed or as directed by the Engineer to keep them functioning properly. Sediment shall be removed when it accumulates to 1/3 of the linear sediment barrier height.

10-1.05.4.3 WASTE MANAGEMENT

Solid Waste

The Contractor shall not allow litter or debris to accumulate anywhere on the construction site, including storm drain grates, trash racks, and ditch lines. The Contractor shall pick up and remove trash and debris from the construction site at least once a week. The contractor shall monitor solid waste storage and disposal procedures on the construction site. The Contractor shall provide enough dumpsters of sufficient size to contain the solid waste generated by the project. Dumpsters shall be emptied when refuse reaches the fill line. Dumpsters shall be watertight. The Contractor shall not wash out dumpsters on the construction site. The Contractor shall provide additional containers and more frequent pickup during the demolition phase of construction

Solid waste includes:

- A. Brick.
- B. Mortar,
- C. Timber.
- D. Metal scraps,
- E. Sawdust,
- F. Pipe,
- G. Electrical cuttings,
- H. Non-hazardous equipment parts,
- I. Styrofoam and other packaging materials,
- J. Vegetative material and plant containers from highway planting, and
- K. Litter and smoking material, including litter generated randomly by the public.

Trash receptacles shall be provided and used in the Contractor's yard, field trailers, and locations where workers gather for lunch and breaks.

Hazardous Waste

The Contractor shall implement hazardous waste management practices when waste is generated on the construction site from the following substances:

- A. Petroleum products,
- B. Asphalt products,
- C. Concrete curing compound,
- D. Pesticides,
- E. Acids,
- F. Paints,
- G. Stains,
- H. Solvents,

- I. Wood preservatives,
- J. Roofing tar, and
- K. Materials classified as hazardous by California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 4.5; or listed in CFR Title 40, Parts 110, 117, 261, or 302.

Nothing in these Special Provisions shall relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for compliance with Federal, State, and local laws regarding storage, handling, transportation, and disposal of hazardous wastes.

The CONTRACTOR shall oversee and enforce hazardous waste management practices. Production of hazardous materials and hazardous waste on the construction site shall be kept to a minimum. Perimeter controls, containment structures, covers, and liners shall be repaired or replaced when damaged.

The Contractor shall have a laboratory certified by the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) sample and test waste when hazardous material levels are unknown to determine safe methods for storage and disposal.

The Contractor shall segregate potentially hazardous waste from non-hazardous waste at the construction site. Hazardous waste shall be handled, stored, and disposed of as required in California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 4.5, Section 66262.34; and in CFR Title 49, Parts 261, 262, and 263.

The Contractor shall store hazardous waste in sealed containers constructed and labeled with the contents and date accumulated as required in California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 4.5; and in CFR Title 49, Parts 172, 173, 178, and 179. Hazardous waste containers shall be kept in temporary containment facilities conforming to the provisions in "Material Storage" of these Special Provisions.

There shall be adequate storage volume and containers shall be conveniently located for hazardous waste collection. Containers of hazardous waste shall not be overfilled and hazardous wastes shall not be mixed. Containers of dry waste that are not watertight shall be stored on pallets. The Contractor shall not allow potentially hazardous waste to accumulate on the ground. Hazardous waste shall be stored away from storm drains, watercourses, moving vehicles, and equipment.

The Contractor shall clean water based or oil based paint from brushes or equipment within a contained area and shall not contaminate soil, watercourses, or storm drain systems. Paints, thinners, solvents, residues, and sludges that cannot be recycled or reused shall be disposed of as hazardous waste. When thoroughly dry, latex paint and paint cans, used brushes, rags, absorbent materials, and drop cloths shall be disposed of as solid waste.

The Contractor shall dispose of hazardous waste within 90 days of being generated. Hazardous waste shall be disposed of by a licensed hazardous waste transporter using uniform hazardous waste manifest forms and taken to a Class I Disposal Site. A copy of the manifest shall be provided to the Engineer.

Contaminated Soil

The Contractor shall identify contaminated soil from spills or leaks by noticing discoloration, odors, or differences in soil properties. Soil with evidence of contamination shall be sampled and tested by a laboratory certified by CDPH. If levels of contamination are found to be hazardous, the soil shall be handled and disposed of as hazardous waste.

The Contractor shall prevent the flow of water, including ground water, from mixing with contaminated soil by using one or a combination of the following measures:

- A. Berms,
- B. Cofferdams,
- C. Grout curtains,
- D. Freeze walls, or
- E. Concrete seal course.

If water mixes with contaminated soil and becomes contaminated, the water shall be sampled and tested by a laboratory certified by the CDPH. If levels of contamination are found to be hazardous, the water shall be handled and disposed of as hazardous waste.

Concrete Waste

The Contractor shall implement practices to prevent the discharge of Portland cement concrete or asphalt concrete waste into storm drain systems or watercourses.

Portland cement concrete or asphalt concrete waste shall be collected at the following locations and disposed of:

- A. Where concrete material, including grout, is used;
- B. Where concrete dust and debris result from demolition;
- C. Where sawcutting, coring, grinding, grooving, or hydro-concrete demolition of Portland cement concrete or asphalt concrete creates a residue or slurry; or
- D. Where concrete trucks or other concrete-coated equipment is cleaned at the construction site.

Sanitary and Septic Waste

Wastewater from sanitary or septic systems shall not be discharged or buried within the Department right of way. The CONTRACTOR shall inspect sanitary or septic waste storage and monitor disposal procedures at least weekly. Sanitary facilities that discharge to the sanitary sewer system shall be properly connected and free from leaks.

The Contractor shall obtain written approval from the local health agency, city, county, and sewer district before discharging from a sanitary or septic system directly into a sanitary sewer system, and provide a copy to the Engineer. The Contractor shall comply with local health agency requirements when using an on-site disposal system.

Liquid Waste

The Contractor shall not allow construction site liquid waste, including the following, to enter storm drain systems or watercourses:

- A. Drilling slurries or fluids,
- B. Grease-free or oil-free wastewater or rinse water,
- C. Dredgings,
- D. Liquid waste running off a surface including wash or rinse water, or
- E. Other non-storm water liquids not covered by separate permits.

The Contractor shall hold liquid waste in structurally sound, leak proof containers such as:

- A. Sediment traps,
- B. Roll-off bins, or
- C. Portable tanks.

Liquid waste containers shall be of sufficient quantity and volume to prevent spills and leaks. The containers shall be stored at least 50 feet from storm drains, watercourses, moving vehicles, and equipment.

The Contractor shall remove and dispose of deposited solids from sediment traps as provided in "Solid Waste" of these Special Provisions, unless determined infeasible by the Engineer.

Liquid waste may require testing to determine hazardous material content before disposal.

Drilling fluids and residue shall be disposed of outside the highway right of way. If the Engineer determines that an appropriate location is available, fluids and residue exempt under California Code of Regulations, Title 23, Section 2511(g) may be dried by infiltration and evaporation in a leak proof container. The remaining solid waste may be disposed of as provided in "Solid Waste" of these Special Provisions.

10-1.05.4.4 NON-STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

Water Control and Conservation

The Contractor shall prevent erosion or the discharge of pollutants into storm drain systems or watercourses by managing the water used for construction operations. The Contractor shall obtain the Engineer's approval before washing anything on the construction site with water that could discharge into a storm drain system or watercourse. Discharges shall be reported to the Engineer immediately.

The Contractor shall implement water conservation practices when water is used on the construction site. Irrigation areas shall be inspected and watering schedules shall be adjusted to prevent erosion, excess watering, or runoff. The Contractor shall shut off the water source to broken

lines, sprinklers, or valves, and they shall be repaired as soon as possible. When possible, water from waterline flushing shall be reused for landscape irrigation. Paved areas shall be swept and vacuumed, not washed with water.

Construction water runoff, including water from water line repair, shall be directed to areas to infiltrate into the ground and shall not be allowed to enter storm drain systems or watercourses. Spilled water shall not be allowed to escape water truck filling areas. When possible, the Contractor shall direct water from off-site sources around the construction site, or shall minimize contact with the construction site.

Illegal Connection and Discharge Detection and Reporting

The Contractor shall inspect the construction site and the site perimeter before beginning work for evidence of illegal connections, discharges, or dumping. Subsequently, the construction site and perimeter shall be inspected on a frequent, predetermined schedule.

The Contractor shall immediately notify the Engineer when illegal connections, discharges, or dumping are discovered. The Contractor shall take no further action unless directed by the Engineer. Unlabeled or unidentifiable material shall be assumed to be hazardous.

The Contractor shall look for the following evidence of illegal connections, discharges, or dumping:

- A. Debris or trash piles,
- B. Staining or discoloration on pavement or soils,
- C. Pungent odors coming from drainage systems,
- D. Discoloration or oily sheen on water,
- E. Stains or residue in ditches, channels or drain boxes,
- F. Abnormal water flow during dry weather,
- G. Excessive sediment deposits,
- H. Nonstandard drainage junction structures, or
- I. Broken concrete or other disturbances near junction structures.

Vehicle and Equipment Cleaning

The Contractor shall limit vehicle and equipment cleaning or washing on the construction site to that necessary to control vehicle tracking or hazardous waste. Vehicles and equipment shall not be cleaned on the construction site with soap, solvents, or steam until the Engineer has been notified. The resulting waste shall be contained and recycled, or disposed of as provided in "Liquid Waste" or "Hazardous Waste" of these Special Provisions, whichever is applicable. The Contractor shall not use diesel to clean vehicles or equipment, and shall minimize the use of solvents.

The Contractor shall clean or wash vehicles and equipment in a structure equipped with disposal facilities. If using a structure is not possible, vehicles and equipment shall be cleaned or washed in an outside area with the following characteristics:

- A. Located at least 50 feet from storm drainage systems or watercourses,
- B. Paved with asphalt concrete or Portland cement concrete,
- C. Surrounded by a containment berm, and
- D. Equipped with a sump to collect and dispose of wash water.

When washing vehicles or equipment with water, the Contractor shall use as little water as possible. Hoses shall be equipped with a positive shutoff valve.

Wash racks shall discharge to a recycle system or to another system approved by the Engineer. Sumps shall be inspected regularly, and liquids and sediments shall be removed as needed.

Vehicle and Equipment Fueling and Maintenance

The Contractor shall fuel or perform maintenance on vehicles and equipment off the construction site whenever practical. When fueling or maintenance must be done at the construction site, the Contractor shall designate a site, or sites, and obtain approval from the Engineer before using. The fueling or maintenance site shall be protected from storm water, shall be on level ground, and shall be located at least 50 feet from drainage inlets or watercourses. The CONTRACTOR shall inspect the fueling or maintenance site regularly. Mobile fueling or maintenance shall be kept to a minimum.

The Contractor shall use containment berms or dikes around the fueling and maintenance area. Adequate amounts of absorbent spill cleanup material and spill kits shall be kept in the fueling and maintenance area and on fueling trucks. Spill cleanup material and kits shall be disposed of immediately after use. Drip pans or absorbent pads shall be used during fueling or maintenance unless performed over an impermeable surface.

Fueling or maintenance operations shall not be left unattended. Fueling nozzles shall be equipped with an automatic shutoff control. Vapor recovery fueling nozzles shall be used where required by the Air Quality Management District. Nozzles shall be secured upright when not in use. Fuel tanks shall not be topped-off.

The Contractor shall recycle or properly dispose of used batteries and tires.

Material and Equipment Used Over Water

Drip pans and absorbent pads shall be placed under vehicles or equipment used over water, and an adequate supply of spill cleanup material shall be kept with the vehicle or equipment. Drip pans or plastic sheeting shall be placed under vehicles or equipment on docks, barges, or other surfaces over water when the vehicle or equipment will be idle for more than one hour.

The Contractor shall provide watertight curbs or toe boards on barges, platforms, docks, or other surfaces over water to contain material, debris, and tools. Material shall be secured to prevent spills or discharge into water due to wind.

Structure Removal Over or Adjacent to Water

The Contractor shall not allow demolished material to enter storm water systems or watercourses. The Contractor shall use covers and platforms approved by the Engineer to collect debris. Attachments shall be used on equipment to catch debris on small demolition operations. Debris catching devices shall be emptied regularly and debris shall be handled as provided in "Waste Management" of these Special Provisions.

The CONTRACTOR shall inspect demolition sites within 50 feet of storm water systems or watercourses every day.

Paving, Sealing, Sawcutting, and Grinding Operations

The Contractor shall prevent the following material from entering storm drain systems or water courses:

- A. Cementitious material,
- B. Asphaltic material,
- C. Aggregate or screenings,
- D. Grinding or sawcutting residue,
- E. Pavement chunks, or
- F. Shoulder backing.

The Contractor shall cover drainage inlets and use linear sediment barriers to protect downhill watercourses until paving, sealing, sawcutting, or grinding operations are completed and excess material has been removed. Drainage inlets and manholes shall be covered during the application of seal coat, tack coat, slurry seal, or fog seal.

During the rainy season or when precipitation is predicted, paving, sawcutting, and grinding operations shall be limited to places where runoff can be captured. Chip seal, tack coat, slurry seal, or fog seal operations shall not begin if precipitation is predicted for the application or the curing period. The Contractor shall not excavate material from existing roadways during precipitation.

The Contractor shall vacuum up slurry from sawcutting operations immediately after the slurry is produced. Slurry shall not be allowed to run onto lanes open to public traffic or off the pavement.

The Contractor shall collect residue from Portland cement concrete grinding operations with a vacuum attachment on the grinding machine. The residue shall not be left on the pavement or allowed to flow across the pavement.

Material excavated from existing roadways may be stockpiled as provided in "Stockpile Management" of these Special Provisions if approved by the Engineer. Asphalt concrete chunks used in embankment shall be placed above the water table and covered by at least one foot of material.

Substances used to coat asphalt trucks and equipment shall not contain soap, foaming agents, or toxic chemicals.

Thermoplastic Striping and Pavement Markers

Thermoplastic striping and preheating equipment shutoff valves shall work properly at all times when on the construction site. The Contractor shall not preheat, transfer, or load thermoplastic within 50 feet of drainage inlets or watercourses. The Contractor shall not fill the preheating container to more than 6 inches from the top. Truck beds shall be cleaned daily of scraps or melted thermoplastic.

The Contractor shall not unload, transfer, or load bituminous material for pavement markers within 50 feet of drainage inlets or watercourses. All pressure shall be released from melting tanks before removing the lid to fill or service. Melting tanks shall not be filled to more than 6 inches from the top.

The Contractor shall collect bituminous material from the roadway after marker removal.

Pile Driving

The Contractor shall keep spill kits and cleanup material at pile driving locations. Pile driving equipment shall be parked over drip pans, absorbent pads, or plastic sheeting where possible. When not in use, pile driving equipment shall be stored at least 50 feet from concentrated flows of storm water, drainage courses, or inlets. The Contractor shall protect pile driving equipment by parking it on plywood and covering it with plastic when precipitation is predicted. The CONTRACTOR shall inspect the pile driving area every day for leaks and spills.

The Contractor shall use vegetable oil instead of hydraulic fluid when practical.

Concrete Curing

The Contractor shall not overspray chemical curing compound. Drift shall be minimized by spraying as close to the concrete as possible. Drainage inlets shall be covered before applying curing compound.

The Contractor shall minimize the use and discharge of water by using wet blankets or similar methods to maintain moisture when curing concrete.

Concrete Finishing

The Contractor shall collect and dispose of water and solid waste from high-pressure water blasting. Drainage inlets within 50 feet shall be covered before sandblasting. The nozzle shall be kept as close to the surface of the concrete as possible to minimize drift of dust and blast material. Blast residue may contain hazardous material.

Containment structures for concrete finishing operations shall be inspected for damage before each day of use and before predicted precipitation. Liquid and solid waste shall be removed from the containment structure after each work shift.

10-1.05.4.5 PAYMENT

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in spill prevention and control, material management, waste management, non-storm water management, and dewatering and identifying, sampling, testing, handling, and disposing of hazardous waste, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be included in the contract lump sum price paid for the "Water Pollution Control" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.05.5 TEMPORARY CONCRETE WASHOUT FACILITY

Temporary concrete washout facilities shall be constructed, maintained, and later removed at the locations shown on the approved Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan in conformance with "Water Pollution Control" of these Special Provisions, and in conformance with details shown on the plans and these Special Provisions.

Temporary concrete washout facilities shall be one of the water pollution control practices for waste management and materials pollution control. The Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan shall include the use of temporary concrete washout facilities.

10-1.05.5.1 MATERIALS

Plastic Liner

Plastic liners shall be single ply, new polyethylene sheeting, a minimum of 10 mils thick and shall be free of holes, punctures, tears or other defects that compromise the impermeability of the material. Plastic liners shall not have seams or overlapping joints.

Gravel-filled Bags

Gravel bag fabric shall be non-woven polypropylene geotextile (or comparable polymer) and shall conform to the following requirements:

Specification	Requirements	
Weight per unit area, ounces per square yard, min.	8.0	
ASTM Designation: D 5261		
Grab tensile strength (one inch grip), kilonewtons, min.	205	
ASTM Designation: D 4632*		
Ultraviolet stability, percent tensile strength retained after 500	70	
hours,		
ASTM Designation: D 4355, xenon arc lamp method		

^{*} or appropriate test method for specific polymer

Gravel bags shall be between 24 inches and 32 inches in length, and between 16 inches and 20 inches in width.

Yarn used for binding gravel bags shall be as recommended by the manufacturer or bag supplier and shall be of a contrasting color.

Gravel shall be between 3/8 inch and 3/4 inch in diameter, and shall be clean and free from clay balls, organic matter, and other deleterious materials.

The opening of gravel-filled bags shall be secured to prevent gravel from escaping. Gravel-filled bags shall be between 30 pounds and 50 pounds in weight.

Straw Bales

Straw for straw bales shall conform to the provisions in Section 13-10.02H, "Straw Bales," of the Standard Specifications.

Straw bales shall be a minimum of 14 inches in width, 18 inches in height, 36 inches in length and shall have a minimum weight of 50 pounds. The straw bale shall be composed entirely of vegetative matter, except for binding material.

Straw bales shall be bound by either wire, nylon or polypropylene string. Jute or cotton binding shall not be used. Baling wire shall be a minimum of 16 gage in diameter. Nylon or polypropylene string shall be approximately 0.08-inch in diameter with 80 pounds of breaking strength.

Stakes

Stakes shall be wood or metal. Wood stakes shall be untreated fir, redwood, cedar, or pine and cut from sound timber. They shall be straight and free of loose or unsound knots or other defects which would render them unfit for the purpose intended. Wood stakes shall be a minimum 2" x 2" in size. Metal stakes may be used as an alternative, and shall be a minimum of 0.5-inch in diameter. Stakes shall be a minimum of 4 feet in length. The tops of the metal stakes shall be bent at a 90-degree angle or capped with an orange or red plastic safety cap that fits snugly to the metal stake. The Contractor shall submit a sample of the metal stake and plastic cap, if used, for the Engineer's approval prior to installation.

Staples

Staples shall be as shown on the plans. An alternative attachment device such as geotextile pins or plastic pegs may be used instead of staples. The Contractor shall submit a sample of the alternative attachment device for the Engineer's approval prior to installation.

Signs

Wood posts for signs shall conform to the provisions in "Wood Posts," of the Standard Specifications. Lag screws shall conform to the provisions in "Sign Panel Fastening and Mounting Hardware," of the Standard Specifications.

Plywood shall be freshly painted for each installation with not less than 2 applications of flat white paint. Sign letters shown on the plans shall be stenciled with commercial quality exterior black paint. Testing of paint will not be required.

10-1.05.5.2 INSTALLATION

Temporary concrete washout facilities shall be as follows:

- A. Temporary concrete washout facilities shall be installed prior to beginning placement of concrete and located a minimum of 50 feet from storm drain inlets, open drainage facilities, and water courses unless determined infeasible by the Engineer. Temporary concrete washout facilities shall be located away from construction traffic or access areas at a location determined by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer.
- B. A sign shall be installed adjacent to each washout facility at a location determined by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer. Signs shall be installed in conformance with the provisions in "Construction," and "Sign Panel Installation," of the Standard Specifications.
- C. The length and width of a temporary concrete washout facility may be increased from the minimum dimensions shown on the plans, at the Contractor's expense and upon approval of the Engineer.
- D. Temporary concrete washout facilities shall be constructed in sufficient quantity and size to contain liquid and concrete waste generated by washout operations for concrete wastes. These facilities shall be constructed to contain liquid and concrete waste without seepage, spills, or overflow.
- E. Berms for below grade temporary concrete washout facilities shall be constructed from compacted native material. Gravel may be used in conjunction with compacted native material.
- F. A plastic liner shall be installed in below grade temporary concrete washout facilities.

Details for an alternative temporary concrete washout facility shall be submitted to the Engineer for approval at least 7 days prior to installation.

Temporary concrete washout facilities shall be disposed of in conformance with the provisions in Section 13-9, "Temporary Concrete Washouts," of the Standard Specifications.

Ground disturbance, including holes and depressions, caused by the installation and removal of the temporary concrete washout facilities shall be backfilled and repaired in conformance with the provisions in Section 15, "Existing Facilities," of the Standard Specifications.

10-1.05.5.3 MAINTENANCE

Temporary concrete washout facilities shall be maintained to provide adequate holding capacity with a minimum freeboard of 12 inches. Maintaining temporary concrete washout facilities shall include removing and disposing of hardened concrete and returning the facilities to a functional condition. Hardened concrete materials shall be removed and disposed of in conformance with the provisions in Section 13-9, "Temporary Concrete Washouts," of the Standard Specifications. Holes, rips, and voids in the plastic liner shall be patched and repaired by taping or the plastic liner shall be replaced. The plastic liner shall be replaced when patches or repairs compromise the impermeability of the material as determined by the Engineer.

Gravel bags shall be replaced when the bag material is ruptured or when the yarn has failed, allowing the bag contents to spill out.

Temporary concrete washout facilities shall be repaired or replaced on the same day the damage occurs. Damage to temporary concrete washout facilities resulting from the Contractor's vehicles, equipment, or operations shall be repaired at the Contractor's expense.

10-1.05.5.4 PAYMENT

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in constructing a temporary concrete washout facility, complete in place, including excavation and backfill, maintenance, and removal, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be included in the contract lump sum price paid for the "Water Pollution Control" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.06 PROPERTY AND FACILITY PRESERVATION

Attention is directed to Section 5-1.36 "Property and Facility Preservation," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Existing utilities and facilities shall be preserved and protected from damage by the Contractor. An effort has been made to show existing surface and underground structures on the plans, however not all infrastructure may be shown and infrastructure locations may be in different locations from those described. The Contractor is responsible for contacting all agencies and utility owners to verify the location of underground infrastructure prior to and during construction.

Before starting any work that could damage or interfere with underground infrastructure, the Contractor shall pothole and locate existing infrastructure, including laterals and appurtenances, and shall determine the presence of other underground infrastructure inferred from visible facilities such as buildings, meters and junction boxes. Existing infrastructure damaged due to negligence of the Contractor shall be completely repaired at the Contractor's expense and in coordination with the effected utility owner.

The Contractor shall accurately tie off and record the location of all utility covers, cleanouts, pull boxes and manholes to be lowered or temporarily overlaid prior to raising to grade. A copy of said record shall be provided to the Engineer prior to resurfacing the street.

Existing trees, shrubs and other plants, that are not to be removed as shown on the plans or specified in these Special Provisions, and are injured or damaged by reason of the Contractor's operations, shall be replaced by the Contractor. The minimum size of tree replacement shall be 24 inch box and the minimum size of shrub replacement shall be No. 15 container {15-gallon}. Replacement ground cover plants shall be from flats and shall be planted 12 inches on center. Replacement of Carpobrotus ground cover plants shall be from cuttings and shall be planted 12 inches on center. Replacement planting shall conform to the requirements in "Replacement Plants," of the Standard Specifications. The Contractor shall water replacement plants in conformance with the provisions in "Watering," of the Standard Specifications.

Damaged or injured plants shall be removed and disposed of outside the highway right of way in conformance with the provisions in 5-1.20B(4), "Contractor-Property Owner Agreement," of the Standard Specifications. At the option of the Contractor, removed trees and shrubs may be reduced to chips. The chipped material shall be spread within the highway right of way at locations designated by the Engineer.

Replacement planting of injured or damaged trees, shrubs, and other plants shall be completed prior to the start of the plant establishment period. Replacement planting shall conform to the provisions in Section 20-7, "Highway Planting," of the Standard Specifications.

Replacement planting of injured or damaged trees, shrubs and other plants shall be completed not less than 20 working days prior to acceptance of the contract. Replacement plants shall be watered as necessary to maintain the plants in a healthy condition.

Survey monuments and markers shown on the plans or encountered within the project limits shall be protected from damage by the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the Engineer of monuments encountered and shall not remove or disturb said monument until the monument can be cross-referenced and tied out by a licensed surveyor. The Contractor shall allow a minimum of one working day for such referencing to be accomplished. When notified by the Engineer that the ties have been completed, the monument or marker can then be removed. The Contractor is not responsible for the replacement of any monument or marker of which the removal is necessitated by the work performed and which has been referenced and tied. If through negligence or carelessness on the part of the Contractor, notification is not made as provided above, markers are removed, or disturbed which are not in direct conflict with the construction, the Contractor shall be responsible for the cost of referencing, resurveying, and replacement of the monument or marker. Such sums for the replacement shall be deducted from the final contract payment.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.07 COOPERATION

Attention is directed to Section 5-1.09, "Partnering," and Section 5-1.20, "Coordination with Other Entities," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. Attention is also directed to "General Requirements" of these Special Provisions.

Following is a list of some, but not necessarily all, of the utility companies that may have facilities in the project area:

<u>Utility Company</u>	Contact Person	Telephone Number		
Pacific Gas & Electric	Lee Wells	530-477-3260		
AT&T	Astrid Willard	916-484-2388		
Comcast Cable	Justin Haggin	530-790-3369		
Nevada Irrigation District	Construction	530-273-6185		
City of Grass Valley – Sewer/Water/Storm Drain	Public Works Department	530-274-4350		
California Department of Transportation	District 3 Office	530-741-5474		

The Contractor shall coordinate with Pacific Gas and Electric Company for the removal, relocation, repair, or disturbance of any gas or electric facilities caused by project work.

The Contractor shall coordinate with the AT&T for the removal, relocation, repair, or disturbance of any telecommunications facilities caused by project work.

The Contractor shall coordinate with the Comcast Cable for the removal, relocation, repair, or disturbance of any cable television facilities caused by project work.

The Contractor shall coordinate with the Nevada Irrigation District for the removal, relocation, repair, or disturbance of any water facilities caused by project work.

The Contractor shall coordinate with the City of Grass Valley for the removal, relocation, repair, or disturbance of any City owned water, sewer storm drain facilities caused by project work.

The Contractor shall apply for and obtain an Encroachment Permit from the California Department of Transportation for any construction or traffic control performed within the State right of way.

Any utilities not listed above or damaged by the Contractor during the course of project work shall be repaired or replaced in cooperation with the affected utility company.

The Contractor shall provide sufficient notification to the affected utility company to allow time for scheduling and completion of the required work. Any delays resulting from the Contractor's failure to properly notify or schedule utility company work shall be at the Contractor's expense.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section shall be considered as included in prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.08 CALTRANS PERMIT

The Contractor shall apply for and obtain an Encroachment Permit from the Department of Transportation for that portion of work located on Highway 174/Colfax Ave and for any construction or traffic control performed within the State right of way.

The City has secured an Encroachment Permit from the State for the proposed work. The Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining and conforming with the requirements of a "double permit" including; the submittal of application documents (application, insurance documentation, traffic control plans, etc.), payment of permit fees, inspection notifications and correspondence, and complying with any other conditions imposed by the State.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all work involved in obtaining and complying with the conditions of an Encroachment Permit from the Department of Transportation shall be included in the contract lump sum price paid for "Caltrans Permit," and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.09 PROGRESS SCHEDULE

Progress schedules are required for this contract and shall be submitted in conformance with the provisions in Section 8-1.02, "Schedule," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. The Contractor shall notify the Engineer on a daily basis of the areas of work scheduled for the following day.

The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer a practicable "Critical Path Method" progress schedule within 10 working days of approval of the contract, and within 10 working days of the Engineer's written request at any other time.

The progress schedule shall follow the general order of work detailed in "General Requirements," of these Special Provisions, and shall meet the milestones listed in "Beginning of Work, Time of Completion, and Liquidated Damages," of these Special Provisions.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section shall be considered as included in prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.10 OBSTRUCTIONS

Attention is directed to Section 5-1.20, "Coordination with Other Entities," of the Standard Specifications and of these Special Provisions.

Attention is directed to the existence of certain underground facilities that may require special precautions be taken by the Contractor to protect the health, safety and welfare of workers and of the public. Facilities requiring special precautions include, but are not limited to: natural gas in pipelines underground electric supply system conductors or cables, with potential to ground of more than 300 V, either directly buried or in a duct or conduit which do not have concentric grounded or other effectively grounded metal shields or sheaths, water mains, gravity sanitary sewer lines, and telephone conduits.

The Contractor shall notify the Engineer and the appropriate regional notification center for operators of subsurface installations at least 2 working days, but not more than 14 calendar days, prior to performing any excavation or other work close to any underground pipeline, conduit, duct, wire or other structure. Regional notification centers include, but are not limited to, the following:

Notification Center	Telephone Number		
Underground Service Alert – Northern California (USA)	1-800-227-2600		

The Contractor is hereby notified that prior to commencing construction, he is responsible for contacting all utility companies for verification at the construction site of the locations of all underground facilities that may conflict with the placement of the improvements shown on the plans. Where potential conflict exists, the Contractor shall pothole existing

utilities to determine their elevation. Call "Underground Service Alert" at 800-227-2600 forty-eight (48) hours before any excavation is started.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section, including exposing existing utilities, and any potholing, not otherwise provided for, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.11 DUST CONTROL

Dust control shall conform to the provisions in "Dust Control," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.12 MOBILIZATION

Mobilization shall conform to the provisions in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all work involved in "Mobilization," including but not limited to the movement of personnel, equipment, supplies and incidentals to the project site shall be included in the contract lump sum price paid for "Mobilization," and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.13 CONSTRUCTION AREA TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES

Flagging, signs, and temporary traffic control devices furnished, installed, maintained, and removed when no longer required shall conform to the provisions in Section 12, "Temporary Traffic Control," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Category 1 temporary traffic control devices are defined as small and lightweight (less than 100 pounds) devices. These devices shall be certified as crashworthy by crash testing, crash testing of similar devices, or years of demonstrable safe performance. Category 1 temporary traffic control devices include traffic cones, plastic drums, portable delineators, and channelizers.

If requested by the Engineer, the Contractor shall provide written self-certification for crashworthiness of Category 1 temporary traffic control devices at least 5 days before beginning any work using the devices or within 2 days after the request if the devices are already in use. Self-certification shall be provided by the manufacturer or Contractor and shall include the following:

- A. Date.
- B. Federal Aid number (if applicable),
- C. Contract number, district, county, route and post mile of project limits,
- D. Company name of certifying vendor, street address, city, state and zip code,
- E. Printed name, signature and title of certifying person; and
- F. Category 1 temporary traffic control devices that will be used on the project.

The Contractor may obtain a standard form for self-certification from the Engineer.

Category 2 temporary traffic control devices are defined as small and lightweight (less than 100 pounds) devices that are not expected to produce significant vehicular velocity change, but may cause potential harm to impacting vehicles. Category 2 temporary traffic control devices include barricades and portable sign supports.

Category 2 temporary traffic control devices shall be on the Federal Highway Administration's (FHWA) list of Acceptable Crashworthy Category 2 Hardware for Work Zones. This list is maintained by FHWA and can be located at:

http://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/roadway_dept/road_hardware/listing.cfm?code=workzone.

The Department also maintains this list at:

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/traffops/signtech/signdel/pdf/Category2.pdf.

Category 2 temporary traffic control devices that have not received FHWA acceptance shall not be used. Category 2 temporary traffic control devices in use that have received FHWA acceptance shall be labeled with the FHWA acceptance letter number and the name of the manufacturer. The label shall be readable and permanently affixed by the manufacturer. Category 2 temporary traffic control devices without a label shall not be used.

If requested by the Engineer, the Contractor shall provide a written list of Category 2 temporary traffic control devices to be used on the project at least 5 days before beginning any work using the devices or within 2 days after the request if the devices are already in use.

Category 3 temporary traffic control devices consist of temporary traffic-handling equipment and devices that weigh 100 pounds or more and are expected to produce significant vehicular velocity change to impacting vehicles. Temporary traffic-

handling equipment and devices include crash cushions, truck-mounted attenuators, temporary railing, temporary barrier, and end treatments for temporary railing and barrier.

Type III barricades may be used as sign supports if the barricades have been successfully crash tested, meeting the NCHRP Report 350 criteria, as one unit with a construction area sign attached.

Category 3 temporary traffic control devices shall be shown on the plans or on the Department's Highway Safety Features list. This list is maintained by the Division of Engineering Services and can be found at: http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/approved products list/HighwaySafe.htm.

Category 3 temporary traffic control devices that are not shown on the plans or not listed on the Department's Highway Safety Features list shall not be used.

Full compensation for providing self-certification for crashworthiness of Category 1 temporary traffic control devices and for providing a list of Category 2 temporary traffic control devices used on the project shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work requiring the use of the Category 1 or Category 2 temporary traffic control devices and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.14 CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGNS

Construction Area Signs shall be furnished, installed, maintained, and removed when no longer required in conformance with the provisions in Section 12, "Temporary Traffic Control," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Attention is directed to the provisions in "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions. Type II retroreflective sheeting shall not be used on construction area sign panels. Type III, IV, VII, VIII, or IX retroreflective sheeting shall be used for stationary mounted construction area sign panels.

Orange background on construction area signs shall be fluorescent orange.

Repair to construction area sign panels will not be allowed, except when approved by the Engineer. At nighttime under vehicular headlight illumination, sign panels that exhibit irregular luminance, shadowing or dark blotches shall be immediately replaced at the Contractor's expense.

The Contractor shall notify the appropriate regional notification center for operators of subsurface installations at least 2 working days, but not more than 14 calendar days, prior to commencing excavation for construction area sign posts. The regional notification centers include, but are not limited to, the following:

Notification Center	Telephone Number
Underground Service Alert – Northern California (USA)	(800) 642-2444 (800) 227-2600

Excavations required to install construction area signs shall be performed by hand methods without the use of power equipment, except that power equipment may be used if it is determined there are no utility facilities in the area of the proposed post holes. The post hole diameter, if backfilled with Portland cement concrete, shall be at least 4 inches greater than the longer dimension of the post cross section.

Construction area signs placed within 15 feet from the edge of the travel way shall be mounted on stationary mounted sign supports as specified in "Construction Area Traffic Control Devices" of these Special Provisions.

The Contractor shall maintain accurate information on construction area signs. Signs that are no longer required shall be immediately covered or removed. Signs that convey inaccurate information shall be immediately replaced or the information shall be corrected. Covers shall be replaced when they no longer cover the signs properly. The Contractor shall immediately restore to the original position and location any sign that is displaced or overturned, from any cause, during the progress of work.

The Contractor may be required to cover certain signs during the progress of the work. Signs that are no longer required or that convey inaccurate information to the public shall be immediately covered or removed or the information shall be corrected. Covers for construction area signs shall be of sufficient size and density to completely block out the complete face of the signs. The reflective face of the covered signs shall not be visible either during the day or at night. Covers shall be fastened securely so that the signs remain covered during inclement weather. Covers shall be replaced when they no longer cover the signs properly.

Construction Area Signs shown on the Contractor's accepted Traffic Control Plan, or as directed by the Engineer, shall be included in the Contract price paid for, "Traffic Control System," and shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all work involved in furnishing construction area signs required for the direction of public traffic through or around the work and for erecting or placing, maintaining (including covering and uncovering as needed) and, when no longer required, removing construction area signs.

10-1.15 TEMPORARY OBJECT MARKERS

Object markers shall be stationary mounted on wood or metal posts in conformance with the details shown on the plans and the provisions in "Markings," of the Standard Specifications.

Marker panels for Type P object markers shall conform to the provisions for sign panels for stationary mounted signs.

Full compensation for furnishing, placing, maintaining, and removing temporary object markers, including but not limited to for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in Temporary Object Markers, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, as required per the Contractor's accepted Traffic Control Plan, and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the Contract prices paid for the various items of work and no separate payment will be made.

10-1.16 MAINTAINING TRAFFIC

Attention is directed to Sections 7-1.03, "Public Convenience," 7-1.04, "Public Safety," and 12, "Temporary Traffic Control," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. Nothing in these Special Provisions shall be construed as relieving the Contractor from the responsibilities specified in Section 7-1.04, "Public Safety."

Lane closures shall conform to the provisions in "Closure Requirements and Conditions," and "Traffic Control System" of these Special Provisions.

The full width of the travel way shall remain open for public use at all times unless otherwise specified in these Special Provisions or approved by the City Engineer.

Construction activity requiring lane closures shall conform to the following restrictions;

- The travel way of main arterial and collector streets, including McCourtney Road and Mill Street, may be reduced to one 11 foot lane of traffic in both directions between the hours of 7:00am to 4:00pm, as necessary and subject to the approval of the Engineer.
- The travel way of primary residential streets, including Brighton Street, may be reduced to one 11 foot lane of traffic with two way stop control between the hours of 7:00am to 7:00pm, as necessary and subject to the approval of the Engineer.
- The travel way of minor residential streets may be closed to through traffic between the hours of 7:00am to 7:00pm, as necessary and subject to the approval of the Engineer.

Five days advance notice shall be given to all residents, businesses and local authorities prior to beginning work involving full street closures and/or closures to one lane. The Contractor shall accommodate any special needs that arise that may require ingress and egress to a property.

The Contractor may request day and/or weekend hours of work, which do not significantly change the cost of the work may be permitted upon the written request of the Contractor if, in the opinion of the Engineer, public traffic will be better served and the work expedited. These deviations shall not be adopted by the Contractor until the Engineer has approved them in writing. All other modifications will be made by contract change order.

The Contractor shall provide access to parking lots, driveways, residences and businesses at all times unless otherwise specified in these Special Provisions or approved by the City Engineer. Access to parking lots, driveways, and businesses within the project area shall be detailed in the Contractor's Traffic Control Plan for review and acceptance by the Engineer. Five days advance notice shall be given to all residents, businesses and local authorities prior to beginning work involving temporary closures to driveways or parking lots.

Personal vehicles of the Contractor's employees shall not be parked on the traveled way or shoulders, including any section closed to public traffic.

The Contractor shall notify local authorities of the Contractor's intent to begin work at least 7 days before work is begun. The Contractor shall cooperate with local authorities relative to handling traffic through the area and shall make arrangements relative to keeping the working area clear of parked vehicles.

Whenever work vehicles or equipment are parked on the shoulder within 6 feet of a traffic lane, the shoulder area shall be closed with fluorescent orange traffic cones or portable delineators placed on a taper in advance of the parked vehicles or equipment and along the edge of the pavement at 25-foot intervals to a point not less than 25 feet past the last vehicle or piece of equipment. A minimum of 9 traffic cones or portable delineators shall be used for the taper. A W20-1 (ROAD WORK AHEAD) or W21-5b (RIGHT/LEFT SHOULDER CLOSED AHEAD) or C24(CA) (SHOULDER WORK AHEAD) sign shall be mounted on a portable sign stand with flags. The sign shall be placed where designated by the Engineer and/or as required as part of the Contractor's accepted Traffic Control Plan. The sign shall be a minimum of 48" x 48" in size. The Contractor shall immediately restore to the original position and location a traffic cone or delineator that is displaced or overturned, during the progress of work.

Minor deviations from the requirements of this section concerning hours of work which do not significantly change the cost of the work may be permitted upon the written request of the Contractor if, in the opinion of the Engineer, public traffic will be better served and the work expedited. These deviations shall not be adopted by the Contractor until the Engineer has approved them in writing. All other modifications will be made by contract change order.

When traffic cones or delineators are used to delineate a temporary edge of traffic lane, the line of cones or delineators shall be considered to be the edge of the traffic lane. The lane closure provisions of this section shall not apply if the work area is protected by a temporary railing or barrier.

Pedestrian and bicycle access facilities shall be provided through construction areas within the right of way, unless otherwise approved by the Engineer, and included in the Contractor's Traffic Control Plan for review and acceptance by the Engineer.

Full compensation for all flagging costs required for contract items and work within the Project Limits shall be included in the contract price paid for "Traffic Control System" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

Full compensation for furnishing all signs, pedestrian and bicycle access facilities, posting signs, detours, lane closures, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all work involved in "Maintaining Traffic" complete in place as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer will be included in the Contract lump sum price paid for "Traffic Control System" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.17 CLOSURE REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS

Lane closures shall conform to the provisions in "Maintaining Traffic" of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

The term closure, as used herein, is defined as the closure of a traffic lane or lanes, including ramp or connector lanes, within a single traffic control system.

10-1.17.1 CLOSURE SCHEDULE

By noon Monday, the Contractor shall submit a written schedule of planned closures for the following week period, defined as Friday noon through the following Friday noon.

The Closure Schedule shall show the locations and times when the proposed closures are to be in effect. The Contractor shall submit the Closure Schedule request in a form acceptable to the City for approval. Closure Schedules submitted to the Engineer with incomplete, unintelligible or inaccurate information will be returned for correction and resubmittal. The Contractor will be notified of disapproved closures or closures that require coordination with other parties as a condition of approval.

Amendments to the Closure Schedule, including adding additional closures, shall be submitted to the Engineer, in writing, at least 3 working days in advance of a planned closure. Approval of amendments to the Closure Schedule will be at the discretion of the Engineer.

The Contractor shall confirm, in writing, all scheduled closures by no later than 8:00 a.m. 3 working days prior to the date on which the closure is to be made. Approval or denial of scheduled closures will be made no later than 4:00 p.m. 2 working days prior to the date on which the closure is to be made. Closures not confirmed or approved will not be allowed.

Confirmed closures that are cancelled due to unsuitable weather may be rescheduled at the discretion of the Engineer for the following working day.

10-1.17.2 CONTINGENCY PLAN

The Contractor shall prepare a contingency plan for reopening closures to public traffic. The Contractor shall submit the contingency plan for a given operation to the Engineer within one working day of the Engineer's request.

10-1.17.3 LATE REOPENING OF CLOSURES

If a closure is not reopened to public traffic by the specified time, work shall be suspended in conformance with the provisions in Section 8-1.06, "Suspensions," of the Standard Specifications. The Contractor shall not make any further closures until the Engineer has accepted a work plan, submitted by the Contractor, that will insure that future closures will be reopened to public traffic at the specified time. The Engineer will have 2 working days to accept or reject the Contractor's proposed work plan. The Contractor will not be entitled to any compensation for the suspension of work resulting from the late reopening of closures.

For each 30-minute interval, or fraction thereof past the time specified to reopen the closure, the City will deduct \$200 per interval from moneys due or that may become due the Contractor under the Contract.

10-1.17.4 PAYMENT

The Contractor shall notify the Engineer of any delay in the Contractor's operations due to the following conditions, and if, in the opinion of the Engineer, the Contractor's controlling operation is delayed or interfered with by reason of those conditions, and the Contractor's loss due to that delay could not have been avoided by rescheduling the affected closure or by judicious handling of forces, equipment and plant, time or payment adjustments shall be determined in conformance with the provisions in Section 8-1.07 "Delays" of the Standard Specifications:

- A. The Contractor's proposed Closure Schedule is denied and his planned closures are within the time frame allowed for closures in "Maintaining Traffic" of these Special Provisions, except that the Contractor will not be entitled to any compensation for amendments to the Closure Schedule that are not approved.
- B. The Contractor is denied a confirmed closure.

Should the Engineer direct the Contractor to remove a closure prior to the time designated in the approved Closure Schedule, any delay to the Contractor's schedule due to removal of the closure will be considered a delay and time or payment adjustments shall be determined in conformance with the provisions in Section 8-1.07 "Delays" of the Standard Specifications.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section shall be considered as included in the Contract lump sum price paid for "Traffic Control System," and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.18 TRAFFIC CONTROL SYSTEM

A traffic control system shall consist of closing traffic lanes in conformance with the details shown on the plans, the provisions in Section 12, "Temporary Traffic Control," of the Standard Specifications, the provisions in "Maintaining Traffic," "Closure Requirements and Conditions," and "Construction Area Signs," of these Special Provisions.

The provisions in this section will not relieve the Contractor from the responsibility to provide additional devices or take measures as may be necessary to comply with the provisions in Section 7-1.04, "Public Safety," of the Standard Specifications.

Any existing traffic stripes, pavement marking and pavement markers that are obliterated or removed by the Contractor or as directed by the Engineer shall be reinstalled by the Contractor before the completion of this project. Any conflicting markings shall be completely removed as identifiable pavement markings under daylight or at night, wet or dry conditions.

If components in the traffic control system are displaced or cease to operate or function as specified, from any cause, during the progress of the work, the Contractor shall immediately repair the components to the original condition or replace the components and shall restore the components to the original location.

During traffic stripe operations and pavement marker placement operations using bituminous adhesive, traffic shall be controlled, at the option of the Contractor, with either stationary or moving lane closures. During other operations, traffic shall be controlled with stationary lane closures.

STATIONARY TYPE LANE CLOSURE: When lane closures are made for work periods only, at the end of each work period, components of the traffic control system, except portable delineators placed along open trenches or excavation adjacent to the traveled way, shall be removed from the traveled way and shoulder. If the Contractor so elects, the components may be stored at selected central locations designated by the Engineer within the limits of the highway right of way.

Each vehicle used to place, maintain, and remove components of a traffic control system on multi lane highways shall be equipped with a Type II flashing arrow sign and radios which shall be in operation when the vehicle is being used for placing, maintaining, or removing the components. Vehicles equipped with Type II flashing arrow sign not involved in placing, maintaining, or removing the components when operated within a stationary type lane closure shall only display the caution display mode. The sign shall be controllable by the operator of the vehicle while the vehicle is in motion. The flashing arrow sign shown on the plans shall not be used on the vehicles which are doing the placing, maintaining, and removing of components of a traffic control system, and shall be in place before a lane closure requiring its use is completed.

When flaggers are required, they shall have radios and be in contact with personnel in the work area.

One-way traffic shall be controlled through the project in conformance with the Caltrans Standard Plan T-13, "Traffic Control System for Lane Closure on Two Lane Conventional Highways" and these Special Provisions.

MOVING LANE CLOSURE: Flashing arrow signs used in moving lane closures shall be truck-mounted. Changeable message signs used in moving lane closure operations shall conform to the provisions in "Portable Changeable Message Signs," of the Standard Specifications, except the signs shall be truck-mounted and the full operation height of the bottom of the sign may be less than 7 feet above the ground, but should be as high as practicable.

Flashing arrow signs shall be in the caution display mode when used on 2-lane, 2-way highways.

Truck-mounted attenuators (TMA) for use in moving lane closures shall be any of the following approved models, or equal:

- A. Hexfoam TMA Series 3000, Alpha 1000 TMA Series 1000 and Alpha 2001 TMA Series 2001, manufactured by Energy Absorption Systems, Inc., One East Wacker Drive, Chicago, IL 60601-2076, telephone (312) 467-6750
 - 1. Distributor (northern): Traffic Control Service, Inc., 8585 Thys Court, Sacramento, CA 95828, telephone (800) 884-8274, FAX (916) 387-9734
 - 2. Distributor (southern): Traffic Control Service, Inc., 1881 Betmor Lane, Anaheim, CA 92805, telephone (800) 222-8274
- B. Cal T-001 Model 2 or Model 3, manufacturer and distributor: Hexcel Corporation, 11711 Dublin Boulevard, P.O. Box 2312, Dublin, CA 94568, telephone (925) 551-4900

C. Renco Rengard Model Nos. CAM 8-815 and RAM 8-815, manufacturer and distributor: Renco Inc., 1582 Pflugerville Loop Road, P.O. Box 730, Pflugerville, TX 78660-0730, telephone (800) 654-8182

Each TMA shall be individually identified with the manufacturer's name, address, TMA model number, and a specific serial number. The names and numbers shall each be a minimum ½ inch high and located on the left (street) side at the lower front corner. The TMA shall have a message next to the name and model number in ½ inch high letters which states, "The bottom of this TMA shall be _____ inches ± ____ inch above the ground at all points for proper impact performance." Any TMA which is damaged or appears to be in poor condition shall not be used unless recertified by the manufacturer. The Engineer shall be the sole judge as to whether used TMAs supplied under this contract need recertification. Each unit shall be certified by the manufacturer to meet the requirements for TMA in conformance with the standards established by the Transportation Laboratory.

Approvals for new TMA designs proposed as equal to the above approved models shall be in conformance with the procedures (including crash testing) established by the Transportation Laboratory. For information regarding submittal of new designs for evaluation contact: Transportation Laboratory, 5900 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento, California 95819.

New TMAs proposed as equal to approved TMAs or approved TMAs determined by the Engineer to need recertification shall not be used until approved or recertified by the Transportation Laboratory.

Contractor shall submit a traffic control plan to the Engineer for acceptance prior to beginning any construction activities. All such plans shall conform to Section 12, "Temporary Traffic Control," of the Standard Specifications, the Manual of Traffic Control and these Special Provisions.

Traffic control system required by work which is classed as extra work, as provided in Section 4-1.05, "Changes and Extra Work," of the Standard Specifications, will be paid for as a part of the extra work.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor (including flagging costs), materials (including signs, markings, and markers), tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all work involved in "Traffic Control System," including, but not limited to, placing, removing, storing, maintaining, moving to new locations, replacing and disposing of the components of the accepted Traffic Control Plan, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the Contract lump sum price paid for "Traffic Control System," and no additional compensation will be allowed.

Attention is directed to Sections 9-1.16, "Progress Payments," and 9-1.17, "Payment After Contract Acceptance," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. Payments for the contract item "Traffic Control System" will be made on the basis of the percent of work done on all items of work excluding the item for "Traffic Control System."

The adjustment provisions in Section 4-1.05, "Changes and Extra Work," of the Standard Specifications shall not apply to the item of traffic control system. Adjustments in compensation for traffic control system will be made only for increased or decreased traffic control system required by changes ordered by the Engineer and will be made on the basis of the cost of the increased or decreased traffic control necessary. The adjustment will be made on a force account basis as provided in Section 9-1.04, "Force Account," of the Standard Specifications for increased work and estimated on the same basis in the case of decreased work.

10-1.18.1 TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN

The Traffic Control Plan for controlling the traffic and parking, including shoulder closures, detours and lane closures on City roadways, applicable bikeways, pedestrian facilities, and State Highways in conjunction with the work shall be submitted by the Contractor. The Traffic Control Plan shall be consistent with all specific site conditions and work conditions for this project.

Contractor shall submit three (3) copies of a proposed Traffic Control Plan to the City Engineer for review and comments no later than five (5) working days after the pre-construction conference. Construction shall not begin until the traffic control plan has been reviewed and accepted by the City Engineer. The contractor shall allow five (5) working days for review by the City. If revisions are required, as determined by the City Engineer, the Contractor shall revise and resubmit the Traffic Control Plan within five (5) calendar days of receipt of comments and shall allow five (5) working days for review of the revised traffic control plans. Upon acceptance of the Traffic Control Plan by the City Engineer, three (3) additional copies of the traffic control plan, incorporating all the required changes, shall be submitted to the City Engineer. Failure to submit an acceptable traffic control plan shall not in any way delay the start of the contract working days. The Traffic Control Plan shall be prepared and stamped by a Civil Engineer or Traffic Engineer licensed to practice engineering in the State of California. If the Contractor makes significant changes to the accepted Traffic Control Plan, these changes must also be prepared and stamped by a licensed Civil Engineer or Traffic Engineer.

The Traffic Control Plan shall conform to the Plans, Standard Specifications, the California MUTCD dated September 26, 2006, Section 12, "Temporary Traffic Control," of the Standard Specifications, and these Special Provisions.

The Traffic Control Plan shall be accepted by the Engineer prior to the start of construction. The Contractor shall not proceed with any construction until proper traffic control has been provided to the satisfaction of the

Engineer. Failure to comply with any specification herein or with direction from the Engineer may result in work stopped until compliance is restored.

Any lost days due to improper traffic control will be charged against the Contractor's allowable working days.

The Contractor's Traffic Control Plan shall include and detail pedestrian access facilities through the construction areas within the Project right of way in accordance with Section 12-4, "Maintaining Traffic" of the Standard Specifications, for review and acceptance by the Engineer.

The Traffic Control Plan shall include preparation of a plan for the work to be performed within the project limits including, but not limited to, all flagging, signs, portable message signs, barricades, temporary striping, cones, pedestrian access facilities and other incidentals associated with, but not limited to, the widening of the roadway, installation of signal poles and conduits and reconstruction of sidewalks.

Acceptance by the City Engineer of the submitted traffic control plan shall in no way relieve the Contractor of his responsibility for any and all safety requirements conforming to the Standard Specifications, these Special Provisions or others of any public authority having jurisdiction for the safety of persons and property, or to protect them from damage, injury or loss.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section shall be considered as included in the Contract lump sum price paid for "Traffic Control System," and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.19 FLAGGING COSTS

The first paragraph of Section 12-1.03, "Construction," of the Standard Specifications is amended in its entirety to read as follows:

Full compensation for furnishing all flaggers, including transporting flaggers, and providing stands, towers, or lights for use of flaggers to provide for passage of public traffic through the work under the provisions in Sections 7-1.03, "Public Convenience," and 7-1.04, "Public Safety," of the Standard Specifications shall be considered as included in the Contract lump sum price paid for "Traffic Control System" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.20 PORTABLE FLASHING BEACONS

Portable flashing beacons conforming to the provisions in Section 12, "Temporary Traffic Control," of the Standard Specifications shall be furnished, placed and maintained at the locations shown on the plans, as required per the Contractor's accepted Traffic Control Plan and/or directed by the Engineer.

If flashing beacons are displaced or are not in an upright position, from any cause, during the progress of the work, the Contractor shall immediately repair or replace the flashing beacons in their original locations.

Full compensation for furnishing, placing, maintaining, and removing portable flashing beacons as required per the Contractor's accepted Traffic Control Plan and as ordered by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the Contract prices paid for the items of work that require the portable flashing beacons and no separate payment will be made.

10-1.21 BARRICADES

Barricades shall be furnished, placed and maintained at the locations shown on the plans, specified in the Standard Specifications or in these Special Provisions or where designated by the Engineer. Barricades shall conform to the provisions in Section 12, "Temporary Traffic Control," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Attention is directed to "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions regarding retroreflective sheeting for barricades.

Construction area sign and marker panels conforming to the provisions in "Construction Area Signs," of the Standard Specifications shall be installed on barricades in a manner determined by the Engineer at the locations shown on the plans.

Sign panels for construction area signs and marker panels installed on barricades shall conform to the provisions in "Stationary-Mounted Signs," of the Standard Specifications.

Full compensation for furnishing all barricades, including, but not limited to installation, maintenance and removal, shall be considered as included in the Contract lump sum price paid for "Traffic Control System" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.22 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT DELINEATION

Temporary pavement delineation shall be furnished, placed, maintained, and removed in conformance with the provisions in Section 12-3.01, "General," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. Nothing in these Special Provisions shall be construed as reducing the minimum standards specified in the California Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices ("CAMUTCD"), or as relieving the Contractor from the responsibilities specified in Section 7-1.04, "Public Safety," of the Standard Specifications.

10-1.22.1 GENERAL

Whenever the work causes obliteration of pavement delineation, temporary or permanent pavement delineation shall be in place prior to opening the traveled way to public traffic. Laneline or centerline pavement delineation shall be provided at all times for traveled ways open to public traffic.

All work necessary, including required lines or marks, to establish the alignment of temporary pavement delineation shall be performed by the Contractor. Surfaces to receive temporary pavement delineation shall be dry and free of dirt and loose material. Temporary pavement delineation shall not be applied over existing pavement delineation or other temporary pavement delineation. Temporary pavement delineation shall be maintained until superseded or replaced with a new pattern of temporary pavement delineation or permanent pavement delineation.

Temporary pavement markers and removable traffic tape, including underlying adhesive, which conflicts with a new traffic pattern or which is applied to the final layer of surfacing or existing pavement to remain in place shall be removed when no longer required for the direction of public traffic, as determined by the Engineer.

10-1.22.2 TEMPORARY LANELINE AND CENTERLINE DELINEATION

Whenever lanelines and centerlines are obliterated, the minimum laneline and centerline delineation to be provided shall be temporary raised pavement markers placed at longitudinal intervals of not more than 24 feet. The temporary raised pavement markers shall be the same color as the laneline or centerline the markers replace. Temporary raised pavement markers shall be, at the option of the Contractor, one of the temporary pavement markers listed for short term day/night use (14 days or less) or long term day/night use (6 months or less) in "Prequalified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions.

Temporary raised pavement markers shall be placed in conformance with the manufacturer's instructions and shall be cemented to the surfacing with the adhesive recommended by the manufacturer, except epoxy adhesive shall not be used to place pavement markers in areas where removal of the markers will be required.

Temporary laneline or centerline delineation consisting entirely of temporary raised pavement markers placed on longitudinal intervals of not more than 24 feet shall be used on lanes open to public traffic for a maximum of 14 days. Prior to the end of the 14 days, the permanent pavement delineation shall be placed. If the permanent pavement delineation is not placed within the 14 days, additional temporary pavement delineation shall be provided at the Contractor's expense. The additional temporary pavement delineation to be provided shall be equivalent to the pattern specified for the permanent pavement delineation for the area, as determined by the Engineer.

Where "no passing" centerline pavement delineation is obliterated, the following "no passing" zone signing shall be installed prior to opening the lanes to public traffic. W20-1 (ROAD WORK AHEAD) signs shall be installed from 1,000 feet to 2,000 feet in advance of "no passing" zones. R4-1 (DO NOT PASS) signs shall be installed at the beginning and at every 2,000-foot interval within "no passing" zones. For continuous zones longer than 2 miles, W7-3a or W71(CA) (NEXT _____ MILES) signs shall be installed beneath the W20-1 signs installed in advance of "no passing" zones. R4-2 (PASS WITH CARE) signs shall be installed at the end of "no passing" zones. The exact location of "no passing" zone signing will be as determined by the Engineer and shall be maintained in place until permanent "no passing" centerline pavement delineation has been applied. The signing for "no passing" zones shall be removed when no longer required for the direction of public traffic. The signing for "no passing" zones shall conform to the provisions in "Construction Area Signs" of these Special Provisions, except for payment.

10-1.22.3 TEMPORARY EDGELINE DELINEATION

On multilane roadways (freeways and expressways), whenever edgelines are obliterated and temporary pavement delineation to replace those edgelines is not shown on the plans, the edgeline delineation to be provided for those areas adjacent to lanes open to public traffic shall be as follows:

- A. Temporary pavement delineation for right edgelines shall, at the option of the Contractor, consist of either solid 4-inch wide traffic stripe of the same color as the stripe the temporary edgeline delineation replaces, or traffic cones, portable delineators or channelizers placed at longitudinal intervals not to exceed 30 feet.
- B. Temporary pavement delineation for left edgelines shall, at the option of the Contractor, consist of either solid 4-inch wide traffic stripe of the same color as the stripe the temporary edgeline delineation replaces, traffic cones, portable delineators or channelizers placed at longitudinal intervals not to exceed 30 feet or temporary pavement markers placed at longitudinal intervals of not more than 6 feet. Temporary pavement markers used for temporary left edgeline delineation shall be one of the types of temporary pavement markers listed for short term day/night use (14 days or less) or long term day/night use (6 months or less) in "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions.

Whenever edgelines are obliterated on roadways, the edgeline delineation to be provided for that area adjacent to lanes open to public traffic shall consist of, at the option of the Contractor, either solid 4-inch wide traffic stripe of the same color as the stripe the temporary edgeline delineation replaces or shall consist of traffic cones, portable delineators or channelizers placed at longitudinal intervals not to exceed 30 feet.

Traffic stripe (4-inch wide) placed for temporary edgeline delineation, which will require removal, shall consist of temporary removable construction grade striping and pavement marking tape listed in "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions, and shall conform to the requirements "Temporary Traffic Stripe" (Tape) of this Special Provision. Temporary removable construction grade striping and pavement marking tape when used shall be applied in conformance with the manufacturer's recommendations. Where removal of the 4-inch wide traffic stripe will not be required, painted traffic stripe conforming to the provisions of "Temporary Traffic Stripe (Paint)" of these Special Provisions may be used. The quantity of painted traffic stripe used for temporary edgeline delineation will not be included in the quantities of paint traffic stripe to be paid for.

The lateral offset for traffic cones, portable delineators or channelizers used for temporary edgeline delineation shall be determined by the Engineer. If traffic cones or portable delineators are used as temporary pavement delineation for edgelines, the Contractor shall provide personnel to remain at the project site to maintain the cones or delineators during hours of the day that the cones or delineators are in use.

Channelizers used for temporary edgeline delineation shall be the surface mounted type and shall be orange in color. Channelizer bases shall be cemented to the pavement in the same manner provided for cementing pavement markers to pavement in "Pavement Markers" of these Special Provisions, except epoxy adhesive shall not be used to place channelizers on the top layer of pavement. Channelizers shall be, at the Contractor's option, one of the surface mount types 36 inches listed in Section 8-1.03, "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials," of these Special Provisions.

Temporary edgeline delineation shall be removed when no longer required for the direction of public traffic, as determined by the Engineer.

10-1.22.4 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC STRIPE (TAPE)

Temporary traffic stripe consisting of removable traffic stripe tape shall be applied at the locations shown on the Contractor's accepting Traffic Control Plans, the project plans, and as directed by the engineer. The temporary traffic stripe tape shall be complete in place at the location shown prior to opening the traveled way to public traffic.

Removable traffic stripe tape shall be the temporary removable traffic stripe tape listed in "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions.

Removable traffic stripe tape shall be applied in conformance with the manufacturer's installation instructions and shall be rolled slowly with a rubber tired vehicle or roller to ensure complete contact with the pavement surface. Traffic stripe tape shall be applied straight on tangent alignment and on a true arc on curved alignment. Traffic stripe tape shall not be applied when the air or pavement temperature is less than 50° F, unless the installation procedures to be used are approved by the Engineer, prior to beginning installation of the tape.

When removable traffic stripe tape is specified for temporary left edgeline delineation, temporary pavement markers placed at longitudinal intervals of not more than 6 feet may be used in place of the temporary traffic stripe tape. Temporary pavement markers shall be one of the types of temporary pavement markers listed for long term day/night use (6 months or less) in "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions. When temporary pavement markers are used in place of temporary tape traffic stripe, payment for those temporary pavement markers will be made on the basis of the theoretical length of the temporary traffic stripe (tape) required for the left edgeline which the temporary markers replace.

10-1.22.5 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC STRIPE (PAINT)

Temporary traffic stripe consisting of painted traffic stripe shall be applied and maintained at the locations shown on the Contractor's accepted Traffic Control Plans, the project plans, and as directed by the Engineer. The painted temporary traffic strip shall be complete in place at the location shown prior to opening the traveled way to public traffic. Removal of painted temporary traffic stripe will not be required.

Temporary painted traffic strip shall conform to the provisions in "Paint Traffic Stripes and Pavement Markings" of these Special Provisions, "Traffic Stripes and Pavement Markings," of the Standard Specifications, except for payment. At the option of the Contractor, either one or two coats shall be applied regardless of whether on new or existing pavement.

When painted traffic stripe is specified for temporary left edgeline delineation, temporary pavement markers placed at longitudinal intervals of not more than 6 feet may be used in place of the temporary painted traffic stripe. Temporary pavement markers will be one of the types of temporary pavement markers listed for long term day/night use (6 months or less) in "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions. When temporary reflective pavement markers are used in place of temporary painted traffic stripe, payment for

those temporary pavement markers will be made on the basis of the theoretical quantity of temporary traffic stripe (paint) required for the left edgeline the temporary pavement markers replace.

10-1.22.6 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT MARKING (TAPE)

Temporary pavement marking consisting of removable pavement marking tape shall be applied at the locations shown on the plans. The temporary pavement marking tape shall be complete in place at the location shown, prior to opening the traveled way to public traffic.

Removable pavement marking tape shall be the temporary removable type pavement marking tape listed in "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions and shall be applied and removed in conformance with the provisions specified for applying and removing the temporary traffic stripe tape.

10-1.22.7 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT MARKING (PAINT)

Temporary pavement marking consisting of painted pavement marking shall be applied and maintained at the locations shown on the plans. The painted temporary pavement marking shall be complete in place at the location shown prior to opening the traveled way to public traffic. Removal of painted temporary pavement marking will not be required.

Temporary painted pavement marking shall conform to the provisions in "Traffic Stripes and Pavement Markings," of the Standard Specifications, except for payment. At the option of the Contractor, either one or 2 coats shall be applied regardless whether on new or existing pavement.

At the Contractor's option, temporary removable pavement marking tape or permanent pavement marking tape listed in "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions may be used instead of painted temporary pavement markings. When pavement marking tape is used, regardless of which type of tape is placed, the tape will be measured and paid for by the square meter as temporary pavement marking (paint).

10-1.22.8 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT MARKERS

Temporary pavement markers shall be applied at the location shown on the Contractor's accepted traffic control plan, the project plans and as directed by the Engineer. The pavement markers shall be applied complete in place at the locations shown prior to opening the traveled way to public traffic.

Temporary pavement markers shown on the plans shall be, at the option of the Contractor, one of the temporary pavement markers for long term day/night use (6 months or less) listed in "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions.

Temporary pavement markers shall be placed in conformance with the manufacturer's instructions and shall be cemented to the surfacing with the adhesive recommended by the manufacturer, except epoxy adhesive shall not be used in areas where removal of the pavement markers will be required.

Where the temporary pavement delineation shown on the plans for lanelines or centerlines consists entirely of a pattern of broken traffic stripe and pavement markers, the Contractor may use groups of the temporary pavement markers for long term day/night use (6 months or less) in place of the temporary traffic stripe tape or painted temporary traffic stripe. The groups of pavement markers shall be spaced as shown on the plans for a similar pattern of permanent traffic line, except pavement markers shown to be placed in the gap between the broken traffic stripe shall be placed as part of the group to delineate the pattern of broken temporary traffic stripe. The kind of laneline and centerline delineation selected by the Contractor shall be continuous within a given location. Payment for those temporary pavement markers used in place of temporary traffic stripe will be made on the basis of the theoretical length of patterns of temporary traffic stripe (tape) or temporary traffic stripe (paint).

Retroreflective pavement markers conforming to the provisions in "Pavement Markers" of these Special Provisions may be used in place of temporary pavement markers for long term day/night use (6 months or less) except to simulate patterns of broken traffic stripe. Placement of the retroreflective pavement markers used for temporary pavement markers shall conform to the provisions in "Pavement Markers" of these Special Provisions except the waiting period provisions before placing the pavement markers on new asphalt concrete surfacing as specified in Section 81-3.03c, "Epoxy Adhesive," of the Standard Specifications shall not apply and epoxy adhesive shall not be used to place pavement markers in areas where removal of the pavement markers will be required.

10-1.22.9 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

Full compensation for furnishing, placing, maintaining, and removing the temporary raised pavement markers and stripes, and/or layout (dribble) lines to establish alignment of temporary pavement markers used for temporary laneline and centerline delineation (including the signing specified for "no passing" zones) and for providing equivalent patterns of permanent traffic lines for these areas when required shall be considered as included in the contract price paid for "Traffic Control System" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

Full compensation for furnishing, placing, maintaining and removing temporary pavement delineation, including but not limited to, all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in applying, maintaining, removing, and repairing temporary pavement delineation, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as shown on the Contractor's accepted Traffic Control Plan, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the Contract lump sum price paid for "Traffic Control System," and no separate payment will be made.

10-1.23 TEMPORARY RAILING

Temporary railing (Type K) shall be placed at the locations shown on the Contractor's accepted Traffic Control Plan or as shown on the plans, and shall conform to the provisions in Section 12, "Temporary Traffic Control," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Reflectors on temporary railing (Type K) shall conform to the provisions in "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials," of these Special Provisions.

The Contractor's attention is directed to the provisions in "Public Safety," and "General Requirements," elsewhere in these Special Provisions.

Temporary railing (Type K) placed in accordance with the provisions in "Public Safety," of these Special Provisions will not be measured nor paid for.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials (including reinforcement and concrete anchorage devices and terminal sections as required), excavation, backfill, tools, equipment and all incidentals, and for doing all work involved in furnishing, placing, maintaining, repairing, moving, reinstalling at a new location, replacing and removing temporary railing as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the Contract lump sum price paid for "Traffic Control System," and no separate payment will be made.

10-1.24 CHANNELIZERS

Channelizers shall conform to the provisions in Section 12, "Temporary Traffic Control," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Channelizers shall conform to the provisions in "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions.

When no longer required for the work as determined by the Engineer, channelizers and underlying adhesive used to cement the channelizer bases to the pavement shall be removed. Removed channelizers and adhesive shall become the property of the Contractor and shall be removed from the site of work.

Channelizers placed in accordance with the Contractor's accepted Traffic Control Plan as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the Contract lump sum price paid for, "Traffic Control System" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.25 TEMPORARY CRASH CUSHION MODULE

This work shall consist of furnishing, installing, and maintaining sand filled temporary crash cushion modules in groupings or arrays at each location shown on the plans, as specified in these Special Provisions or where designated by the Engineer. The grouping or array of sand filled modules shall form a complete sand filled temporary crash cushion in conformance with the details shown on the plans and these Special Provisions.

Attention is directed to "Public Safety", "General Requirements", and "Temporary Railing" of these Special Provisions.

Whenever the work or the Contractor's operations establishes a fixed obstacle, the exposed fixed obstacle shall be protected with a sand filled temporary crash cushion. The sand filled temporary crash cushion shall be in place prior to opening the lanes adjacent to the fixed obstacle to public traffic.

Sand filled temporary crash cushions shall be maintained in place at each location, including times when work is not actively in progress. Sand filled temporary crash cushions may be removed during a work period for access to the work provided that the exposed fixed obstacle is 15 feet or more from a lane carrying public traffic and the temporary crash cushion is reset to protect the obstacle prior to the end of the work period in which the fixed obstacle was exposed. When no longer required, as determined by the Engineer, sand filled temporary crash cushions shall be removed from the site of the work.

At the Contractor's option, the modules for use in sand filled temporary crash cushions shall be either Energite III Inertial Modules, Fitch Inertial Modules or TrafFix Sand Barrels manufactured after March 31, 1997, or equal:

- A. Energite III and Fitch Inertial Modules, manufactured by Energy Absorption Systems, Inc., One East Wacker Drive, Chicago, IL 60601-2076, telephone (312) 467-6750, FAX (800) 770-6755
 - 1. Distributor (North): Traffic Control Service, Inc., 8585 Thys Court, Sacramento, CA 95828, telephone (800) 884-8274, FAX (916) 387-9734

- 2. Distributor (South): Traffic Control Service, Inc., 1881 Betmor Lane, Anaheim, CA 92805, telephone (800) 222-8274, FAX (714) 937-1070
- B. TrafFix Sand Barrels, manufactured by TrafFix Devices, Inc., 220 Calle Pintoresco, San Clemente, CA 92672, telephone (949) 361-5663, FAX (949) 361-9205
 - 1. Distributor (North): United Rentals, Inc., 1533 Berger Drive, San Jose, CA 95112, telephone (408) 287-4303, FAX (408) 287-1929
 - Distributor (South): Statewide Safety & Sign, Inc., P.O. Box 1440, Pismo Beach, CA 93448, telephone (800) 559-7080, FAX (805) 929-5786

Modules contained in each temporary crash cushion shall be of the same type at each location. The color of the modules shall be the standard yellow color, as furnished by the vendor, with black lids. The modules shall exhibit good workmanship free from structural flaws and objectionable surface defects. The modules need not be new. Good used undamaged modules conforming to color and quality of the types specified herein may be utilized. If used Fitch modules requiring a seal are furnished, the top edge of the seal shall be securely fastened to the wall of the module by a continuous strip of heavy duty tape.

Modules shall be filled with sand in conformance with the manufacturer's directions, and to the sand capacity in pounds for each module shown on the plans. Sand for filling the modules shall be clean washed concrete sand of commercial quality. At the time of placing in the modules, the sand shall contain not more than 7 percent water as determined by California Test 226.

Modules damaged due to the Contractor's operations shall be repaired immediately by the Contractor at the Contractor's expense. Modules damaged beyond repair, as determined by the Engineer, due to the Contractor's operations shall be removed and replaced by the Contractor at the Contractor's expense.

Temporary crash cushion modules shall be placed on movable pallets or frames conforming to the dimensions shown on the plans. The pallets or frames shall provide a full bearing base beneath the modules. The modules and supporting pallets or frames shall not be moved by sliding or skidding along the pavement or bridge deck.

A Type R or P marker panel shall be attached to the front of the crash cushion as shown on the plans, when the closest point of the crash cushion array is within 12 feet of the traveled way. The marker panel, when required, shall be firmly fastened to the crash cushion with commercial quality hardware or by other methods determined by the Engineer.

At the completion of the project, temporary crash cushion modules, sand filling, pallets or frames, and marker panels shall become the property of the Contractor and shall be removed from the site of the work. Temporary crash cushion modules shall not be installed in the permanent work.

Temporary crash cushion modules placed in conformance with the provisions in "Public Safety" of these Special Provisions and modules placed in excess of the number specified or shown will not be measured nor paid for.

Repairing modules damaged by public traffic will be paid for as extra work as provided in Section 4-1.05, "Changes and Extra Work," of the Standard Specifications. Modules damaged beyond repair by public traffic, when ordered by the Engineer, shall be removed and replaced immediately by the Contractor. Modules replaced due to damage by public traffic will be paid for as extra work as provided in Section 4-1.05, "Changes and Extra Work," of the Standard Specifications and these temporary crash cushions modules will not be counted for payment in the new position.

If the Engineer orders a lateral move of the sand filled temporary crash cushions, except those placed in conformance with "Public Safety," of these Special Provisions, and the repositioning is not shown on the plans or the Contractor's accepted Traffic Control Plan, moving the sand filled temporary crash cushion will be paid for as extra work as provided in Section 4-1.05, "Changes and Extra Work," of the Standard Specifications and these temporary crash cushion modules will not be counted for payment in the new position.

Temporary crash cushion modules as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the Contract lump sum price paid for, "Traffic Control System," and shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials (sand, pallets or frames and marker panels), tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all work involved in installing, maintaining, moving, resetting and removing, when no longer required (including those damaged by public traffic) the temporary crash cushion modules and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.26 DEMOLITION AND REMOVAL

This work shall consist of clearing, grubbing demolition and removal of existing vegetation, gravel, dirt, sod and other objectionable material, as necessary to prepare the work area for further excavation, grading or resurfacing.

Clearing and grubbing work shall conform to the provisions in "Clearing and Grubbing," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. Clearing and grubbing shall be performed only within the excavation limits and embankment slope lines. Existing vegetation, outside the areas to be cleared and grubbed, shall be protected from the Contractor's operations unless specifically shown on the plans to be removed.

Only those trees noted on the plans to be removed or so designated by the Engineer shall be removed.

Attention is directed to "Existing Facilities" of these Special Provisions regarding removal of existing surfacing, obstructions and objects.

Nothing herein shall be construed as relieving the Contractor of his responsibility for final cleanup of the highway as provided in "Cleanup," of the Standard Specifications.

This work shall consist of removing objectionable material, including existing miscellaneous concrete and asphalt areas, gravel, dirt, sod and planter materials, from within the limits of the project as specified. The limits of clearing and grubbing shall be of sufficient area and depth to complete the work as shown on the plans or described in these Special Provisions, and may include excavation and grading as necessary to complete the work.

Work shall also include removal and disposal of existing weeds, brush and other unsuitable material within and along the edge of pavement, and trimming of trees as needed for operation of equipment. Contractor shall allow seven (7) days after spray of weeds within or at edges of pavement to ensure successful eradication prior to chip, scrub and/or cape scrub seal operations. If unsuccessful, Contractor shall respray.

All striping, markings or pavement markers within areas to receive HMA replacement or overlay shall be removed and disposed of as part of the contract items of work involved. If, in the opinion of the Engineer, the pavement surface has been damaged as a result of pavement marker removal, the Contractor shall repair said damage in a manner acceptable to the Engineer at the Contractor's expense.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in clearing and removal, including, but not limited to, cutting, uprooting, sawcutting, excavation, disposal and backfill as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions and as directed by the Engineer, shall be included in the contract lump sum paid for "Demolition and Removal" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.27 EXISTING FACILITIES

This work shall consist of removing existing facilities and structures which interfere with construction in the specified work area as shown on the plans and as specified in these Special Provisions. Attention is directed to Section 15, "Existing Facilities" of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

10-1.27.1 REMOVE ASPHALT CONCRETE

Existing asphalt concrete surfacing, and underlying base material shall be removed as needed, as shown on the plans and in conformance with these Special Provisions.

Attention is directed to the provisions in "Clearing and Grubbing," and "Buried Man-Made Objects," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

That portion of the asphalt concrete area to be removed abutting asphalt concrete to remain in place shall be cut on neat lines with a power-driven saw before removing the surfacing, unless approved by the Engineer.

Surfacing and base shall be removed without damage to surfacing that is to remain in place. Damage to pavement which is to remain in place shall be repaired to a condition satisfactory to the Engineer or the damaged pavement shall be removed and replaced with new asphalt concrete if ordered by the Engineer. Repairing or removing and replacing pavement damaged outside the limits of pavement to be replaced shall be at the Contractor's expense and will not be measured nor paid for.

Removed materials shall be disposed of outside the highway right of way.

The material remaining in place, after removing surfacing and base to the required depth, shall be graded to a plane, watered, and compacted as deemed necessary by the Engineer.

Areas of the base material which are low as a result of over excavation shall be filled, at the Contractor's expense, with asphalt concrete.

The exact limits of asphalt concrete surfacing to be removed and replaced, as shown on the plans, will be determined by the Engineer.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in removing asphalt concrete, including, but not limited to, sawcutting, disposal, excavation and backfill as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions and as directed by the Engineer, shall be included in the contract lump sum paid for "Demolition and Removal" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.27.2 REMOVE CONCRETE

Existing concrete, shown on the plans to be removed shall be completely removed and disposed of in accordance with "Removing Concrete" of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Attention is directed to the provisions in "Clearing and Grubbing," and "Buried Man-Made Objects," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Adjacent facilities damaged during concrete removal shall be repaired to a condition satisfactory to the Engineer or shall be removed and replaced if ordered by the Engineer. Repairing or removing and replacing damaged facilities shall be at the Contractor's expense and no additional compensation will be allowed.

Concrete shall be completely removed and disposed of outside the highway right of way.

Depressions left after concrete removal shall be immediately backfilled with sand cement slurry or Class 2 Aggregate Base and compacted sufficiently to obtain an unyielding surface.

Removal of concrete shall include removal of sidewalks, curbs, gutters, driveways and miscellaneous concrete curbs as shown on the plans to be removed.

Reinforcing or other steel may be encountered in portions of the concrete. No additional compensation will be allowed for the removal of concrete containing reinforcing or steel.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved including, but not limited to, sawcutting, disposal, excavation and backfill as shown on the plans, as specified the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions and as directed by the Engineer, shall be included in the contract lump sum paid for "Demolition and Removal" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.27.3 REMOVE POST

Existing posts shown on the plans to be removed shall be completely removed and disposed of outside the highway right of way in accordance with the provisions of the Standard Specifications, the project plans and these Special Provisions. Removal of posts shall include complete removal of the concrete footings. Depressions left after concrete removal shall be backfilled with sand cement slurry or Class 2 Aggregate Base and compacted sufficiently to obtain an unyielding surface.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in post removal, including, but not limited to removal, excavation, hauling and disposal, and backfilling, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions and as directed by the Engineer, shall be included in the contract lump sum paid for "Demolition and Removal" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.27.4 **REMOVE SIGN**

Existing signs, posts and sign hardware, shown on the plans to be removed shall be removed and disposed of in accordance with the requirements of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Concrete footings for signs, and sign posts deemed unusable by the Engineer, shall be removed and disposed of outside the highway right of way in accordance with the provisions of the Standard Specifications, the project plans and these Special Provisions.

Signs, sign hardware and salvageable posts shall be delivered to the City's corporation yard at 556 Freeman Lane.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in sign removal, including, but not limited to removal, excavation, hauling and disposal, and backfilling, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions and as directed by the Engineer, shall be included in the contract lump sum paid for "Demolition and Removal" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.27.5 REMOVE AND SALVAGE SIGN

Existing signs, posts and sign hardware, shown on the plans to be removed shall be carefully removed and salvaged in accordance with the requirements of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Concrete footings for signs, and sign posts deemed unusable by the Engineer, shall be removed and disposed of outside the highway right of way in accordance with the provisions of the Standard Specifications, the project plans and these Special Provisions.

Signs, sign hardware and salvageable posts shall be delivered to the City's corporation yard at 556 Freeman Lane.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in sign removal, including, but not limited to removal, salvaging, excavation, hauling and disposal, and backfilling, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions and as directed by the Engineer, shall be included in the contract lump sum paid for "Demolition and Removal" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.27.6 REMOVE AND/OR SALVAGE MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

Miscellaneous items shown on the plans to be removed or salvaged, including, but not limited to valve boxes, sprinklers, posts, mailboxes and signs will be completely removed and disposed of or salvaged for re-use as directed

by the Engineer. No separate payment shall be made for the miscellaneous items to be removed unless specified and listed in the Bid Schedule. Such items shall be included in the contract lump sum price paid for "Demolition and Removal" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.27.7 RESET UTILITY COVER TO GRADE

Utility cover boxes and manhole frames located in new concrete areas shall be reset to grade in accordance with the requirements of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Existing boxes and frames shall be protected during demolition operations and carefully removed and salvaged for reuse as directed by the Engineer.

Boxes and frames shall be properly supported and reset to the proposed finish grade as part of the concrete reconstruction work.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved, including, but not limited to, removal, excavation, backfill, and resetting utility covers and manhole frames in new concrete, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.28 WATERING

Watering shall conform to the provisions in Section 17, "Watering," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Full compensation for conforming to the provisions of this section shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.29 EARTHWORK

Earthwork shall conform to the provisions in Section 19, "Earthwork," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Surplus excavated material shall become the property of the Contractor and shall be disposed of in conformance with the provisions in "Contractor-Property Owner Agreement," of the Standard Specifications.

The Contractor's attention is directed to "Surplus Material," and "Deficiency Material," of the Standard Specifications.

Where a portion of the existing pavement surfacing is to be removed, the outline of the area to be removed shall be cut on a neat line with a power-driven saw to a minimum depth of 0.25-foot before removing the surfacing. If sawcut pavement is damaged before paving, it is the Contractor's responsibility, at his expense, to re-cut and remove any damaged portion before paving. Full compensation for cutting the existing surfacing shall be considered as included in the various contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

Graded areas shall be watered and compacted in accordance with the Standard Specifications, City Improvement Standards and as directed by the Engineer. Subbase sections for sidewalk, curb ramps, curb and gutter, driveways, roadway shoulders and asphalt concrete pavement shall be compacted to 95% relative compaction to a minimum depth of six inches.

10-1.29.1 ROADWAY EXCAVATION

Roadway excavation shall conform to the provisions in Section 19-2, "Roadway Excavation," of the Standard Specifications and shall include all work associated with grading for the roadway improvements, grading for sidewalk, curb, gutter and curb ramps, grading earth ditches, and the grading to provide smooth transitions for conform areas.

In addition to the provisions of the Standard Specifications, roadway excavation shall include excavation, grading, and embankment construction necessary to construct roadway widening and sidewalk subgrades, vegetated swales, and slopes, in accordance with the requirements of Section 19, "Earthwork," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions..

Relative compaction of subgrade shall conform to all the provisions in Section 19-5 "Compaction" of the Standard Specifications. Payment for compaction of earthwork shall be considered as included in the various items of work requiring compaction and no additional compensation will be allowed.

If the Contractor elects to excavate and replace subgrade/base material to facilitate compaction, full compensation for that work will be considered as included in the contract item of work requiring the compaction of earthwork and no separate payment will be made.

Removed materials shall be properly disposed of outside the highway right of way unless otherwise designated on the plans or approved by the Engineer.

The material remaining in place, after removing surfacing and base to the required depth, shall be graded to a plane, watered, and compacted.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved including, but not limited to, excavation, stockpiling, loading, transporting, compacting, disposal, and

all grading as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various contract items requiring roadway excavation, and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.29.2 TEMPORARY SHORING

Temporary shoring will be necessary for any work required where the required excavation/trenching exceeds 5 feet in depth. If excavation/trenching exceeds 5 feet in depth, the Contractor shall be responsible for the design, installation, and maintenance of the temporary shoring system. The temporary shoring system shall be prepared and signed by an engineer who is registered as a Civil Engineer with the State of California.

Attention is directed to Section 7-1.02K(6)(b), "Excavation Safety," of the Standard Specifications, and "Excavation Safety Plans," of these Special Provisions.

All bracing and shoring shall comply with rules, orders and regulations of the California Division of Industrial Safety (D.I.S.). Trenching less than 5 feet in depth will require the Contractor to secure the appropriate D.I.S. permit and evidence of said permit shall be provided to the Engineer upon request.

The Contractor shall submit three (3) copies of the proposed temporary shoring system plan to the engineer a minimum of five (5) working days prior to the pre-construction conference. If excavation/trenching exceeds 5 feet in depth, the contractor shall not start construction of items of work requiring shoring before the temporary shoring plan has been reviewed and accepted by the Engineer.

The Contractor shall allow five (5) working days for the Engineer's review. If revisions are required, as determined by the Engineer, the Contractor shall revise and resubmit the temporary shoring system plan within five (5) calendar days of receipt of the Engineer's comments and shall allow five (5) working days for the Engineer to review the revisions. Upon acceptance of the temporary shoring system plan by the Engineer, three (3) additional copies of the temporary shoring system plan, incorporating all the required changes, shall be submitted to the Engineer. Failure to submit an acceptable temporary shoring system plan shall not in any way delay the start of the contract working days. If the Contractor makes significant changes to the accepted temporary shoring system plan, these changes must also be prepared and stamped by a licensed Civil Engineer.

Full compensation for temporary shoring, temporary shoring plans, for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all work involved in "Temporary Shoring," complete in place, as shown on the Contractor's accepted temporary shoring system, as shown on the plans, as specified in these Special Provisions and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the various contract items of work requiring the excavation or trenching exceeding 5 feet and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.30 DRAINAGE INLET

This work includes constructing and installing a new drainage inlet, complete in place with inlet grate as shown on the plans, and shall conform to the provisions of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

The drainage inlet grate shall conform to the improvement plans, provisions in Section 75, "Miscellaneous Metal," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. The drainage inlet grate shall be bicycle safe type 18-9X conforming to the specifications of the Standard Plans, or as approved by the Engineer.

The drainage inlet shall be constructed of Portland cement concrete conforming to the provisions in Section 90 "Portland Cement Concrete" of the Standard Specification and these Special Provisions.

The drainage inlet shall be constructed to the dimensions shown on the plans or as directed by the Engineer. The drainage inlet shall be a type G5 inlet conforming to the specifications of the Standard Plans. Height shall be as needed for the invert of the existing drainage culvert.

Attention is directed to Section 19, "Earthwork," of the Standard Specifications for requirements regarding structure excavation, trenching and shoring, and backfill.

Surplus excavated material shall become the property of the Contractor and shall be removed and disposed of outside of the highway right of way in conformance with the provisions in "Surplus Material," of the Standard Specifications.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, including pipe, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in the installation of drainage inlets, including, but not limited to excavation, disposal, backfill, compaction, forming, reinforcement, construction, finishing and installation of frames, grates and collars as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be included in the contract unit price paid for each "Drainage Inlet" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.31 DRAINAGE PIPE

Drainage pipe shall be either high density polyethylene pipe (HDPE) as shown on the plans or as directed by the Engineer.

Drainage pipe shall be furnished and installed in conformance with the provisions of Section 64 "Plastic Pipe" of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

HDPE pipe shall be circular, with smooth interior walls and a diameter as shown on the plans. HDPE pipe shall be Type S with corrugated exterior walls.

Attention is directed to Section 19, "Earthwork," of the Standard Specifications for requirements regarding structure excavation, trenching and shoring, and backfill. Backfill must conform to "Slurry Cement Backfill" of the Standard Specifications, for all segments of pipe underlying the street structural section, as shown on the plans. Backfill for portions outside of the street section must conform to "Aggregate Base" of these Special Provisions unless the use of native fill is approved by the Engineer. All backfill shall be compacted to a minimum 95% of relative compaction, unless otherwise specified by the Engineer.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials (including pipe and backfill material), tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in the installation of drainage pipe, including, but not limited to excavating, placing, joining, backfilling, and slurry cement backfill, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be included in the contract price paid per linear foot for "Drainage Pipe (Size, Type)" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.32 ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION

This work shall consist of placing rock slope protection as shown on the plans or as directed by the Engineer.

Attention is directed the provisions of Section 72 "Slope Protection" of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. Rock grading shall be No.2 or equivalent, placed per Method B, unless otherwise approved..

Ditches and rock areas shall be graded to the shape and layout as shown on the plans and shall be lined with a commercial, non-woven needle punched landscape fabric prior to placing rock. Fabric shall be Mirafi geotextile fabric or approved equal.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in the installation of rock slope protection, including, but not limited to excavating, grading, laying fabric, and placing rock on slopes and drainage ditches, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications, the Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be included in the contract price paid per ton for "Rock Slope Protection" and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

10-1.33 UTILITY TRENCH BEDDING AND BACKFILL

Attention is directed to "Earthwork," and "Aggregate Bases" of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions for requirements regarding utility line bedding and trench backfill.

Bedding material for water, sewer, storm drain and electrical facilities shall be sand in conformance with "Sand Beddings" of the Standard Specifications and shall be installed in accordance with the plans and City Improvement Standards.

Trench backfill shall be aggregate base or slurry cement backfill at the Contractor's discretion. Backfill shall be installed in accordance with the requirements of "Compaction" of the Standard Specifications and the plans and City Improvement Standards.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in utility trench bedding and backfill as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the various contract items of work requiring bedding and backfill and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.34 SLURRY CEMENT BACKFILL

Slurry Cement Backfill shall conform to the provisions in "Slurry Cement Backfill," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Slurry cement backfill may be substituted for aggregate base backfill where approved or directed by the Engineer. Compensation for slurry cement backfill voluntarily substituted for aggregate base shall be in accordance with the payment provisions of "Aggregate Base". Substitutions ordered by the Engineer will be paid for as extra work as provided in Section 4-1.05, "Changes and Extra Work," of the Standard Specifications.

10-1.35 AGGREGATE BASE

Aggregate base shall be Class 2, (3/4 inch) maximum grading, and shall conform to the provisions in Section 26, "Aggregate Bases," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. Aggregate base shall be processed to 95% relative compaction.

Do not store reclaimed asphalt concrete or aggregate base with reclaimed asphalt concrete within 100 feet measured horizontally of any culvert, watercourse, or bridge.

Aggregate base shall not contain volcanic cinder material.

Aggregate base shall have at least 80% of the rock having two or more fractured surfaces evident.

Aggregate base shall be placed to the lines, dimensions, and grades shown on the Plans or as directed by the Engineer.

Where existing aggregate base is shown on the plans to be remain in place, the material shall be sufficiently watered and compacted to obtain an unyielding surface, to the relative compaction as shown on the plans. If the existing base material is found to be unsuitable, in the opinion of the Engineer, it shall be replaced with new aggregate base in conformance with the provisions and payment details of this section. Payment for compaction of existing base to remain in place shall be considered as included in the various contract items of work requiring the compaction and no additional compensation will be allowed.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in the installation of aggregate base, including, but not limited to, placing, grading, excavating, and compacting aggregate base as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be included in the contract price paid per cubic yard for "Aggregate Base" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.36 REINFORCEMENT

Reinforcement shall be ASTM A615 Grade 60 Rebar. All reinforcement shall conform to section 52 "Reinforcement" of the standards specifications. Lap splices when required shall be staggered.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in the installation of reinforcement shall be included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.37 MINOR CONCRETE

Concrete sidewalk, curb, gutters, driveways, curb ramps, walls and other minor concrete shown on the plans shall conform to the provisions in Section 73, "Concrete Curbs and Sidewalk," and Section 90 "Concrete" of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. The Contractors attention is directed to Section 52 "Reinforcement" of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions for requirements regarding reinforcement bars as shown on the plans.

Aggregate for minor concrete shall be 1" maximum grading unless otherwise specified and shall conform to the combined aggregate grading limits in "Combined Aggregate Gradation," of the Standard Specifications.

For textured, stamped and colored concrete surfaces, aggregate must comply with the grading requirements for fine aggregate in "Fine Aggregate Gradation," of the Standard Specifications.

Concrete for all minor concrete work shall be "six sack" concrete properly prepared at a mixing plant.

Concrete shall be placed at the locations shown on the plans, struck off and compacted until a layer of mortar is brought to the surface. The concrete shall be screeded to the required grade and cross section and floated to a uniform surface.

Whenever new concrete curb, gutter and sidewalk adjoins existing, the existing concrete vertical face shall be doweled 4-inches deep with 12 inch long, grade 60, #4 rebar. Abutting sidewalk shall be doweled mid-section with a minimum of two dowels. Abutting curb and gutter ends shall be doweled twice, 18 inches apart, centered on the curb and gutter section. If the dowels were not set with the existing concrete, the penetrating portion of the dowel shall be coated with two-part epoxy in conformance with Caltrans Standard Specifications Section 95-1.

All concrete surfaces shall be broom finished unless specified as stamped or textured concrete. Surfaces to be used by pedestrian traffic shall be broomed transversely to the line of traffic. All other surfaces shall be broomed longitudinally unless otherwise specified.

Existing painted concrete curbs that are replaced shall be repainted with two coats of paint per the manufacturer's recommendations. Curbs of median islands in the center of the roadway shall be painted yellow and median island curbs on the roadway edges shall be white or red as shown on the plans and as directed by the Engineer. Attention is directed to "Painting Concrete" of the Standard Specifications.

The contract price paid per square foot for "Minor Concrete (Landscape Wall) shall include all the work involved in constructing concrete landscape walls and retaining curbs, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer. For payment purposes, wall shall be measured based on the front face square foot area based on the details shown on the plans and as necessary to retain the slopes and grades behind the wall as directed by the Engineer.

The contract price paid per linear foot for "Minor Concrete (Curb and Gutter) shall include all the work involved in constructing concrete curbing, and combination curb and gutters, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

The contract price paid per square foot for "Minor Concrete (Sidewalk, Curb Ramp, Driveway) shall include all the work involved in constructing sidewalks, walkways, curb ramps, and driveways complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer. For payment purposes, Sidewalk/Curb Ramp work shall include all that walkable portion of the curb ramp behind the back of curb. Attached curb and combination curb and gutter shall be paid separately, as described herein.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in the installation of minor concrete including, but not limited to: subgrade preparation; forming and constructing

sidewalks, curb ramps, curbs, gutters, stamped patio and driveways; and concrete finishing, grooving and stamping, shall be included in the contract price paid for "Minor Concrete (Type)" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.38 DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE

Detectable warning surfaces shall be installed at the curb ramp locations shown on the plans and as directed by the Engineer, in accordance with the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. Curb ramp detectable warning surface shall consist of raised truncated domes in conformance with the details shown on the plans and the Standard Plans.

The detectable warning surface shall be prefabricated. The color of the detectable warning surface shall be yellow conforming to Federal Standard 595B, Color No. 33538. Prefabricated detectable warning surface shall be in conformance with the requirements established by the Department of General Services, Division of State Architect and be attached in conformance with the manufacturer's recommendations.

The finished surfaces of the detectable warning surface shall be free from blemishes. The manufacturer shall provide a written 5-year warranty for prefabricated detectable warning surfaces, guaranteeing replacement when there is defect in the dome shape, color fastness, sound-on-cane acoustic quality, resilience, or attachment. The warranty period shall begin upon acceptance of the contract.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in the installation of detectable warning surfaces including, but not limited to; setting prefabricated warning surface into wet concrete, finishing and grooving concrete around warning surface border, and protecting the surface during construction operations shall be included in the contract price paid for each "Detectable Warning Surface" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.39 HOT MIX ASPHALT (HMA)

Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) shall be Type A, installed using the Standard Construction Process, and shall conform to the provisions in "Hot Mix Asphalt," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

The grade of asphalt binder to be mixed with aggregate for Type A HMA shall be Grade PG 64-16 conforming to the provisions in "Asphalt Binders," of the Standard Specifications.

Aggregate used for Type A HMA shall conform to the 1/2 inch maximum grading specified in Section 39-2.02B(4), "Aggregates," of the Standard Specifications for all structural section replacement areas, as designated on the plans.

The asphalt content of the asphalt mixture will be determined in conformance with the requirements in California Test 379, or in conformance with the requirements in California Test 382.

Paint binder (tack coat) shall be applied to existing surfaces to be surfaced and between layers of HMA, except when eliminated by the Engineer, and shall be applied to all vertical surfaces of existing pavement, curb and gutter, and construction joints in the surfacing against which additional material is to be placed and to other surfaces as designated by the Engineer.

Paint binder (tack coat) shall be paving asphalt conforming to the provisions in Section 39-1.02B, "Tack Coat," and Section 92, "Asphalts," of the Standard Specifications. The grade of paving asphalt to be used as paint binder will be determined by the Engineer.

Paint binder (tack coat) shall be applied in the gallon per square yard range limits specified for the surfaces to receive asphalt concrete in the tables below. The exact application rate within the range will be determined by the Engineer.

Application Rates for Paint Binder (Tack Coat) on HMA			
Type of surface to receive paint binder (tack coat)	Paving Asphalt gal/sq yd		
Dense, compact surfaces, between layers, and on PCCP	0.01 - 0.02		
Open textured, or dry, aged surfaces	0.02 - 0.06		

HMA shall be spread and compacted in the number of layers of the thicknesses indicated in the following table:

Total Thickness Shown on Plans ^a	No. of Layers	Top Layer Thickness (foot)		Next Lower Layer Thickness (foot)		All Other Lower Layer Thickness (foot)	
		Min.	Max.	Min.	Max.	Min.	Max.
0.20-foot or less	1				_		
0.25-foot	2b	0.12	0.13	0.12	0.13		
0.30-0.40 foot	2	0.15	0.20	0.15	0.25		
0.45-foot or more	С	0.15	0.20	0.15	0.25	0.15	0.40

a. When pavement reinforcing fabric is shown to be placed between layers of HMA, the thickness of asphalt concrete above the pavement reinforcing fabric shall be considered to be the "Total Thickness Shown on

Plans" for the purpose of spreading and compacting the HMA above the pavement reinforcing fabric.

- b. At the option of the Contractor, one layer 0.25-foot thick may be placed.
- c. At least 2 layers shall be placed if total thickness is 0.45-foot. At least 3 layers shall be placed if total thickness is more than 0.45-foot and less than 0.90-foot. At least 4 layers shall be placed if total thickness is 0.90-foot or more.

HMA base shall be spread and compacted in one or more layers. Each layer of HMA base shall be not less than 0.20-foot nor more than 0.40-foot in compacted thickness, except that where the total thickness of HMA to be placed over HMA base is 0.20-foot or less, the layer of HMA base below the HMA shall not exceed 0.25-foot.

A layer shall not be placed over a layer which exceeds 0.25-foot in compacted thickness until the temperature of the layer which exceeds 0.25-foot in compacted thickness is less than 160° F at mid depth.

HMA shall be placed to the lines, dimensions, and grades shown on the plans or as directed by the Engineer. No allowance will be made for HMA placed outside those dimensions unless otherwise ordered by the Engineer. Areas of the base material which are low as a result of over excavation shall be filled, at the Contractor's expense, with HMA.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials (including asphaltic emulsions, liquid asphalts, asphalts, and aggregate), tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for performing all the work involved in placing hot mix asphalt, complete in place including application of a prime coat or paint binder (tack coat) as shown on the Plans, as specified in these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer, shall be considered as included in the various contract items requiring hot mix asphalt and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.40 REMOVE AND REPLACE HMA

This work shall consist of removing existing asphalt concrete surfacing, and underlying base material as needed, and replacing the removed structural section with new asphalt concrete as shown on the plans and in conformance with these special provisions.

Existing asphalt concrete surfacing and underlying base material removed during a work period shall be replaced before the time the lane is to be opened to public traffic in conformance with the provisions in "Maintaining Traffic" of these special provisions, unless approved by the Engineer.

The outline of the asphalt concrete area to be removed shall be cut on neat lines with a power-driven saw to a depth matching the depth of the replacement section, before removing the surfacing, unless approved by the Engineer. If the asphalt concrete surface is to be totally removed by cold planning, the Engineer may eliminate the saw-cutting before removing the surface.

Surfacing and base shall be removed without damage to surfacing that is to remain in place. Damage to pavement which is to remain in place shall be repaired to a condition satisfactory to the Engineer or the damaged pavement shall be removed and replaced with new asphalt concrete if ordered by the Engineer. Repairing or removing and replacing pavement damaged outside the limits of pavement to be replaced shall be at the Contractor's expense and will not be measured nor paid for.

Removed materials shall disposed of outside the right-of-way.

The material remaining in place, after removing surfacing and base to the required depth, shall be graded to a plane, watered, and compacted. The finished surface of the remaining material shall not extend above the grade established by the Engineer.

Attention is directed to "Surface Preparation" of these Special Provisions for the requirements of preparing the underlying asphalt concrete surface prior to asphalt concrete paving.

Hot Mix Asphalt shall be placed over the prepared base material or underlying asphalt concrete pavement not removed and shall conform to the provisions in "Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA)" of these Special Provisions, except for payment.

All paved trench edges and joints shall be sealed with asphaltic emulsion seal coat and sand screenings as shown on the plans and in conformance with the provisions in "Bituminous Seals", of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

The exact limits of asphalt concrete surfacing to be removed and replaced, will be determined by the Engineer and coordinated with the Contractor through field inspection in advance of paving operations. Areas include patch paving along new concrete improvements and miscellaneous pavement replacement of failed roadway sections throughout the project limits, which may not be fully delineated on the project plans. The quantity of asphalt concrete removal and replacement to be paid for will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by the Engineer.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials (including asphaltic emulsions, liquid asphalts, asphalts, and aggregate), tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for performing all the work involved in removing and replacing hot mix asphalt, complete in place including sawcutting existing asphalt concrete, application of prime coat or paint binder (tack coat), and compacting the existing base, as shown on the Plans, as specified in these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer, shall be included in the contract price paid per square yard for "Remove and Replace HMA (Depth of Removal)" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

If the aggregates for the HMA did not meet the "Contract Compliance" requirements for Sand Equivalent or gradation and if the Contractor requests the material be accepted on the basis of a penalty, in conformance with the provisions in the Section 39 2.02, "Materials," of the Standard Specifications, and the Engineer approves the request, the penalty shall be \$3.50 per cubic yard.

10-1.41 MISCELLANEOUS HMA

Miscellaneous Hot Mix Asphalt construction, including HMA conform patches, driveways and other miscellaneous areas as shown on the plans shall conform to the provisions in "Miscellaneous Areas and Dikes," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Hot Mix Asphalt used for miscellaneous areas shall conform to the provisions in "Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA)" of these Special Provisions, except for payment.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials (including asphaltic emulsions, liquid asphalts, asphalts, and aggregate), tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for performing all the work involved in placing hot mix asphalt, complete in place including sawcutting existing asphalt concrete, and application of prime coat or paint binder (tack coat) as shown on the Plans, as specified in these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer, shall be included in the contract square yard price paid for "Hot Mix Asphalt (Depth)" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.42 SURFACE PREPARATION

This work shall consist of preparing the existing asphalt concrete pavement to receive a chip seal or HMA overlay, as shown on the plans and in conformance with these Special Provisions.

10-1.42.1 CRACK FILLING

All cracks greater than 3/8" in width shall be filled prior to pavement sealing or resurfacing. Cracks requiring attention shall be cleaned free of dirt, debris and vegetation in preparation for filling. Cracks shall be completely filled with a hot mix rubberized crack filler, flush with the existing pavement surface. Any overfilling of cracks shall be ground down to the surface of the pavement.

10-1.42.2 SURFACE CLEANING

The surface to receive pavement sealing or asphalt concrete paving shall be dry and free of debris. A mechanical device shall be used to clean the pavement surface by sweeping or vacuuming until free of oil, vegetation, sand, dirt, water, gravel and other debris.

10-1.42.3 HMA PATCHING

Voids or depressions in existing asphalt concrete pavement areas greater than 1" in width shall be filled with hot mix asphalt flush with the existing pavement surfaces.

Hot Mix Asphalt shall be placed over the underlying asphalt concrete pavement or base material and shall conform to the provisions in "Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA)" of these Special Provisions, except for payment.

10-1.42.4 **PAYMENT**

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials (including rubberized filler, asphaltic emulsions, liquid asphalts, HMA and aggregate), tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in preparation of existing asphalt concrete pavement surfaces, including crack filling, surface cleaning, and HMA patching as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be included in the lump sum price paid for "Surface Preparation" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.43 MICROSURFACING

This work shall consist of an application of microsurfacing material to an existing surface to produce a cured mixture with a homogeneous appearance, a firm surface adhesion, and a skid resistant texture. The microsurfacing material shall be a mixture of mineral aggregate, cationic polymer modified asphalt emulsion, mineral filler, water and other additives proportioned, mixed, and placed on an existing surface in accordance with these specifications and to the dimensions as shown on the plans.

10-1.43.1 MATERIAL

10-1.43.1.1 MINERAL AGGREGATE

The mineral aggregate shall be generated by crushing operations from a single source and shall be composed of clean, tough, and durable particles of crushed granite, or crushed stone meeting the following requirements:

- 1. Clean and free from organic matter, clay balls, or other deleterious material
- 2. Maximum weighted sodium sulfate soundness loss of 25 percent. Refer to AASHTO T 104.
- 3. Maximum loss by abrasion of 30 percent. Refer to AASHTO T 96.
- 4. Sand equivalent of 70 or greater. Refer to AASHTO T 176.

The mineral aggregate shall conform to the gradation requirements and tolerances of Table 480.2.1:1, "Mineral Aggregate Gradation" when tested in accordance with AASHTO T 11 and AASHTO T 27.

Sieve Size	Percent Passing By Weight	Tolerance (TV= Target Value)
3/8"	100	0
#4	90 - 100	TV +/- 5%
#8	65 - 90	TV +/- 5%
#16	45 - 70	TV +/- 5%
#30	30 - 50	TV +/- 5%
#50	18 - 30	TV +/- 4%
#100	10 - 21	TV +/- 3%
#200	5 - 15	TV +/- 2%

Table 10-1.01.1.1 Mineral Aggregate Gradation

If the mineral aggregates are stored or stockpiled, they shall be handled in such a manner as to prevent segregation, mixing of the various materials or sizes, and contamination with foreign materials. The grading of aggregates proposed for use and as supplied to the mixing plant shall be uniform.

10-1.43.1.2 EMULSIFIED ASPHALT

The Contractor shall provide emulsified asphalt in accordance with AASHTO M 208. The settlement, solubility with trichloroethylene and cement mixing test requirements shall not apply. The emulsified asphalt shall be a CSS-1P or a CQS-1HP cationic polymer modified emulsified asphalt unless otherwise specified in the contract documents or approved by the City Engineer or designee. The polymer material shall be milled or blended into the asphalt or emulsifier solution prior to the emulsification process. The emulsion shall be homogeneous and shall show no separation of polymer. The Contractor shall obtain certification from the asphalt emulsion manufacturer that the emulsion contains a minimum of 3.0 percent polymer solids based on the weight of asphalt (asphalt residual). The Contractor shall provide copies of this certification to the City Engineer or designee for each load, lot, or batch of asphalt emulsion used on the project. The emulsified asphalt shall comply with the requirements of Table 480.2.2:1, "Emulsified Asphalt Material Properties."

Description Min Max Test Method **Test on Emulsion** AASHTO T 59 T Residue by Distillation(*modified) 62% h Viscosity, Saybolt Furol at 77°F (25°C) 20 sec. 100 sec. e Storage stability test, one day 1% Particle charge test Positive t Tests on residue from distillation: n Penetration, 77°F, 100 g, 5 seconds 55 90 AASHTO T 49 d

Table 10-1.01.1.2 Emulsified Asphalt Material Properties

rd distillation procedure shall be modified as follows: The temperature on the lower thermometer shall be brought slowly to 350°F +/- 10°F and maintained at this point for 20 minutes. Complete the total distillation in 60 minutes +/- 5 minutes from the first application of heat.

135°F

Softening Point, Ring & Ball

AASHTO T 53

The emulsified asphalt material storage shall be ample to meet the requirements of the plant. All equipment used in the storage and handling of emulsified asphalt material shall be kept in a clean condition at all times and shall be operated in such manner that there will be no contamination with foreign matter. All equipment used in the storage and handling of emulsified asphalt material shall be made available for inspection by the City Engineer or designee upon request and corrective action shall be taken by the Contractor to clean equipment identified in non-compliance with this specification at the Contractor's expense.

10-1.43.1.3 MINERAL FILLER

Hydrated lime, cement, or other approved filler meeting the requirements of ASTM D242 shall be used if required by the mix design. They shall be considered as part of the dry aggregate.

10-1.43.1.4 WATER

Water shall be potable and free of harmful salts, reactive chemicals, and any other contaminants.

10-1.43.1.5 OTHER ADDITIVES

Additives may be used as required to accelerate or retard the break-set of the microsurfacing mix; to improve the resulting finished surface; or to increase adhesion. Additives used shall be those recommended for use by the emulsion manufacturer. The initial additive quantities shall be determined from the mix design for the microsurfacing mix or individual materials. Additives used shall be compatible with the other components of the mix. Use of additives not specified in the mix design shall require approval by the Engineer prior to use.

A polymer based modifier that consists of latex shall be milled into the emulsified asphalt. This additive shall allow the microsurfacing mixture to cure sufficiently so that normal traffic can be permitted in one hour after placement of the microsurfacing mixture, without damage to the new surface.

10-1.43.2 MIX DESIGN

The mix design and resulting job mix formula is the responsibility of the Contractor. The laboratory mix design shall be certified by a licensed registered Professional Engineer in the State of California.

The Contractor shall submit the mix design to the Engineer or designee for approval, 14 calendar days prior to the commencement of microsurfacing placement. The issuance of a mix design developed by a certified testing laboratory and approved for use by the City Engineer or designee shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility for producing an acceptable mixture through the mixing plant or portable mixer.

Compatibility of the aggregate, emulsion, mineral filler, water, and other additives shall be verified by the mix design. The mix design shall be prepared with the same materials and aggregate gradation that the Contractor will use on the project. The mix design shall be prepared according to ASTM D 6372 and shall show each ingredient amount meets the following:

- 1. Residual asphalt: within 6.0 to 9.0 percent combined weight of dry aggregate and mineral filler.
- 2. Aggregate gradation (target) within the gradation design limits in accordance with Table 480.2.1:1, "Mineral Aggregate Gradation."
 - 3. Mineral Filler: within 0.5 to 3.0 percent by weight of dry aggregate.
- 4. Polymer modifier: 3.0 percent minimum polymer solids based on the residual asphalt content certified by the emulsion supplier.
 - 5. Water: As required to provide proper consistency.
- 6. Identify the optimum emulsion content as a percentage of the dry weight of aggregate to meet the requirements of the ISSA A143 specifications listed in Table 10-01.1.6:
- 7. Microsurfacing Mixture Requirements." The mix design shall identify and provide percent limits for all additives required to meet mixture design requirements.

	Microsurfacing Mixture Requirements				
Description	Specification	Test Method			

Wet Cohesion @ 30 Minutes Minimum (Set) @ 60 Minutes Minimum (Traffic)	12 kg-cm Minimum 20 kg-cm Minimum Or Near Spin Min	ISSA-TB-139
Excess Asphalt by LWT Sand Abrasion	50 g/ft² Maximum	ISSA-TB-109
Wet Track Abrasion Loss One Hour Soak Six Day Soak	50 g/ft² Maximum 75 g/ft² Maximum	ISSA-TB-100
Lateral Displacement	5 % Max	ISSA-TB-147
Mix Time @ 77°F	Controllable to 120 Seconds Minimum	ISSA-TB-113
Wet Stripping	Pass (90% Minimum)	ISSA-TB-114

MIX DESIGN SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

The mix design mix design submittal shall include but not be limited to items defined in below, as directed by the City Engineer or designee. A submittal may be rejected if it does not include the information specified.

- A. Date of submittal; Mix Design identification number
- B. Name of Testing Laboratory; Name of Contractor requesting design
- C. Signature of Registered Professional Engineer certifying design
- D. Project Name, Project Number, and Control Number (when applicable)
- E. Results of each of the required tests compared to specification values.
- F. Job Mix Formula clearly identifying the target proportions and percentage of mineral aggregate, mineral filler, water (range approximation), additives (min and max) and residual asphalt Solids content (min and max) based on the dry weight of the mineral aggregate.
- G. Quantitative effects of moisture content on the unit weight of the mineral aggregate (bulking effect)
 - H. Source of aggregate, results of aggregate tests, mix compatibility, and mix design gradation.
- I. Type of asphalt emulsion, base stock asphalt cement, manufacturer of the polymer, and manufacturer of the emulsified asphalt cement
 - J. Manufacturer and type of mineral filler and additives.

10-1.43.3 CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor shall produce, transport, and place the specified microsurfacing mixture in accordance with these specifications, contract documents, design details, and as approved by the Engineer. The finished microsurfacing shall have a uniform texture free from excessive scratch marks, tears or other surface irregularities. The cured microsurfacing mixture shall adhere fully to the underlying pavement. The microsurfacing mixture shall cure sufficiently so that normal traffic can be permitted in one hour after placement without damage to the new surface.

10-1.43.3.1 MIXING MACHINE

The material shall be mixed by an automatically sequenced, self-propelled microsurfacing mixing machine that will be a continuous flow mixing unit, able to accurately deliver and proportion the aggregate, emulsified asphalt, mineral filler, control setting additive, and water to a revolving multiblade double shafted mixer and discharge the mixed product on a continuous flow basis. The machine shall have sufficient storage capacity to maintain an adequate supply to the proportioning controls. The machine shall have a hydraulically adjustable spreader box with a positive screed adjustment for yield control and a positive adjustment for the joint matcher.

The machine shall have an Electronic Monitoring System (EMS). The EMS shall monitor and display application rates and totals used for aggregate, emulsion, mineral filler, water and additive. It shall also calculate and display ratios of emulsion to aggregate, mineral filler to aggregate, additive to aggregate, water to aggregate and application rate in pounds per square yard. The machine shall be capable of providing a hard copy report on demand containing date, weight of aggregate used, weight of emulsion used, weight of mineral filler used, gallons of additive used, gallons of water used, emulsion

to aggregate ratio, mineral filler to aggregate ratio, additive to aggregate ratio, and water to aggregate ratio.

Individual volume or weight controls for proportioning each material to be added to the mix shall be calibrated and properly marked in the presence of the City Engineer or designee prior to use on the project or after repairs are made to the machine or as directed by the City Engineer or designee. The Contractor shall provide 5 calendar days advance notice to the City Engineer or designee of machine calibration. The mixing machine shall be equipped with a water pressure system and nozzle type spray bar to provide a water spray immediately ahead of and outside the spreader box. It also shall be equipped with an approved fines feeder that shall provide a uniform, positive, accurately metered, predetermined amount of the specified mineral filler.

10-1.43.3.2 SPREADING EQUIPMENT

The microsurfacing mixture shall be spread uniformly by means of a mechanical type spreader box attached to the mixer, equipped with paddles, ribbon flights or other devices to continually agitate and distribute the materials throughout the box. The spreader box must be capable of obtaining the desired lines and grade as shown on the plans or as directed by the Engineer. The spreader box shall be capable of applying microsurfacing mixture in variable widths up to 15 ft. A front seal shall be provided to insure no loss of the mixture at the road contact surface. The rear seal shall act as a strike off and shall be adjustable.

The spreader box and rear strike-off shall be so designed and operated that a uniform consistency is achieved to produce a free flow of material to the rear strike-off. Longitudinal joints shall be neat appearing and uniform.

10-1.43.3.3 PLACEMENT OPERATIONS

The area to be surfaced shall be thoroughly cleaned of all vegetation, loose aggregate, soil and other deleterious material immediately prior to applying microsurfacing. Allow un-sealed cracks to dry thoroughly before applying microsurfacing when using water to clean the surface. Manholes, valve boxes, and other service utility entrances shall be covered and cataloged prior to surfacing.

When required by local conditions, the roadway surface may be pre-wet at a rate sufficient to dampen the surface without causing any free flowing water ahead of the spreader box. The rate of application of the pre-wetting operation shall be adjusted during the day to suit temperatures, surface texture, humidity, and dryness of the pavement to achieve a uniform and consistent placement of microsurfacing material.

The Contractor shall place a microsurfacing mixture which conforms to the mix design and quality control tolerances for the project. The Contractor shall control the ingredient proportions with metering or measuring devices on the microsurfacing equipment and shall use readings from those metering or measuring devices to determine compliance with limits stated in the approved mix design.

The microsurfacing material shall be mixed and spread using a self-propelled microsurfacing mixing machine and shall leave a uniform skid resistant application of aggregate and asphalt on the surface. The spreader box shall maintain its flexible seals in contact with the road to prevent loss of the mixture from the box. A secondary strike off shall be provided to improve the surface texture.

All excess material that overruns in gutters, on curbs, driveway approaches, inlet tops, into inlets, or on sidewalks shall be removed immediately or squeegeed back onto the applied surface. All excess material removed from any non-paved area and from the end of each days operation shall be removed immediately. Discolored curbs, inlets and sidewalks shall be immediately cleaned and flushed before the material sets. Any set material left on curbs, inlets and sidewalks shall be removed by the Contractor at their expense. If the material cannot be removed, the Contractor shall remove and replace those affected portions of curbs, inlets and sidewalks at no cost to the City.

The mixture shall be placed to the lines and grades shown on the plans or as directed by the Engineer.

Longitudinal and transverse joints shall not be constructed within the wheel path of traffic lanes. Longitudinal and transverse joints shall be constructed without any buildups to a neat and uniform appearance. Longitudinal joints shall be constructed within 6 inches of the lane lines. The overlap of microsurfacing at any joint shall not exceed 6 inches. Joints shall be repaired if buildup of material at the joints occurs or if uncovered areas at the joints exist. The microsurfacing edges shall follow the centerline, lane lines, shoulder lines, and curb lines of the roadway and shall be straight and uniform in appearance.

Microsurfacing placed at intersections shall be done in stages, or blotter materials shall be used, to allow crossing and turning movements. The blotting material shall be the same aggregate used in the microsurfacing and shall be removed by the Contractor when no longer needed.

Microsurfacing placed adjacent to concrete pavements or concrete curb and gutter shall be placed with a straight longitudinal edge and shall not overlap onto the concrete in these areas.

Areas which cannot be reached with the mixing machine shall be surfaced using hand tools to provide complete and uniform coverage. The area to be hand worked shall be lightly dampened prior to mix placement. Care shall be exercised in areas that require hand work so that the finished surface is uniform in texture, dense, and of overall appearance comparable to that produced by the spreader box. Areas of hand work shall be limited to locations inaccessible by the mixing machine and spreader box.

The Contractor shall control its operations to minimize areas requiring hand work.

10-1.43.3.4 APPLICATION RATE

The Contractor shall place the Microsurfacing material at an application rate of 20 pounds per square yard and shall not vary by design Target Value +/- 3 pounds per square yard unless otherwise approved by the Engineer.

10-1.43.3.5 TEMPERATURE AND WEATHER LIMITATIONS

Microsurfacing material shall not be placed if either the pavement or air temperature is below 50°F or when the ambient temperature is projected to drop below 37°F within 48 hours of placement.

Microsurfacing material shall not be placed during rain, when road surface moisture is present, or during other adverse weather conditions as directed by the Engineer.

Microsurfacing material shall not be placed if adverse weather conditions will prolong opening the road surface to traffic beyond two hours.

10-1.43.3.6 FILLING RUTS

Microsurfacing material shall be used to fill ruts, utility cuts and/or dips in the existing surface as shown on the Plans or as directed by the Engineer. These placement applications may require multiple passes be made with the spreader box prior to placement of the final surface.

A rut filling spreader box either 5 foot or 6 foot in width specifically designed to fill ruts or dips shall be used when filling surface irregularities with an average depth greater than 1/2 inch.

Microsurfacing shall be applied in a full width scratch-coat pass when required to fill ruts, dips, or irregularities less than 1/2 inch in depth. Ruts or dips 1 inch or greater shall be filled using multiple passes of the spreader box.

A twenty-four (24) hour cure time shall be required after filling ruts or dips before placement of the final microsurfacing layer.

10-1.43.3.7 SURFACE TOLERANCES

The finished microsurfacing shall have a uniform texture free of scratches, tears, drag marks and other surface irregularities. The Contractor shall repair the surface at its own expense if any of the following conditions exist:

- 1. More than four surface irregularities greater than 1/2 inch wide and four (4) inches long in any 100 linear foot section.
- 2. More than four surface irregularities 1 inch to 3 inches long in any 25 square yard area.
- 3. No transverse ripples or longitudinal streaks in excess of 1/4 inch when measured by placing a 10 ft. straight edge over the surface.
- 4. Any tire tracking damage to the fresh microsurfacing.
- 5. Slick spots in any area of bleeding or surface flushing.

10-1.43.4 PAYMENT

The exact limits of microsurfacing to placed, as shown on the plans, will be determined by the Engineer. The quantity of microsurfacing to be paid for will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by the Engineer.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in constructing an microsurfacing seal, complete in place, including, cleaning and preparing the surface, sealing, furnishing and mixing asphalts and additives, and applying and finishing, as shown on the plans, as

specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the contract price paid per square yard for "Microsurfacing" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.44 ADJUST VALVE COVER TO GRADE

Frames and covers of existing valve cover enclosures shall be salvaged and reused or replaced as indicated on the plans or as directed by the Engineer. Enclosure boxes will be adjusted to grade in accordance with "Frames, Covers, Grates, and Manholes" of the Standard Specifications, the City of Grass Valley Standard Detail ST-28 "Adjust Utility Cover/Manhole to Grade" and these Special Provisions.

The Contractor shall accurately locate and record the location of all valve covers to be adjusted to grade and shall furnish the Engineer a copy of said record prior to paving. Contractor is responsible for protecting utilities per Section 5-1.36 "Property and Facility Preservation" of the Standard Specifications. Utilities include but are not limited to electrical vaults, telephone boxes, water meters, and water valves.

For utilities within overlay areas, all utility boxes must be exposed within 24 hours of paving, and the structures adjusted to grade within 72 hours of being covered by overlay.

For utilities within asphalt concrete replacement areas, adjustment may not be necessary if the existing cover is properly set to the proposed finish grade and the Engineer and Contractor agree that conforming to the existing cover would result in a better end product. Contractor shall protect the existing utility during resurfacing operations.

For utilities in areas of concrete improvements to be reconstructed, care shall be taken to protect the utility during construction and adjust the utility to finished grade (if different from existing grade).

Each of the respective utility companies shall retain the ability to decrease the amount of a contract item of work or eliminate in its entirety.

Contractor shall provide at least 48 hours advance notice to each respective owner of castings to be adjusted to grade.

Waste materials generated while adjusting the water valve box frame and cover to grade shall be completely removed and disposed of in accordance with "Surplus Material" of the Standard Specifications.

Concrete used for collars shall conform to the provisions in "Minor Concrete" of the Standard Specifications. Portland Cement Concrete shall be Class A, conforming to the provisions of "Concrete" of the Standard Specifications.

Valve covers adjusted to grade will be measured and paid for as units from actual count, complete and in place. Only those utility covers that require excavation and readjustment after asphalt concrete paving shall be paid for. Payment for covers that are conformed to or simply reset to grade in advance of concrete replacement shall be considered as included in prices paid for the various contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved including, but not limited to, excavation, lowering, raising to grade, backfill, concrete and hot mix asphalt shall be included in the contract unit price for "Adjust Valve Cover to Grade" as shown on the plans, as specified in these Special Provisions and as directed by the Engineer and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.45 ADJUST MANHOLE COVER TO GRADE

Frames and covers of existing manholes shall be salvaged and reused or replaced as indicated on the plans or as directed by the Engineer. Manhole frames will be adjusted to grade in accordance with "Frames, Covers, Grates, and Manholes" of the Standard Specifications, the City of Grass Valley Standard Detail ST-28 "Adjust Utility Cover/Manhole to Grade" and these Special Provisions.

The Contractor shall accurately locate and record the location of all manhole frames to be raised to grade and shall furnish the Engineer a copy of said record prior to resurfacing the street.

Prior to removal of an existing manhole frame, a platform shall be placed in the manhole above the top of the sewer or storm drain. The platform shall remain in place until all work on the manhole has been completed and the asphalt concrete has been placed around the manhole. Once adjustment of the manhole is complete, all dirt and debris shall be removed from the platform and the invert of the manhole.

Trimming of manhole cones (tapered section) will not be permitted.

All sections of the manhole grade rings shall be set in cement mortar and all joints smoothly grouted inside and out. The top of the completed manhole shall contain at least one 3-inch grade adjustment ring.

All manhole frames and covers shall be adjusted to grade after placement of the finish course of asphalt concrete.

Existing grade adjustment rings removed in the adjustment of manhole frames shall become the property of the Contractor and, if undamaged and thoroughly cleaned of mortar, may be reused in the work.

Waste materials generated while adjusting the manhole frames and covers to grade shall be disposed of outside the right-of-way.

Concrete used for collars and bases shall conform to the provisions in "Minor Concrete," of the Standard Specifications. Portland Cement Concrete shall be Class A, conforming to the provisions of Section 90, "Concrete," of the Standard Specifications.

Manhole frame and covers salvaged and adjusted to grade or replaced and adjusted to grade will be measured and paid for as units from actual count, complete and in place. Manhole frame and covers that do not require adjustment to grade at the direction of the Engineer, and are simply conformed to as part of resurfacing operations, shall not be paid for.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved, including, but not limited to, excavation, lowering, raising to grade, backfill, concrete, grade rings, mortar and hot mix asphalt shall be included in the contract unit price for "Adjust Manhole Cover to Grade" as shown on the plans, as specified in these Special Provisions and as directed by the Engineer and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.46 PAINTED TRAFFIC STRIPE AND PAVEMENT MARKING

Painted traffic stripes (traffic lines) and pavement markings shall be applied in conformance with the provisions in Section 84, "Traffic Stripes and Pavement Markings," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Paint material shall be free of lead and chromium, and shall conform to the requirements in State Specification PTWB-01 and/or PT-150VOC(A). The Contractor shall provide the Engineer with a Certificate of Compliance certifying that the paint complies with the Standard Specifications and that it was manufactured using the same formulation and process which previously passed State testing.

Glass beads shall conform to State Specification No. 8010-004 (Type II).

Traffic stripes and pavement markings shall be applied only on dry surfaces and only during favorable weather. Painting shall not be performed when the atmospheric temperature is below 40 degrees Fahrenheit when using acetone-based paint or below 50 degrees Fahrenheit when using waterborne paint; when freshly painted surfaces may become damaged by rain, fog, or condensation; nor when it can be anticipated that the atmospheric temperature will drop below the aforementioned 40 degrees Fahrenheit or 50 degrees Fahrenheit temperatures during the drying period.

Surfaces which are to receive traffic stripes and pavement markings shall be cleaned of all dirt and loose material.

An one-coat 3-inch wide black stripe shall be painted between the two 4-inch wide yellow stripes of a double traffic stripe.

Pavement markings and traffic stripes shall be applied in one coat.

Each coat of paint for any traffic stripe, including glass beads, shall be applied in one pass of the striping machine, regardless of the number, widths and patterns of individual stripes involved.

Paint to be applied in one coat shall be applied at an approximate rate of one gallon per 107 square feet. The volume of paint applied shall be measured by stabbing the paint tank with a calibrated rod. At the option of the Engineer, if the striping machine is provided with paint gages, the volume of paint may be determined by using the gages.

Glass beads shall be uniformly incorporated in all coats of paint concurrently with the application of the paint, except that glass beads shall not be applied to black paint. Beads shall be embedded in the coat of traffic paint being applied to a depth of one-half their diameters.

Glass beads shall be applied at an approximate rate of 5 pounds per gallon of paint. The amount of glass beads applied shall be measured by stabbing the glass bead tank with a calibrated rod.

Where striping joins existing striping, the Contractor shall begin and end the transition from the existing striping pattern into or from the new striping pattern a sufficient distance to ensure continuity of the striping pattern.

Painted traffic stripes will be measured by the linear foot along the line of the traffic stripes, without deductions for gaps in broken traffic stripes. A double traffic stripe, consisting of two 4-inch wide yellow stripes separated by a 3-inch wide black stripe, will be measured as one traffic stripe. Painted pavement markings will be measured by the square foot for the actual area painted.

At the option of the Contractor, thermoplastic material or permanent traffic striping and pavement marking tape conforming to the provisions in "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions may be placed instead of the painted traffic stripes and pavement markings specified herein. Thermoplastic material for traffic stripes shall be applied at a minimum rate of 0.20-lb/ft. The minimum application rate is based on a solid stripe of 4 inches in width. Thermoplastic traffic stripes shall be applied at the minimum thickness of 0.059-inch. Thermoplastic traffic stripes and pavement markings shall be free of runs, bubbles, craters, drag marks, stretch marks, and debris. Permanent tape, if used, shall be installed in conformance with the manufacturer's specifications. If thermoplastic material and/or permanent tape is placed instead of painted traffic stripes and pavement markings, the thermoplastic material and/or tape will be measured and paid for by the linear foot as painted traffic stripe and by the square foot as painted pavement marking.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in applying painted traffic stripes complete in place, including establishing alignment for stripes and layout work as specified in the Standard Specifications and the Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be included in the contract price paid per linear foot for "Painted Traffic Stripes," and no additional compensation will be allowed.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in applying painted traffic markings complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and the Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be included in the contract price paid per square foot for "Painted Pavement Markings," and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.47 RELOCATE ROADSIDE SIGN

Existing roadside signs, shown on the plans to be moved shall be carefully removed and relocated in accordance with the requirements of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Damage to the sign or sign post during removal shall be repaired to a condition satisfactory to the Engineer or shall be removed and replaced if ordered by the Engineer, at the Contractor's expense.

Roadside signs shall not be removed from their existing location until relocation can be accomplished or until the existing signs are no longer required for the direction of public traffic, as determined by the Engineer.

Each sign assembly, without regard for the number of sign posts or sign panels, shall be considered as a single unit. Roadside signs to be relocated will be measured and paid for as units from actual count.

Attention is directed to "Roadside Sign" of the Special Provisions for requirements of sign posts, post setting and sign mounting.

All posts shall be long enough such that the lowest hanging sign mounted on the post is a minimum of seven feet above the finish grade or walkway, if located in a sidewalk. Posts that are damaged during removal or otherwise unsuited to comply with this provision shall be replaced with longer posts at the Contractor's expense.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved including, but not limited to post removal, excavation, backfill, aggregate base, compaction, disposal, and resetting sign in a new concrete footing, shall be included in the contract unit price for "Relocate Roadside Sign" as shown on the plans, as specified in these Special Provisions and as directed by the Engineer and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.48 ROADSIDE SIGN

Roadside signs shall be furnished and installed at the locations shown on the plans or where designated by the Engineer and in conformance with the provisions in "Roadside Signs," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

Sign posts shall be a 2" X 2" square metal tube conforming to the standard specifications for cold rolled carbon sheet steel, commercial quality, ASTM A-446 or hot rolled carbon steel sheet, structural quality, ASTM A-570-90 and ASTM A-653-94 structural grade 50.

The finished posts shall be straight and shall have a smooth uniform finish. All holes and ends shall be free from burrs and the ends shall be cut square. Permissible variation in the straightness is one-sixteenth of an inch in three feet. The square tubes shall have holes that are seven-sixteenths plus or minus one sixty-fourth inches diameter on one (1) inch centers, on all four sides for the entire length of the pole. The holes shall be on the centerline of each side in true alignment and opposite to each other directly and diagonally. All posts shall be cut in such a manner to ensure hole alignment between anchors and sleeves when driven into the ground.

Square tubes shall be installed into a sleeve of the same material. A 27-inch long anchor sleeve shall be embedded in Class B/Class 3, 5-sack concrete that is placed in an excavated hole a minimum of 36-inches deep and 6-inches in diameter. Two holes of the sleeve shall remain showing above the finished grade, with all holes below grade taped closed. No material other than the square post shall intrude into the sleeve. The square signpost inside the sleeve shall move freely in the vertical direction after installation.

All posts shall be long enough such that the lowest hanging sign mounted on the post is a minimum of seven feet above the finish grade or walkway, if located in a sidewalk.

Signs and object markers located in travel areas and islands shall include a reboundable/ spring design base unless otherwise specified.

The contract price paid for each roadside sign shall be considered to consist of the complete sign assembly including, post, footing, primary sign panel and any additional sign plaques attached to the same post as shown on the plans or as directed by the Engineer.

Object markers shall be Type K-1 or Type Q per the Standard Specifications and as shown on the plans. Uprights shall be flexible plastic with a rebounding assembly, on a surface mount base properly secured with bolts or adhesive.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals including but not limited to, sign panels, post(s), epoxy and hardware, and for doing all work involved in furnishing and installing object markers, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications, the Standard Plans, these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be included in the contract unit price paid for "Object Marker" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals including but not limited to, sign panels, post(s), braces, brackets, lag screws, washers, and hardware, and for doing all work involved in furnishing and installing roadside signs, complete in place, including installation of sign panels, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications, the Standard Plans, these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be included in the contract unit price paid for "Roadside Sign" and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.48.1 FURNISH SIGN

Signs shall be fabricated and furnished in accordance with details shown on the plans, the Traffic Sign Specifications, and these Special Provisions.

Traffic Sign Specifications for California sign codes are available for review at: http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/traffops/signtech/signdel/specs.htm. Traffic Sign Specifications for signs referenced with Federal MUTCD sign codes can be found in Standard Highway Signs Book, administered by the Federal Highway Administration, which is available for review at: http://mutcd.fhwa.dot.gov/ser-shs_millennium.htm.

Temporary or permanent signs shall be free from blemishes that may affect the serviceability and detract from the general sign color and appearance when viewing during daytime and nighttime from a distance of 25 feet. The face of each finished sign shall be uniform, flat, smooth, and free of defects, scratches, wrinkles, gel, hard spots, streaks, extrusion marks, and air bubbles. The front, back, and edges of the sign panels shall be free of router chatter marks, burns, sharp edges, loose rivets, delaminated skins, excessive adhesive over spray and aluminum marks.

No later than 14 days before sign fabrication, the Contractor shall submit a written copy of the quality control plan for signs to the Engineer for review. The Engineer will have 10 days to review the quality control plan. Sign fabrication shall not begin until the Engineer approves the Contractor's quality control plan in writing. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer at least 3 copies of the approved quality control plan. The quality control plan shall include, but not be limited to the following requirements:

- A. Identification of the party responsible for quality control of signs,
- B. Basis of acceptance for incoming raw materials at the fabrication facility,
- C. Type, method and frequency of quality control testing at the fabrication facility,
- D. List (by manufacturer and product name) of process colors, protective overlay film, retroreflective sheeting and black non-reflective film,
- E. Recommended cleaning procedure for each product, and
- F. Method of packaging, transport and storage for signs.

No legend shall be installed at the project site. Legend shall include letters, numerals, tildes, bars, arrows, route shields, symbols, logos, borders, artwork, and miscellaneous characters. The style, font, size, and spacing of the legend shall conform to the Standard Alphabets published in the FHWA Standard Highway Signs Book. The legend shall be oriented in the same direction in accordance with the manufacturer's orientation marks found on the retroreflective sheeting.

On multiple panel signs, legend shall be placed across joints without affecting the size, shape, spacing, and appearance of the legend. Background and legend shall be wrapped around interior edges of formed panel signs as shown on plans to prevent delamination.

All signs shall have the following notation placed on the lower right side of the back of each sign where the notation will not be blocked by the sign post or frame:

- A. Name of the sign manufacturer,
- B. Month and year of fabrication,
- C. Type of retroreflective sheeting, and
- D. Manufacturer's identification and lot number of retroreflective sheeting.

Signs with a protective overlay film shall be marked with a dot of 3/8 inch in diameter. The dot placed on white border shall be black, while the dot placed on black border shall be white. The dot shall be placed on the lower border of the sign before application of the protective overlay film and shall not be placed over the legend and bolt holes. The application method and exact location of the dot shall be determined by the manufacturer of the signs.

For sign panels that have a minor dimension of 48 inches or less, no splice will be allowed in the retroreflective sheet except for the splice produced during the manufacturing of the retroreflective sheeting. For sign panels that have a minor dimension greater than 48 inches, only one horizontal splice will be allowed in the retroreflective sheeting.

Unless specified by the manufacturer of the retroreflective sheeting, splices in retroreflective sheeting shall overlap by a minimum of one inch. Splices shall not be placed within 2 inches from edges of the panels. Except at the horizontal borders, the splices shall overlap in the direction from top to bottom of the sign to prevent moisture penetration. The retroreflective sheeting at the overlap shall not exhibit a color difference under the incident and reflected light. Signs exhibiting a significant color difference between daytime and nighttime shall be replaced immediately.

The Department will inspect signs at the delivery location, and in accordance with Section 6, "Control of Materials," of the Standard Specifications. The Engineer will inspect signs for damage and defects before and after installation. Repairing sign panels will not be allowed except when approved by the Engineer.

Regardless of kind, size, type, or whether delivered by the Contractor or by a common carrier, signs shall be protected by thorough wrapping, tarping, or other methods to ensure that signs are not damaged by weather conditions and during transit. Signs shall be dry during transit and shipped on palettes, in crates, or tier racks. Padding and protective materials shall be placed between signs as appropriate. Finished sign panels shall be transported and stored by method that protects the face of signs from damage. The Contractor shall replace wet, damaged, and defective signs.

Signs shall be stored in a dry environment at all times. Signs shall not rest directly on the ground or become wet during storage. Signs, whether stored indoor or outdoor, shall be free standing. In areas of high heat and humidity signs shall be stored in enclosed climate-controlled trailers or containers. Signs shall be stored indoor if duration of the storage will exceed 30 days. Screen processed signs shall be protected, transported and stored as recommended by the manufacturer of the retroreflective sheeting.

When requested, the Contractor shall provide the Engineer test samples of signs and materials used at various stages of production. Sign samples shall be 12" x 12" in size with applied background, letter or numeral, and border strip.

Full compensation for all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in furnishing and fabricating signs, including all required quality control measures as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the contract unit price paid for "Roadside Sign," and no separate payment will be made.

10-1.48.2 SIGN MATERIALS

Alloy and temper designations for sheet aluminum shall be in accordance with ASTM Designation: B 209. The Contractor shall furnish the Engineer a Certificate of Compliance in conformance with "Certificates of Compliance," of the Standard Specifications for the sheet aluminum.

Sheet aluminum shall be pretreated in accordance to ASTM Designation: B 449. Surface of the sheet aluminum shall be cleaned, deoxidized, and coated with a light and tightly adherent chromate conversion coating free of powdery residue. The conversion coating shall be Class 2 with a weight between 10 milligrams per square foot and 35 milligrams per square foot, and an average weight of 25 milligrams per square foot. Following the cleaning and coating process, the sheet aluminum shall be protected from exposure to grease, oils, dust, and contaminants. Sheet aluminum shall be free of buckles, warps, dents, cockles, burrs, and defects resulting from fabrication.

Single sheet aluminum signs shall be fabricated and furnished with or without frame. The Contractor shall furnish the sheet aluminum in accordance to "Sheet Aluminum" of these Special Provisions. Single sheet aluminum signs shall be fabricated from sheet aluminum alloy 6061-T6 or 5052-H38.

Single Sheet aluminum signs shall not have a vertical splice in the sheet aluminum. For signs with depth greater than 48 inches, one horizontal splice will be allowed in the sheet aluminum.

Framing for single sheet aluminum signs shall consist of aluminum channel or rectangular aluminum tubing. The framing shall have a length tolerance of $\pm 1/8$ inch. The face sheet shall be affixed to the frame with rivets of 3/16-inch diameter. Rivets shall be placed within the web of channels and shall not be placed less than 1/2 inch from edges of the sign panels. Rivets shall be made of aluminum alloy 5052 and shall be anodized or treated with conversion coating to prevent corrosion. The exposed portion of rivets on the face of signs shall be the same color as the background or legend where the rivets are placed.

Finished signs shall be flat within a tolerance of $\pm 1/32$ inch per linear foot when measured across the plane of the sign in all directions. The finished signs shall have an overall tolerance within $\pm 1/8$ inch of the detailed dimensions.

Aluminum channels or rectangular aluminum tubings shall be welded together with the inert gas shielded-arc welding process using E4043 aluminum electrode filler wires as shown on the plans. Width of the filler shall be equal to wall thickness of smallest welded channel or tubing.

The Contractor shall furnish retroreflective sheeting for sign background and legend in conformance with ASTM Designation: D 4956 and "Pre-qualified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials" of these Special Provisions. Retroreflective sheeting shall be applied to sign panels as recommended by the retroreflective sheeting manufacturer without stretching, tearing, and damage.

Class 1, 3, or 4 adhesive backing shall be used for Type II, III, IV, VII, VIII, and IX retroreflective sheeting. Class 2 adhesive backing may also be used for Type II retroreflective sheeting. The adhesive backing shall be pressure sensitive and fungus resistant.

The Contractor shall furnish and apply screened process color, non-reflective opaque black film, and protective overlay film of the type, kind, and product that are approved by the manufacturer of the retroreflective sheeting. The Contractor shall provide patterns, layouts, and set-ups necessary for the screened process.

The Contractor shall furnish the Engineer a Certificate of Compliance in accordance to Section 6-1.07, "Certificates of Compliance," of the Standard Specifications for the screened process color, non-reflective opaque black film, and protective overlay film.

The surface of the screened process color shall be flat and smooth. When the screened process colors determined from the instrumental testing in accordance to ASTM Designation: D 4956 are in dispute, the Engineer's visual test will govern.

The Contractor may use green, red, blue, and brown reverse-screened process colors for background and non-reflective opaque black film or black screened process color for legend. The coefficient of retroreflection for reverse-screened process colors on white retroreflective sheeting shall not be less than 70 percent of the coefficient of retroreflection specified in ASTM Designation: D 4956.

The screened process colors and non-reflective opaque black film shall have the same outdoor weatherability as that of the retroreflective sheeting. After curing, screened process colors shall withstand removal when tested by applying 3M Company Scotch Brand Cellophane Tape No. 600 or equivalent tape over the color and removing with one quick motion at 90° angle

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, tools, equipment, and materials, including sheet aluminum, single sheet aluminum, retroreflective sheeting, and screened process color, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications, these Special Provisions and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the contract unit price paid for "Roadside Sign," and no separate payment will be made.

10-1.49 RECTANGULAR RAPID FLASHING BEACON ASSEMBLY

Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons shall be furnished and installed at the locations shown on the plans or where designated by the Engineer and in conformance with the provisions in "Roadside Signs," of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

The Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB) shall be a complete solar powered, button actuated assembly and all components shall be produced by the same manufacturer. This includes, but is not limited to, double sided LED flashers, RRFB control assembly, pedestrian push buttons, pedestrian crossing signs, wireless communication and mounting hardware. The solar power shall be designed with a minimum 65 watt panel and 50 amp hour battery (ies) unless otherwise approved by the Engineer for the locations shown.

Control cabinet shall be a NEMA 3R Type aluminum cabinet with at least two tamper-resistant stainless steel hinges, neoprene door gasket, rain shield and a replaceable lock with keys. The cabinet shall be adequately vented with all openings screened to prevent foreign matter from entering.

The RRFB Programmable Flash Controller is housed within the NEMA 3R type Control Cabinet, and shall:

- Include integrated constant-current LED drivers with a minimum of two-channel output for driving one or two RRFB units.
- Include an integrated Real Time Clock (RTC) with on-board battery backup.
- Have the capability of RS232 communication for programming with Windows-based software.
- Be capable of solar charging the system battery, including a completely drained battery pack.
- Shall automatically provide Low Voltage Disconnect (LVD) to protect batteries when needed.
- Shall automatically provide Load-Reconnection once battery levels have been restored to an acceptable value.
- Operate between the temperatures of -40° to $+176^{\circ}$ F (-40° to $+80^{\circ}$ C).

Wireless transceiver shall operate wirelessly at 900 Mhz, utilizing Frequency Hopping Spread Spectrum (FHSS) technology to minimize the effects of external RF interference. Transceiver shall be replaceable independently of other components.

Solar Panel shall be constructed of an anodized aluminum frame, high-transmission 1/8" tempered glass, with silicon cells encapsulated in double-layer EVA. The Solar Panel shall be affixed to a pole top bracket that allows an adjustable angle to provide maximum insolation exposure. To ensure maximum solar insolation regardless of installation location, the post top mounting system shall provide 360° of rotational direction adjustment and upon installation, must be oriented with the collector facing South. The solar panel shall operate at 12VDC nominal with a maximum output rating of 65 watts or as approved.

50 Ah battery shall have a nominal output voltage of 12 VDC and a capacity of 50Ah or as approved. Battery shall be rechargeable Absorbent Glass Mat type and fully sealed and spill-proof. Battery shall be replaceable independently of other components.

The RRFB light bar shall conform with all applicable FHWA MUTCD standards and guidelines, and shall meet or exceed the requirements specified in FHWA Memorandum IA-21, Interim Approval for Optional Use of Pedestrian-Actuated Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons at Uncontrolled Marked Crosswalks. The Light Bar shall house two rapidly and alternately flashing rectangular yellow LED arrays with active vehicle indications visible at distances over 1000 feet during the day and over 1 mile at night.

Push button shall be ADA compliant and operate from -30 to 165 degrees Fahrenheit. All necessary mounting hardware, wiring, and signage shall be provided.

RRFB assembly shall be mounted on a 3" round galvanized steel pole, as shown on the plans, unless otherwise recommended by the manufacturer and approved by the Engineer.

Full compensation for all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in furnishing, erecting, assembling, installing, wiring, testing and adjusting a RRFB system, complete in place as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer shall be considered as included in the contract unit price paid for "RRFB Assembly," and no separate payment will be made.

10-1.50 FINISHING ROADWAY

Finishing roadway shall conform to the provisions in Section 22, "Finishing Roadway," of the Standard Specifications except for the method of payment.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in finishing roadway, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions and as directed by the Engineer will be considered as included in the Contract prices for various items of work requiring roadway finishing and no additional compensation will be allowed.

10-1.51 NOTIFICATION AND SCHEDULING

The Contractor shall deliver a "NOTICE" to all residents and businesses of properties adjacent to the project streets and those on connecting streets that have no other means of accessing their properties but through the project or are otherwise adversely affected by the scheduled project operations. The Contractor will provide a standard "NOTICE" form in sufficient numbers to permit distribution to all homes and businesses within a 500 foot radius of the project site. The Contractor will complete the "NOTICE" forms by entering the name of the firm, local and toll free telephone number, date of issuance, and shall indicate on the notice street closures, traffic control measure or outages that are expected to be in place.

"NOTICE" forms shall be issued to the affected properties no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the work. The Contractor shall be responsible for removing any "NOTICES" that were not removed by the resident or business after all work is completed by the Contractor or as directed by the Engineer. Any costs associated with towing of vehicles in the way of construction shall be borne by the Contractor. "NOTICE" shall not be left in mailboxes, per Section PO 11.2.1 of the Domestic Mail Manual (DMM). The Contractor shall be held liable for any fines.

The Contractor shall coordinate with the Engineer to notify the Police Department, Fire Department, Ambulance Service, Waste Management, Post Office, Durham Transportation, and Gold Country Stage forty-eight (48) hours prior to any lane closure. Notification may be in conjunction with the scheduling requirements of the "SCHEDULING" portion of the Standard Specifications. Particular attention shall be given to the construction of adequate facilities on any street to permit the passing of emergency vehicles.

None of the provisions specified herein shall be construed to restrict or prohibit, at any time, the prosecution of items of work which will not interfere with the use of existing streets.

Full compensation for all work associated with furnishing, distributing and removal, as required, of all notices; for contacting and coordinating with applicable agencies, schools, etc; and for all incidentals of work required within this "Notification and Scheduling" section will be considered as included in the contract prices paid for various items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed.

NOTICE

	Date Delivered:
Dear Property Owner:	
In the interest of minimizing the inconvenience can TRANSPORTATION PROJECT, we are providing yo is proposed to be done in the vicinity of your property froma.m./p.m. to	ou at least 48 hours notice that the following work or affecting access to your property beginning on
Concrete Construction	Pavement Sealing
Paving	Other:
We appreciate your patience and cooperation while this	s work is underway.
Please call () – to contact the additional information regarding this work, or contact (530) 274-4373.	
Contractor's Name	

10-1.52 RECORD DRAWINGS

The Contractor shall keep accurate records on a set of project prints (24" x 36") of all additions and deletions of the work, and all of the changes in location, elevation, and character of the work not otherwise shown or noted on the contract plans. The City will furnish three (3) sets of full size prints for the "Record Drawings" plans at no cost to the Contractor.

"Record Drawings" construction plans shall be provided to the City after completion of the project. Two (2) copies shall be provided with changes to the original contract work shown in red color. The Contractor shall transmit these "Record Drawings" plans to the Engineer for approval. Details to be shown on the "Record Drawings" plans shall include, but not be limited to, type, quantity, and location of pipe runs, location and elevations of facilities, and any other modifications, additions or adjustments to any other facilities in the project.

"Record Drawings" construction plans shall be signed and dated by the Contractor or the Subcontractor that actually constructed the facility. In addition, company names of the Contractor and Subcontractors shall be added to the title sheet.

The cost of record keeping to provide the information for these "Record Drawings" plans and all work associated with preparing accurate "Record Drawings" construction plans shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed.

APPENDIX A – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

CONT	RACT	NO.	

CITY OF GRASS VALLEY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT ENGINEERING DIVISION

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT is made on the date set forth below, by and between the CITY OF GRASS VALLEY, a municipal corporation within the State of California (hereinafter "CITY"), and _______, a type in business form and state of license i.e. California Corporation, (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"). The CITY and CONTRACTOR for the consideration hereinafter mentioned agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1: SCOPE OF WORK

- 1.1. CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish all work, labor, tools, materials, transportation, equipment, services, and other means of construction necessary to perform and complete in a good and workmanlike manner, those certain improvements as called for, and in the manner designated in, and in strict conformity with Contract No. _____ entitled: MCCOURTNEY ROAD ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PROJECT, PROJECT NO. 19-03, hereafter "PROJECT", in compliance with the Contract Documents as described in Article 3.
- 1.2. CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that the work, labor, tools, materials, transportation, equipment, incidentals, services and other means of construction for the Project shall be furnished and the work performed as required in the Contract Documents under the sole direction and control of CONTRACTOR, and subject to the inspection and approval of the CITY, or its representatives.

ARTICLE 2: CONTRACT PRICE

ARTICLE 3: CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

3.1. The complete Contract consists of the following documents, to wit:

Notice to Contractors

Executed Proposal, including the Bidder's Bond and Non-Collusion Affidavit

Construction Contract

Project Plans for this Project

Special Provisions for this Project

City of Grass Valley Improvement Standards

Executed Performance Bond

Executed Labor and Materials Bond

Labor Code Section 1861 Certification

List of Subcontractors

Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts

3.2. Any and all obligations of the CITY and the CONTRACTOR are fully set forth and described in the above documents. All of the above documents are intended to be interpreted so that any work called for in one and not mentioned in another or vice versa is to be executed as if mentioned in all said documents. The documents comprising the complete Contract are sometimes collectively referred to as the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 4: TIME FOR PERFORMANCE - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

- 4.1. The Commencement date for determination of the time for completion shall be the date the City engineer directs the CONTRACTOR to proceed, as stated in the Notice to Proceed. The CONTRACTOR shall complete all work required by the Contract within **50 working days** after said commencement date, as adjusted and provided for in the Contract Documents.
- 4.2. In the event CONTRACTOR does not complete all work required by the Contract within the time specified above, liquidated damages shall be imposed upon the CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR agrees that if all the work called for under this Contract in all parts and requirements is not completed within the performance time period set forth above, the CITY will be damaged. As it is and will be impracticable to ascertain and determine the actual damage the CITY will sustain, CONTRACTOR agrees to pay to CITY five hundred dollars (\$500.00) per calendar day for each and every day(s) delay in finishing the work in excess of the working days described. Time is of the essence in this contract. CONTRACTOR further agrees that CITY may deduct the amount of these damages from any moneys due or that may become due the CONTRACTOR under this Contract. To the extent appropriate, as determined by CITY in its sole discretion, CITY shall administer this Article in accordance with the California Department of Transportation Standard Specifications Section 8-1.10 Liquidated Damages, latest edition.

ARTICLE 5: INDEMNITY & HOLD HARMLESS

- 5.1. The CITY, and all its officers, agents, employees, outside parties hired to inspect and/or design the work, and volunteers thereof connected with the work, including but not limited to, the City Engineer and the Engineer, shall not be answerable or accountable in any manner for the loss or damage to any of the materials or other things used or employed in performing the work; for injury to or death of any person, either worker or the public; or damage to property from any cause which may have been prevented by CONTRACTOR or his or her workers or anyone employed by him/her.
- 5.2. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any liability imposed by law and for injuries to or death of any person including, but not limited to, workers and the public, or damage to property resulting from defects or obstructions or from any cause whatsoever during the progress of the work or at any time before its acceptance.
- 5.3. The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and save harmless the CITY, and its officials, officers, agents, employees, or consultants and volunteers thereof connected with the work, including but not limited to, the City Engineer and the Engineer, from all claims, suits, or actions of every name, kind, and description brought forth on or on account of injuries to or death of any person, including but not limited to, workers or the public or damage to property resulting from the performance of the contract except as otherwise provided by statute or section 5.6 below. CONTRACTOR's duty to indemnify and save harmless include the duties to defend as set forth in Civil Code Section 2778.
- 5.4. With respect to third party claims against the CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR waives any and all rights to any type of express or implied indemnity against the CITY, its officials, officers, employees, agents, consultants, or volunteers.
- 5.5. It is the intent of the parties that the CONTRACTOR will indemnify and hold harmless the CITY, its officers, employees, agents and volunteers, from any and all claims, suits, or actions as set forth above, regardless of the existence or degree of fault or negligence on the part of the CITY, the CONTRACTOR, the subcontractors or employees of any of these, other than the sole or gross negligence of the CITY, its officials, officers, employees, agents, consultants, or volunteers.
- 5.6. In compliance with and pursuant to Government Code § 4215, CITY shall assume the responsibility, between the parties to the contract, for the timely removal, relocation, or protection of existing main- or trunk-line utility facilities located on the site of any construction project that is a subject of the contract, if such utilities are not identified by CITY in the plans and specifications made a part of the invitation for bids. CITY shall compensate CONTRACTOR for its reasonable and actual costs of locating, repairing damage not due to the failure of the CONTRACTOR to exercise reasonable care, and removing or relocating such utility facilities not indicated in the plans and specifications with reasonable accuracy, and for equipment on the project necessarily idled during such work. CONTRACTOR shall not be assessed liquidated damages for delay in

completion of the project when such delay was caused by the failure of CITY or the owner of the utility to provide for removal or relocation of such utility facilities.

ARTICLE 6: INSURANCE

- 6.1. Throughout the period of this agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall provide the following minimum insurance coverage as listed below. CONTRACTOR shall file with CITY certificate(s) of Insurance and endorsements, in a form acceptable to CITY, and consistent with this agreement at the time of execution of this agreement. The insurance company must be acceptable to CITY, with a Best's Rating of no less than A:VII. Documentation of such rating acceptable to the CITY shall be provided at the same time Insurance Certificates are submitted. The Current evidence of coverage provided to the City shall be for the entire required period of insurance, including the one (1) year warranty period.
 - 6.1.1 Any deductibles must be declared to, and approved by, the City.
- 6.2. In the event any of the required policies are canceled or expire before the completion of the project and the CONTRACTOR does not furnish a new certificate(s) of insurance before cancellation or expiration, the CITY may obtain the required insurance and deduct the premium(s) from Contract monies due the CONTRACTOR.
- 6.3. Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance:
 - 6.3.a. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain adequate Workers' Compensation Insurance under the Laws of the State of California. CONTRACTOR shall fully comply with the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, before commencing the performance of the work.
 - 6.3.b. By CONTRACTOR'S signature hereunder, CONTRACTOR certifies that he/she is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and he/she will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of this Contract.
 - 6.3.c. If such insurance is underwritten by any agency other than State Compensation Fund, such agency shall be a company authorized to do business in the State of California.
 - 6.3.d. CONTRACTOR shall require all subcontractors to maintain adequate Workers' Compensation Insurance. Certificates of such Workers' Compensation shall be filed forthwith with the CITY upon demand.
 - 6.3.e. Worker's Compensation Insurance shall be provided as required by any applicable law or regulation. Employer's liability insurance shall be provided in amounts not less than the following:
 - One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) each accident for bodily injury by accident
 - > One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) policy limit for bodily injury by disease
 - One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) each employee for bodily injury by disease
 - 6.3.f. If there is an exposure of injury to CONTRACTOR'S employees under the U.S. Longshoremen's and Harbor Worker's Compensation Act, the Jones Act, or under laws, regulations, or statutes applicable to maritime employees, coverage shall be included for such injuries or claims.
 - 6.3.g. Each Worker's Compensation policy shall be endorsed with the following specific language:

Cancellation Notice: "This policy shall not be canceled or materially changed without first giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City of Grass Valley."

Waiver of Subrogation: "The Insurance Company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the Entity, its elected or appointed officials, agents, employees and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of this policy which arise from the work performed by the Named Insured for the Entity."

6.4. GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE:

- 6.4.a. Comprehensive General Liability or Commercial General Liability insurance no less broad than ISO form CG 00 01, covering all operations by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, providing insurance for bodily injury liability and property damage liability for the limits of liability indicated below and including coverage for: premises, operations; products and completed operations; contractual liability insuring the obligations assumed by CONTRACTOR in this Agreement; broad form property damage (including completed operations); explosion, collapse, and underground hazards; personal injury liability.
- 6.4.b. Except with respect to bodily injury and property damage included within the products and completed operations hazards, the aggregate limits, where applicable, shall apply separately to CONTRACTOR'S work under the Contract. One of the following forms is required: Commercial General Liability (Occurrence); or Commercial General Liability (Claims Made).
- 6.4.c. If CONTRACTOR carries a Commercial General Liability (Occurrence) policy:
 - 1. The limits of liability shall not be less than:
 - One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) each occurrence (combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage)
 - ➤ One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) for Personal Injury Liability
 - > Two Million dollars (\$2,000,000) for Products-Completed Operations
 - > Two Million dollars (\$2,000,000) General Aggregate
 - 2. If the policy does not have an endorsement providing that the General Aggregate Limit applies separately, or if defense costs are included in the aggregate limits, then the required aggregate limits shall be Two Million dollars (\$2,000,000).
- 6.4.d. Special Claims Made Policy Form Provisions:

CONTRACTOR shall not provide a Commercial General Liability (Claims Made) policy without the prior written consent of CITY, which consent, if given, shall be subject to the following conditions:

- 1. The limits of liability shall not be less than:
 - ➤ One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) each Occurrence (combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage)
 - One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) for Personal Injury Liability
 - ➤ Two Million dollars (\$2,000,000) Aggregate for Products Completed Operations
 - ➤ Two Million dollars (\$2,000,000) General Aggregate
- The insurance coverage provided by CONTRACTOR shall contain language providing coverage up to one (1) year following the completion of the Contract to provide insurance coverage for the hold harmless provisions herein if the policy is a Claims Made Policy.

6.5. CONFORMITY OF COVERAGES:

6.5.a. If more than one policy is used to meet the required coverages, such as a separate umbrella

policy, such policies shall be consistent with all other applicable policies used to meet these minimum requirements. For example, all policies shall be Occurrence Liability policies, or all shall be Claims Made Liability policies if approved by the CITY as noted above. In no case shall the types of coverages be different.

6.6. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS:

- 6.6.a. Premium Payments: Insurers shall have no recourse against the CITY, its funding agencies, its officers and employees, or any of them for payment of any premiums or assessments under any policy.
- 6.6.b. Policy Deductibles: The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all deductibles in all of CONTRACTOR'S insurance policies. The amount of deductibles for insurance coverage required herein should be reasonable and subject to CITY'S approval.
- 6.6.c. CONTRACTOR'S Obligations: CONTRACTOR'S indemnity and other obligations shall not be limited by the foregoing insurance requirements and shall survive the expiration of this agreement.
- 6.6.d. Material Breach: Failure of the CONTRACTOR to maintain the insurance required by this agreement, or to comply with any of the requirements of this section, shall constitute a material breach of the entire agreement.
- 6.6.e Duration of Coverage: City must be an additional insured for completed operations for a period of one (1) year after completion of the work.
- 6.6.f Project Reference: The Comprehensive or Commercial General Certificate of Insurance must reference the project specifically by project title.

6.7. ENDORSEMENTS:

6.7.a. Each Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability policy shall be endorsed with the following specific language:

Cancellation Notice: "This policy shall not be canceled, materially reduced, or materially changed without first giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City of Grass Valley."

Waiver of Subrogation: "The Insurance Company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the City of Grass Valley, its elected or appointed officials, agents, employees and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of this policy which arise from the work performed by the Named Insured for the City of Grass Valley."

"Provisions Regarding the Insured's Duties: "Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policy or breaches or violations of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Entity, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers."

"Except as stated above, nothing herein shall be held to waive, alter or extend any of the limits, conditions, agreements or exclusions of the policy to which this endorsement is attached."

"The City of Grass Valley, and additional insureds, and all insureds officers, agents, outside parties hired to inspect and/or design the work, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as insured for all liability arising out of the operations by or on behalf of the named insured in the performance of this Agreement."

The City of Grass Valley's policy of insurance shall be excess and noncontributing: "The insurance provided by the Contractor, including any excess liability or umbrella form coverage, is primary coverage to the City of Grass Valley and additional insureds, with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by the City of Grass Valley and additional insureds, and no

insurance held or owned by the City of Grass Valley and additional insureds shall be called upon to contribute to a loss."

6.8. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE:

- 6.8.a. CONTRACTOR shall provide Automobile Liability insurance covering bodily injury and property damage in an amount no less than One Million dollars (\$1,000,000) combined single limit for each occurrence.
- 6.8.b. Covered vehicles shall include owned, non-owned, and hired automobiles/trucks.
- 6.8 c. Endorsements: The endorsements listed above for each Comprehensive or General Liability Policy shall also apply to the Automobile Liability Policy.
- 6.8 d. Required Evidence of Coverage: Properly completed Certificate of Insurance.

ARTICLE 7: PRECEDENCE IN CONFLICTING DOCUMENTS

7.1. It is further expressly agreed by and between the parties hereto that should there be any conflict between the terms of this instrument and the bid or proposal of said CONTRACTOR, then this instrument shall control and nothing herein shall be considered as acceptance of any terms of that proposal conflicting herewith.

ARTICLE 8: BOND REQUIREMENTS

- **8.1.** CONTRACTOR shall furnish both a Faithful Performance Bond and a Payment Bond (hereinafter collectively "Bonds") in the full amount of the Contract on the forms provided by the CITY. CITY shall retain the Performance Bond for a one-year guarantee period from the date of the CITY'S acceptance of the work.
- **8.2**. The bonds shall be obtained from a California admitted surety licensed by the State of California to act as surety upon bonds and undertakings and which maintains in this State at least one office for the conduct of its business. The surety shall furnish reports as to its financial condition from time to time upon request by CITY.
- **8.3**. In case of any conflict between the terms of the Contract and the terms of the Bonds, the terms of the Contract shall control and the Bonds shall be deemed to be amended thereby.
- **8.4**. CONTRACTOR agrees to obtain the consent of the surety, if required, to any change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to any of the terms of the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 9: COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

- 9.1. CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and shall, at its sole cost and expense comply with all laws, rules, ordinances and regulations of all governing bodies having jurisdiction over the work, obtain all necessary permits (unless the Contract Documents specifically state elsewhere that CITY shall obtain a particular permit) and licenses therefore, pay all manufacturers' taxes, sales taxes, use taxes, processing taxes, and all Federal and State taxes, insurance and contributions for social security and unemployment which are measured by wages, salaries or any remuneration paid to CONTRACTOR'S employees, whether levied under existing or subsequently enacted laws, rules or regulations. CONTRACTOR shall also pay all property tax assessments on materials or equipment used until acceptance by CITY. If any discrepancy or inconsistency is discovered in any of the Contract Documents in relation to any such law, rule, ordinance, regulation, order, or decree, the CONTRACTOR shall forthwith report the same to the CITY in writing.
- **9.2.** Without limitation, materials furnished and performance by CONTRACTOR hereunder shall comply with Safety Orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, State of California, Federal Safety regulations of the Bureau of Labor, Department of Labor; and any other applicable state or federal regulations.

- **9.3.** CONTRACTOR, upon request, shall furnish evidence satisfactory to CITY that any or all of the foregoing obligations have been or are being fulfilled. CONTRACTOR warrants to CITY that it is licensed by all applicable governmental bodies to perform this Contract and will remain so licensed throughout the progress of the work, and that it has, or will have, throughout the progress of the work, the necessary experience, skill, and financial resources to perform this Contract.
- 9.4. CONTRACTOR is required to ensure that material safety data sheets (MSDS's) for any material requiring a MSDS pursuant to any federal or state law are available in a readily accessible place on the Project premises. CONTRACTOR is also required to ensure (a) the proper labeling of any substance brought onto the Project premises by CONTRACTOR or any subcontractors or material suppliers, and (b) that the person(s) working with the material, or within the general area of the material, are appropriately informed about the hazards of the substance and follow proper handling and protection procedures.
- **9.5.** CONTRACTOR is required to comply with Health & Safety Sections 25249.5 et seq. (Prop. 65), which requires the posting and giving of notice to persons who may be exposed to any chemical known to the State of California to cause cancer.
- **9.6.** CONTRACTOR shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (PL 88-352) and all regulations or other requirements issued pursuant to that Act, including, without limitation, United States Department of Agriculture nondiscrimination regulations found at 7 CFR Part 15.
- **9.7.** CONTRACTOR shall give notice of hazardous materials and certain changed conditions in jobs involving trenching more than four feet deep, in accordance with Public Contract Code § 7104.
- **9.8.** CONTRACTOR and CITY shall comply with the following provisions
 - Public Contract Code § 6109 prohibits a contractor from performing work with a subcontractor who is debarred pursuant to Labor Code §§ 1777.1 or 1777.7.
 - Public Contract Code §§ 9204, 20104 requires the City and contractors to follow a claims resolution process for public works contract disputes
 - Article 1.5 (commencing at Section 20104) of Division 2, Part 3 of the Public Contract Code regarding the resolution of public works claims of less than \$375,000. Article 1.5 mandates certain procedures for the filing of claims and supporting documentation by Contractor, for the response to such claims by the Agency, for a mandatory meet and confer conference upon the request of Contractor, for mandatory nonbinding mediation in the event litigation is commenced, and for mandatory judicial arbitration upon the parties' failure to resolve the dispute through mediation. This AGREEMENT hereby incorporates the provisions of Article 1.5 as though fully set forth herein.
 - Public Contract Code §§ 10263, 22300 which allow CONTRACTOR to substitute securities for any monies withheld by the AGENCY to ensure performance under the Contract.
 - Pursuant to Labor Code § 1776 each contractor and subcontractor shall keep accurate payroll records, showing the name, address, social security number, work classification, straight time and overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by him or her in connection with the public work. The payroll records enumerated here shall be verified and shall be available for inspection at all reasonable hours as required by Labor Code § 1776.
 - Each payroll record shall contain or be verified by a written declaration that it is made under penalty of perjury, stating both of the following:
 - o The information contained in the payroll record is true and correct.
 - The employer has complied with the requirements of Labor Code §§ 1771, 1811, and 1815 for any work performed by his or her employees on the public works project.

- CONTRACTOR shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents evidencing or relating to charges for services or expenditures and disbursements charged to CITY under this Agreement for a minimum of three years, or for any longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. All such documents shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of CITY. In addition, pursuant to Government Code Section 8546.7, all such documents and this Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of CITY or as part of any audit of CITY, for a period of three years after final payment under the Agreement.
- Public Contract Code § 10198.2 requires CONTRACTOR to provide an enforceable commitment that it and its subcontractors at every tier will use a skilled and trained workforce to perform all work on the project or contract that falls within an apprenticeable occupation in the building and construction trades, in accordance with Chapter 2.9 (commencing with Section 2600) of Part 1 of that Code.
- California Labor Code § 1725.5 requires CONTRACTOR be registered with the Department of Industrial Relations; possess applicable licenses in accordance with Chapter 9 of Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code; not have any delinquent liability for any assessment of back wages or related damages; not currently be debarred from public works; and be lawfully registered with no outstanding renewal fees.
- CONTRACTOR must comply with statutory requirements relating to certified copies of payroll, pursuant to California Labor Code § 1776.
- CONTRACTOR must comply with the statutory requirements relating to the employment of apprentices, including the payment of prevailing wages for required pre-employment training or testing, pursuant to California Labor Code § 1777.5, for contracts of \$30,000 or more.
- CONTRACTOR shall strictly adhere to the provisions of the Labor Code regarding the 8-hour day and the 40-hour week, overtime, Saturday, Sunday and holiday work and nondiscrimination because of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, sex or sexual orientation, except as provided in Section 12940 of the Government Code. Pursuant to the provisions of the Labor Code, eight hours' labor shall constitute a legal day's work. Work performed by the Contractor's employees in excess of eight hours per day, and 40 hours during any one week, must include compensation for all hours worked in excess of eight hours per day, or 40 hours during any one week, at not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay. The CONTRACTOR shall forfeit as a penalty to CITY \$25.00 or any greater penalty set forth in the Labor Code for each worker employed in the execution of the work by the CONTRACTOR or by any Subcontractor of the CONTRACTOR, for each Calendar Day during which such worker is required or permitted to the work more than eight hours in one Calendar Day or more than 40 hours in any one calendar week in violation of the provisions of said Labor Code.
- Contractor and any subcontractor(s) of Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Labor Code section 1771 and Labor Code section 1725.5 requiring registration with the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR). Contractors shall be registered through the Department of Industrial Relation's (DIR) Public Works Program for state and local public works contracts, for maintenance work valued at more than \$15,000.

ARTICLE 10: PROGRESS SCHEDULE

10.1. The CONTRACTOR shall submit within 10 days (or as specified in the Special Provisions for this Project) after execution of the Contract a detailed work schedule or schedules that details the actions of the CONTRACTOR and Subcontractors working at the Site in accordance with the requirements specified in Special Provisions. This schedule(s) shall show the dates at which the CONTRACTOR will start and complete the several parts of the work and shall conform to the completion time specified in the Contract. The CITY may comment on the work schedule.

- Acceptance of the schedule by CITY shall not constitute approval of the Plan by CONTRACTOR for completion of the work
- **10.2.** The CONTRACTOR shall review and, if necessary, revise the progress schedule at least once a month or as specified in the Special Provisions for this Project. In any event, the CONTRACTOR shall submit a current schedule to the Engineer at the Engineer's request at any time during the Contract period.
- 10.3. No progress payments will be made for any work performed until a satisfactory schedule has been submitted and approved by the Engineer. An updated schedule shall be required from the CONTRACTOR if the project falls 10 working days behind schedule. For delays or portions of delays for which the CONTRACTOR is responsible, no payment will be made or time extension allowed for increase in work force, equipment, and working hours needed to put the Project on schedule.

ARTICLE 11: PROMPT PAYMENT PROVISIONS

- **11.1.** Prompt payment provisions in accordance with Section 20104.50 of the Public Contract Code shall apply to this agreement.
- **11.2.** If CITY fails to make a progress payment within 30 days after receipt of an undisputed and properly submitted payment request from CONTRACTOR, CITY shall pay interest to CONTRACTOR equivalent to 0.833% per month (10% per annum).
- 11.3. CITY shall review each payment request as soon as practicable after receipt to determine whether the payment request is proper. The CITY shall return any payment request determined to be improper to CONTRACTOR as soon as practicable, but not later than seven days after receipt. A request returned pursuant to this paragraph shall be accompanied by a writing setting forth why the payment request is improper.

ARTICLE 12: ANTITRUST CLAIM ASSIGNMENT

12.1. CONTRACTOR and all subcontractors offer and agree to assign to CITY all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 [commencing with Section 16700] of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials pursuant to the Contract or any subcontract. This assignment shall be made and become effective when the CITY tenders final payment to CONTRACTOR, without further acknowledgment by the parties.

ARTICLE 13: PREVAILING WAGES

- **13.1.** CONTRACTOR acknowledges that it has examined the prevailing rate of per diem wages as established by the California Director of Industrial Relations. The CONTRACTOR agrees to pay workers not less than the applicable prevailing rate of per diem wages, as set forth in these requirements and Labor Code section 1770 et seq. CONTRACTOR agrees specifically to comply with the provisions of Labor Code sections 1720, 1773.3, 1776, and 1777.5, as well as Section 7 of the Department of Transportation Standard Specifications and these Contract Documents.
- **13.2.** Contractor acknowledges that this contract is subject to prevailing wage law, including, but not limited to, California Labor Code Sections 1773.2 and 1775 as follows:

The Contractor shall pay the prevailing wage rates for all work performed under the Contract. When any craft or classification is omitted from the general prevailing wage determinations, the Contractor shall pay the wage rate of the craft or classification most closely related to the omitted classification. The Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to City \$200.00, or any greater penalty provided in the Labor Code for each Calendar Day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the prevailing wage rates for any work done under the Contract employed in the execution of the work by Contractor or by any Subcontract under Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code. In addition,

the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to each worker for each Calendar Day, or portion thereof, for which each worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor.

ARTICLE 14: SEVERABILITY.

14.1. Nothing contained in the Contract Documents shall be construed to require the commission of any act contrary to law. Should a conflict arise between any provisions contained herein and any present or future statute, law, ordinance, or regulation contrary to which the parties have no legal right to contract or act, the latter shall be curtailed and limited but only to the extent necessary to bring it within the requirements of the law. If such curtailment or limitation is not possible, the affected provision shall be of no force and effect. Except as previously mentioned, such illegality shall not affect the validity of this Contract.

ARTICLE 15: COMPLETE AGREEMENT

15.1. These Contract Documents supersede any and all agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties with respect to the subject matter herein. Each party to this Contract acknowledges that no representation by any party, which is not embodied herein, or any other agreement, statement, or promise not contained in these Contract Documents shall be valid and binding.

ARTICLE 16: INTERPRETATION

- **16.1.** The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that each has been given the opportunity to independently review this Contract with legal counsel, and/or has the requisite experience and sophistication to understand, interpret and agree to the particular language of the provisions of the Contract.
- **16.2.** In case of a controversy or dispute between the parties concerning the provisions herein, this document shall be interpreted according to the provisions herein and no presumption shall arise concerning the draftsmanship of such provision.

ARTICLE 17: GOVERNING LAW

17.1. This Contract is subject to the laws and jurisdiction of the State of California. Venue for any legal proceeding brought in conjunction with this Contract shall be the Superior Court of the County of Nevada, State of California. Contractor waives any federal court removal rights it may have pursuant to any applicable law.

ARTICLE 18: BID ITEMS

ITEM NO.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT OF MEAS.		UNIT PRICE	TOTAL COST
1	Water Pollution Control	LS	1		
2	Caltrans Permit	LS	1		
3	Mobilization	LS	1		
4	Traffic Control System	LS	1		
5	Demolition and Removal	LS	1		
6	Drainage Inlet	EA	5		
7	Drainage Pipe (18" HDPE)	LF	55		
8	Rock Slope Protection	TN	5		
9	Aggregate Base	CY	430		
10	Minor Concrete - Landscape Wall	SF	160		
11	Minor Concrete - Curb and Gutter	LF	2325		
12	Minor Concrete - Driveway	SF	2800		
13	Minor Concrete - Sidewalk and Curb Ramp	SF	20650		
14	Detectable Warning Surface	EA	8		
15	Remove and Replace Hot Mix Asphalt (3" Depth)	SY	1500		
16	Hot Mix Asphalt (3" Depth)	SY	120		
17	Surface Preparation	LS	1		
18	Microsurfacing (Type II)	SY	11500		
19	Adjust Valve Cover to Grade	EA	5		
20	Adjust Manhole to Grade	EA	2		
21	Painted Traffic Markings	SF	1500		
22	Painted Traffic Stripes	LF	13020		
23	Relocate Roadside Sign	EA	10		
24	Roadside Sign	EA	6		
25	RRFB Assembly	EA	2		

	TOTAL COST: \$
Name of Contractor/Company	_

WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands the year and date first above written.

"CITY" CITY OF GRASS VALLEY	"CONTRACTOR" (Type full legal name of contractor, entity type, state of organization here)
By: Hillary Hodge, Mayor Date:	By: Officer Signature # 1 (Signature Notarized)
Award of Contract No By the City Council On:	By: Print Name and Title
Date:	Date:
By: Bjorn P. Jones, PE City Engineer	By: Officer Signature # 2 (Signature Notarized) By: Print Name and Title
Date:	
APPROVED AS TO FORM	Date:
By: Michael G. Colantuono City Attorney	Licensed in accordance with an act providing for the registration of Contractors,
Date:	Contractor's License Number:
ATTEST:	
By: Taylor Whittingslow City Clerk	
Date:	

If Contractor is another type of business entity, such as a partnership or limited liability company, contract must be signed by officer(s) possessing legal authority to bind the entity. An authenticated copy of a resolution, partnership agreement, operating agreement or other legal evidence of signature authority must be attached to this contract."

[&]quot;If Contractor is a corporation, contract must be signed by the following two corporate officers, one from each category: (1) Chairman of the Board, President or any Vice President, and (2), Corporate Secretary, any Assistant Corporate Secretary, Chief Financial Officer or any Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer, unless an authenticated copy of a resolution of the corporation which delegates to a single officer the authority to bind the corporation is attached to this contract.

ATTACHMENTS

- 1. Labor Code Section 1861 Certification
- 2. Labor & Materials Bond
- 3. Faithful Performance Bond
- 4. List of Subcontractors
- 5. Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form

CERTIFICATION

LABOR CODE SECTION 1861

STATE OF CALIFORNIA	
CITY OF GRASS VALLEY	Y

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify:

That I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code of the State of California, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake self insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this contract.

Executed at :_____

On:			
I certify under the per	nalty of perjury that the fo	regoing is true an	d correct.
		CONTRACTOR	- EMPLOYER
		BY:	
		PRINT NAME:	

TITLE:

BOND FOR LABOR AND MATERIALS

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT WHEREAS, CITY OF GRASS VALLEY, STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, hereinafter called the "Owner" has awarded to, as Principal, hereinafter designated as the "Contractor," a contract for the work described as follows:
MCCOURTNEY ROAD ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PROJECT, PROJECT NO. 19-03
AND, WHEREAS, the Contractor is required to furnish a bond in connection with said contract, to secu
the payment of claims of laborers, mechanics, materialmen, and other persons as provided by law;
NOW, THEREFORE, we, the undersigned Contractor and Suret
are held and firmly bound unto the Owner in the amount required by law, in the sum
Dollars (\$) f
which payment well and truly to be made we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrator successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.
successors and assigns, jointly and severally, littily by these presents.
THE CONDITION of this obligation is such, that if the Contractor, his or its heirs, executor
administrators, successors or assigns, or subcontractors shall fail to pay any of the persons referred in Civil Code 9100, amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to work or lab
performed by any such claimant, or amount due the Franchise Tax Board as provided in Civil Code 955
that the surety or sureties herein will pay for the same, in amount not exceeding the sum specified in the
bond, otherwise the above obligation shall be void. In case suit is brought in this bond, the said sure
will pay reasonable attorneys' fee to be fixed by the court.
This bond shall inure to the benefit of any of the persons referred to in Civil Code 9100 so as to give
right of action to such persons or their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond. Any such right
action shall be subject to the provisions of Civil Code 8608 and 9566.
PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said surety, for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that r
change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work to be performed the contract or to the work to be performed to the contract of the contract or to the work to be performed to the contract of the contract or to the c
thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation on the bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the term
of the contract or to the work or to the specifications.
PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no settlement between the Owner and the Contractor shall abridge the rig of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied.
of any beneficiary fierediffical, whose diamitmay be alleadioned.
PROVIDED, FURTHER, that surety covenants that it is an Admitted Surety Insurer in the State
California as defined by California Code of Civil Procedures, Section 995.120
*SURETY Attorney-In-Fact CONTRACTOR
(Signature must be notarized) (Signature must be notarized)
Date: Date:
Address of Surety: * ATTORNEY-IN-FACT MUST HAVE POWER OF ATTORNEY ON FILE WITH CITY CLERK OF CITY OF GRASS VALLE
OR INCLUDE A COPY OF POWER OF ATTORNEY WITH THIS BOND.

MCCOURTNEY ROAD ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PROJECT

BOND OF FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE

KNOW	ALL M	EN BY	THES	E PRES	ENTS TH	HAT WE	Ē							_, the
Contrac	ctor in	the Cor	ntract h	nereto ai	nnexed, a	as princ	ipal, a	ınd						as
Surety	are	held	and	firmly	bound	unto	the	City	of	Grass	Valley	in	the	sum
of					Dolla	ars (\$			_) law	ful mone	y of the I	Jnited	d Stat	es, fo
which present	•	nt, well	and t	ruly to b	e made,	we bir	nd our	selves	, joir	ntly and s	severally	, firm	ly by	these
annexe and sha materia and cor a period TRANS set forth project, said sur or addit accomp	d shall all furni I, if any nplete d of one FPORT n in the then t rety, fo canying of any s	faithful sh all to y, agree in a gode year for ATION e contrathis obling the terrog the sasuch ch	lly perfools, ed to be od wor ollowin PROJ act herogation received ms of tames shange,	form eace quipment of furnish the action anneal shall be ed, here actionall, in an extension all, in an extension of the control of the contr	ch and all t, appara ted by the e manner cceptance ROJECT exed, and e null and by stipula ract or to ny wise, a	of the tus, face CITY, r, and to be of the property of the property of the property of the world	conditilities, neces or guar projector of the period of th	transposary to antee a t, the w strict od d of or rise to be that be perfigation of	f said portate properties of perfect of perf	Contract con	to be portion to be portion to be portion to the term of the and tension of the t	erformaterial e, and ce of f RO ns and ccept d effe of time he spees he	ned b , othed to pothe w AD Ad d con- cance ect; a e, alted ereby	y him er thar erform ork for CTIVE ditions of the eratior eations waive
obligation	on here	ein, all d	court c	costs, ex	penses, a	and all ı	reasor	nable a	attorn	will pay, ey's fees ment ther	to be av	warde		
	*SURE	TY Atto	orney-	In-Fact		_		CON	TRAG	CTOR				-
	(Signa	ture mu	ıst be ı	notarize	d) —					must be				
	Date: _							Date:						
Address	s of Su	rety:												
*ΔΤΤΩ	RNFY.	-IN-FΔ(T MU	ST HAV	F POWF	R OF 4	TTOF	RNFY	ON F	II F WITH	d CITY (:I FR	K OF	CITY

*ATTORNEY-IN-FACT MUST HAVE POWER OF ATTORNEY ON FILE WITH CITY CLERK OF CITY OF GRASS VALLEY OR INCLUDE A COPY OF POWER OF ATTORNEY WITH THIS BOND.

LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

The Contractor shall list the name, address, and contractor's license classification and number of each Subcontractor required to be listed by Section 2-1.054, "Required Listing of Proposed Subcontractors," of the Standard Specifications, and the Special Provisions, and designate the portion and percentage of the work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to whom the Contractor proposes to subcontract portions of the work. *The California contractor license designation and number shall be included for all subcontractors doing work in excess of 0.5 percent of the total Project Contract price, or \$10,000.00, whichever is greater.*

Subcontractor Name, Address & Email	License Designation Number	Description of Portion of Work Contracted With Applicable Item(s) #	% of Work per Bid Item	Dollar Amount of Work

CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE PROVISIONS

Cities are subject to the campaign disclosure provisions detailed in Government Code Section 84308.

Please carefully read the following information to determine if the provisions apply to you. If you determine that the provisions are applicable, the Campaign Disclosure Form must be completed and returned to the City with your application.

- 1. No City councilmember or commissioner shall accept, solicit, or direct a contribution of more than \$500 from any party,1 financially interested participant,2 or agent3 while a pro a f ap ini
- 2. the an the pro COI 12 par to ano
- 3. co co an the pa co tha CO: (b) pro CO

To determine whether your or your agent have made a campaign contribution of more than \$500 to a councilmember or commissioner in the past 12 months, all contributions made by you or your agent in that period must be aggregated.

Names of current City councilmembers and commissioners are available on the City's website. If you have questions about Government Code Section 84308, FPPC regulations, or the Campaign Disclosure Form, please contact the City Clerk.

CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

proceeding is pending or for 12 months after the City makes a final decision. This prohibition commences when your application has been filed, or the proceeding is otherwise initiated.	(a) Document: License Lease Permit
2. A party to a City proceeding shall disclose on the record of the proceeding any contribution of more than \$500 made to any councilmember or commissioner by the party, or agent, in the past 12 months. No party to or participant in a City proceeding shall make a contribution of more than \$500 to a councilmember or commissioner during the proceeding and for 12 months after the City makes a final decision. No agent to a party or participant shall make a contribution in any amount to a councilmember of commissioner during the proceeding and for 12 months after the City makes a final decision.	□ Franchise □ Other Contract □ Other Entitlement Name and address of any party, participant, or agent who contributed more than \$500 to any councilmember or commissioner within the preceding 12 months: 1
3. Before the City makes a decision as to a proceeding, any councilmember or commissioner who received contributions of more than \$500 in the past 12 months from any party to a proceeding, or agent, shall disclose that fact on the record of the proceeding, and shall be disqualified from participating in the proceeding. However, if any councilmember or commissioner receives a contribution that otherwise would require disqualification, and returns the contribution within 30 days of: (a) making the decision, or (b) knowing about the contribution and the relevant proceeding, whichever comes last, that councilmember or commissioner may participate in the proceeding.	Date Amount \$ Date Amount \$ Date Amount \$ [c) Name of councilmember or commissioner to whom contribution was made:
1 "Party" is defined as any person who files an application for, or is the subject of, a proceeding. ² "Participant" is defined as any person who actively supports or opposes a particular decision in a proceeding. ³ "Agent" is defined as a person who represents a party in connection with a proceeding for compensation who appears before or otherwise communicates with the City for the purpose of influencing the proceeding. If an individual acting as an agent also is acting as an employee or member of a law, architectural, engineering, or consulting firm, or a similar entity or corporation, both the individual and the entity or corporation are agents. When a closely held corporation is a party to a proceeding, the majority shareholder is subject to these provisions.	(d) I certify that the above information is provided to the best of my knowledge. Printed Name Signature Date Phone To be completed by City: Document No:



EXHIBIT 12-G: REQUIRED FEDERAL-AID CONTRACT LANGUAGE

(For Local Assistance Construction Projects)

The following language must be incorporated into all Local Assistance Federal-aid construction contracts.

The following language, with minor edits, was taken from the Code of Federal Regulations.

MAINTAIN RECORDS AND SUBMIT REPORTS DOCUMENTING YOUR PERFORMANCE UNDER THIS SECTION

1.	DISAD	VANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE)	2
	A.	Nondiscrimination Statement	3
	В.	Contract Assurance	3
	C.	Prompt Progress Payment	3
	D.	Prompt Payment of Withheld Funds to Subcontractors	3
	E.	Termination and Replacement of DBE Subcontractors	4
	F.	Commitment and Utilization	6
	G.	Running Tally of Attainments	7
	H.	Commercially Useful Function	7
	I.	Use of Joint Checks	8
2.	BID OF	PENING	9
3.	BID RI	GGING	9
4.	CONT	RACT AWARD	9
5.	CONTR	RACTOR LICENSE	9
6.	CHANG	GED CONDITIONS	9
	A.	Differing Site Conditions	9
	B.	Suspensions of Work Ordered by the Engineer	9
	C.	Significant Changes in the Character of Work	10
7.	BEGIN	NING OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	10
8.	BUY A	MERICA	10
9.	QUALI	TY ASSURANCE	13
10.	PROM	PT PAYMENT	13
11.	FORM	FHWA-1273 REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS	13
12.	FEMAL	LE AND MINORITY GOALS	14
13.	TITLE	VI ASSURANCES	15
14.	FEDER	RAL TRAINEE PROGRAM	20
15.	PROHI SERVI	BITION OF CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE EQUIPMENT A	ND 21

1. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE)

The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall take necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that DBEs have opportunity to participate in the contract (49 CFR 26). To ensure equal participation of DBEs provided in 49 CFR 26.5, the Agency shows a contract goal for DBEs. The prime contractor shall make work available to DBEs and select work parts consistent with available DBE subcontractors and suppliers.

The prime contractor shall meet the DBE goal shown elsewhere in these special provisions or demonstrate that they made adequate Good Faith Efforts (GFE) to meet this goal. An adequate GFE means that the bidder must show that it took all necessary and reasonable steps to achieve a DBE goal that, by their scope, intensity, and appropriateness to the objective, could reasonably be expected to meet the DBE goal.

If the DBE goal is not met, the contractor needs to complete and submit the DBE GFE documentation as described in Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) Chapter 9, Section 9.8 within 5 (five) days of bid opening.

It is the prime contractor's responsibility to verify that the DBE firm is certified as a DBE on the date of bid opening by using the California Unified Certification Program (CUCP) database and possesses the most specific available North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes and Work Code applicable to the type of work the firm will perform on the contract. Additionally, the prime contractor is responsible to document this verification by printing out the CUCP data for each DBE firm. A list of DBEs certified by the CUCP can be found at: https://dot.ca.gov/programs/civil-rights/dbe-search.

DBE participation will only count toward the California Department of Transportation's federally mandated statewide overall DBE goal if the DBE performs a commercially useful function under 49 CFR 26.55.

Credit for materials or supplies the prime contractor purchases from DBEs counts towards the goal in the following manner:

- 100 percent counts if the materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE manufacturer.
- 60 percent counts if the materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE regular dealer.
- Only fees, commissions, and charges for assistance in the procurement and delivery of materials or supplies count if obtained from a DBE that is neither a manufacturer nor regular dealer. 49 CFR 26.55 defines "manufacturer" and "regular dealer."

The prime contractor receives credit towards the goal if they employ a DBE trucking company that performs a commercially useful function as defined in 49 CFR 26.55(d) as follows:

- The DBE must be responsible for the management and supervision of the entire trucking operation for which it is responsible on a particular contract, and there cannot be a contrived arrangement for the purpose of meeting DBE goals.
- The DBE must itself own and operate at least one fully licensed, insured, and operational truck used on the contract.
- The DBE receives credit for the total value of the transportation services it provides on the Contract using trucks it owns, insures, and operates using drivers it employs.
- The DBE may lease trucks from another DBE firm, including an owner-operator who is certified as a
 DBE. The DBE who leases trucks from another DBE receives credit for the total value of the
 transportation services the lessee DBE provides on the Contract.
- The DBE may also lease trucks from a non-DBE firm, including from an owner-operator. The DBE that leases trucks equipped with drivers from a non-DBE is entitled to credit for the total value of transportation services provided by non-DBE leased trucks equipped with drivers not to exceed the value of transportation services on the contract provided by DBE-owned trucks or leased trucks with DBE employee drivers. Additional participation by non-DBE owned trucks equipped with drivers receives credit only for the fee or commission it receives as a result of the lease arrangement.
- The DBE may lease trucks without drivers from a non-DBE truck leasing company. If the DBE leases
 trucks from a non-DBE truck leasing company and uses its own employees as drivers, it is entitled to
 credit for the total value of these hauling services.

A lease must indicate that the DBE has exclusive use of and control over the truck. This does not
preclude the leased truck from working for others during the term of the lease with the consent of the
DBE, so long as the lease gives the DBE absolute priority for use of the leased truck. Leased trucks
must display the name and identification number of the DBE.

A. Nondiscrimination Statement

The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor will never exclude any person from participation in, deny any person the benefits of, or otherwise discriminate against anyone in connection with the award and performance of any contract covered by 49 CFR 26 on the basis of race, color, sex, or national origin. In administering the Local Agency components of the DBE Program Plan, the contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor will not, directly, or through contractual or other arrangements, use criteria or methods of administration that have the effect of defeating or substantially impairing accomplishment of the objectives of the DBE Program Plan with respect to individuals of a particular race, color, sex, or national origin.

B. Contract Assurance

Under 49 CFR 26.13(b): The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR 26 in the award and administration of federal-aid contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to:

- (1) Withholding monthly progress payments;
- (2) Assessing sanctions;
- (3) Liquidated damages; and/or
- (4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as non-responsible.

C. Prompt Progress Payment

In accordance with California Business and Professions Code section 7108.5, the prime contractor or subcontractor shall pay to any subcontractor, not later than <u>seven days</u> after receipt of each progress payment, unless otherwise agreed to in writing, the respective amounts allowed the contractor on account of the work performed by the subcontractors, to the extent of each subcontractor's interest therein. In the event that there is a good faith dispute over all or any portion of the amount due on a progress payment from the prime contractor or subcontractor to a subcontractor, the prime contractor or subcontractor may withhold no more than 150 percent of the disputed amount. Any violation of this requirement shall constitute a cause for disciplinary action and shall subject the licensee to a penalty, payable to the subcontractor, of 2 percent of the amount due per month for every month that payment is not made.

In any action for the collection of funds wrongfully withheld, the prevailing party shall be entitled to his or her attorney's fees and costs. The sanctions authorized under this requirement shall be separate from, and in addition to, all other remedies, either civil, administrative, or criminal. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

D. Prompt Payment of Withheld Funds to Subcontractors

The Agency may hold retainage from the prime contractor and shall make prompt and regular incremental acceptances of portions, as determined by the Agency, of the contract work, and pay retainage to the prime contractor based on these acceptances. The Agency shall designate one of the methods below in the contract to ensure prompt and full payment of any retainage kept by the prime contractor or subcontractor to a subcontractor. The Agency shall include either Method 1, Method 2, or Method 3 below and delete the other two.

Method 1: No retainage will be held by the Agency from progress payments due to the prime contractor. Prime contractors and subcontractors are prohibited from holding retainage from subcontractors. Any delay or postponement of payment may take place only for good cause and with the Agency's prior written approval. Any violation of these provisions shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions, and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code and Section 10262 of the California Public Contract Code. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative or judicial remedies, otherwise available to the

contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the contractor, deficient subcontractor performance and/or noncompliance by a subcontractor. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

Method 2: No retainage will be held by the Agency from progress payments due to the prime contractor. Any retainage kept by the prime contractor or by a subcontractor must be paid in full to the earning subcontractor within seven (7) days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment may take place only for good cause and with the Agency's prior written approval. Any violation of these provisions shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions, and remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code and Section 10262 of the California Public Contract Code. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative or judicial remedies, otherwise available to the contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the contractor, deficient subcontractor performance and/or noncompliance by a subcontractor. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

Method 3: The Agency shall hold retainage from the prime contractor and shall make prompt and regular incremental acceptances of portions, as determined by the Agency of the contract work and pay retainage to the prime contractor based on these acceptances. The prime contractor or subcontractor shall return all monies withheld in retention from all subcontractors within seven (7) days after receiving payment for work satisfactorily completed and accepted including incremental acceptances of portions of the contract work by the Agency. Any delay or postponement of payment may take place only for good cause and with the Agency's prior written approval. Any violation of these provisions shall subject the violating prime contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions, and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code and Section 10262 of the California Public Contract Code. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative or judicial remedies otherwise available to the contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the contractor; deficient subcontractor performance and/or noncompliance by a subcontractor. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

Any violation of these provisions of Prompt Progress Payment and Prompt Payment of Withheld Funds to Subcontractors shall subject the violating prime contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions and other remedies specified therein. These requirements shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the prime contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime contractor, deficient subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subcontractor.

E. Termination and Replacement of DBE Subcontractors

The prime contractor shall utilize the specific DBEs listed to perform the work and supply the materials for which each is listed unless the contractor obtains the Agency's written consent. The prime contractor shall not terminate or replace a listed DBE for convenience and perform the work with their own forces or obtain materials from other sources without prior written authorization from the Agency. Unless the Agency's prior written consent is provided, the contractor shall not be entitled to any payment for work or material unless it is performed or supplied by the listed DBE on the Exhibit 15-G Construction Contract DBE Commitment form, included in the Bid.

Termination of DBE Subcontractors

After a contract with a specified DBE goal has been executed, termination of a DBE may be allowed for the following, but not limited to, justifiable reasons with prior written authorization from the Agency:

- 1. Listed DBE fails or refuses to execute a written contract based on plans and specifications for the project.
- 2. The Local Agency stipulated that a bond is a condition of executing the subcontract and the listed DBE fails to meet the Local Agency's bond requirements.
- Work requires a contractor's license and listed DBE does not have a valid license under Contractors
 License Law, or is not properly registered with the California Department of Industrial Relations as a
 public works contractor.
- 4. Listed DBE fails or refuses to perform the work or furnish the listed materials (failing or refusing to

perform is not an allowable reason to remove a DBE if the failure or refusal is a result of bad faith or discrimination).

- 5. Listed DBE's work is unsatisfactory and not in compliance with the contract.
- 6. Listed DBE is ineligible to work on the project because of suspension or debarment.
- 7. Listed DBE becomes bankrupt or insolvent or exhibits credit unworthiness.
- 8. Listed DBE voluntarily withdraws with written notice from the Contract
- 9. Listed DBE is ineligible to receive credit for the type of work required.
- 10. Listed DBE owner dies or becomes disabled resulting in the inability to perform the work on the Contract.
- 11. The Agency determines other documented good cause.

To terminate a DBE or to terminate a portion of a DBE's work, the contractor must use the following procedures:

- 1. Send a written notice to the DBE of Contractor's intent to use other forces or material sources and include one or more justifiable reasons listed above. Simultaneously send a copy of this written notice to the Agency. The written notice to the DBE must request they provide any response within five (5) business days to both the Contractor and the Agency by either acknowledging their agreement or documenting their reasoning as to why the use of other forces or sources of materials should not occur.
- 2. If the DBE does not respond within 5 business days, Contractor may move forward with the request as if the DBE had agreed to Contractor's written notice.
- 3. Submit Contractor's DBE termination request by written letter to the Agency and include:
 - One or more above listed justifiable reasons along with supporting documentation.
 - Contractor's written notice to the DBE regarding the request, including proof of transmission and tracking documentation of Contractor's written notice
 - The DBE's response to Contractor's written notice, if received. If a written response was not
 provided, provide a statement to that effect.

The Agency shall respond in writing to Contractor's DBE termination request within 5 business days.

Replacement of DBE Subcontractors

After receiving the Agency's written authorization of DBE termination request, the Contractor must obtain the Agency's written agreement for DBE replacement. The Contractor must find or demonstrate GFEs to find qualified DBE replacement firms to perform the work to the extent needed to meet the DBE commitment.

The following procedures shall be followed to request authorization to replace a DBE firm:

- 1. Submit a request to replace a DBE with other forces or material sources in writing to the Agency which must include:
 - a. Description of remaining uncommitted work items made available for replacement DBE solicitation and participation.
 - b. The proposed DBE replacement firm's business information, the work they have agreed to perform, and the following:
 - Quote for bid item work and description of work to be performed
 - Proposed subcontract agreement and written confirmation of agreement to perform on the Contract
 - Revised Subcontracting Request form
 - Revised Exhibit 15-G: Construction Contract DBE Commitment
- 2. If Contractor has not identified a DBE replacement firm, submit documentation of the Contractor's GFEs

to use DBE replacement firms within 7 days of Agency's authorization to terminate the DBE. The Contractor may request the Agency's approval to extend this submittal period to a total of 14 days. Submit documentation of actions taken to find a DBE replacement firm, such as:

- Search results of certified DBEs available to perform the original DBE work identified and/or other work the Contractor had intended to self-perform, to the extent needed to meet the DBE commitment
- Solicitations of DBEs for performance of work identified
- Correspondence with interested DBEs that may have included contract details and requirements
- Negotiation efforts with DBEs that reflect why an agreement was not reached
- If a DBE's quote was rejected, provide Contractor's reasoning for the rejection, such as why the DBE was unqualified for the work, or why the price quote was unreasonable or excessive
- Copies of each DBE's and non-DBE's price quotes for work identified, as the Agency may contact the firms to verify solicitation efforts and determine if the DBE quotes are substantially higher
- Additional documentation that supports the GFE

The Agency shall respond in writing to the Contractor's DBE replacement request within five (5) business days. The Contractor must submit a revised Subcontracting Request form if the replacement plan is authorized by the Agency.

F. Commitment and Utilization

The Agency's DBE program must include a monitoring and enforcement mechanism to ensure that DBE commitments reconcile to DBE utilization.

The bidder shall complete and sign Exhibit 15-G: Construction Contract DBE Commitment included in the contract documents regardless of whether DBE participation is reported. The bidder shall provide written confirmation from each DBE that the DBE is participating in the Contract. LAPM Exhibit 9-I: DBE Confirmation or equivalent form and DBE's quote must be submitted. The written confirmation must be submitted no later than 4pm on the 5th day after bid opening. If a DBE is participating as a joint venture partner, the bidder shall submit a copy of the joint venture agreement.

If the DBE Commitment form, Exhibit 15-G, is not submitted with the bid, it must be completed and submitted by all bidders to the Agency within five (5) days of bid opening. If the bidder does not submit the DBE Commitment form within the specified time, the Agency will find the bidder's bid nonresponsive.

The prime contractor shall use each DBE subcontractor as listed on Exhibit 15-G: Construction Contract DBE Commitment unless they receive written authorization for a termination or replacement from the Agency.

The Agency shall request the prime contractor to:

- 1. Notify the Resident Engineer or Inspector of any changes to its anticipated DBE participation
- 2. Provide this notification before starting the affected work
- 3. Maintain records including:
 - Name and business address of each 1st-tier subcontractor
 - Name and business address of each DBE subcontractor, DBE vendor, and DBE trucking company, regardless of tier
 - Date of payment and total amount paid to each DBE (see Exhibit 9-F: Monthly Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Payment)

If the prime contractor is a DBE contractor, they shall include the date of work performed by their own forces and the corresponding value of the work.

Before the 15th of each month, the prime contractor shall submit a Monthly DBE Trucking Verification (LAPM Exhibit 16-Z1) form.

If a DBE is decertified before completing its work, the DBE must notify the prime contractor in writing of the decertification date. If a business becomes a certified DBE before completing its work, the business must notify the prime contractor in writing of the certification date. The prime contractor shall submit the notifications. Upon work completion, the prime contractor shall complete a Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Certification Status Change, Exhibit 17-O, form and submit the form within 30 days of contract acceptance.

Upon work completion, the prime contractor shall complete Exhibit 17-F: Final Report – Utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE), First-Tier Subcontractors and submit it within 90 days of contract acceptance. The Agency will withhold \$10,000 until the form is submitted. The Agency releases the withhold upon submission of the completed form.

G. Running Tally of Attainments

For projects awarded on or after March 1, 2020, but before September 1, 2023:

After submitting an invoice for reimbursement that includes a payment to a DBE, but no later than the 10th of the following month, the prime contractor/consultant must complete and email the Exhibit 9-F: Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Running Tally of Payments to business.support.unit@dot.ca.gov with a copy to local administering agencies.

For projects that are awarded on or after September 1, 2023:

Exhibit 9-F is no longer required. Instead, by the 15th of the month following the month of any payment(s), the prime contractor must now submit Exhibit 9-P to the Local Agency administering the contract. If the Contractor does not make any payments to subcontractors, supplier(s) and/or manufacturers they must report "no payments were made to subs this month" and write this visibly and legibly on Exhibit 9-P.

H. Commercially Useful Function

DBEs must perform a commercially useful function (CUF) under 49 CFR 26.55 when performing work or supplying materials listed on the DBE Commitment form. The DBE value of work will only count toward the DBE commitment if the DBE performs a CUF. A DBE performs a CUF when it is responsible for execution of the work on the contract and is carrying out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work involved. If a DBE does not perform or exercise responsibility for at least 30% of the total cost of its contract with its own work force, or the DBE subcontracts a greater portion of the work of a contract than would be expected on the basis of normal industry practice for the type of work involved, it will be presumed that the DBE is not performing a CUF. Additionally, the DBE must also be responsible, with respect to materials and supplies used on the contract, for negotiating price, determining quality and quantity, ordering the material and installing (where applicable), and paying for the material itself.

The Contractor must perform CUF evaluation for each DBE company working on a federal-aid contract, with or without a DBE goal. Perform a CUF evaluation at the beginning of the DBE's work, and continue to monitor the performance of CUF for the duration of the project.

The Contractor must provide written notification to the AGENCY at least 15 days in advance of each DBE's initial performance of work or supplying materials for the Contract. The notification must include the DBE's name, work the DBE will perform on the contract, and the location, date, and time of where their work will take place.

Within 10 (ten) days of a DBE initially performing work or supplying materials on the contract, the Contractor shall submit to the LPA the initial evaluation and validation of DBE performance of a CUF using the LAPM 9-J: Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Commercially Useful Function Evaluation. Include the following information with the submittal:

- Subcontract agreement with the DBE
- Purchase orders
- Bills of lading
- Invoices
- Proof of payment

The Contractor must monitor all DBE's performance of CUF by conducting quarterly evaluations and validations throughout their duration of work on the contract using the LAPM 9-J: DBE Commercially Useful Function Evaluation. The Contractor must submit to the AGENCY these quarterly evaluations and validations by the 5th of the month for the previous three (3) months of work.

The Contractor must notify the AGENCY immediately if the Contractor believes the DBE may not be performing a CUF.

The AGENCY will verify DBEs performance of CUF by reviewing the initial and quarterly submissions of LAPM 9-J: DBE Commercially Useful Function Evaluation, submitted supporting information, field observations, and through any additional AGENCY evaluations. The AGENCY must evaluate DBEs and their CUF performance throughout the duration of a Contract. The AGENCY will provide written notice to Contractor and DBE at least two (2) business days prior to any evaluation. The Contractor and DBE must participate in the evaluation. Upon completing the evaluation, the AGENCY must share the evaluation results with the Contractor and DBE. An evaluation could include items that must be remedied upon receipt. If the AGENCY determines the DBE is not performing a CUF the Contractor must suspend performance of the noncompliant work.

The Contractor and DBEs must submit any additional CUF related records and documents within five (5) business days of AGENCY's request such as:

- Proof of ownership or lease and rental agreements for equipment
- Tax records
- Employee rosters
- · Certified payroll records
- Inventory rosters

Failure to submit required DBE Commercially Useful Function Evaluation forms or requested records and documents can result in withholding of payment for the value of work completed by the DBE.

If the Contractor and/or the AGENCY determine that a listed DBE is not performing a CUF in performance of their DBE committed work, immediately suspend performance of the noncompliant portion of the work. The AGENCY may deny payment for the noncompliant portion of the work. The AGENCY will ask the Contractor to submit a corrective action plan (CAP) to the AGENCY within five (5) days of the noncompliant CUF determination. The CAP must identify how the Contractor will correct the noncompliance findings for the remaining portion of the DBE's work. The AGENCY has five (5) days to review the CAP in conjunction with the prime contractor's review. The Contractor must implement the CAP within five (5) days of the AGENCY's approval. The AGENCY will then authorize the prior noncompliant portion of work for the DBE's committed work.

If corrective actions cannot be accomplished to ensure the DBE performs a CUF on the Contract, then the Contractor may have good cause to request termination of the DBE.

I. Use of Joint Checks

A joint check may be used between the Contractor or lower-tier subcontractor and a DBE subcontractor purchasing materials from a material supplier if the contractor obtains prior approval from the LPA for the proposed use of joint check upon submittal of the LAPM 9-K: DLA Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Joint Check Agreement Request form.

To use a joint check, the following conditions must be met:

- All parties, including the Contractor, must agree to the use of a joint check
- Entity issuing the joint check acts solely to guarantee payment
- DBE must release the check to the material supplier
- LPA must authorize the request before implementation
- Any party to the agreement must provide requested documentation within 10 days of the LPA's request for the documentation
- Agreement to use a joint check must be short-term, not to exceed 1 year, allowing sufficient time needed to establish or increase a credit line with the material supplier

A request for a joint check agreement may be initiated by any party. If a joint check is used, the DBE remains responsible for all elements of 49 CFR 26.55(c)(1).

Failure to comply with the above requirements disqualifies DBE participation and results in no credit and no payment to the Contractor for DBE participation.

A joint check may not be used between the Contractor or subcontractor and a DBE regular dealer, bulk material supplier, manufacturer, wholesaler, broker, trucker, packager, manufacturer's representative, or other persons who arrange or expedite transactions.

2. BID OPENING

The Agency publicly opens and reads bids at the time and place shown on the Notice to Contractors.

3. BID RIGGING

The U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) provides a toll-free hotline to report bid rigging activities. Use the hotline to report bid rigging, bidder collusion, and other fraudulent activities. The hotline number is (800) 424-9071. The service is available 24 hours 7 days a week and is confidential and anonymous. The hotline is part of the DOT's effort to identify and investigate highway construction contract fraud and abuse and is operated under the direction of the DOT Inspector General.

4. CONTRACT AWARD

If the Agency awards the contract, the award is made to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder.

5. CONTRACTOR LICENSE

The Contractor must be properly licensed as a contractor from contract award through Contract acceptance (23 CFR 635.110).

6. CHANGED CONDITIONS

A. Differing Site Conditions

- 1. During the progress of the work, if subsurface or latent physical conditions are encountered at the site differing materially from those indicated in the contract or if unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature, differing materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in the work provided for in the contract, are encountered at the site, the party discovering such conditions shall promptly notify the other party in writing of the specific differing conditions before the site is disturbed and before the affected work is performed.
- 2. Upon written notification, the engineer will investigate the conditions, and if it is determined that the conditions materially differ and cause an increase or decrease in the cost or time required for the performance of any work under the contract, an adjustment, excluding anticipated profits, will be made and the contract modified in writing accordingly. The engineer will notify the contractor of the determination whether or not an adjustment of the contract is warranted.
- 3. No contract adjustment which results in a benefit to the contractor will be allowed unless the contractor has provided the required written notice.
- 4. No contract adjustment will be allowed under this clause for any effects caused on unchanged work. [This provision may be omitted by the Local Agency, at their option.]

B. Suspensions of Work Ordered by the Engineer

- 1. If the performance of all or any portion of the work is suspended or delayed by the engineer in writing for an unreasonable period of time (not originally anticipated, customary, or inherent to the construction industry) and the contractor believes that additional compensation and/or contract time is due as a result of such suspension or delay, the contractor shall submit to the engineer in writing a request for adjustment within 7 calendar days of receipt of the notice to resume work. The request shall set forth the reasons and support for such adjustment.
- 2. Upon receipt, the engineer will evaluate the contractor's request. If the engineer agrees that the cost and/or time required for the performance of the contract has increased as a result of such suspension and the suspension was caused by conditions beyond the control of and not the fault of the contractor, its suppliers, or subcontractors at any approved tier, and not caused by weather, the engineer will make an adjustment (excluding profit) and modify the contract in writing accordingly. The contractor will be notified of the engineer's determination whether or not an adjustment of the contract is warranted.

- 3. No contract adjustment will be allowed unless the contractor has submitted the request for adjustment within the time prescribed.
- 4. No contract adjustment will be allowed under this clause to the extent that performance would have been suspended or delayed by any other cause, or for which an adjustment is provided or excluded under any other term or condition of this contract.

C. Significant Changes in the Character of Work

- 1. The engineer reserves the right to make, in writing, at any time during the work, such changes in quantities and such alterations in the work as are necessary to satisfactorily complete the project. Such changes in quantities and alterations shall not invalidate the contract nor release the surety, and the contractor agrees to perform the work as altered.
- 2. If the alterations or changes in quantities significantly change the character of the work under the contract, whether such alterations or changes are in themselves significant changes to the character of the work or by affecting other work cause such other work to become significantly different in character, an adjustment, excluding anticipated profit, will be made to the contract. The basis for the adjustment shall be agreed upon prior to the performance of the work. If a basis cannot be agreed upon, then an adjustment will be made either for or against the contractor in such amount as the engineer may determine to be fair and equitable.
- 3. If the alterations or changes in quantities do not significantly change the character of the work to be performed under the contract, the altered work will be paid for as provided elsewhere in the contract.
- 4. The term "significant change" shall be construed to apply only to the following circumstances:
 - When the character of the work as altered differs materially in kind or nature from that involved or included in the original proposed construction; or
 - When a major item of work, as defined elsewhere in the contract, is increased in excess of 125
 percent or decreased below 75 percent of the original contract quantity. Any allowance for an
 increase in quantity shall apply only to that portion in excess of 125 percent of original contract
 item quantity, or in case of a decrease below 75 percent, to the actual amount of work performed.

7. BEGINNING OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

The Contractor shall begin work within 15 calendar days after the	e issuance of the Notice t	o Proceed.
This work shall be diligently prosecuted to completion before the on the fifteenth calendar day after the date shown on the Notice to	• ——	KING DAYS beginning
The Contractor shall pay to the City/County_ and every calendar days' delay in finishing the work in excess of	the sum of \$the number of working do	per day, for each

8. BUY AMERICA

[Include the Buy America provisions below when required by LAPM Chapter 12]

Buy America Requirements apply to iron or steel, manufactured products, and construction materials permanently incorporated into the project.

Buy America requirements do not apply to the following:

- 1. Tools and construction equipment used in performing the work
- 2. Temporary work that is not incorporated into the finished project

An article, materials, or supply to be permanently incorporated in the project should only be classified into one of the following categories:

- 1. Iron or steel products
- 2. Manufactured products
- 3. Construction materials
- 4. Excluded materials

Excluded materials means cement and cementitious materials; aggregates such as stone, sand, or gravel; or aggregate binding agents or additives.

Iron or Steel Products

All iron or steel products permanently incorporated into the project must be melted and manufactured in the United States except:

- 1. Foreign pig iron and processed, pelletized, and reduced iron ore may be used in the domestic production of the steel and iron materials [60 Fed Reg 15478 (03/24/1995)];
- 2. If the total combined cost of the materials produced outside the United States does not exceed the greater of 0.1 percent of the total contract amount or \$2,500, materials produced outside the United States may be used if authorized.

Iron or steel products are defined as articles, materials, or supplies that consist wholly or predominantly of iron or steel or a combination of both.

For a product to be considered to consist predominantly of iron or steel, or a combination of both means the cost of the iron or steel content of the product exceeds 50 percent of the total cost of all its components. The cost of iron or steel is the cost of the iron or steel mill products (such as bar, billet, slab, wire, plate, or sheet), castings, or forgings utilized in the manufacture of the product and a good faith estimate of the cost of iron or steel components.

Furnish iron or steel products to be incorporated into the work with certificates of compliance and certified mill test reports. Mill test reports must indicate where the iron or steel were melted and manufactured. All melting and manufacturing processes for these materials, including an application of a coating, must occur in the United States. Coating includes all processes that protect or enhance the value of the material to which the coating is applied.

[Delete the paragraph below if not applicable]

The following iron or steel products have received an	approved Buy America	waiver for this proje	ct and are
therefore not subject to Buy America requirements:			

Manufactured Products

All manufactured products permanently incorporated into the project must be manufactured in the United States.

Manufactured products are defined as articles, materials, or supplies that have been:

- 1. Processed into a specific form and shape; or
- 2. Combined with other articles, materials, or supplies to create a product with different properties than the individual articles, materials, or supplies.

Manufacturer, in the case of manufactured products, means the entity that performs the final manufacturing process by bringing individual elements together that produces a manufactured product.

If an item is classified as an iron or steel product, a construction material, or an excluded material, then it is not a manufactured product. However, an article, material, or supply classified as a manufactured product may include components that are iron or steel products, construction materials, or excluded materials.

Iron or steel used in precast concrete manufactured products or Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) must meet the requirements of Iron or Steel Products regardless of the amount used.

Iron and steel used in other manufactured products must meet the requirements of section Iron or Steel Products if the cost of steel and iron components is 50 percent or more of the total cost of the manufactured product.

Furnish manufactured products to be permanently incorporated into the work with certificates of compliance with each project delivery. The manufacturer's certificate of compliance must identify where the manufacturing occurred and attest specifically to Buy America compliance.

[Delete the	paragraph b	elow if not a	applicable
-------------	-------------	---------------	------------

The following manufactured products have received an approved Buy America waiver for this project and are therefore not subject to Buy America requirements:

1.									
_									_
2.									

Construction Materials

Construction materials permanently incorporated into the project must be manufactured as defined in 2 CFR 184.6 in the United States.

Buy America requirements apply to the following construction materials that are or consist primarily of:

- 1. Non-ferrous metals
- 2. Plastic and polymer-based products such as:
 - 2.1 Polyvinylchloride
 - 2.2 Composite Building Materials
- Glass
- 4. Fiber optic cable (including drop cable)
- 5. Optical fiber
- 6. Lumber
- 7. Engineered wood
- 8. Drywall

Minor additions of articles, materials, supplies, or binding agents to these construction materials do not change the categorization of the construction material.

Furnish construction materials to be incorporated into the work with certificates of compliance with each project delivery. The manufacturer's certificate of compliance must identify where the construction material was manufactured and attest specifically to Buy America compliance.

[Delete the paragraph below if not applicable]

The following construction materials have received an approved Buy America waiver for this project and are therefore not subject to Buy America requirements:

1.					
2					
۷.					

Buy America Waiver for De Minimis Cost for Manufactured Products and Construction Materials

A De Minimis Cost Waiver can waive the application of FHWA's Buy America requirements for manufactured products and construction materials under a single project when the total value of non-compliant manufactured products and construction materials is no more that the lesser of \$1,000,000 or 5 percent of the total applicable material costs for the project.

The percent threshold is calculated based on the following formula:

X = NC / TA

where:

X = percent threshold

NC = total value of non-compliant manufactured products and construction material

TA = total applicable project costs (iron or steel products, manufactured products, and construction materials; does not include excluded materials)

This threshold is based on the actual cost of the iron or steel products, manufactured products, and construction materials, not the anticipated cost of those materials. Compliant and non-compliant Agency Furnished Materials for the project must be accounted for in a De Minimis Cost Waiver Worksheet calculation, if provided by the Local Agency.

Provide copies of invoices for the actual costs of materials including transportation to the project site.

In applying a De Minimum Cost Waiver, total cost of non-compliant construction materials and manufactured products does not include the cost of any products subject to a separate Buy America waiver.

If De Minimis Cost Waiver Worksheet calculation for materials subject to Buy America is not submitted, the Local Agency may:

- 1. Withhold from the next progress payment
- 2. Reject your request for a De Minimis Costs waiver for non-compliant construction materials or manufactured products

9. QUALITY ASSURANCE

The Local Agency uses a Quality Assurance Program (QAP) to ensure a material is produced to comply with the Contract. The Local Agency may examine the records and reports of tests the prime contractor performs if they are available at the job site. Schedule work to allow time for QAP.

10. PROMPT PAYMENT

A. FROM THE AGENCY TO THE CONTRACTORS

The Local Agency shall make all project progress payment within 30 days after receipt of an undisputed and properly submitted payment request from the Contractor on a construction contract. If the Local Agency fails to pay promptly, the Local Agency shall pay interest to the Contractor, which accrues at the rate of 10 percent per annum on the principal amount of a money judgment remaining unsatisfied and pro-rated as necessary. Upon receipt of the payment request, the Local Agency shall act in accordance with both of the following:

- 1. The Local Agency shall review each payment request as soon as feasible after receipt to verify it is a proper payment request.
- 2. The Local Agency must return any payment request deemed improper by the Local Agency to the Contractor as soon as feasible, but not later than seven (7) days, after receipt. A request returned pursuant to this paragraph shall include documentation setting forth in writing the reasons why it is an improper payment request.

B. SUBMITTAL OF EXHIBIT 9-P

For projects awarded on or after September 1, 2023:

The Contractor must submit Exhibit 9-P to the Local Agency administering the contract by the 15th of the month following the month of any payment(s). If the Contractor does not make any payments to subcontractors, supplier(s) and/or manufacturers they must report "no payments were made to subs this month" and write this visibly and legibly on Exhibit 9-P.

The Local Agency must verify all Exhibit 9-P information, monitor compliance with prompt payment requirements for DBE and non-DBE firms, and address any shortfall to the DBE commitment and prompt payment issues until the end of the project. The Local Agency must email a copy of Exhibit 9-P to DBE.Forms@dot.ca.gov before the end of the month after receiving the Exhibit 9-P from the Contractor.

11. FORM FHWA-1273 REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

[Form FHWA-1273 must be physically inserted into the contract without modification, excluding ATTACHMENT A - EMPLOYMENT AND MATERIALS PREFERENCE FOR APPALACHIAN DEVELOPMENT HIGHWAY SYSTEM OR APPALACHIAN LOCAL ACCESS ROAD CONTRACTS.]

[The current version of Form FHWA-1273 is accessible at FHWA's website: https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/programadmin/contracts/1273/1273.pdf]

12. FEMALE AND MINORITY GOALS

To comply with Section II, "Nondiscrimination," of "Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts," the following are for female and minority utilization goals for Federal-aid construction contracts and subcontracts that exceed \$10,000:

The nationwide goal for female utilization is 6.9 percent.

The goals for minority utilization (45 Fed Reg 65984 (10/3/1980)) are as follows:

MINORITY UTILIZATION GOALS

	Economic Economic	Goal
	Area	(Percent)
174	Redding CA: Non-SMSA (Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area) Counties: CA Lassen; CA Modoc; CA Plumas; CA Shasta; CA Siskiyou; CA Tehama	6.8
175	Eureka, CA Non-SMSA Counties: CA Del Norte; CA Humboldt; CA Trinity	6.6
	San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose, CA: SMSA Counties: 7120 Salinas-Seaside-Monterey, CA	28.9
	CA Monterey 7360 San Francisco-Oakland CA Alameda; CA Contra Costa; CA Marin; CA San Francisco; CA San Mateo	25.6
176	7400 San Jose, CA CA Santa Clara, CA 7485 Santa Cruz, CA	19.6
	CA Santa Cruz 7500 Santa Rosa	14.9 9.1
	CA Sonoma 8720 Vallejo-Fairfield-Napa, CA CA Napa; CA Solano	17.1
	Non-SMSA Counties: CA Lake; CA Mendocino; CA San Benito	23.2
	Sacramento, CA: SMSA Counties: 6920 Sacramento, CA	16.1
177	CA Placer; CA Sacramento; CA Yolo Non-SMSA Counties	14.3
	CA Butte; CA Colusa; CA El Dorado; CA Glenn; CA Nevada; CA Sierra; CA Sutter; CA Yuba Stockton-Modesto, CA:	
	SMSA Counties: 5170 Modesto, CA	12.3
178	CA Stanislaus 8120 Stockton, CA CA San Joaquin	24.3
	Non-SMSA Counties CA Alpine; CA Amador; CA Calaveras; CA Mariposa; CA Merced; CA Tuolumne	19.8
179	Fresno-Bakersfield, CA SMSA Counties: 0680 Bakersfield, CA	19.1
118	CA Kern 2840 Fresno, CA CA Fresno	26.1

	Non-SMSA Counties: CA Kings; CA Madera; CA Tulare	23.6
180	Los Angeles, CA: SMSA Counties: 0360 Anaheim-Santa Ana-Garden Grove, CA CA Orange 4480 Los Angeles-Long Beach, CA CA Los Angeles 6000 Oxnard-Simi Valley-Ventura, CA CA Ventura 6780 Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario, CA CA Riverside; CA San Bernardino 7480 Santa Barbara-Santa Maria-Lompoc, CA CA Santa Barbara Non-SMSA Counties CA Inyo; CA Mono; CA San Luis Obispo	11.9 28.3 21.5 19.0 19.7 24.6
181	San Diego, CA: SMSA Counties 7320 San Diego, CA CA San Diego Non-SMSA Counties CA Imperial	16.9 18.2

For the last full week of July during which work is performed under the contract, the prime contractor and each non material-supplier subcontractor with a subcontract of \$10,000 or more must complete Form FHWA PR-1391 (Appendix C to 23 CFR 230). Submit the forms by August 15.

13. TITLE VI ASSURANCES

[The U.S. Department of Transportation Order No.1050.2A requires all federal-aid Department of Transportation contracts between an agency and a contractor to contain Appendix A and E.

Note: Appendix B only requires inclusion if the contract impacts deeds effecting or recording the transfer of real property, structures, or improvements thereon, or granting interest therein. Appendices C and D only require inclusion if the contract impacts deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments entered into by the recipient.]

APPENDIX A

During the performance of this Agreement, the contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest (hereinafter collectively referred to as CONTRACTOR) agrees as follows:

- a. <u>Compliance with Regulations</u>: CONTRACTOR shall comply with the regulations relative to nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the REGULATIONS), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this agreement.
- b. <u>Nondiscrimination</u>: CONTRACTOR, with regard to the work performed by it during the AGREEMENT, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, religion, age, or disability in the selection and retention of sub-applicants, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. CONTRACTOR shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the agreement covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.
- c. <u>Solicitations for Sub-agreements, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment</u>: In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by CONTRACTOR for work to be performed under a Sub- agreement, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential sub-applicant or supplier shall be notified by CONTRACTOR of the CONTRACTOR'S obligations under this Agreement and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

- d. <u>Information and Reports</u>: CONTRACTOR shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the recipient or FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations or directives. Where any information required of CONTRACTOR is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, CONTRACTOR shall so certify to the recipient or FHWA as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts CONTRACTOR has made to obtain the information.
- e. <u>Sanctions for Noncompliance</u>: In the event of CONTRACTOR's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of this agreement, the recipient shall impose such agreement sanctions as it or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:
 - i. withholding of payments to CONTRACTOR under the Agreement within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed 90 days; and/or
 - ii. cancellation, termination or suspension of the Agreement, in whole or in part.
- f. <u>Incorporation of Provisions</u>: CONTRACTOR shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (6) in every sub-agreement, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto.

CONTRACTOR shall take such action with respect to any sub-agreement or procurement as the recipient or FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance, provided, however, that, in the event CONTRACTOR becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a sub-applicant or supplier as a result of such direction, CONTRACTOR may request the recipient enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State, and, in addition, CONTRACTOR may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

APPENDIX B

CLAUSES FOR DEEDS TRANSFERRING UNITED STATES PROPERTY

The following clauses will be included in deeds effecting or recording the transfer of real property, structures, or improvements thereon, or granting interest therein from the United States pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 4:

NOW THEREFORE, the U.S. Department of Transportation as authorized by law and upon the condition that the recipient will accept title to the lands and maintain the project constructed thereon in accordance with Title 23 U.S.C., the regulations for the administration of the preceding statute, and the policies and procedures prescribed by the FHWA of the U.S. Department of Transportation in accordance and in compliance with all requirements imposed by Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation pertaining to and effectuating the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252; 42 U.S.C. § 2000d to 2000d-4), does hereby remise, release, quitclaim and convey unto the recipient all the right, title and interest of the U.S. Department of Transportation in and to said lands described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.

(HABENDUM CLAUSE)

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said lands and interests therein unto the recipient and its successors forever, subject, however, to the covenants, conditions, restrictions and reservations herein contained as follows, which will remain in effect for the period during which the real property or structures are used for a purpose for which Federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits and will be binding on the recipient, its successors and assigns. The recipient, in consideration of the conveyance of said lands and interest in lands, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land for itself, its successors and assigns, that (1) no person will on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination with regard to any facility located wholly or in part on, over, or under such lands hereby conveyed [,] [and]* (2) that the recipient will use the lands and interests in lands and interest in lands so conveyed, in compliance with all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-

discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation, Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations and Acts may be amended[, and (3) that in the event of breach of any of the above-mentioned non-discrimination conditions, the Department will have a right to enter or re-enter said lands and facilities on said lands, and that above described land and facilities will thereon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the U.S. Department of Transportation and its assigns as such interest existed prior to this instruction].*

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary in order to make clear the purpose of Title VI.)

APPENDIX C

CLAUSES FOR TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED OR IMPROVED UNDER THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY, OR PROGRAM

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments entered into by the recipient pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(a):

A. The (grantee, lessee, permittee, etc. as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree [in the case of deeds and leases add "as a covenant running with the land"] that:

- 1. In the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the property described in this (deed, license, lease, permit, etc.) for a purpose for which a U.S. Department of Transportation activity, facility, or program is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits, the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.) will maintain and operate such facilities and services in compliance with all requirements imposed by the Acts and Regulations (as may be amended) such that no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities.
- B. With respect to licenses, leases, permits, etc., in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, the recipient will have the right to terminate the (lease, license, permit, etc.) and to enter, re-enter, and repossess said lands and facilities thereon, and hold the same as if the (lease, license, permit, etc.) had never been made or issued.*
- C. With respect to a deed, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, the recipient will have the right to enter or re-enter the lands and facilities thereon, and the above described lands and facilities will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the recipient and its assigns.*

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.)

APPENDIX D

CLAUSES FOR CONSTRUCTION/USE/ACCESS TO REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED UNDER THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY OR PROGRAM

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, permits, or similar instruments/agreements entered into by the recipient pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(b):

A. The (grantee, licensee, permittee, etc., as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest ,and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree (in the case of deeds and leases add, "as a covenant running with the land") that (1) no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on, over, or under such land, and the furnishings of services thereon, no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits or, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination, (3) that the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.) will use the premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to the Acts and Regulations, as amended, set forth in this Assurance.

B. With respect to (licenses, leases, permits, etc.) in the event of breach of any of the above of the above Non-discrimination covenants, the recipient will have the right to terminate the (license, permits, etc., as appropriate) and to enter or re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the same as if said (license, permit, etc., as appropriate) had never been made or issued.*

C. With respect to deeds, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, the recipient will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the recipient and its assigns.

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.)

APPENDIX E

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities, including, but not limited to:

Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities:

- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21.
- The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);
- Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex;
- Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CR Part 27;
- The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), prohibits discrimination on the basis of age);
- Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 U.S.C. § 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);
- The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all of

- the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);
- Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination of the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38;
- The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);
- Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;
- Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and
 resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English
 proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP
 persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);
- Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).

Federal Trainee Program Special Provisions [to be used when applicable]

14. FEDERAL TRAINEE PROGRAM

For the Federal training program, the number of trainees or apprentices is ____.

This section applies if a number of trainees or apprentices is shown on the Notice of Bidders.

As part of the prime contractor's equal opportunity affirmative action program, provide on-the-job training to develop full journeymen in the types of trades or job classifications involved.

The prime contractor has primary responsibility for meeting this training requirement.

If the prime contractor subcontracts a contract part, they shall determine how many trainees or apprentices are to be trained by the subcontractor. Include these training requirements in each subcontract.

Where feasible, 25 percent of apprentices or trainees in each occupation must be in their 1st year of apprenticeship or training.

Distribute the number of apprentices or trainees among the work classifications on the basis of the prime contractor's needs and the availability of journeymen in the various classifications within a reasonable recruitment area.

Before starting work, the prime contractor shall submit to the City/County of______

- 1. Number of apprentices or trainees to be trained for each classification
- 2. Training program to be used
- 3. Training starting date for each classification

The prime contractor shall obtain the City/County of _____approval for this submitted information before the prime contractor starts work. The City/County of _____credits the prime contractor for each apprentice or trainee the prime contractor employs on the job who is currently enrolled or becomes enrolled in an approved program.

The primary objective of this section is to train and upgrade minorities and women toward journeyman status. The prime contractor shall make every effort to enroll minority and women apprentices or trainees, such as conducting systematic and direct recruitment through public and private sources likely to yield minority and women apprentices or trainees, to the extent they are available within a reasonable recruitment area and show that they have made the efforts. In making these efforts, the prime contractor shall not discriminate against any applicant for training.

The prime contractor shall not employ as an apprentice or trainee an employee:

- 1. In any classification in which the employee has successfully completed a training course leading to journeyman status or in which the employee has been employed as a journeyman
- 2. Who is not registered in a program approved by the US Department of Labor, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training

The prime contractor shall ask the employee if the employee has successfully completed a training course leading to journeyman status or has been employed as a journeyman. The prime contractor's records must show the employee's answers to the questions.

In the training program, the prime contractor shall establish the minimum length and training type for each classification. The City/County of _____ and FHWA approves a program if one of the following is met:

- 1. It is calculated to:
 - Meet the equal employment opportunity responsibilities
 - Qualify the average apprentice or trainee for journeyman status in the classification involved by the end of the training period
- 2. It is registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, and it is administered in a way consistent with the equal employment responsibilities of Federal-aid highway construction contracts

The prime contractor shall obtain the State's approval for their training program before they start work involving the classification covered by the program.

The prime contractor shall provide training in the construction crafts, not in clerk-typist or secretarial-type positions. Training is allowed in lower-level management positions such as office engineers, estimators, and timekeepers if the training is oriented toward construction applications. Training is allowed in the laborer classification if significant and meaningful training is provided and approved by the division office. Off-site training is allowed if the training is an integral part of an approved training program and does not make up a significant part of the overall training.

The City/County of ______reimburses the prime contractor 80 cents per hour of training given an employee on this contract under an approved training program:

- 1. For on-site training
- 2. For off-site training if the apprentice or trainee is currently employed on a Federal-aid project and prime contractor does at least one of the following:
 - a. Contribute to the cost of the training
 - b. Provide the instruction to the apprentice or trainee
 - c. Pay the apprentice's or trainee's wages during the off-site training period
- 3. If the prime contractor complies with this section.

Each apprentice or trainee must:

- Begin training on the project as soon as feasible after the start of work involving the apprentice's or trainee's skill
- 2. Remain on the project as long as training opportunities exist in the apprentice's or trainee's work classification or until the apprentice or trainee has completed the training program

Furnish the apprentice or trainee a:

- 1. Copy of the training plan approved by the U.S, Department of Labor or a training plan for trainees approved by both Caltrans and FHWA
- 2. Certification showing the type and length of training satisfactorily completed

Maintain records and submit reports documenting contractor's performance under this section.

15. PROHIBITION OF CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES

In response to significant national security concerns, the agency shall check the prohibited vendor list before making any telecommunications and video surveillance purchase because recipients and subrecipients of federal funds are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:

- Procure or obtain;
- Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or
- Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.

The prohibited vendors (and their subsidiaries or affiliates) are:

- Huawei Technologies Company;
- ZTE Corporation;
- Hytera Communications Corporation;
- Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company;
- Dahua Technology Company; and
- Subsidiaries or affiliates of the above-mentioned companies.

In implementing the prohibition, the agency administering loan, grant, or subsidy programs shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and to ensure that communications service to users and customers is sustained.

The contractors should furnish telecommunications and video surveillance equipment with a certificate of compliance. The certificate must state telecommunications and video surveillance equipment was not procured or obtained from manufacturers identified in the above list.

APPENDIX C – REQUIRED FEDERAL-AID CONTRACT PROVISIONS (FORM FHWA-1273)

REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FEDERAL-AID CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

- I General
- II. Nondiscrimination
- III. Non-segregated Facilities
- IV. Davis-Bacon and Related Act Provisions
- V. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act
- VI. Subletting or Assigning the Contract
- VII. Safety: Accident Prevention
- VIII. False Statements Concerning Highway Projects
- IX. Implementation of Clean Air Act and Federal Water Pollution Control Act
- X. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
- XI. Certification Regarding Use of Contract Funds for Lobbying
- XII. Use of United States-Flag Vessels:

ATTACHMENTS

A. Employment and Materials Preference for Appalachian Development Highway System or Appalachian Local Access Road Contracts (included in Appalachian contracts only)

I. GENERAL

1. Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated in each construction contract funded under title 23, United States Code, as required in 23 CFR 633.102(b) (excluding emergency contracts solely intended for debris removal). The contractor (or subcontractor) must insert this form in each subcontract and further require its inclusion in all lower tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services). 23 CFR 633.102(e).

The applicable requirements of Form FHWA-1273 are incorporated by reference for work done under any purchase order, rental agreement or agreement for other services. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider. 23 CFR 633.102(e).

Form FHWA-1273 must be included in all Federal-aid designbuild contracts, in all subcontracts and in lower tier subcontracts (excluding subcontracts for design services, purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services) in accordance with 23 CFR 633.102. The design-builder shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.

Contracting agencies may reference Form FHWA-1273 in solicitation-for-bids or request-for-proposals documents, however, the Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated (not referenced) in all contracts, subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services related to a construction contract). 23 CFR 633.102(b).

2. Subject to the applicability criteria noted in the following sections, these contract provisions shall apply to all work

performed on the contract by the contractor's own organization and with the assistance of workers under the contractor's immediate superintendence and to all work performed on the contract by piecework, station work, or by subcontract. 23 CFR 633.102(d).

- 3. A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these Required Contract Provisions may be sufficient grounds for withholding of progress payments, withholding of final payment, termination of the contract, suspension / debarment or any other action determined to be appropriate by the contracting agency and FHWA.
- 4. Selection of Labor: During the performance of this contract, the contractor shall not use convict labor for any purpose within the limits of a construction project on a Federal-aid highway unless it is labor performed by convicts who are on parole, supervised release, or probation. 23 U.S.C. 114(b). The term Federal-aid highway does not include roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors. 23 U.S.C. 101(a).
- II. NONDISCRIMINATION (23 CFR 230.107(a); 23 CFR Part 230, Subpart A, Appendix A; EO 11246)

The provisions of this section related to 23 CFR Part 230, Subpart A, Appendix A are applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of \$10,000 or more. The provisions of 23 CFR Part 230 are not applicable to material supply, engineering, or architectural service contracts.

In addition, the contractor and all subcontractors must comply with the following policies: Executive Order 11246, 41 CFR Part 60, 29 CFR Parts 1625-1627, 23 U.S.C. 140, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.), and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26, and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633.

The contractor and all subcontractors must comply with: the requirements of the Equal Opportunity Clause in 41 CFR 60-1.4(b) and, for all construction contracts exceeding \$10,000, the Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications in 41 CFR 60-4.3.

Note: The U.S. Department of Labor has exclusive authority to determine compliance with Executive Order 11246 and the policies of the Secretary of Labor including 41 CFR Part 60, and 29 CFR Parts 1625-1627. The contracting agency and the FHWA have the authority and the responsibility to ensure compliance with 23 U.S.C. 140, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.), and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26, and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633.

The following provision is adopted from 23 CFR Part 230, Subpart A, Appendix A, with appropriate revisions to conform to the U.S. Department of Labor (US DOL) and FHWA requirements.

- 1. Equal Employment Opportunity: Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) requirements not to discriminate and to take affirmative action to assure equal opportunity as set forth under laws, executive orders, rules, regulations (see 28 CFR Part 35, 29 CFR Part 1630, 29 CFR Parts 1625-1627, 41 CFR Part 60 and 49 CFR Part 27) and orders of the Secretary of Labor as modified by the provisions prescribed herein, and imposed pursuant to 23 U.S.C. 140, shall constitute the EEO and specific affirmative action standards for the contractor's project activities under this contract. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) set forth under 28 CFR Part 35 and 29 CFR Part 1630 are incorporated by reference in this contract. In the execution of this contract, the contractor agrees to comply with the following minimum specific requirement activities of EEO:
- a. The contractor will work with the contracting agency and the Federal Government to ensure that it has made every good faith effort to provide equal opportunity with respect to all of its terms and conditions of employment and in their review of activities under the contract. 23 CFR 230.409 (g)(4) & (5).
- b. The contractor will accept as its operating policy the following statement:

"It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, color, national origin, age or disability. Such action shall include: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship, and/or on-the-job training."

- 2. **EEO Officer:** The contractor will designate and make known to the contracting officers an EEO Officer who will have the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively administering and promoting an active EEO program and who must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do so.
- 3. Dissemination of Policy: All members of the contractor's staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and discharge employees, or who recommend such action or are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully cognizant of and will implement the contractor's EEO policy and contractual responsibilities to provide EEO in each grade and classification of employment. To ensure that the above agreement will be met, the following actions will be taken as a minimum:
- a. Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office employees will be conducted before the start of work and then not less often than once every six months, at which time the contractor's EEO policy and its implementation will be reviewed and explained. The meetings will be conducted by the EEO Officer or other knowledgeable company official.
- b. All new supervisory or personnel office employees will be given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer, covering all major aspects of the contractor's EEO obligations within thirty days following their reporting for duty with the contractor.
- c. All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for the project will be instructed by the EEO Officer in the contractor's procedures for locating and hiring minorities and women

- d. Notices and posters setting forth the contractor's EEO policy will be placed in areas readily accessible to employees, applicants for employment and potential employees.
- e. The contractor's EEO policy and the procedures to implement such policy will be brought to the attention of employees by means of meetings, employee handbooks, or other appropriate means.
- **4. Recruitment:** When advertising for employees, the contractor will include in all advertisements for employees the notation: "An Equal Opportunity Employer." All such advertisements will be placed in publications having a large circulation among minorities and women in the area from which the project work force would normally be derived.
- a. The contractor will, unless precluded by a valid bargaining agreement, conduct systematic and direct recruitment through public and private employee referral sources likely to yield qualified minorities and women. To meet this requirement, the contractor will identify sources of potential minority group employees and establish with such identified sources procedures whereby minority and women applicants may be referred to the contractor for employment consideration.
- b. In the event the contractor has a valid bargaining agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, the contractor is expected to observe the provisions of that agreement to the extent that the system meets the contractor's compliance with EEO contract provisions. Where implementation of such an agreement has the effect of discriminating against minorities or women, or obligates the contractor to do the same, such implementation violates Federal nondiscrimination provisions.
- c. The contractor will encourage its present employees to refer minorities and women as applicants for employment. Information and procedures with regard to referring such applicants will be discussed with employees.
- **5. Personnel Actions:** Wages, working conditions, and employee benefits shall be established and administered, and personnel actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age or disability. The following procedures shall be followed:
- a. The contractor will conduct periodic inspections of project sites to ensure that working conditions and employee facilities do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site personnel.
- b. The contractor will periodically evaluate the spread of wages paid within each classification to determine any evidence of discriminatory wage practices.
- c. The contractor will periodically review selected personnel actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of discrimination. Where evidence is found, the contractor will promptly take corrective action. If the review indicates that the discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such corrective action shall include all affected persons.
- d. The contractor will promptly investigate all complaints of alleged discrimination made to the contractor in connection with its obligations under this contract, will attempt to resolve such complaints, and will take appropriate corrective action

within a reasonable time. If the investigation indicates that the discrimination may affect persons other than the complainant, such corrective action shall include such other persons. Upon completion of each investigation, the contractor will inform every complainant of all of their avenues of appeal.

6. Training and Promotion:

- a. The contractor will assist in locating, qualifying, and increasing the skills of minorities and women who are applicants for employment or current employees. Such efforts should be aimed at developing full journey level status employees in the type of trade or job classification involved.
- b. Consistent with the contractor's work force requirements and as permissible under Federal and State regulations, the contractor shall make full use of training programs (i.e., apprenticeship and on-the-job training programs for the geographical area of contract performance). In the event a special provision for training is provided under this contract, this subparagraph will be superseded as indicated in the special provision. The contracting agency may reserve training positions for persons who receive welfare assistance in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 140(a).
- c. The contractor will advise employees and applicants for employment of available training programs and entrance requirements for each.
- d. The contractor will periodically review the training and promotion potential of employees who are minorities and women and will encourage eligible employees to apply for such training and promotion.
- 7. Unions: If the contractor relies in whole or in part upon unions as a source of employees, the contractor will use good faith efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to increase opportunities for minorities and women. 23 CFR 230.409. Actions by the contractor, either directly or through a contractor's association acting as agent, will include the procedures set forth below:
- a. The contractor will use good faith efforts to develop, in cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed toward qualifying more minorities and women for membership in the unions and increasing the skills of minorities and women so that they may qualify for higher paying employment.
- b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to incorporate an EEO clause into each union agreement to the end that such union will be contractually bound to refer applicants without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, or disability.
- c. The contractor is to obtain information as to the referral practices and policies of the labor union except that to the extent such information is within the exclusive possession of the labor union and such labor union refuses to furnish such information to the contractor, the contractor shall so certify to the contracting agency and shall set forth what efforts have been made to obtain such information.
- d. In the event the union is unable to provide the contractor with a reasonable flow of referrals within the time limit set forth in the collective bargaining agreement, the contractor will, through independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, or disability; making full efforts to obtain qualified and/or qualifiable minorities and women. The failure of a union to provide

sufficient referrals (even though it is obligated to provide exclusive referrals under the terms of a collective bargaining agreement) does not relieve the contractor from the requirements of this paragraph. In the event the union referral practice prevents the contractor from meeting the obligations pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and these special provisions, such contractor shall immediately notify the contracting agency.

- 8. Reasonable Accommodation for Applicants / Employees with Disabilities: The contractor must be familiar with the requirements for and comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and all rules and regulations established thereunder. Employers must provide reasonable accommodation in all employment activities unless to do so would cause an undue hardship.
- 9. Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials and Leasing of Equipment: The contractor shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, or disability in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall take all necessary and reasonable steps to ensure nondiscrimination in the administration of this contract.
- a. The contractor shall notify all potential subcontractors, suppliers, and lessors of their EEO obligations under this contract.
- b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to ensure subcontractor compliance with their EEO obligations.

10. Assurances Required:

- a. The requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 and the State DOT's FHWA-approved Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program are incorporated by reference.
- b. The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to:
 - (1) Withholding monthly progress payments;
 - (2) Assessing sanctions;
 - (3) Liquidated damages; and/or
- (4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as non-responsible.
- c. The Title VI and nondiscrimination provisions of U.S. DOT Order 1050.2A at Appendixes A and E are incorporated by reference. 49 CFR Part 21.
- 11. Records and Reports: The contractor shall keep such records as necessary to document compliance with the EEO requirements. Such records shall be retained for a period of three years following the date of the final payment to the contractor for all contract work and shall be available at reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized representatives of the contracting agency and the FHWA.
- a. The records kept by the contractor shall document the following:

- (1) The number and work hours of minority and nonminority group members and women employed in each work classification on the project;
 - (2) The progress and efforts being made in cooperation with unions, when applicable, to increase employment opportunities for minorities and women; and
 - (3) The progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, training, qualifying, and upgrading minorities and women.
- b. The contractors and subcontractors will submit an annual report to the contracting agency each July for the duration of the project indicating the number of minority, women, and non-minority group employees currently engaged in each work classification required by the contract work. This information is to be reported on Form FHWA-1391. The staffing data should represent the project work force on board in all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July. If on-the-job training is being required by special provision, the contractor will be required to collect and report training data. The employment data should reflect the work force on board during all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July.

III. NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of more than \$10,000. 41 CFR 60-1.5.

As prescribed by 41 CFR 60-1.8, the contractor must ensure that facilities provided for employees are provided in such a manner that segregation on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin cannot result. The contractor may neither require such segregated use by written or oral policies nor tolerate such use by employee custom. The contractor's obligation extends further to ensure that its employees are not assigned to perform their services at any location under the contractor's control where the facilities are segregated. The term "facilities" includes waiting rooms, work areas, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, restrooms, washrooms, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing provided for employees. The contractor shall provide separate or single-user restrooms and necessary dressing or sleeping areas to assure privacy between sexes.

IV. DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACT PROVISIONS

This section is applicable to all Federal-aid construction projects exceeding \$2,000 and to all related subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (regardless of subcontract size), in accordance with 29 CFR 5.5. The requirements apply to all projects located within the right-of-way of a roadway that is functionally classified as Federal-aid highway. 23 U.S.C. 113. This excludes roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors, which are exempt. 23 U.S.C. 101. Where applicable law requires that projects be treated as a project on a Federal-aid highway, the provisions of this subpart will apply regardless of the location of the project. Examples include: Surface Transportation Block Grant Program projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 133 [excluding recreational trails projects], the Nationally Significant Freight and Highway

Projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 117, and National Highway Freight Program projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 167.

The following provisions are from the U.S. Department of Labor regulations in 29 CFR 5.5 "Contract provisions and related matters" with minor revisions to conform to the FHWA-1273 format and FHWA program requirements.

1. Minimum wages (29 CFR 5.5)

- a. Wage rates and fringe benefits. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or otherwise working in construction or development of the project under a development statute), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of basic hourly wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics. As provided in paragraphs (d) and (e) of 29 CFR 5.5, the appropriate wage determinations are effective by operation of law even if they have not been attached to the contract. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141(2)(B)) on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph 1.e. of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics must be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification(s) of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in paragraph 4. of this section. Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classifications and wage rates conformed under paragraph 1.c. of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) must be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.
- b. Frequently recurring classifications. (1) In addition to wage and fringe benefit rates that have been determined to be prevailing under the procedures set forth in 29 CFR part 1, a wage determination may contain, pursuant to § 1.3(f), wage and fringe benefit rates for classifications of laborers and mechanics for which conformance requests are regularly submitted pursuant to paragraph 1.c. of this section, provided that:
 - (i) The work performed by the classification is not performed by a classification in the wage determination for which a prevailing wage rate has been determined;

- (ii) The classification is used in the area by the construction industry; and
- (iii) The wage rate for the classification bears a reasonable relationship to the prevailing wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (2) The Administrator will establish wage rates for such classifications in accordance with paragraph 1.c.(1)(iii) of this section. Work performed in such a classification must be paid at no less than the wage and fringe benefit rate listed on the wage determination for such classification.
- c. Conformance. (1) The contracting officer must require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract be classified in conformance with the wage determination. Conformance of an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits is appropriate only when the following criteria have been met:
 - (i) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
 - (ii) The classification is used in the area by the construction industry; and
 - (iii) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (2) The conformance process may not be used to split, subdivide, or otherwise avoid application of classifications listed in the wage determination.
- (3) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken will be sent by the contracting officer by email to DBAconformance@dol.gov. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30–day period that additional time is necessary.
- (4) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer will, by email to DBAconformance@dol.gov, refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30–day period that additional time is necessary.
- (5) The contracting officer must promptly notify the contractor of the action taken by the Wage and Hour Division

- under paragraphs 1.c.(3) and (4) of this section. The contractor must furnish a written copy of such determination to each affected worker or it must be posted as a part of the wage determination. The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraph 1.c.(3) or (4) of this section must be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- d. Fringe benefits not expressed as an hourly rate. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor may either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or may pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- e. Unfunded plans. If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, in accordance with the criteria set forth in § 5.28, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.
- f. *Interest.* In the event of a failure to pay all or part of the wages required by the contract, the contractor will be required to pay interest on any underpayment of wages.

2. Withholding (29 CFR 5.5)

- a. Withholding requirements. The contracting agency may, upon its own action, or must, upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to satisfy the liabilities of the prime contractor or any subcontractor for the full amount of wages and monetary relief, including interest, required by the clauses set forth in this section for violations of this contract, or to satisfy any such liabilities required by any other Federal contract, or federally assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon labor standards, that is held by the same prime contractor (as defined in § 5.2). The necessary funds may be withheld from the contractor under this contract, any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally assisted contract that is subject to Davis-Bacon labor standards requirements and is held by the same prime contractor, regardless of whether the other contract was awarded or assisted by the same agency, and such funds may be used to satisfy the contractor liability for which the funds were withheld. In the event of a contractor's failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice or helper working on the site of the work all or part of the wages required by the contract, or upon the contractor's failure to submit the required records as discussed in paragraph 3.d. of this section, the contracting agency may on its own initiative and after written notice to the contractor. take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.
- b. *Priority to withheld funds*. The Department has priority to funds withheld or to be withheld in accordance with paragraph

- 2.a. of this section or Section V, paragraph 3.a., or both, over claims to those funds by:
- (1) A contractor's surety(ies), including without limitation performance bond sureties and payment bond sureties;
 - (2) A contracting agency for its reprocurement costs;
- (3) A trustee(s) (either a court-appointed trustee or a U.S. trustee, or both) in bankruptcy of a contractor, or a contractor's bankruptcy estate;
 - (4) A contractor's assignee(s);
 - (5) A contractor's successor(s); or
- (6) A claim asserted under the Prompt Payment Act, <u>31</u> U.S.C. 3901–3907.

3. Records and certified payrolls (29 CFR 5.5)

- a. Basic record requirements (1) Length of record retention. All regular payrolls and other basic records must be maintained by the contractor and any subcontractor during the course of the work and preserved for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or otherwise working in construction or development of the project under a development statute) for a period of at least 3 years after all the work on the prime contract is completed.
- (2) Information required. Such records must contain the name; Social Security number; last known address, telephone number, and email address of each such worker; each worker's correct classification(s) of work actually performed; hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in 40 U.S.C. 3141(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act); daily and weekly number of hours actually worked in total and on each covered contract; deductions made; and actual wages paid.
- (3) Additional records relating to fringe benefits. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under paragraph 1.e. of this section that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in 40 U.S.C. 3141(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor must maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits.
- (4) Additional records relating to apprenticeship. Contractors with apprentices working under approved programs must maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs, the registration of the apprentices, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.
- b. Certified payroll requirements (1) Frequency and method of submission. The contractor or subcontractor must submit weekly, for each week in which any DBA- or Related Acts-covered work is performed, certified payrolls to the contracting

- agency. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of all certified payrolls by all subcontractors. A contracting agency or prime contractor may permit or require contractors to submit certified payrolls through an electronic system, as long as the electronic system requires a legally valid electronic signature; the system allows the contractor, the contracting agency, and the Department of Labor to access the certified payrolls upon request for at least 3 years after the work on the prime contract has been completed; and the contracting agency or prime contractor permits other methods of submission in situations where the contractor is unable or limited in its ability to use or access the electronic system.
- (2) Information required. The certified payrolls submitted must set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under paragraph 3.a.(2) of this section, except that full Social Security numbers and last known addresses, telephone numbers, and email addresses must not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead, the certified payrolls need only include an individually identifying number for each worker (e.g., the last four digits of the worker's Social Security number). The required weekly certified payroll information may be submitted using Optional Form WH-347 or in any other format desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division website at https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/WHD/ legacy/files/wh347/.pdf or its successor website. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide full Social Security numbers and last known addresses, telephone numbers, and email addresses to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission by the subcontractor to the contracting agency.
- (3) Statement of Compliance. Each certified payroll submitted must be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor, or the contractor's or subcontractor's agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons working on the contract, and must certify the following:
 - (i) That the certified payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under paragraph 3.b. of this section, the appropriate information and basic records are being maintained under paragraph 3.a. of this section, and such information and records are correct and complete;
 - (ii) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper and apprentice) working on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR part 3; and
 - (iii) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification(s) of work actually performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (4) Use of Optional Form WH–347. The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH–347 will satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph 3.b.(3) of this section.

- (5) Signature. The signature by the contractor, subcontractor, or the contractor's or subcontractor's agent must be an original handwritten signature or a legally valid electronic signature.
- (6) Falsification. The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 31 U.S.C. 3729.
- (7) Length of certified payroll retention. The contractor or subcontractor must preserve all certified payrolls during the course of the work and for a period of 3 years after all the work on the prime contract is completed.
- c. Contracts, subcontracts, and related documents. The contractor or subcontractor must maintain this contract or subcontract and related documents including, without limitation, bids, proposals, amendments, modifications, and extensions. The contractor or subcontractor must preserve these contracts, subcontracts, and related documents during the course of the work and for a period of 3 years after all the work on the prime contract is completed.
- d. Required disclosures and access (1) Required record disclosures and access to workers. The contractor or subcontractor must make the records required under paragraphs 3.a. through 3.c. of this section, and any other documents that the contracting agency, the State DOT, the FHWA, or the Department of Labor deems necessary to determine compliance with the labor standards provisions of any of the applicable statutes referenced by § 5.1, available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the contracting agency, the State DOT, the FHWA, or the Department of Labor, and must permit such representatives to interview workers during working hours on the job.
- (2) Sanctions for non-compliance with records and worker access requirements. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, or refuses to permit worker interviews during working hours on the job, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, owner, or other entity, as the case may be, that maintains such records or that employs such workers, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available, or to permit worker interviews during working hours on the job, may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to § 5.12. In addition, any contractor or other person that fails to submit the required records or make those records available to WHD within the time WHD requests that the records be produced will be precluded from introducing as evidence in an administrative proceeding under 29 CFR part 6 any of the required records that were not provided or made available to WHD. WHD will take into consideration a reasonable request from the contractor or person for an extension of the time for submission of records. WHD will determine the reasonableness of the request and may consider, among other things, the location of the records and the volume of production.
- (3) Required information disclosures. Contractors and subcontractors must maintain the full Social Security number and last known address, telephone number, and email address

of each covered worker, and must provide them upon request to the contracting agency, the State DOT, the FHWA, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or other compliance action.

4. Apprentices and equal employment opportunity (29 CFR 5.5)

- a. Apprentices (1) Rate of pay. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they perform when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship (OA), or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the OA. A person who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the OA or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice, will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they perform in the first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such a program. In the event the OA or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the OA withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to use apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.
- (2) Fringe benefits. Apprentices must be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringe benefits must be paid in accordance with that determination.
- (3) Apprenticeship ratio. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeyworkers on the job site in any craft classification must not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program or the ratio applicable to the locality of the project pursuant to paragraph 4.a.(4) of this section. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated in paragraph 4.a.(1) of this section, must be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under this section must be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed.
- (4) Reciprocity of ratios and wage rates. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than the locality in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyworker's hourly rate) applicable within the locality in which the construction is being performed must be observed. If there is no applicable ratio or wage rate for the locality of the project, the ratio and wage rate specified in the contractor's registered program must be observed.
- b. Equal employment opportunity. The use of apprentices and journeyworkers under this part must be in conformity with

the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30.

c. Apprentices and Trainees (programs of the U.S. DOT).

Apprentices and trainees working under apprenticeship and skill training programs which have been certified by the Secretary of Transportation as promoting EEO in connection with Federal-aid highway construction programs are not subject to the requirements of paragraph 4 of this Section IV. 23 CFR 230.111(e)(2). The straight time hourly wage rates for apprentices and trainees under such programs will be established by the particular programs. The ratio of apprentices and trainees to journeyworkers shall not be greater than permitted by the terms of the particular program.

- **5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements.** The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract as provided in 29 CFR 5.5.
- **6. Subcontracts**. The contractor or subcontractor must insert FHWA-1273 in any subcontracts, along with the applicable wage determination(s) and such other clauses or contract modifications as the contracting agency may by appropriate instructions require, and a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses and wage determination(s) in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor is responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in this section. In the event of any violations of these clauses, the prime contractor and any subcontractor(s) responsible will be liable for any unpaid wages and monetary relief, including interest from the date of the underpayment or loss, due to any workers of lower-tier subcontractors, and may be subject to debarment, as appropriate. 29 CFR 5.5.
- **7. Contract termination: debarment.** A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- 8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract as provided in 29 CFR 5.5.
- 9. Disputes concerning labor standards. As provided in 29 CFR 5.5, disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
- **10. Certification of eligibility**. a. By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of <u>40 U.S.C. 3144(b)</u> or § 5.12(a).

- b. No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of 40 U.S.C. 3144(b) or § 5.12(a).
- c. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Code, Title 18 Crimes and Criminal Procedure, <u>18</u> U.S.C. 1001.
- **11. Anti-retaliation**. It is unlawful for any person to discharge, demote, intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blacklist, harass, or in any other manner discriminate against, or to cause any person to discharge, demote, intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blacklist, harass, or in any other manner discriminate against, any worker or job applicant for:
- a. Notifying any contractor of any conduct which the worker reasonably believes constitutes a violation of the DBA, Related Acts, this part, or 29 CFR part 1 or 3;
- b. Filing any complaint, initiating or causing to be initiated any proceeding, or otherwise asserting or seeking to assert on behalf of themselves or others any right or protection under the DBA, Related Acts, this part, or 29 CFR part 1 or 3;
- c. Cooperating in any investigation or other compliance action, or testifying in any proceeding under the DBA, Related Acts, this part, or 29 CFR part 1 or 3; or
- d. Informing any other person about their rights under the DBA, Related Acts, this part, or 29 CFR part 1 or 3.

V. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT

Pursuant to 29 CFR 5.5(b), the following clauses apply to any Federal-aid construction contract in an amount in excess of \$100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6. As used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchpersons and guards.

- 1. Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 29 CFR 5.5.
- 2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph 1. of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages and interest from the date of the underpayment. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or

mechanic, including watchpersons and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph 1. of this section, in the sum currently provided in 29 CFR 5.5(b)(2)* for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph 1. of this section.

* \$31 as of January 15, 2023 (See 88 FR 88 FR 2210) as may be adjusted annually by the Department of Labor, pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990.

3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages

- a. Withholding process. The FHWA or the contracting agency may, upon its own action, or must, upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to satisfy the liabilities of the prime contractor or any subcontractor for any unpaid wages; monetary relief, including interest; and liquidated damages required by the clauses set forth in this section on this contract, any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act that is held by the same prime contractor (as defined in § 5.2). The necessary funds may be withheld from the contractor under this contract, any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally assisted contract that is subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act and is held by the same prime contractor, regardless of whether the other contract was awarded or assisted by the same agency, and such funds may be used to satisfy the contractor liability for which the funds were withheld.
- b. *Priority to withheld funds*. The Department has priority to funds withheld or to be withheld in accordance with Section IV paragraph 2.a. or paragraph 3.a. of this section, or both, over claims to those funds by:
- (1) A contractor's surety(ies), including without limitation performance bond sureties and payment bond sureties;
 - (2) A contracting agency for its reprocurement costs;
- (3) A trustee(s) (either a court-appointed trustee or a U.S. trustee, or both) in bankruptcy of a contractor, or a contractor's bankruptcy estate:
 - (4) A contractor's assignee(s);
 - (5) A contractor's successor(s); or
- (6) A claim asserted under the Prompt Payment Act, <u>31</u> U.S.C. 3901–3907.
- **4. Subcontracts.** The contractor or subcontractor must insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraphs 1. through 5. of this section and a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor is responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs 1. through 5. In the

event of any violations of these clauses, the prime contractor and any subcontractor(s) responsible will be liable for any unpaid wages and monetary relief, including interest from the date of the underpayment or loss, due to any workers of lower-tier subcontractors, and associated liquidated damages and may be subject to debarment, as appropriate.

- **5. Anti-retaliation.** It is unlawful for any person to discharge, demote, intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blacklist, harass, or in any other manner discriminate against, or to cause any person to discharge, demote, intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blacklist, harass, or in any other manner discriminate against, any worker or job applicant for:
- a. Notifying any contractor of any conduct which the worker reasonably believes constitutes a violation of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (CWHSSA) or its implementing regulations in this part;
- b. Filing any complaint, initiating or causing to be initiated any proceeding, or otherwise asserting or seeking to assert on behalf of themselves or others any right or protection under CWHSSA or this part;
- c. Cooperating in any investigation or other compliance action, or testifying in any proceeding under CWHSSA or this part: or
- d. Informing any other person about their rights under CWHSSA or this part.

VI. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING THE CONTRACT

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts on the National Highway System pursuant to 23 CFR 635.116.

- 1. The contractor shall perform with its own organization contract work amounting to not less than 30 percent (or a greater percentage if specified elsewhere in the contract) of the total original contract price, excluding any specialty items designated by the contracting agency. Specialty items may be performed by subcontract and the amount of any such specialty items performed may be deducted from the total original contract price before computing the amount of work required to be performed by the contractor's own organization (23 CFR 635.116).
- a. The term "perform work with its own organization" in paragraph 1 of Section VI refers to workers employed or leased by the prime contractor, and equipment owned or rented by the prime contractor, with or without operators. Such term does not include employees or equipment of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor, agents of the prime contractor, or any other assignees. The term may include payments for the costs of hiring leased employees from an employee leasing firm meeting all relevant Federal and State regulatory requirements. Leased employees may only be included in this term if the prime contractor meets all of the following conditions: (based on longstanding interpretation)
- (1) the prime contractor maintains control over the supervision of the day-to-day activities of the leased employees:
 - (2) the prime contractor remains responsible for the quality of the work of the leased employees;

- (3) the prime contractor retains all power to accept or exclude individual employees from work on the project; and
 - (4) the prime contractor remains ultimately responsible for the payment of predetermined minimum wages, the submission of payrolls, statements of compliance and all other Federal regulatory requirements.
- b. "Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work that requires highly specialized knowledge, abilities, or equipment not ordinarily available in the type of contracting organizations qualified and expected to bid or propose on the contract as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor components of the overall contract. 23 CFR 635.102.
- 2. Pursuant to 23 CFR 635.116(a), the contract amount upon which the requirements set forth in paragraph (1) of Section VI is computed includes the cost of material and manufactured products which are to be purchased or produced by the contractor under the contract provisions.
- 3. Pursuant to 23 CFR 635.116(c), the contractor shall furnish (a) a competent superintendent or supervisor who is employed by the firm, has full authority to direct performance of the work in accordance with the contract requirements, and is in charge of all construction operations (regardless of who performs the work) and (b) such other of its own organizational resources (supervision, management, and engineering services) as the contracting officer determines is necessary to assure the performance of the contract.
- 4. No portion of the contract shall be sublet, assigned or otherwise disposed of except with the written consent of the contracting officer, or authorized representative, and such consent when given shall not be construed to relieve the contractor of any responsibility for the fulfillment of the contract. Written consent will be given only after the contracting agency has assured that each subcontract is evidenced in writing and that it contains all pertinent provisions and requirements of the prime contract. (based on long-standing interpretation of 23 CFR 635.116).
- 5. The 30-percent self-performance requirement of paragraph (1) is not applicable to design-build contracts; however, contracting agencies may establish their own self-performance requirements. 23 CFR 635.116(d).

VII. SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

- 1. In the performance of this contract the contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws governing safety, health, and sanitation (23 CFR Part 635). The contractor shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and protective equipment and take any other needed actions as it determines, or as the contracting officer may determine, to be reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of employees on the job and the safety of the public and to protect property in connection with the performance of the work covered by the contract. 23 CFR 635.108.
- 2. It is a condition of this contract, and shall be made a condition of each subcontract, which the contractor enters into pursuant to this contract, that the contractor and any subcontractor shall not permit any employee, in performance of the contract, to work in surroundings or under conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her health or safety, as determined under construction safety and

health standards (29 CFR Part 1926) promulgated by the Secretary of Labor, in accordance with Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3704). 29 CFR 1926.10.

3. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1926.3, it is a condition of this contract that the Secretary of Labor or authorized representative thereof, shall have right of entry to any site of contract performance to inspect or investigate the matter of compliance with the construction safety and health standards and to carry out the duties of the Secretary under Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3704).

VIII. FALSE STATEMENTS CONCERNING HIGHWAY PROJECTS

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

In order to assure high quality and durable construction in conformity with approved plans and specifications and a high degree of reliability on statements and representations made by engineers, contractors, suppliers, and workers on Federal-aid highway projects, it is essential that all persons concerned with the project perform their functions as carefully, thoroughly, and honestly as possible. Willful falsification, distortion, or misrepresentation with respect to any facts related to the project is a violation of Federal law. To prevent any misunderstanding regarding the seriousness of these and similar acts, Form FHWA-1022 shall be posted on each Federal-aid highway project (23 CFR Part 635) in one or more places where it is readily available to all persons concerned with the project:

18 U.S.C. 1020 reads as follows:

"Whoever, being an officer, agent, or employee of the United States, or of any State or Territory, or whoever, whether a person, association, firm, or corporation, knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, or false report as to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of the material used or to be used, or the quantity or quality of the work performed or to be performed, or the cost thereof in connection with the submission of plans, maps, specifications, contracts, or costs of construction on any highway or related project submitted for approval to the Secretary of Transportation; or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, false report or false claim with respect to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of any work performed or to be performed, or materials furnished or to be furnished, in connection with the construction of any highway or related project approved by the Secretary of Transportation; or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement or false representation as to material fact in any statement, certificate, or report submitted pursuant to provisions of the Federal-aid Roads Act approved July 11, 1916, (39 Stat. 355), as amended and supplemented;

Shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 5 years or both."

IX. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT (42 U.S.C. 7606; 2 CFR 200.88; EO 11738)

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts in excess of \$150,000 and to all related subcontracts. 48 CFR 2.101; 2 CFR 200.327.

By submission of this bid/proposal or the execution of this contract or subcontract, as appropriate, the bidder, proposer, Federal-aid construction contractor, subcontractor, supplier, or vendor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal Highway Administration and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency. 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II.

The contractor agrees to include or cause to be included the requirements of this Section in every subcontract, and further agrees to take such action as the contracting agency may direct as a means of enforcing such requirements. 2 CFR 200.327.

X. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, consultant contracts or any other covered transaction requiring FHWA approval or that is estimated to cost \$25,000 or more – as defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. 2 CFR 180.220 and 1200.220.

1. Instructions for Certification – First Tier Participants:

- a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective first tier participant is providing the certification set out below.
- b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective first tier participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective first tier participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such a person from participation in this transaction. 2 CFR 180.320.
- c. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the contracting agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the contracting agency may terminate this transaction for cause of default. 2 CFR 180.325.
- d. The prospective first tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the contracting agency to whom this proposal is submitted if any time the prospective first tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 2 CFR 180.345 and 180.350.

- e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred,"
 "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal,"
 and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined
 in 2 CFR Parts 180, Subpart I, 180.900-180.1020, and 1200.
 "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered
 transaction between a recipient or subrecipient of Federal
 funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract).
 "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered
 transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as
 subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant
 who has entered into a covered transaction with a recipient or
 subrecipient of Federal funds (such as the prime or general
 contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who
 has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier
 Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as
 subcontractors and suppliers).
- f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction. 2 CFR 180.330.
- g. The prospective first tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by the department or contracting agency, entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold. 2 CFR 180.220 and 180.300.
- h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. 2 CFR 180.300; 180.320, and 180.325. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. 2 CFR 180.335. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the System for Award Management website (https://www.sam.gov/). 2 CFR 180.300, 180.320, and 180.325.
- i. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require the establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of the prospective participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 2 CFR 180.325.

* * * * *

2. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – First Tier Participants:

- a. The prospective first tier participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:
- (1) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency, 2 CFR 180.335;.
- (2) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property, 2 CFR 180.800;
- (3) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (a)(2) of this certification, 2 CFR 180.700 and 180.800: and
- (4) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 2 CFR 180.335(d).
- (5) Are not a corporation that has been convicted of a felony violation under any Federal law within the two-year period preceding this proposal (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act requirements); and
- (6) Are not a corporation with any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act requirements).
- b. Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant should attach an explanation to this proposal. 2 CFR 180.335 and 180.340.

* * * * *

3. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Participants:

(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders, and other lower tier transactions requiring prior FHWA approval or estimated to cost \$25,000 or more - 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200). 2 CFR 180.220 and 1200.220.

- a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set out below.
- b. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department, or agency with which

this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

- c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 2 CFR 180.365.
- d. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180, Subpart I, 180.900 - 180.1020, and 1200. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction between a recipient or subrecipient of Federal funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a recipient or subrecipient of Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).
- e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated. 2 CFR 1200.220 and 1200.332.
- f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold. 2 CFR 180.220 and 1200.220.
- g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the System for Award Management website (https://www.sam.gov/), which is compiled by the General Services Administration. 2 CFR 180.300, 180.320, 180.330, and 180.335.
- h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- i. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily

excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 2 CFR 180.325.

* * * * *

4. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier Participants:

- a. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals:
- (1) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency, 2 CFR 180.355;
- (2) is a corporation that has been convicted of a felony violation under any Federal law within the two-year period preceding this proposal (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act requirements); and
- (3) is a corporation with any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability. (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act requirements)
- b. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant should attach an explanation to this proposal.

* * * * *

XI. CERTIFICATION REGARDING USE OF CONTRACT FUNDS FOR LOBBYING

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts which exceed \$100,000. 49 CFR Part 20, App. A.

- 1. The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief. that:
- a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or

cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

- 2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.
- 3. The prospective participant also agrees by submitting its bid or proposal that the participant shall require that the language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed \$100,000 and that all such recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

XII. USE OF UNITED STATES-FLAG VESSELS:

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, or any other covered transaction. 46 CFR Part 381.

This requirement applies to material or equipment that is acquired for a specific Federal-aid highway project. 46 CFR 381.7. It is not applicable to goods or materials that come into inventories independent of an FHWA funded-contract.

When oceanic shipments (or shipments across the Great Lakes) are necessary for materials or equipment acquired for a specific Federal-aid construction project, the bidder, proposer, contractor, subcontractor, or vendor agrees:

- 1. To utilize privately owned United States-flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, material, or commodities pursuant to this contract, to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-flag commercial vessels. 46 CFR 381.7.
- 2. To furnish within 20 days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, 'on-board' commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in paragraph (b)(1) of this section to both the Contracting Officer (through the prime contractor in the case of subcontractor bills-of-lading) and to the Office of Cargo and Commercial Sealift (MAR-620), Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590. (MARAD requires copies of the ocean carrier's (master) bills of lading, certified onboard, dated, with rates and charges. These bills of lading may contain business sensitive information and therefore may be submitted directly to MARAD by the Ocean Transportation Intermediary on behalf of the contractor). 46 CFR 381.7.

ATTACHMENT A - EMPLOYMENT AND MATERIALS PREFERENCE FOR APPALACHIAN DEVELOPMENT HIGHWAY SYSTEM OR APPALACHIAN LOCAL ACCESS ROAD CONTRACTS (23 CFR 633, Subpart B, Appendix B) This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid projects funded under the Appalachian Regional Development Act of 1965.

- 1. During the performance of this contract, the contractor undertaking to do work which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work, shall give preference to qualified persons who regularly reside in the labor area as designated by the DOL wherein the contract work is situated, or the subregion, or the Appalachian counties of the State wherein the contract work is situated, except:
- a. To the extent that qualified persons regularly residing in the area are not available.
- b. For the reasonable needs of the contractor to employ supervisory or specially experienced personnel necessary to assure an efficient execution of the contract work.
- c. For the obligation of the contractor to offer employment to present or former employees as the result of a lawful collective bargaining contract, provided that the number of nonresident persons employed under this subparagraph (1c) shall not exceed 20 percent of the total number of employees employed by the contractor on the contract work, except as provided in subparagraph (4) below.
- 2. The contractor shall place a job order with the State Employment Service indicating (a) the classifications of the laborers, mechanics and other employees required to perform the contract work, (b) the number of employees required in each classification, (c) the date on which the participant estimates such employees will be required, and (d) any other pertinent information required by the State Employment Service to complete the job order form. The job order may be placed with the State Employment Service in writing or by telephone. If during the course of the contract work, the information submitted by the contractor in the original job order is substantially modified, the participant shall promptly notify the State Employment Service.
- 3. The contractor shall give full consideration to all qualified job applicants referred to him by the State Employment Service. The contractor is not required to grant employment to any job applicants who, in his opinion, are not qualified to perform the classification of work required.
- 4. If, within one week following the placing of a job order by the contractor with the State Employment Service, the State Employment Service is unable to refer any qualified job applicants to the contractor, or less than the number requested, the State Employment Service will forward a certificate to the contractor indicating the unavailability of applicants. Such certificate shall be made a part of the contractor's permanent project records. Upon receipt of this certificate, the contractor may employ persons who do not normally reside in the labor area to fill positions covered by the certificate, notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (1c) above
- 5. The provisions of 23 CFR 633.207(e) allow the contracting agency to provide a contractual preference for the use of mineral resource materials native to the Appalachian region
- 6. The contractor shall include the provisions of Sections 1 through 4 of this Attachment A in every subcontract for work which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work.

APPENDIX D – FEDERAL WAGE RATE DETERMINATIONS

"General Decision Number: CA20250007 09/26/2025

Superseded General Decision Number: CA20240007

State: California

Construction Types: Building, Heavy (Heavy and Dredging) and

Highway

Counties: Alpine, Amador, Butte, Colusa, El Dorado, Glenn, Lassen, Marin, Modoc, Napa, Nevada, Placer, Plumas, Sacramento, Shasta, Sierra, Siskiyou, Solano, Sonoma, Sutter, Tehama, Trinity, Yolo and Yuba Counties in California.

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (excluding Amador County only); DREDGING CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (does not include hopper dredge work); HEAVY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (does not include water well drilling); AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

Note: Contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act are generally required to pay at least the applicable minimum wage rate required under Executive Order 14026 or Executive Order 13658. Please note that these Executive Orders apply to covered contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but do not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(1).

| If the contract is entered into on or after January 30, 2022, or the contract is renewed or extended (e.g., an |. The contractor must pay option is exercised) on or after January 30, 2022:

- l. Executive Order 14026 generally applies to the contract.
- all covered workers at least \$17.75 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract in 2025.

If the contract was awarded on . Executive Order 13658 or between January 1, 2015 and January 29, 2022, and the contract is not renewed or extended on or after January 30, 2022:

- generally applies to the contract.
- |. The contractor must pay all| covered workers at least \$13.30 per hour (or the

applicable wage rate listed|
on this wage determination,|
if it is higher) for all |
hours spent performing on |
that contract in 2025.

The applicable Executive Order minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. If this contract is covered by one of the Executive Orders and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must still submit a conformance request.

Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the Executive Orders is available at http://www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number	Publication Dat	e
0	01/03/2025	
1	01/10/2025	
2	02/07/2025	
3	02/21/2025	
4	02/28/2025	
5	03/07/2025	
6	03/21/2025	
7	06/13/2025	
8	06/27/2025	
9	07/04/2025	
10	07/18/2025	
11	08/01/2025	
12	08/08/2025	
13	08/15/2025	
14	08/22/2025	
15	09/05/2025	
16	09/19/2025	
17	09/26/2025	

ASBE0016-001 01/01/2024

AREA 1: MARIN, NAPA, SAN BENITO, SAN FRANCISCO, SOLANO, & SONOMA COUNTIES

AREA 2: ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, MODOC, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, SUTTER, TEHEMA, TRINITY, YOLO, & YUBA COUNTIES

Rates

Fringes

Asbestos Workers/Insulator (Includes the application of all insulating materials, Protective Coverings, Coatings, and Finishes to all types of mechanical systems)

Area 1	L\$	84.76	25.07
Area 2	2\$	64.56	25.07

^{*} ASBE0016-007 05/01/2025

AREA 1: ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, SOLANO, SONOMA, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO & YUBA COUNTIES

AREA 2: MARIN & NAPA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
Asbestos Removal worker/hazardous material handler (Includes preparation, wetting, stripping, removal, scrapping, vacuuming, bagging and disposing of all insulation materials from mechanical systems, whether they contain asbestos or not) AREA 1	•	12.75 12.75
BOIL0549-002 01/01/2021		
	Rates	Fringes
BOILERMAKER (1) Marin & Solano Countie (2) Remaining Counties		41.27 38.99
BRCA0003-001 08/01/2024		
	Rates	Fringes
MARBLE FINISHER	\$ 42.06	19.80
BRCA0003-004 05/01/2024		

AREA 1: ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA, SUTTER, TEHAMA, YOLO AND YUBA COUNTIES

AREA 2: MARIN, NAPA, SISKIYOU, SOLANO, SONOMA AND TRINITY COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
BRICKLAYER		
AREA 1	\$ 52.76	25.01
AREA 2	\$ 57.02	28.50

SPECIALTY PAY:

- (A) Underground work such as tunnel work, sewer work, manholes, catch basins, sewer pipes and telephone conduit shall be paid \$1.25 per hour above the regular rate. Work in direct contact with raw sewage shall receive \$1.25 per hour in addition to the above.
- (B) Operating a saw or grinder shall receive \$1.25 per hour above the regular rate.
- (C) Gunite nozzle person shall receive \$1.25 per hour above the regular rate.

BRCA0003-008 07/01/2024

	Rates	Fringes
TERRAZZO FINISHER TERRAZZO WORKER/SETTER	•	20.98 29.79

BRCA0003-010 04/01/2024

		Rates	Fringes
TILE	FINISHER		
	Area 1	\$ 35.00	17.44
	Area 2	\$ 34.76	19.22
	Area 3	•	19.28
	Area 4	\$ 35.78	19.23
Tile	Layer		
	Area 1	•	21.08
	Area 2		22.52
	Area 3	\$ 59.92	22.62
	Area 4	\$ 56.79	22.54

AREA 1: Butte, Colusa, El Dorado, Glenn, Lassen, Modoc,

Nevada, Placer, Plumas, Sacramento, Shasta, Sierra, Sutter,

Tehema, Yolo, Yuba

AREA 2: Alpine, Amador

AREA 3: Marin, Napa, Solano, Siskiyou

AREA 4: Sonoma

BRCA0003-014 08/01/2024

	Rates	Fringes
MARBLE MASON	\$ 61.72	30.31

Rates Fringes

CARP0034-001 07/01/2021

	8
Diver	
Assistant Tender, ROV	
Tender/Technician\$ 54.10	34.69
Diver standby\$ 60.51	34.69
Diver Tender\$ 59.51	34.69
Diver wet\$ 103.62	34.69
Manifold Operator (mixed	
gas)\$ 64.51	34.69
Manifold Operator (Standby).\$ 59.51	34.69

DEPTH PAY (Surface Diving):

050	to	100	ft	\$2.00	per	foot
101	to	150	ft	\$3.00	per	foot
151	to	220	ft	\$4.00	per	foot
221	ft.	de	eper	\$5.00	per	foot

SATURATION DIVING:

The standby rate shall apply until saturation starts. The saturation diving rate applies when divers are under pressure continuously until work task and decompression are complete. The diver rate shall be paid for all saturation hours.

DIVING IN ENCLOSURES:

Where it is necessary for Divers to enter pipes or tunnels, or other enclosures where there is no vertical ascent, the following premium shall be paid: Distance traveled from entrance 26 feet to 300 feet: \$1.00 per foot. When it is necessary for a diver to enter any pipe, tunnel or other enclosure less than 48"" in height, the premium will be \$1.00 per foot.

WORK IN COMBINATION OF CLASSIFICATIONS:

Employees working in any combination of classifications within the diving crew (except dive supervisor) in a shift are paid in the classification with the highest rate for that shift.

CARP0034-003 07/01/2021

	Rates	Fringes
Piledriver	.\$ 54.10	34.69
CARP0035-001 08/01/2020		

AREA 1: MARIN, NAPA, SOLANO & SONOMA

AREA 3: SACRAMENTO, WESTERN EL DORADO (Territory west of an including highway 49 and the territory inside the city limits of Placerville), WESTERN PLACER (Territory west of and including highway 49), & YOLO

AREA 4: ALPINE, BUTTE, COLUSA, EASTERN EL DORADO, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, NEVADA, EASTERN PLACER, PLUMAS, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, & YUBA

	Rates	Fringes
Drywall Installers/Lathers: Area 1\$ Area 3\$		31.26 31.26
Area 4\$	45.92	31.26
Drywall Stocker/Scrapper		
Area 1\$	26.33	18.22
Area 3\$	23.64	18.22
Area 4\$	22.97	18.22

CARP0035-009 07/01/2020

Marin County

Rat	es Fringes
CARPENTER	
Bridge Builder/Highway	
Carpenter \$ 52	.65 30.82
Hardwood Floorlayer,	
Shingler, Power Saw	
Operator, Steel Scaffold &	
Steel Shoring Erector, Saw	

Filer\$ 52.80	30.82
Journeyman Carpenter\$ 52.65	30.82
Millwright \$ 52.75	32.41

CARP0035-010 07/01/2020

AREA 1: Marin, Napa, Solano & Sonoma Counties

AREA 2: Monterey, San Benito and Santa Cruz

AREA 3: Alpine, Butte, Colusa, El Dorado, Glenn, Lassen, Modoc, Nevada, Placer, Plumas, Sacramento, Shasta, Sierra, Siskiyou, Sutter, Tehama, Trinity, Yolo & Yuba counties

	Rates	Fringes
Modular Furniture Installer		
Area 1		
Installer	\$ 28.76	22.53
Lead Installer	\$ 32.21	23.03
Master Installer	\$ 36.43	23.03
Area 2	·	
Installer	\$ 26.11	22.53
Lead Installer	\$ 29.08	23.03
Master Installer	\$ 32.71	23.03
Area 3		
Installer	\$ 25.16	22.53
Lead Installer	\$ 27.96	23.03
Master Installer	•	23.03

CARP0046-001 07/01/2023

El Dorado (West), Placer (West), Sacramento and Yolo Counties

	Rates	Fringes
Carpenters Bridge Builder/Highway Carpenter\$	60.39	33.52
Hardwood Floorlayer, Shingler, Power Saw Operator, Steel Scaffold & Steel Shoring Erector, Saw		
Filer\$	54.66	33.52
Journeyman Carpenter\$	54.51	33.52
Millwright\$	57.01	35.11

Footnote: Placer County (West) includes territory West of and including Highway 49 and El Dorado County (West) includes

territory	West	of	and	including	Highway	49	and	territory
inside the	e citv	/ li	mits	of Placer	rville.			

CARP0046-002 07/01/2023

Alpine, Colusa, El Dorado (East), Nevada, Placer (East), Sierra, Sutter and Yuba Counties

	Rates	Fringes
Carpenters Bridge Builder/Highway		
Carpenter	.\$ 60.39	33.52
Shingler, Power Saw Operator, Steel Scaffold &		
Steel Shoring Erector, Saw		
Filer	.\$ 53.31	33.52
Journeyman Carpenter	.\$ 53.16	33.52
Millwright	.\$ 55.66 	35.11

CARP0152-003 07/01/2020

Amador County

	Kates	Fringes
Carpenters		
Bridge Builder/Highway		
Carpenter	.\$ 52.65	30.82
Hardwood Floorlayer,		
Shingler, Power Saw		
Operator, Steel Scaffold &		
Steel Shoring Erector, Saw		
Filer	.\$ 45.57	30.82
Journeyman Carpenter	.\$ 45.42	30.82
Millwright	.\$ 47.92	32.41

CARP0180-001 07/01/2021

Solano County

I	Rates	Fringes
Carpenters		
Bridge Builder/Highway		
Carpenter\$	54.85	31.49
Hardwood Floorlayer,		

	Shingler, Power Saw Operator, Steel Scaffold & Steel Shoring Erector, Saw Filer	5 54.85 5 54.95	31.49 31.49 33.08
CARP	20751-001 07/01/2021		
Napa	and Sonoma Counties		
		Rates	Fringes
Carpe	enters Bridge Builder/Highway Carpenter	5 55.00 5 54.85	31.49 31.49 31.49 33.08
CARP	21599-001 07/01/2020		
	e, Glenn, Lassen, Modoc, Pluma rinity Counties	as, Shasta, Si	skiyou, Tehama
		Rates	Fringes
ELEC	enters Bridge Builder/Highway Carpenter	5 45.57 5 45.42 5 47.92	30.82 30.82 30.82 32.41
		Rates	Fringes

3%+29.28

CABLE SPLICER.....\$ 69.26

ELECTRICIAN	\$ 61.56	3%+29.28

ELEC0180-003 12/01/2023

NAPA AND SOLANO COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
Sound & Communications		
Installer	\$ 48.44	27.60
Technician	\$ 55.71	27.82

SCOPE OF WORK INCLUDES-

SOUND & VOICE TRANSMISSION (Music, Intercom, Nurse Call, Telephone); FIRE ALARM SYSTEMS [excluding fire alarm work when installed in raceways (including wire and cable pulling) and when performed on new or major remodel building projects or jobs],

TELEVISION & VIDEO SYSTEMS, SECURITY SYSTEMS, COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS that transmit or receive information and/or control systems that are intrinsic to the above.

EXCLUDES-

Excludes all other data systems or multiple systems which include control function or power supply; excludes installation of raceway systems, line voltage work, industrial work, life-safety systems (all buildings having floors located more than 75' above the lowest floor level having building access); excludes energy management systems.

ELEC0340-002 03/01/2025

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, LASSEN, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, TRINITY, YOLO, YUBA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
Communications System		
Sound & Communications		
Installer	.\$ 40.00	25.50
Sound & Communications		
Technician	.\$ 46.00	25.68

SCOPE OF WORK

Includes the installation testing, service and maintenance, of the following systems which utilize the transmission

and/or transference of voice, sound, vision and digital for commercial, education, security and entertainment purposes for the following TV monitoring and surveillance, background-foreground music, intercom and telephone interconnect, inventory control systems, microwave transmission, multi-media, multiplex, nurse call system, radio page, school intercom and sound, burglar alarms, and low voltage master clock systems.

- A. SOUND AND VOICE TRANSMISSION/TRANSFERENCE SYSTEMS
 Background foreground music Intercom and telephone
 interconnect systems, Telephone systems, Nurse call
 systems, Radio page systems, School intercom and sound
 systems, Burglar alarm systems, Low voltage master clock
 systems, Multi-media/multiplex systems, Sound and musical
 entertainment systems, RF systems, Antennas and Wave Guide.
- B. FIRE ALARM SYSTEMS
 Installation, wire pulling and testing
 - C. TELEVISION AND VIDEO SYSTEMS Television monitoring and surveillance systems, Video security systems, Video entertainment systems, Video educational systems, Microwave transmission systems, CATV and CCTV
 - D. SECURITY SYSTEMS Perimeter security systems
 Vibration sensor systems Card access systems Access
 control systems Sonar/infrared monitoring equipment
 - E. COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS THAT TRANSMIT OR RECEIVE INFORMATION AND/OR CONTROL SYSTEMS THAT ARE INTRINSIC THE ABOVE LISTED SYSTEMS SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition) PCM (Pulse Code Modulation) Digital Data Systems Inventory Control Systems Broadband and Baseband and Carriers Point of Sale VSAT Data Systems Systems Data Communication RF and Remote Control Systems Fiber Optic Data Systems WORK EXCLUDED Raceway systems are not covered (excluding Ladder-Rack for the purpose of the above listed systems). Chases and/or nipples (not to exceed 10 feet) may be installed on open wiring systems. Energy management systems. SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition) when not intrinsic to the above listed systems (in the scope). Fire alarm systems when installed in raceways (including wire and cable pulling) shall be performed at the electrician wage rate, when either of the following two (2) conditions apply:
 - 1. The project involves new or major remodel building trades construction.
 - 2. The conductors for the fire alarm system are installed in

ELEC0340-003 08/01/2025

ALPINE (West of Sierra Mt. Watershed), AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO (West of Sierra Mt. Watershed), GLENN, LASSEN, NEVADA (West of Sierra Mt. Watershed), PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA (West of Sierra Mt. Watershed), SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO & YUBA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
ELECTRICIAN		
Remaining area	\$ 52.70	38.68
Sierra Army Depot, Herlong	\$ 48.83	18.54
Tunnel work	\$ 41.01	18.54

CABLE SPLICER: Receives 110% of the Electrician basic hourly rate.

ELEC0401-005 01/01/2025

ALPINE (east of the main watershed divide), EL DORADO (east of the main watershed divide), NEVADA (east of the main watershed), PLACER (east of the main watershed divide) and SIERRA (east of the main watershed divide) COUNTIES:

	Rates	Fringes
ELECTRICIAN	\$ 48.50	23.04
ZONE RATE:		
70-90 miles - \$10.00 per hour 91+ miles - \$15.00 per hour		
ELEC0551-004 06/01/2024		
MARIN AND SONOMA COUNTIES		

	Rates	Fringes
ELECTRICIAN	.\$ 59.17	32.04
ELEC0551-005 12/01/2024		

MARIN & SONOMA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
Sound & Communications		
Installer	\$ 51.59	28.20
Technician	\$ 59.33	28.43

SCOPE OF WORK INCLUDES-

SOUND & VOICE TRANSMISSION (Music, Intercom, Nurse Call, Telephone); FIRE ALARM SYSTEMS [excluding fire alarm work when installed in raceways (including wire and cable pulling) and when performed on new or major remodel building projects or jobs],

TELEVISION & VIDEO SYSTEMS, SECURITY SYSTEMS, COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS that transmit or receive information and/or control systems that are intrinsic to the above.

EXCLUDES-

Excludes all other data systems or multiple systems which include control function or power supply; excludes installation of raceway systems, line voltage work, industrial work, life-safety systems (all buildings having floors located more than 75' above the lowest floor level having building access); excludes energy management systems.

ELEC0659-006 01/01/2025

MODOC and SISKIYOU COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
ELECTRICIAN	\$ 45.58	20.70
ELEC0659-008 02/01/2023		

DEL NORTE, MODOC & SISKIYOU COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
Line Construction		
(1) Cable Splicer	\$ 67.80	4.5%+22.15
(2) Lineman, Pole Spraye	er,	
Heavy Line Equipment Mar	n\$ 60.54	4.5%+22.15
(3) Tree Trimmer	\$ 37.84	4.5%+14.30
(4) Line Equipment Man.	\$ 53.82	4.5%+19.40
(5) Powdermen,		

Jackhammermen(6) Groundman	\$ 33.37	
ELEC1245-004 01/01/2025		
ALL COUNTIES EXCEPT DEL NORTE,	MODOC & SISH	KIYOU
	Rates	Fringes
LINE CONSTRUCTION (1) Lineman; Cable splicer (2) Equipment specialist (operates crawler tractors, commercial motor vehicles, backhoes, trenchers, cranes (50 tons and below), overhead & underground distribution line equipment) (3) Groundman	\$ 53.30 \$ 40.76	22.26 21.76 18.79
HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, M.L Independence Day, Labor Day, and day after Thanksgiving, C	Veterans Day hristmas Day	, Thanksgiving Day /
FI FV0008-001 01/01/2025		

ELEV0008-001 01/01/2025

Rates Fringes

ELEVATOR MECHANIC......\$ 84.05 38.435+a+b

FOOTNOTE:

a. PAID VACATION: Employer contributes 8% of regular hourly rate as vacation pay credit for employees with more than 5 years of service, and 6% for 6 months to 5 years of service. b. PAID HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Friday after Thanksgiving, and Christmas Day.

ENGI0003-008 08/01/2024

Rates Fringes

Dredging: (DREDGING:

CLAMSHELL & DIPPER DREDGING; HYDRAULIC SUCTION DREDGING:)

AREA 1:

<pre>(1) Leverman\$ 60.61 (2) Dredge Dozer; Heavy</pre>	39.55
duty repairman\$ 55.65	39.55
(3) Booster Pump	
Operator; Deck	
Engineer; Deck mate;	
Dredge Tender; Winch	
Operator \$ 54.53	39.55
(4) Bargeman; Deckhand;	
Fireman; Leveehand; Oiler\$ 51.23	39.55
AREA 2:	
(1) Leverman\$ 62.61	39.55
(2) Dredge Dozer; Heavy	
duty repairman\$ 57.65	39.55
(3) Booster Pump	
Operator; Deck	
Engineer; Deck mate;	
Dredge Tender; Winch	
Operator\$ 56.53	39.55
(4) Bargeman; Deckhand;	
Fireman; Leveehand; Oiler\$ 53.23	39.55

AREA DESCRIPTIONS

AREA 1: ALAMEDA, BUTTE, CONTRA COSTA, KINGS, MARIN, MERCED, NAPA, SACRAMENTO, SAN BENITO, SAN FRANCISCO, SAN JOAQUIN, SAN MATEO, SANTA CLARA, SANTA CRUZ, SOLANO, STANISLAUS, SUTTER, YOLO, AND YUBA COUNTIES

AREA 2: MODOC COUNTY

THE REMAINGING COUNTIES ARE SPLIT BETWEEN AREA 1 AND AREA 2 AS NOTED BELOW:

ALPINE COUNTY:

Area 1: Northernmost part

Area 2: Remainder

CALAVERAS COUNTY: Area 1: Remainder

Area 2: Eastern part

COLUSA COUNTY:

Area 1: Eastern part Area 2: Remainder

ELDORADO COUNTY:

Area 1: North Central part

Area 2: Remainder

FRESNO COUNTY:

Area 1: Remainder Area 2: Eastern part

GLENN COUNTY:

Area 1: Eastern part Area 2: Remainder

LASSEN COUNTY:

Area 1: Western part along the Southern portion of border

with Shasta County Area 2: Remainder

MADERA COUNTY:

Area 1: Except Eastern part

Area 2: Eastern part

MARIPOSA COUNTY

Area 1: Except Eastern part

Area 2: Eastern part

MONTERREY COUNTY

Area 1: Except Southwestern part

Area 2: Southwestern part

NEVADA COUNTY:

Area 1: All but the Northern portion along the border of

Sierra County Area 2: Remainder

PLACER COUNTY:

Area 1: Al but the Central portion

Area 2: Remainder

PLUMAS COUNTY:

Area 1: Western portion

Area 2: Remainder

SHASTA COUNTY:

Area 1: All but the Northeastern corner

Area 2: Remainder

SIERRA COUNTY:

Area 1: Western part Area 2: Remainder

SISKIYOU COUNTY:

Area 1: Central part Area 2: Remainder SONOMA COUNTY:

Area 1: All but the Northwestern corner

Area 2: Remainder

TEHAMA COUNTY:

Area 1: All but the Western border with Mendocino & Trinity

Counties

Area 2: Remainder

TRINITY COUNTY:

Area 1: East Central part and the Northeastern border with

Shasta County Area 2: Remainder

TUOLUMNE COUNTY:

Area 1: Except Eastern part

Area 2: Eastern part

ENGI0003-019 06/30/2025

SEE AREA DESCRIPTIONS BELOW

		Rates	Fringes
OPERATOR: (LANDSCAPE	Power Equipment WORK ONLY)		
GROUP	1		
AREA	1	55.85	28.56
AREA	2	5 57.85	28.56
GROUP	2		
AREA	1	52.25	28.56
AREA	2	54.25	28.56
GROUP	3		
AREA	1	47.64	28.56
AREA	2	49.64	28.56

GROUP DESCRIPTIONS:

GROUP 1: Landscape Finish Grade Operator: All finish grade work regardless of equipment used, and all equipment with a rating more than 65 HP.

GROUP 2: Landscape Operator up to 65 HP: All equipment with a manufacturer's rating of 65 HP or less except equipment covered by Group 1 or Group 3. The following equipment shall be included except when used for finish work as long as manufacturer's rating is 65 HP or less: A-Frame and Winch Truck, Backhoe, Forklift, Hydragraphic Seeder Machine, Roller, Rubber-Tired and Track Earthmoving

Equipment, Skiploader, Straw Blowers, and Trencher 31 HP up to 65 HP.

GROUP 3: Landscae Utility Operator: Small Rubber-Tired Tractor, Trencher Under 31 HP.

AREA DESCRIPTIONS:

AREA 1: ALAMEDA, BUTTE, CONTRA COSTA, KINGS, MARIN, MERCED, NAPA, SACRAMENTO, SAN BENITO, SAN FRANCISCO, SAN JOAQUIN, SAN MATEO, SANTA CLARA, SANTA CRUZ, SOLANO, STANISLAUS, SUTTER, YOLO, AND YUBA COUNTIES

AREA 2 - MODOC COUNTY

THE REMAINING COUNTIES ARE SPLIT BETWEEN AREA 1 AND AREA 2 AS NOTED BELOW:

ALPINE COUNTY:

Area 1: Northernmost part

Area 2: Remainder

CALAVERAS COUNTY:

Area 1: Except Eastern part

Area 2: Eastern part

COLUSA COUNTY:

Area 1: Eastern part Area 2: Remainder

DEL NORTE COUNTY:

Area 1: Extreme Southwestern corner

Area 2: Remainder

ELDORADO COUNTY:

Area 1: North Central part

Area 2: Remainder

FRESNO COUNTY

Area 1: Except Eastern part

Area 2: Eastern part

GLENN COUNTY:

Area 1: Eastern part Area 2: Remainder

HUMBOLDT COUNTY:

Area 1: Except Eastern and Southwestern parts

Area 2: Remainder

LAKE COUNTY:

Area 1: Southern part Area 2: Remainder

LASSEN COUNTY:

Area 1: Western part along the Southern portion of border

with Shasta County Area 2: Remainder

MADERA COUNTY

Area 1: Remainder Area 2: Eastern part

MARIPOSA COUNTY

Area 1: Remainder Area 2: Eastern part

MENDOCINO COUNTY:

Area 1: Central and Southeastern parts

Area 2: Remainder

MONTEREY COUNTY

Area 1: Remainder

Area 2: Southwestern part

NEVADA COUNTY:

Area 1: All but the Northern portion along the border of

Sierra County Area 2: Remainder

PLACER COUNTY:

Area 1: All but the Central portion

Area 2: Remainder

PLUMAS COUNTY:

Area 1: Western portion

Area 2: Remainder

SHASTA COUNTY:

Area 1: All but the Northeastern corner

Area 2: Remainder

SIERRA COUNTY:

Area 1: Western part Area 2: Remainder

SISKIYOU COUNTY:

Area 1: Central part Area 2: Remainder SONOMA COUNTY:

Area 1: All but the Northwestern corner

Area 2: Reaminder

TEHAMA COUNTY:

Area 1: All but the Western border with mendocino & Trinity

Counties

Area 2: Remainder

TRINITY COUNTY:

Area 1: East Central part and the Northeaster border with

Shasta County Area 2: Remainder

TULARE COUNTY;

Area 1: Remainder Area 2: Eastern part

TUOLUMNE COUNTY:

Area 1: Remainder Area 2: Eastern Part

ENGI0003-038 06/30/2025

""AREA 1"" WAGE RATES ARE LISTED BELOW

""AREA 2"" RECEIVES AN ADDITIONAL \$2.00 PER HOUR ABOVE AREA 1 RATES.

SEE AREA DEFINITIONS BELOW

		Rates	Fringes
OPERATOR: (AREA 1:)	Power Equipment		
• •	1	\$ 66.96	32.53
	2		32.53
	3		32.53
	4		32.53
GROUP	5	\$ 61.30	32.53
GROUP	6	\$ 59.98	32.53
	7		32.53
GROUP	8	\$ 57.70	32.53
GROUP	8-A	\$ 55.49	32.53
OPERATOR:	Power Equipment		
(Cranes and	d Attachments -		
AREA 1:)			
GROUP	1		

Cranes\$	68.59	32.53
Oiler\$		31.15
Truck crane oiler\$		31.15
GROUP 2		5-1-5
Cranes\$	66.08	32.53
Oiler\$		31.15
Truck crane oiler\$		31.15
GROUP 3		5-1-5
Cranes\$	64.34	32.53
Hydraulic\$		32.53
Oiler\$		31.15
Truck crane oiler\$		31.15
GROUP 4	44.03	31.13
Cranes\$	61 30	32.53
OPERATOR: Power Equipment	01.50	32.33
(Piledriving - AREA 1:)		
GROUP 1		
Lifting devices\$	52 64	31.15
Oiler\$		31.15
Truck Crane Oiler\$		31.15
	43.00	31.13
GROUP 2	FA 92	21 15
Lifting devices\$		31.15
Oiler\$		31.15
Truck Crane Oiler\$	45.41	31.15
GROUP 3	40.44	24 45
Lifting devices\$		31.15
Oiler\$		31.15
Truck Crane Oiler\$	45.12	31.15
GROUP 4	4- 0-	24.45
Lifting devices\$	4/.3/	31.15
GROUP 5	=0	24.45
Lifting devices\$	44./3	31.15
GROUP 6	40.50	24.45
Lifting devices\$	42.50	31.15
OPERATOR: Power Equipment		
(Steel Erection - AREA 1:)		
GROUP 1		
Cranes\$		32.53
Oiler\$		31.15
Truck Crane Oiler\$	45.95	31.15
GROUP 2		
Cranes\$		32.53
Oiler\$		31.15
Truck Crane Oiler\$	45.73	31.15
GROUP 3		
Cranes\$		32.53
Hydraulic\$		31.15
Oiler\$		31.15
Truck Crane Oiler\$	45.46	31.15
GROUP 4		

32.53
32.53
32.53
32.53
32.53
32.53
32.53
32.53
32.53
32.53
32.53
32.53
32.53
32.53

FOOTNOTE: Work suspended by ropes or cables, or work on a Yo-Yo Cat: \$.60 per hour additional.

POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Operator of helicopter (when used in erection work); Hydraulic excavator, 7 cu. yds. and over; Power shovels, over 7 cu. yds.

GROUP 2: Highline cableway; Hydraulic excavator, 3-1/2 cu. yds. up to 7 cu. yds.; Licensed construction work boat operator, on site; Power blade operator (finish); Power shovels, over 1 cu. yd. up to and including 7 cu. yds. m.r.c.

GROUP 3: Asphalt milling machine; Cable backhoe; Combination backhoe and loader over 3/4 cu. yds.; Continuous flight tie back machine assistant to engineer or mechanic; Crane mounted continuous flight tie back machine, tonnage to apply; Crane mounted drill attachment, tonnage to apply; Dozer, slope brd; Gradall; Hydraulic excavator, up to 3 1/2 cu. yds.; Loader 4 cu. yds. and over; Long reach excavator; Multiple engine scraper (when used as push pull); Power shovels, up to and including 1 cu. yd.; Pre-stress wire wrapping machine; Side boom cat, 572 or larger; Track loader 4 cu. yds. and over; Wheel excavator (up to and including 750 cu. yds. per hour)

GROUP 4: Asphalt plant engineer/box person; Chicago boom; Combination backhoe and loader up to and including 3/4 cu. yd.; Concrete batch plant (wet or dry); Dozer and/or push cat; Pull- type elevating loader; Gradesetter, grade checker (GPS, mechanical or otherwise); Grooving and grinding machine; Heading shield operator; Heavy-duty drilling equipment, Hughes, LDH, Watson 3000 or similar; Heavy-duty repairperson and/or welder; Lime spreader; Loader under 4 cu. yds.; Lubrication and service engineer (mobile and grease rack); Mechanical finishers or spreader machine (asphalt, Barber-Greene and similar); Miller Formless M-9000 slope paver or similar; Portable crushing and screening plants; Power blade support; Roller operator, asphalt; Rubber-tired scraper, self-loading (paddle-wheels, etc.); Rubber- tired earthmoving equipment (scrapers); Slip form paver (concrete); Small tractor with drag; Soil stabilizer (P & H or equal); Spider plow and spider puller; Tubex pile rig; Unlicensed constuction work boat operator, on site; Timber skidder; Track loader up to 4 yds.; Tractor-drawn scraper; Tractor, compressor drill combination; Welder; Woods-Mixer (and other similar Pugmill equipment)

GROUP 5: Cast-in-place pipe laying machine; Combination slusher and motor operator; Concrete conveyor or concrete pump, truck or equipment mounted; Concrete conveyor, building site; Concrete pump or pumpcrete gun; Drilling equipment, Watson 2000, Texoma 700 or similar; Drilling and boring machinery, horizontal (not to apply to waterliners, wagon drills or jackhammers); Concrete mixer/all; Person and/or material hoist; Mechanical finishers (concrete) (Clary, Johnson, Bidwell Bridge Deck or similar types); Mechanical burm, curb and/or curb and gutter machine, concrete or asphalt); Mine or shaft hoist; Portable crusher; Power jumbo operator (setting slip-forms, etc., in tunnels); Screed (automatic or manual); Self-propelled compactor with dozer; Tractor with boom D6 or smaller; Trenching machine, maximum digging capacity over 5 ft. depth; Vermeer T-600B rock cutter or similar

GROUP 6: Armor-Coater (or similar); Ballast jack tamper; Boom- type backfilling machine; Assistant plant engineer; Bridge and/or gantry crane; Chemical grouting machine, truck-mounted; Chip spreading machine operator; Concrete saw (self-propelled unit on streets, highways, airports and canals); Deck engineer; Drilling equipment Texoma 600, Hughes 200 Series or similar up to and including 30 ft. m.r.c.; Drill doctor; Helicopter radio operator; Hydro-hammer or similar; Line master; Skidsteer loader, Bobcat larger than 743 series or similar (with

attachments); Locomotive; Lull hi-lift or similar; Oiler, truck mounted equipment; Pavement breaker, truck-mounted, with compressor combination; Paving fabric installation and/or laying machine; Pipe bending machine (pipelines only); Pipe wrapping machine (tractor propelled and supported); Screed (except asphaltic concrete paving); Self- propelled pipeline wrapping machine; Tractor; Self-loading chipper; Concrete barrier moving machine

GROUP 7: Ballast regulator; Boom truck or dual-purpose A-frame truck, non-rotating - under 15 tons; Cary lift or similar; Combination slurry mixer and/or cleaner; Drilling equipment, 20 ft. and under m.r.c.; Firetender (hot plant); Grouting machine operator; Highline cableway signalperson; Stationary belt loader (Kolman or similar); Lift slab machine (Vagtborg and similar types); Maginnes internal full slab vibrator; Material hoist (1 drum); Mechanical trench shield; Pavement breaker with or without compressor combination); Pipe cleaning machine (tractor propelled and supported); Post driver; Roller (except asphalt); Chip Seal; Self-propelled automatically applied concrete curing mahcine (on streets, highways, airports and canals); Self-propelled compactor (without dozer); Signalperson; Slip-form pumps (lifting device for concrete forms); Tie spacer; Tower mobile; Trenching machine, maximum digging capacity up to and including 5 ft. depth; Truck- type loader

GROUP 8: Bit sharpener; Boiler tender; Box operator; Brakeperson; Combination mixer and compressor (shotcrete/gunite); Compressor operator; Deckhand; Fire tender; Forklift (under 20 ft.); Generator; Gunite/shotcrete equipment operator; Hydraulic monitor; Ken seal machine (or similar); Mixermobile; Oiler; Pump operator; Refrigeration plant; Reservoir-debris tug (self-propelled floating); Ross Carrier (construction site); Rotomist operator; Self-propelled tape machine; Shuttlecar; Self-propelled power sweeper operator (includes vacuum sweeper); Slusher operator; Surface heater; Switchperson; Tar pot firetender; Tugger hoist, single drum; Vacuum cooling plant; Welding machine (powered other than by electricity)

GROUP 8-A: Elevator operator; Skidsteer loader-Bobcat 743 series or smaller, and similar (without attachments); Mini excavator under 25 H.P. (backhoe-trencher); Tub grinder wood chipper

- GROUP 1: Clamshell and dragline over 7 cu. yds.; Crane, over 100 tons; Derrick, over 100 tons; Derrick barge pedestal-mounted, over 100 tons; Self-propelled boom-type lifting device, over 100 tons
- GROUP 2: Clamshell and dragline over 1 cu. yd. up to and including 7 cu. yds.; Crane, over 45 tons up to and including 100 tons; Derrick barge, 100 tons and under; Self-propelled boom-type lifting device, over 45 tons; Tower crane
- GROUP 3: Clamshell and dragline up to and including 1 cu. yd.; Cranes 45 tons and under; Self-propelled boom-type lifting device 45 tons and under;
- GROUP 4: Boom Truck or dual purpose A-frame truck, non-rotating over 15 tons; Truck-mounted rotating telescopic boom type lifting device, Manitex or similar (boom truck) over 15 tons; Truck-mounted rotating telescopic boom type lifting device, Manitex or similar (boom truck) under 15 tons;

PILEDRIVERS

GROUP 1: Derrick barge pedestal mounted over 100 tons; Clamshell over 7 cu. yds.; Self-propelled boom-type lifting device over 100 tons; Truck crane or crawler, land or barge mounted over 100 tons

GROUP 2: Derrick barge pedestal mounted 45 tons to and including 100 tons; Clamshell up to and including 7 cu. yds.; Self-propelled boom-type lifting device over 45 tons; Truck crane or crawler, land or barge mounted, over 45 tons up to and including 100 tons; Fundex F-12 hydraulic pile rig

GROUP 3: Derrick barge pedestal mounted under 45 tons; Selfpropelled boom-type lifting device 45 tons and under; Skid/scow piledriver, any tonnage; Truck crane or crawler, land or barge mounted 45 tons and under

GROUP 4: Assistant operator in lieu of assistant to engineer; Forklift, 10 tons and over; Heavy-duty repairperson/welder

GROUP 5: Deck engineer

GROUP 6: Deckhand; Fire tender

STEEL ERECTORS

GROUP 1: Crane over 100 tons; Derrick over 100 tons; Selfpropelled boom-type lifting device over 100 tons

GROUP 2: Crane over 45 tons to 100 tons; Derrick under 100 tons; Self-propelled boom-type lifting device over 45 tons to 100 tons; Tower crane

GROUP 3: Crane, 45 tons and under; Self-propelled boom-type lifting device, 45 tons and under

GROUP 4: Chicago boom; Forklift, 10 tons and over; Heavy-duty repair person/welder

GROUP 5: Boom cat

- -

TUNNEL AND UNDERGROUND WORK

GROUP 1-A: Tunnel bore machine operator, 20' diameter or more

GROUP 1: Heading shield operator; Heavy-duty repairperson; Mucking machine (rubber tired, rail or track type); Raised bore operator (tunnels); Tunnel mole bore operator

GROUP 2: Combination slusher and motor operator; Concrete pump or pumpcrete gun; Power jumbo operator

GROUP 3: Drill doctor; Mine or shaft hoist

GROUP 4: Combination slurry mixer cleaner; Grouting Machine operator; Motorman

GROUP 5: Bit Sharpener; Brakeman; Combination mixer and compressor (gunite); Compressor operator; Oiler; Pump operator; Slusher operator

.....

AREA DESCRIPTIONS:

POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS, CRANES AND ATTACHMENTS, TUNNEL AND UNDERGROUND [These areas do not apply to Piledrivers and Steel Erectors]

AREA 1: DEL NORTE, HUMBOLDT, LAKE, MENDOCINO AREA 2 -NOTED BELOW

THE REMAINING COUNTIES ARE SPLIT BETWEEN AREA 1 AND AREA 2 AS NOTED BELOW:

DEL NORTE COUNTY:

Area 1: Extreme Southwest corner

Area 2: Remainder

HUMBOLDT COUNTY:

Area 1: Except Eastern and Southwestern parts

Area 2: Remainder

LAKE COUNTY:

Area 1: Southern part

Area 2: Remainder

MENDOCINO COUNTY:

Area 1: Central and Southeastern Parts

Area 2: Remainder

IRON0118-012 01/01/2025

ALPINE, LASSEN, MODOC, SISKIYOU and TRINITY COUNTIES

Rates Fringes

IRONWORKER.....\$ 43.75 34.45

IRON0118-013 01/01/2025

AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, MARIN, NAPA, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA, SOLANO, SONOMA, SUTTER, TEHAMA, YOLO and YUBA COUNTIES

Rates Fringes

IRONWORKER.....\$ 50.70 35.15

·-----

LAB00067-003 07/01/2024

AREA ""1"" - MARIN and NAPA COUNTIES

AREA ""2"" - ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE COLUSA EL DORADO, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, SOLANO, SONOMA, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO, AND YUBA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes	
LABORER (ASBESTOS/MOLD/LEAD LABORER)			
Marin and Napa Counties	\$ 37.75	29.69	
Remaining Counties	\$ 36.75	29.69	

LAB00067-005 01/01/2024

AREA ""A"" - ALAMEDA, CONTRA COSTA, SAN FRANCISCO, SAN MATEO AND SANTA CLARA COUNTIES

AREA ""B"" - ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA, DEL NORTE, EL DORADO, FRESNO, GLENN, HUMBOLDT, KINGS, LAKE, LASSEN, MADERA, MARIPOSA, MENDOCINO, MERCED, MODOC, MONTEREY, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SANCREMENTO, SAN BENITO, SAN JOAQUIN, SANTA CRUZ, SIERRA, SHASTA, SISKIYOU, STANISLAUS, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TULARE, TUOLUMNE, YOLO AND YOUBA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
LABORER (TRAFFIC CONTROL/LANE		
CLOSURE)		
Escort Driver, Flag Person		
Area A\$	37.26	27.32
Area B\$	36.26	27.32
Traffic Control Person I		
Area A\$	37.56	27.32
Area B\$	36.56	27.32
Traffic Control Person II		
Area A\$	35.06	27.32
Area B\$	34.06	27.32

TRAFFIC CONTROL PERSON I: Layout of traffic control, crash cushions, construction area and roadside signage.

TRAFFIC CONTROL PERSON II: Installation and removal of temporary/permanent signs, markers, delineators and crash cushions.

LAB00185-002 07/01/2023

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO AND YUBA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
LABORER		
Mason Tender-Brick	.\$ 36.29	25.55
LABO0185-005 06/26/2023		

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO AND YUBA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
Tunnel and Shaft Laborers:		
GROUP 1	\$ 45.89	27.72
GROUP 2	\$ 45.66	27.72
GROUP 3	\$ 45.41	27.72
GROUP 4	\$ 44.96	27.72
GROUP 5	\$ 44.42	27.72
Shotcrete Specialist	\$ 46.41	27.72

TUNNEL AND SHAFT CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Diamond driller; Groundmen; Gunite and shotcrete nozzlemen

GROUP 2: Rodmen; Shaft work & raise (below actual or excavated ground level)

GROUP 3: Bit grinder; Blaster, driller, powdermen, heading; Cherry pickermen - where car is lifted; Concrete finisher in tunnel; Concrete screedman; Grout pumpman and potman; Gunite & shotcrete gunman & potman; Headermen; High pressure nozzleman; Miner - tunnel, including top and bottom man on shaft and raise work; Nipper; Nozzleman on slick line; Sandblaster - potman, Robotic Shotcrete Placer, Segment Erector, Tunnel Muck Hauler, Steel Form raiser and setter; Timberman, retimberman (wood or steel or substitute materials therefore); Tugger (for tunnel laborer work); Cable tender; Chuck tender; Powderman - primer house

GROUP 4: Vibrator operator, pavement breaker; Bull gang - muckers, trackmen; Concrete crew - includes rodding and spreading, Dumpmen (any method)

GROUP 5: Grout crew; Reboundman; Swamper/ Brakeman

LAB00185-006 06/26/2023

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHIASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO, YUBA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
LABORER (CONSTRUCTION CRAFT LABORERS - AREA B:)		
Construction Specialist	26 20	27 20
GROUP 1\$		27.30 27.30
GROUP 1-a\$		27.30
GROUP 1-a\$		27.30
GROUP 1-e\$		27.30
GROUP 1-f\$		23.20
GROUP 2\$		27.30
GROUP 3\$		27.30
GROUP 4\$		27.30
See groups 1-b and 1-d under lab		
LABORER (GARDENERS,	0101 010331110	actons.
HORTICULTURAL & LANDSCAPE		
LABORERS - AREA B:)		
(1) New Construction\$	35.25	27.30
(2) Establishment Warranty	33.23	27.30
Period\$	28.94	27.30
LABORER (GUNITE - AREA B:)	2013.	27.50
GROUP 1\$	36.46	27.30
GROUP 2\$		27.30
GROUP 3\$		27.30
GROUP 4\$		27.30
LABORER (WRECKING - AREA B:)		
GROUP 1\$	35.50	27.30
GROUP 2\$		27.30
·		

FOOTNOTES:

Laborers working off or with or from bos'n chairs, swinging scaffolds, belts shall receive \$0.25 per hour above the applicable wage rate. This shall not apply to workers entitled to receive the wage rate set forth in Group 1-a below.

LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

CONSTRUCTION SPECIALIST GROUP: Asphalt ironer and raker;

Chainsaw; Laser beam in connection with laborers' work; Cast-in- place manhole form setter; Pressure pipelayer; Davis trencher - 300 or similar type (and all small trenchers); Blaster; Diamond driller; Multiple unit drill; Hydraulic drill

GROUP 1: Asphalt spreader boxes (all types); Barko, Wacker and similar type tampers; Buggymobile; Caulker, bander, pipewrapper, conduit layer, plastic pipelayer; Certified hazardous waste worker including Leade Abatement; Compactors of all types; Concrete and magnesite mixer, 1/2 yd. and under; Concrete pan work; Concrete sander; Concrete saw; Cribber and/or shoring; Cut granite curb setter; Dri-pak-it machine; Faller, logloader and bucker; Form raiser, slip forms; Green cutter; Headerboard, Hubsetter, aligner, by any method; High pressure blow pipe (1-1/2"" or over, 100 lbs. pressure/over); Hydro seeder and similar type; Jackhammer operator; Jacking of pipe over 12 inches; Jackson and similar type compactor; Kettle tender, pot and worker applying asphalt, lay-kold, creosote, lime, caustic and similar type materials (applying means applying, dipping or handling of such materials); Lagging, sheeting. whaling, bracing, trenchjacking, lagging hammer; Magnesite, epoxyresin, fiberglass, mastic worker (wet or dry); No joint pipe and stripping of same, including repair of voids; Pavement breaker and spader, including tool grinder; Perma curb; Pipelayer (including grade checking in connection with pipelaying); Precast-manhole setter; Pressure pipe tester; Post hole digger, air, gas and electric; Power broom sweeper; Power tampers of all types (except as shown in Group 2); Ram set gun and stud gun; Riprap stonepaver and rock-slinger, including placing of sacked concrete and/or sand (wet or dry) and gabions and similar type; Rotary scarifier or multiple head concrete chipping scarifier; Roto and Ditch Witch; Rototiller; Sandblaster, pot, gun, nozzle operators; Signalling and rigging; Tank cleaner; Tree climber; Turbo blaster; Vibrascreed, bull float in connection with laborers' work; Vibrator; Hazardous waste worker (lead removal); Asbestos and mold removal worker

GROUP 1-a: Joy drill model TWM-2A; Gardner-Denver model DH143 and similar type drills; Track driller; Jack leg driller; Wagon driller; Mechanical drillers, all types regardless of type or method of power; Mechanical pipe layers, all types regardless of type or method of power; Blaster and powder; All work of loading, placing and blasting of all powder and explosives of whatever type regardless of method used for such loading and placing; High scalers (including drilling of same); Tree topper; Bit grinder

GROUP 1-b: Sewer cleaners shall receive \$4.00 per day above Group 1 wage rates. ""Sewer cleaner"" means any worker who handles or comes in contact with raw sewage in small diameter sewers. Those who work inside recently active, large diameter sewers, and all recently active sewer manholes shal receive \$5.00 per day above Group 1 wage rates.

GROUP 1-c: Burning and welding in connection with laborers' work; Synthetic thermoplastics and similar type welding

GROUP 1-d: Maintenance and repair track and road beds. All employees performing work covered herein shall receive \$.25 per hour above their regular rate for all work performed on underground structures not specifically covered herein. This paragraph shall not be construed to apply to work below ground level in open cut. It shall apply to cut and cover work of subway construction after the temporary cover has been placed.

GROUP 1-e: Work on and/or in bell hole footings and shafts thereof, and work on and in deep footings. (A deep footing is a hole 15 feet or more in depth.) In the event the depth of the footing is unknown at the commencement of excavation, and the final depth exceeds 15 feet, the deep footing wage rate would apply to all employees for each and every day worked on or in the excavation of the footing from the date of inception.

GROUP 1-f: Wire winding machine in connection with guniting or shot crete

GROUP 2: Asphalt shoveler; Cement dumper and handling dry cement or gypsum; Choke-setter and rigger (clearing work); Concrete bucket dumper and chute; Concrete chipping and grinding; Concrete laborer (wet or dry); Driller tender, chuck tender, nipper; Guinea chaser (stake), grout crew; High pressure nozzle, adductor; Hydraulic monitor (over 100 lbs. pressure); Loading and unloading, carrying and hauling of all rods and materials for use in reinforcing concrete construction; Pittsburgh chipper and similar type brush shredders; Sloper; Single foot, hand-held, pneumatic tamper; All pneumatic, air, gas and electric tools not listed in Groups 1 through 1-f; Jacking of pipe - under 12 inches

GROUP 3: Construction laborers, including bridge and general laborer; Dump, load spotter; Flag person; Fire watcher; Fence erector; Guardrail erector; Gardener, horticultural

and landscape laborer; Jetting; Limber, brush loader and piler; Pavement marker (button setter); Maintenance, repair track and road beds; Streetcar and railroad construction track laborer; Temporary air and water lines, Victaulic or similar; Tool room attendant (jobsite only)

GROUP 4: Final clean-up work of debris, grounds and building including but not limited to: street cleaner; cleaning and washing windows; brick cleaner (jobsite only); material cleaner (jobsite only). The classification ""material cleaner" is to be utilized under the following conditions:

A: at demolition site for the salvage of the material.

B: at the conclusion of a job where the material is to be salvaged and stocked to be reused on another job.

C: for the cleaning of salvage material at the jobsite or temporary jobsite yard.

The material cleaner classification should not be used in the performance of ""form stripping, cleaning and oiling and moving to the next point of erection"".

GUNITE LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Structural Nozzleman

GROUP 2: Nozzleman, Gunman, Potman, Groundman

GROUP 3: Reboundman

GROUP 4: Gunite laborer

WRECKING WORK LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Skilled wrecker (removing and salvaging of sash, windows and materials)

GROUP 2: Semi-skilled wrecker (salvaging of other building materials)

LABO0185-008 07/01/2023

Rates Fringes
Plasterer tender......\$ 39.77 28.54

Work on a swing stage scaffold: \$1.00 per hour additional.

LAB00261-002 07/01/2023

MARIN COUNTY

Rates	s Fringes	
LABORER (TRAFFIC CONTROL/LANE		
CLOSURE)		
Escort Driver, Flag Person\$ 37.2	26 27.30	
Traffic Control Person I\$ 37.5	27.30	
Traffic Control Person II\$ 35.0	27.30	

TRAFFIC CONTROL PERSON I: Layout of traffic control, crash cushions, construction area and roadside signage.

TRAFFIC CONTROL PERSON II: Installation and removal of temporary/permanent signs, markers, delineators and crash cushions.

LAB00261-004 06/26/2023

MARIN COUNTY

	Rat	tes Fr:	inges
			Ü
Tunnel and Shaft L	aborers:		
GROUP 1	\$ 45	5.89	27.72
GROUP 2	\$ 45	5.66	27.72
GROUP 3	\$ 45	5.41	27.72
GROUP 4	\$ 44	4.96	27.72
GROUP 5	\$ 44	4.42	27.72
Shotcrete Spe	cialist\$ 46	6.41	27.72

TUNNEL AND SHAFT CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Diamond driller; Groundmen; Gunite and shotcrete nozzlemen

GROUP 2: Rodmen; Shaft work & raise (below actual or excavated ground level)

GROUP 3: Bit grinder; Blaster, driller, powdermen, heading; Cherry pickermen - where car is lifted; Concrete finisher in tunnel; Concrete screedman; Grout pumpman and potman; Gunite & shotcrete gunman & potman; Headermen; High pressure nozzleman; Miner - tunnel, including top and bottom man on shaft and raise work; Nipper; Nozzleman on

slick line; Sandblaster - potman, Robotic Shotcrete Placer, Segment Erector, Tunnel Muck Hauler, Steel Form raiser and setter; Timberman, retimberman (wood or steel or substitute materials therefore); Tugger (for tunnel laborer work); Cable tender; Chuck tender; Powderman - primer house

GROUP 4: Vibrator operator, pavement breaker; Bull gang - muckers, trackmen; Concrete crew - includes rodding and spreading, Dumpmen (any method)

GROUP 5: Grout crew; Reboundman; Swamper/ Brakeman

LAB00261-007 07/01/2023

MARIN COUNTY

	Rates	Fringes	
LABORER Mason Tender-Brick	\$ 37.54	25.55	
LAB00261-010 06/26/2023			-

MARIN COUNTY

F	Rates	Fringes
LABORER (CONSTRUCTION CRAFT LABORERS - AREA A:)		
Construction Specialist		
Group\$	37.20	27.30
GROUP 1\$		27.30
GROUP 1-a\$		27.30
GROUP 1-c\$		27.30
GROUP 1-e\$		27.30
GROUP 1-f\$	31.37	23.20
GROUP 2\$	36.35	27.30
GROUP 3\$	36.25	27.30
GROUP 4\$	29.94	27.30
See groups 1-b and 1-d under labo	orer classifica	itions.
LABORER (GARDENERS,		
HORTICULTURAL & LANDSCAPE		
LABORERS - AREA A:)		
(1) New Construction\$	36.25	27.30
(2) Establishment Warranty		
Period\$	29.94	27.30
LABORER (GUNITE - AREA A:)		
GROUP 1\$		27.30
GROUP 2\$	36.96	27.30

GROUP 3	\$ 36.37	27.30
GROUP 4	\$ 36.25	27.30
LABORER (WRECKING - AREA A	i:)	
GROUP 1	\$ 36.50	27.30
GROUP 2	\$ 36.35	27.30

FOOTNOTES:

Laborers working off or with or from bos'n chairs, swinging scaffolds, belts shall receive \$0.25 per hour above the applicable wage rate. This shall not apply to workers entitled to receive the wage rate set forth in Group 1-a below.

LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

CONSTRUCTION SPECIALIST GROUP: Asphalt ironer and raker; Chainsaw; Laser beam in connection with laborers' work; Cast-in- place manhole form setter; Pressure pipelayer; Davis trencher - 300 or similar type (and all small trenchers); Blaster; Diamond driller; Multiple unit drill; Hydraulic drill

GROUP 1: Asphalt spreader boxes (all types); Barko, Wacker and similar type tampers; Buggymobile; Caulker, bander, pipewrapper, conduit layer, plastic pipelayer; Certified hazardous waste worker including Leade Abatement; Compactors of all types; Concrete and magnesite mixer, 1/2 yd. and under; Concrete pan work; Concrete sander; Concrete saw; Cribber and/or shoring; Cut granite curb setter; Dri-pak-it machine; Faller, logloader and bucker; Form raiser, slip forms; Green cutter; Headerboard, Hubsetter, aligner, by any method; High pressure blow pipe (1-1/2"" or over, 100 lbs. pressure/over); Hydro seeder and similar type; Jackhammer operator; Jacking of pipe over 12 inches; Jackson and similar type compactor; Kettle tender, pot and worker applying asphalt, lay-kold, creosote, lime, caustic and similar type materials (applying means applying, dipping or handling of such materials); Lagging, sheeting, whaling, bracing, trenchjacking, lagging hammer; Magnesite, epoxyresin, fiberglass, mastic worker (wet or dry); No joint pipe and stripping of same, including repair of voids; Pavement breaker and spader, including tool grinder; Perma curb; Pipelayer (including grade checking in connection with pipelaying); Precast-manhole setter; Pressure pipe tester; Post hole digger, air, gas and electric; Power broom sweeper; Power tampers of all types (except as shown in Group 2); Ram set gun and stud gun;

Riprap stonepaver and rock-slinger, including placing of sacked concrete and/or sand (wet or dry) and gabions and similar type; Rotary scarifier or multiple head concrete chipping scarifier; Roto and Ditch Witch; Rototiller; Sandblaster, pot, gun, nozzle operators; Signalling and rigging; Tank cleaner; Tree climber; Turbo blaster; Vibrascreed, bull float in connection with laborers' work; Vibrator; Hazardous waste worker (lead removal); Asbestos and mold removal worker

GROUP 1-a: Joy drill model TWM-2A; Gardner-Denver model DH143 and similar type drills; Track driller; Jack leg driller; Wagon driller; Mechanical drillers, all types regardless of type or method of power; Mechanical pipe layers, all types regardless of type or method of power; Blaster and powder; All work of loading, placing and blasting of all powder and explosives of whatever type regardless of method used for such loading and placing; High scalers (including drilling of same); Tree topper; Bit grinder

GROUP 1-b: Sewer cleaners shall receive \$4.00 per day above Group 1 wage rates. ""Sewer cleaner"" means any worker who handles or comes in contact with raw sewage in small diameter sewers. Those who work inside recently active, large diameter sewers, and all recently active sewer manholes shal receive \$5.00 per day above Group 1 wage rates.

GROUP 1-c: Burning and welding in connection with laborers' work; Synthetic thermoplastics and similar type welding

GROUP 1-d: Maintenance and repair track and road beds. All employees performing work covered herein shall receive \$.25 per hour above their regular rate for all work performed on underground structures not specifically covered herein. This paragraph shall not be construed to apply to work below ground level in open cut. It shall apply to cut and cover work of subway construction after the temporary cover has been placed.

GROUP 1-e: Work on and/or in bell hole footings and shafts thereof, and work on and in deep footings. (A deep footing is a hole 15 feet or more in depth.) In the event the depth of the footing is unknown at the commencement of excavation, and the final depth exceeds 15 feet, the deep footing wage rate would apply to all employees for each and every day worked on or in the excavation of the footing from the date of inception.

GROUP 1-f: Wire winding machine in connection with guniting

GROUP 2: Asphalt shoveler; Cement dumper and handling dry cement or gypsum; Choke-setter and rigger (clearing work); Concrete bucket dumper and chute; Concrete chipping and grinding; Concrete laborer (wet or dry); Driller tender, chuck tender, nipper; Guinea chaser (stake), grout crew; High pressure nozzle, adductor; Hydraulic monitor (over 100 lbs. pressure); Loading and unloading, carrying and hauling of all rods and materials for use in reinforcing concrete construction; Pittsburgh chipper and similar type brush shredders; Sloper; Single foot, hand-held, pneumatic tamper; All pneumatic, air, gas and electric tools not listed in Groups 1 through 1-f; Jacking of pipe - under 12 inches

GROUP 3: Construction laborers, including bridge and general laborer; Dump, load spotter; Flag person; Fire watcher; Fence erector; Guardrail erector; Gardener, horticultural and landscape laborer; Jetting; Limber, brush loader and piler; Pavement marker (button setter); Maintenance, repair track and road beds; Streetcar and railroad construction track laborer; Temporary air and water lines, Victaulic or similar; Tool room attendant (jobsite only)

GROUP 4: Final clean-up work of debris, grounds and building including but not limited to: street cleaner; cleaning and washing windows; brick cleaner (jobsite only); material cleaner (jobsite only). The classification ""material cleaner" is to be utilized under the following conditions:

A: at demolition site for the salvage of the material.

B: at the conclusion of a job where the material is to be salvaged and stocked to be reused on another job.

C: for the cleaning of salvage material at the jobsite or temporary jobsite yard.

The material cleaner classification should not be used in the performance of ""form stripping, cleaning and oiling and moving to the next point of erection"".

GUNITE LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Structural Nozzleman

GROUP 2: Nozzleman, Gunman, Potman, Groundman

GROUP 3: Reboundman

WRECKING WORK LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Skilled wrecker (removing and salvaging of sash, windows and materials)

GROUP 2: Semi-skilled wrecker (salvaging of other building materials)

LAB00261-015 07/01/2023

	Rates	Fringes
Plasterer tender	.\$ 39.77	28.54
Work on a swing stage scaffold:	\$1.00 per hour a	dditional.

Rates

Fringes

LAB00324-004 07/01/2023

NAPA, SOLANO, AND SONOMA, COUNTIES

	•
LABORER (TRAFFIC CONTROL/LANE CLOSURE)	
Escort Driver, Flag Person\$ 36.26	27.30
Traffic Control Person I\$ 36.56	27.30
Traffic Control Person II\$ 34.06	27.30

TRAFFIC CONTROL PERSON I: Layout of traffic control, crash cushions, construction area and roadside signage.

TRAFFIC CONTROL PERSON II: Installation and removal of temporary/permanent signs, markers, delineators and crash cushions.

LAB00324-008 06/26/2023

NAPA, SOLANO, AND SONOMA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
Tunnel and Shaft Laborers:		
GROUP 1	\$ 45.89	27.72
GROUP 2	\$ 45.66	27.72

GROUP 3\$	45.41	27.72
GROUP 4\$	44.96	27.72
GROUP 5\$	44.42	27.72
Shotcrete Specialist\$	46.41	27.72

TUNNEL AND SHAFT CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Diamond driller; Groundmen; Gunite and shotcrete nozzlemen

GROUP 2: Rodmen; Shaft work & raise (below actual or excavated ground level)

GROUP 3: Bit grinder; Blaster, driller, powdermen, heading; Cherry pickermen - where car is lifted; Concrete finisher in tunnel; Concrete screedman; Grout pumpman and potman; Gunite & shotcrete gunman & potman; Headermen; High pressure nozzleman; Miner - tunnel, including top and bottom man on shaft and raise work; Nipper; Nozzleman on slick line; Sandblaster - potman, Robotic Shotcrete Placer, Segment Erector, Tunnel Muck Hauler, Steel Form raiser and setter; Timberman, retimberman (wood or steel or substitute materials therefore); Tugger (for tunnel laborer work); Cable tender; Chuck tender; Powderman - primer house

GROUP 4: Vibrator operator, pavement breaker; Bull gang - muckers, trackmen; Concrete crew - includes rodding and spreading, Dumpmen (any method)

GROUP 5: Grout crew; Reboundman; Swamper/ Brakeman

LAB00324-010 07/01/2023

SOLANO AND SONOMA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes	
LABORER			
Mason Tender-Brick	\$ 36.84	26.24	
LAB00324-013 06/26/2023			_

NAPA, SOLANO, AND SONOMA COUNTIES

Rates Fringes

LABORER (CONSTRUCTION CRAFT LABORERS - AREA B:)
Construction Specialist

Group\$ 36.20	27.30
GROUP 1\$ 35.50	27.30
GROUP 1-a\$ 35.72	27.30
GROUP 1-c\$ 35.55	27.30
GROUP 1-e\$ 36.05	27.30
GROUP 1-f\$ 36.08	27.30
GROUP 2\$ 35.35	27.30
GROUP 3\$ 35.25	27.30
GROUP 4\$ 28.94	27.30
See groups 1-b and 1-d under laborer classificati	ons.
LABORER (GARDENERS,	
HORTICULTURAL & LANDSCAPE	
LABORERS - AREA B:)	
(1) New Construction\$ 35.25	27.30
(2) Establishment Warranty	
Period\$ 28.94	27.30
LABORER (GUNITE - AREA B:)	
GROUP 1\$ 36.46	27.30
GROUP 2\$ 35.96	27.30
GROUP 3\$ 35.37	27.30
GROUP 4\$ 35.25	27.30
LABORER (WRECKING - AREA B:)	
GROUP 1\$ 35.50	27.30
GROUP 2\$ 35.35	27.30

FOOTNOTES:

Laborers working off or with or from bos'n chairs, swinging scaffolds, belts shall receive \$0.25 per hour above the applicable wage rate. This shall not apply to workers entitled to receive the wage rate set forth in Group 1-a below.

LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

CONSTRUCTION SPECIALIST GROUP: Asphalt ironer and raker; Chainsaw; Laser beam in connection with laborers' work; Cast-in- place manhole form setter; Pressure pipelayer; Davis trencher - 300 or similar type (and all small trenchers); Blaster; Diamond driller; Multiple unit drill; Hydraulic drill

GROUP 1: Asphalt spreader boxes (all types); Barko, Wacker and similar type tampers; Buggymobile; Caulker, bander, pipewrapper, conduit layer, plastic pipelayer; Certified hazardous waste worker including Leade Abatement; Compactors of all types; Concrete and magnesite mixer, 1/2 yd. and under; Concrete pan work; Concrete sander; Concrete

saw; Cribber and/or shoring; Cut granite curb setter; Dri-pak-it machine; Faller, logloader and bucker; Form raiser, slip forms; Green cutter; Headerboard, Hubsetter, aligner, by any method; High pressure blow pipe (1-1/2"" or over, 100 lbs. pressure/over); Hydro seeder and similar type; Jackhammer operator; Jacking of pipe over 12 inches; Jackson and similar type compactor; Kettle tender, pot and worker applying asphalt, lay-kold, creosote, lime, caustic and similar type materials (applying means applying, dipping or handling of such materials); Lagging, sheeting, whaling, bracing, trenchjacking, lagging hammer; Magnesite, epoxyresin, fiberglass, mastic worker (wet or dry); No joint pipe and stripping of same, including repair of voids; Pavement breaker and spader, including tool grinder; Perma curb; Pipelayer (including grade checking in connection with pipelaying); Precast-manhole setter; Pressure pipe tester; Post hole digger, air, gas and electric; Power broom sweeper; Power tampers of all types (except as shown in Group 2); Ram set gun and stud gun; Riprap stonepaver and rock-slinger, including placing of sacked concrete and/or sand (wet or dry) and gabions and similar type; Rotary scarifier or multiple head concrete chipping scarifier; Roto and Ditch Witch; Rototiller; Sandblaster, pot, gun, nozzle operators; Signalling and rigging; Tank cleaner; Tree climber; Turbo blaster; Vibrascreed, bull float in connection with laborers' work; Vibrator; Hazardous waste worker (lead removal); Asbestos and mold removal worker

GROUP 1-a: Joy drill model TWM-2A; Gardner-Denver model DH143 and similar type drills; Track driller; Jack leg driller; Wagon driller; Mechanical drillers, all types regardless of type or method of power; Mechanical pipe layers, all types regardless of type or method of power; Blaster and powder; All work of loading, placing and blasting of all powder and explosives of whatever type regardless of method used for such loading and placing; High scalers (including drilling of same); Tree topper; Bit grinder

GROUP 1-b: Sewer cleaners shall receive \$4.00 per day above Group 1 wage rates. ""Sewer cleaner"" means any worker who handles or comes in contact with raw sewage in small diameter sewers. Those who work inside recently active, large diameter sewers, and all recently active sewer manholes shal receive \$5.00 per day above Group 1 wage rates.

GROUP 1-c: Burning and welding in connection with laborers' work; Synthetic thermoplastics and similar type welding

GROUP 1-d: Maintenance and repair track and road beds. All employees performing work covered herein shall receive \$.25 per hour above their regular rate for all work performed on underground structures not specifically covered herein. This paragraph shall not be construed to apply to work below ground level in open cut. It shall apply to cut and cover work of subway construction after the temporary cover has been placed.

GROUP 1-e: Work on and/or in bell hole footings and shafts thereof, and work on and in deep footings. (A deep footing is a hole 15 feet or more in depth.) In the event the depth of the footing is unknown at the commencement of excavation, and the final depth exceeds 15 feet, the deep footing wage rate would apply to all employees for each and every day worked on or in the excavation of the footing from the date of inception.

GROUP 1-f: Wire winding machine in connection with guniting or shot crete

GROUP 2: Asphalt shoveler; Cement dumper and handling dry cement or gypsum; Choke-setter and rigger (clearing work); Concrete bucket dumper and chute; Concrete chipping and grinding; Concrete laborer (wet or dry); Driller tender, chuck tender, nipper; Guinea chaser (stake), grout crew; High pressure nozzle, adductor; Hydraulic monitor (over 100 lbs. pressure); Loading and unloading, carrying and hauling of all rods and materials for use in reinforcing concrete construction; Pittsburgh chipper and similar type brush shredders; Sloper; Single foot, hand-held, pneumatic tamper; All pneumatic, air, gas and electric tools not listed in Groups 1 through 1-f; Jacking of pipe - under 12 inches

GROUP 3: Construction laborers, including bridge and general laborer; Dump, load spotter; Flag person; Fire watcher; Fence erector; Guardrail erector; Gardener, horticultural and landscape laborer; Jetting; Limber, brush loader and piler; Pavement marker (button setter); Maintenance, repair track and road beds; Streetcar and railroad construction track laborer; Temporary air and water lines, Victaulic or similar; Tool room attendant (jobsite only)

GROUP 4: Final clean-up work of debris, grounds and building including but not limited to: street cleaner; cleaning and washing windows; brick cleaner (jobsite only); material cleaner (jobsite only). The classification ""material cleaner" is to be utilized under the following conditions: A: at demolition site for the salvage of the material.

B: at the conclusion of a job where the material is to be salvaged and stocked to be reused on another job.
C: for the cleaning of salvage material at the jobsite or temporary jobsite yard.

The material cleaner classification should not be used in the performance of ""form stripping, cleaning and oiling and moving to the next point of erection"".

GUNITE LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Structural Nozzleman

GROUP 2: Nozzleman, Gunman, Potman, Groundman

GROUP 3: Reboundman

GROUP 4: Gunite laborer

WRECKING WORK LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Skilled wrecker (removing and salvaging of sash, windows and materials)

GROUP 2: Semi-skilled wrecker (salvaging of other building materials)

LAB00324-019 07/01/2023

Rates Fringes

Plasterer tender...... \$ 39.77 28.54

Work on a swing stage scaffold: \$1.00 per hour additional.

PAIN0016-004 01/01/2025

MARIN, NAPA, SOLANO & SONOMA COUNTIES

Rates Fringes

Painters:..... \$ 53.38 28.04

PREMIUMS:

EXOTIC MATERIALS - \$1.25 additional per hour.

SPRAY WORK: - \$0.50 additional per hour.
INDUSTRIAL PAINTING - \$0.25 additional per hour
[Work on industrial buildings used for the manufacture and processing of goods for sale or service; steel construction (bridges), stacks, towers, tanks, and similar structures]

HIGH WORK:

over 50 feet - \$2.00 per hour additional 100 to 180 feet - \$4.00 per hour additional Over 180 feet - \$6.00 per houir additional

PAIN0016-005 01/01/2025

ALPINE, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO (west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains), GLENN, LASSEN (west of Hwy. 395, excluding Honey Lake); MARIN, MODOC, NAPA, NEVADA (west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains), PLACER (west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains), PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA (west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains), SISKIYOU, SOLANO, SONOMA, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO AND YUBA COUNTIES

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA. EL DORADO (west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains), GLENN, LASSEN (west of Highway 395, excluding Honey Lake), MODOC, NEVADA (west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains), PLACER (west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains), PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA (west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains), SISKIYOU, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO & YUBA COUNTIES

SPRAY/SANDBLAST: \$0.50 additional per hour. EXOTIC MATERIALS: \$1.25 additional per hour.

HIGH TIME: Over 50 ft above ground or water level \$2.00 additional per hour. 100 to 180 ft above ground or water level \$4.00 additional per hour. Over 180 ft above ground or water level \$6.00 additional per hour.

PAIN0016-008 01/01/2024

MARIN, NAPA, SOLANO AND SONOMA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
SOFT FLOOR LAYER	\$ 59.00	33.03
PAIN0169-004 01/01/2024		

MARIN, NAPA & SONOMA COUNTIES; SOLANO COUNTY (west of a line defined as follows: Hwy. 80 corridor beginning at the City of Fairfield, including Travis Air Force Base and Suisun City; going north of Manakas Corner Rd., continue north on Suisun Valley Rd. to the Napa County line; Hwy. 80 corridor south on Grizzly Island Rd. to the Grizzly Island Management area)

	Rates	Fringes
GLAZIER	\$ 56.22	34.00

^{*} PAIN0567-001 07/01/2025

EL DORADO COUNTY (east of the Sierra Nevada Mountains); LASSEN COUNTY (east of Highway 395, beginning at Stacey and including Honey Lake); NEVADA COUNTY (east of the Sierra Nevada Mountains); PLACER COUNTY (east of the Sierra Nevada Mountains); AND SIERRA COUNTY (east of the Sierra Nevada Mountains)

	Rates	Fringes
Painters:		
Brush and Roller	\$ 39.43	16.16
Paperhanger	\$ 42.19	16.16
Spray Painter	\$ 41.43	16.16

PREMIUMS:

Special Coatings (Brush), and Sandblasting = \$0.50/hr Special Coatings (Spray), and Steeplejack = \$1.00/hr Special Coating Spray Steel = \$1.25/hr Swing Stage = \$2.00/hr

*A special coating is a coating that requires the mixing of 2 or more products.

EL DORADO COUNTY (east of the Sierra Nevada Mountains); LASSEN COUNTY (east of Highway 395, beginning at Stacey and including Honey Lake); NEVADA COUNTY (east of the Sierra Nevada Mountains); PLACER COUNTY (east of the Sierra Nevada Mountains) AND SIERRA COUNTY (east of the Sierra Nevada Mountains)

	Rates	Fringes
SOFT FLOOR LAYER	.\$ 34.27	16.47
PAIN0567-010 07/01/2024		

EL DORADO COUNTY (east of the Sierra Nevada Mountains); LASSEN COUNTY (east of Highway 395, beginning at Stacey and including Honey Lake); NEVADA COUNTY (east of the Sierra Nevada Mountains); PLACER COUNTY (east of the Sierra Nevada Mountains); AND SIERRA COUNTY (east of the Sierra Nevada Mountains)

	Rates	Fringes
Drywall (1) Taper (2) Steeplejack - Taper, over 40 ft with open space	.\$ 42.79	16.12
below	.\$ 44.29	16.12

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, SOLANO (Remainder), SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO, YUBA

	Rates	Fringes
GLAZIER	\$ 43.25	35.62

PAID HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day.

Employee required to wear a body harness shall receive \$1.50 per hour above the basic hourly rate at any elevation.

PAIN1176-001 07/01/2022

PAIN0767-004 01/01/2024

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT

	Rates	Fringes
Parking Lot Striping/Highway		
Marking:		
GROUP 1	\$ 40.83	17.62
GROUP 2	\$ 34.71	17.62
GROUP 3	\$ 35.11	17.62

CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Striper: Layout and application of painted traffic stripes and marking; hot thermo plastic; tape, traffic stripes and markings

GROUP 2: Gamecourt & Playground Installer

GROUP 3: Protective Coating, Pavement Sealing

PAIN1237-001 01/01/2024

ALPINE; COLUSA; EL DORADO (west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains); GLENN; LASSEN (west of Highway 395, beginning at Stacey and including Honey Lake); MODOC; NEVADA (west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains); PLACER (west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains); PLUMAS; SACRAMENTO; SHASTA; SIERRA (west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains); SISKIYOU; SUTTER; TEHAMA; TRINITY; YOLO AND YUBA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
SOFT FLOOR LAYER	\$ 48.54	26.59
PLAS0300-003 07/01/2018		
	Rates	Fringes

PLASTERER

AREA 295: Alpine, Amador, Butte, Colusa, El Dorado, Glenn, Lassen, Modoc, Nevada, Placer, Plumas, Sacramento, Shasta, Sierra, Siskiyou, Solano, Sutter, Tehema, Trinity,

Yolo & Yuba Counties......\$ 32.70

31.68

AREA 355: MarinAREA 355: Napa & Sonoma	\$ 36.73	31.68
Counties		31.68
PLAS0300-005 07/01/2016		
	Rates	Fringes
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER	\$ 32.15	23.27
PLUM0038-002 07/01/2025		
MARIN AND SONOMA COUNTIES		
	Rates	Fringes
PLUMBER (Plumber, Steamfitter, Refrigeration Fitter) (1) Work on wooden frame structures 5 stories or less excluding high-rise buildings and commercial work such as hospitals, prisons, hotels, schools, casinos, wastewater treatment plants, and resarch facilities as well as refrigeration pipefitting, service and repair work - MARKET RECOVERY RATE	\$ 91.00	46.38 49.40
PLUM0038-006 07/01/2025		
MARIN & SONOMA COUNTIES		
	Rates	Fringes
Landscape/Irrigation Fitter (Underground/Utility Fitter)	.\$ 77.35	36.53
PLUM0228-001 07/01/2025		
BUTTE, COLUSA, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, PLUMAS, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY & YUBA COUNTIES		

Rates	Fringes

PLUMBER...... \$ 50.55 41.04

PLUM0343-001 07/01/2025

NAPA AND SOLANO COUNTIES

F	Rates	Fringes
PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER		
Light Commercial\$	30.85	20.40
All Other Work\$	71.60	38.38

DEFINITION OF LIGHT COMMERICIAL:

Work shall include strip shopping centers, office buildings, schools and other commercial structures which the total plumbing bid does not exceed Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand (\$250,000) and the total heating and cooling does not exceed Two Hundred Fifty Thousand (\$250,000); or Any projects bid in phases shall not qualify unless the total project is less than Two Hundred Fifty Thousand (\$250,000) for the plumbing bid; and Two Hundred Fifty Thousand (\$250,000) for the heating and cooling bid. Excluded are hospitals, jails, institutions and industrial projects, regardless size of the project

FOOTNOTES: While fitting galvanized material: \$.75 per hour additional. Work from trusses, temporary staging, unguarded structures 35' from the ground or water: \$.75 per hour additional. Work from swinging scaffolds, boatswains chairs or similar devices: \$.75 per hour additional.

PLUM0350-001 08/01/2023

EL DORADO COUNTY (Lake Tahoe area only); NEVADA COUNTY (Lake Tahoe area only); AND PLACER COUNTY (Lake Tahoe area only)

	Rates	Fringes
PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER	\$ 52.14	18.71

PLUM0355-001 07/01/2025

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, NAPA, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, SOLANO, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO, AND YUBA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
Underground Utility Worker /Landscape Fitter PLUM0442-003 07/01/2025	\$ 36.01	18.50
AMADOR (South of San Joaquin Ri	ver) and AL	PINE COUNTIES
	Rates	Fringes
PLUMBER PLUM0447-001 07/01/2025		38.14
AMADOR (north of San Joaquin Ri Tahoe area), NEVADA (excluding (excluding Lake Tahoe area), SA	Lake Tahoe	area); PLACER
	Rates	Fringes
PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER JourneymanLight Commercial Work	\$ 55.58	30.00 24.02
ROOF0081-006 08/01/2024		
MARIN, NAPA, SOLANO AND SONOMA	COUNTIES	
	Rates	Fringes
Roofer	•	23.34
ROOF0081-007 08/01/2023		
ALPINE, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORAD PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHA TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO, AND YUBA	SŤA, SIERRA	
	Rates	Fringes
Roofer	•	21.36
SFCA0483-003 08/04/2025		
MARIN, NAPA, SOLANO AND SONOMA	COUNTIES	

	Rates	Fringes	
SPRINKLER FITTER (Fire Sprinklers)			
SFCA0669-003 04/01/2025			
ALPINE, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHAS TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO AND YUBA C	TA, SIERRA, SIS		
	Rates	Fringes	
SPRINKLER FITTER		28.56	
SHEE0104-006 06/29/2020			
MARIN, NAPA, SOLANO SONOMA & TR	INITY COUNTIES		
	Rates	Fringes	
Sheet Metal Worker Mechanical Contracts \$200,000 or less	.\$ 64.06	45.29 46.83	
SHEE0104-009 07/01/2021			
AMADOR, COLUSA, EL DORADO, NEVAD YOLO AND YUBA COUNTIES	A, PLACER, SACRA	AMENTO, SUTTER,	
	Rates	Fringes	
SHEET METAL WORKER		41.90	
SHEE0104-010 07/01/2020			
Alpine COUNTY			
	Rates	Fringes	
SHEET METAL WORKER	.\$ 43.50	37.42	
SHEE0104-011 07/01/2020			
BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, SUTTER, TEHAMA,			

YOLO AND YUBA COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
Sheet Metal Worker (Metal decking and siding only)	\$ 44.45	35.55
SHEE0104-014 07/01/2020		
MARIN, NAPA, SOLANO, SONOMA AND	TRINITY COUNTIE	:S
	Rates	Fringes
SHEET METAL WORKER (Metal Decking and Siding only)	\$ 44.45	35.55
SHEE0104-019 07/01/2020		
BUTTE, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, PL AND TEHAMA COUNTIES	UMAS, SHASTA, SI	ERRA, SISKIYOU
	Rates	Fringes
SHEET METAL WORKER		
Mechanical Jobs \$200,000 & under		35.88
Mechanical Jobs over \$200,000	\$ 46.60	40.21
TEAM0094-001 07/01/2025		
	Rates	Fringes
Truck drivers:		
GROUP 1	\$ 43.26	34.28
GROUP 2	•	34.28
GROUP 3	•	34.28
GROUP 4		34.28
GROUP 5	⊅ 44.⊃6	34.28
FOOTNOTES: Articulated dump truck; Bulk cement spreader (with or without auger); Dumpcrete truck; Skid truck (debris box); Dry pre-batch concrete mix trucks; Dumpster or similar type;		

Articulated dump truck; Bulk cement spreader (with or without auger); Dumpcrete truck; Skid truck (debris box); Dry pre-batch concrete mix trucks; Dumpster or similar type; Slurry truck: Use dump truck yardage rate. Heater planer; Asphalt burner; Scarifier burner; Industrial lift truck (mechanical tailgate); Utility and clean-up truck: Use appropriate rate for the power unit or the

TRUCK DRIVER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Dump trucks, under 6 yds.; Single unit flat rack (2-axle unit); Nipper truck (when flat rack truck is used appropriate flat rack shall apply); Concrete pump truck (when flat rack truck is used appropriate flat rack shall apply); Concrete pump machine; Fork lift and lift jitneys; Fuel and/or grease truck driver or fuel person; Snow buggy; Steam cleaning; Bus or personhaul driver; Escort or pilot car driver; Pickup truck; Teamster oiler/greaser and/or serviceperson; Hook tender (including loading and unloading); Team driver; Tool room attendant (refineries)

GROUP 2: Dump trucks, 6 yds. and under 8 yds.; Transit mixers, through 10 yds.; Water trucks, under 7,000 gals.; Jetting trucks, under 7,000 gals.; Single-unit flat rack (3-axle unit); Highbed heavy duty transport; Scissor truck; Rubber-tired muck car (not self-loaded); Rubber-tired truck jumbo; Winch truck and ""A"" frame drivers; Combination winch truck with hoist; Road oil truck or bootperson; Buggymobile; Ross, Hyster and similar straddle carriers; Small rubber-tired tractor

GROUP 3: Dump trucks, 8 yds. and including 24 yds.; Transit mixers, over 10 yds.; Water trucks, 7,000 gals. and over; Jetting trucks, 7,000 gals. and over; Vacuum trucks under 7500 gals. Trucks towing tilt bed or flat bed pull trailers; Lowbed heavy duty transport; Heavy duty transport tiller person; Self- propelled street sweeper with self-contained refuse bin; Boom truck - hydro-lift or Swedish type extension or retracting crane; P.B. or similar type self-loading truck; Tire repairperson; Combination bootperson and road oiler; Dry distribution truck (A bootperson when employed on such equipment, shall receive the rate specified for the classification of road oil trucks or bootperson); Ammonia nitrate distributor, driver and mixer; Snow Go and/or plow

GROUP 4: Dump trucks, over 25 yds. and under 65 yds.; Water pulls - DW 10's, 20's, 21's and other similar equipment when pulling Aqua/pak or water tank trailers; Helicopter pilots (when transporting men and materials); Lowbedk Heavy Duty Transport up to including 7 axles; DW10's, 20's, 21's and other similar Cat type, Terra Cobra, LeTourneau Pulls, Tournorocker, Euclid and similar type equipment when pulling fuel and/or grease tank trailers or other miscellaneous trailers; Vacuum Trucks 7500 gals and over

and truck repairman

GROUP 5: Dump trucks, 65 yds. and over; Holland hauler; Low bed Heavy Duty Transport over 7 axles

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at

https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/government-contracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (iii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classifications and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the type(s) of construction and geographic area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order under rate identifiers indicating whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate), a survey rate, a weighted union average rate, a state adopted rate, or a supplemental classification rate.

Union Rate Identifiers

A four-letter identifier beginning with characters other than ""SU"", ""UAVG"", ?SA?, or ?SC? denotes that a union rate was prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2024. PLUM is an identifier of the union whose collectively bargained rate prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. The date, 07/01/2024 in the example, is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all changes over time that are reported to WHD in the rates in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing the classification.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

The UAVG identifier indicates that no single rate prevailed for those classifications, but that 100% of the data reported for the classifications reflected union rates. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 01/01/2024. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the State of Ohio. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. The date, 01/01/2024 in the example, indicates the date the wage determination was updated to reflect the most current union average rate.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January, to reflect a weighted average of the current rates in the collective bargaining agreements on which the rate is based.

Survey Rate Identifiers

The ""SU"" identifier indicates that either a single non-union rate prevailed (as defined in 29 CFR 1.2) for this classification in the survey or that the rate was derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As a weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SUFL2022-007 6/27/2024. SU indicates the rate is a single non-union prevailing rate or a weighted average of survey data for that classification. FL indicates the State of Florida. 2022 is the year of the survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. The date, 6/27/2024 in the example, indicates the survey completion date

for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

?SU? wage rates typically remain in effect until a new survey is conducted. However, the Wage and Hour Division (WHD) has the discretion to update such rates under 29 CFR 1.6(c)(1).

State Adopted Rate Identifiers

The ""SA"" identifier indicates that the classifications and prevailing wage rates set by a state (or local) government were adopted under 29 C.F.R 1.3(g)-(h). Example: SAME2023-007 01/03/2024. SA reflects that the rates are state adopted. ME refers to the State of Maine. 2023 is the year during which the state completed the survey on which the listed classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. The date, 01/03/2024 in the example, reflects the date on which the classifications and rates under the ?SA? identifier took effect under state law in the state from which the rates were adopted.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
 - a) a survey underlying a wage determination
 - b) an existing published wage determination
- c) an initial WHD letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
- d) an initial conformance (additional classification and rate) determination

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be directed to the WHD Branch of Wage Surveys. Requests can be submitted via email to davisbaconinfo@dol.gov or by mail to:

Branch of Wage Surveys
Wage and Hour Division
U.S. Department of Labor
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20210

Regarding any other wage determination matter such as conformance decisions, requests for initial decisions should be directed to the WHD Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Requests can be submitted via email to BCWD-Office@dol.gov or

by mail to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

2) If an initial decision has been issued, then any interested party (those affected by the action) that disagrees with the decision can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Requests for review and reconsideration can be submitted via email to dba.reconsideration@dol.gov or by mail to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210.

END OF GENERAL DECISION"